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1

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

WE ACKNOWLEDGE THE BOANDIK PEOPLES AS THE TRADITIONAL CUSTODIANS
OF THE LAND WHERE WE MEET TODAY. WE RESPECT THEIR SPIRITUAL
RELATIONSHIP WITH THE LAND AND RECOGNISE THE DEEP FEELINGS OF
ATTACHMENT OUR FIRST NATIONS PEOPLES HAVE WITH THE LAND.
APOLOGIES

Nil

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Nil

CONFIRMATION OF COUNCIL MINUTES

Ordinary Council Meeting - 20 September 2022

RECOMMENDATION

That the minutes of the Ordinary Council meeting held on 20 September 2022 be
confirmed as an accurate record of the proceedings of the meeting.
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5 MAYORAL REPORT

5.1 MAYORAL REPORT - OCTOBER 2022 - REPORT NO. AR21/71003

¢ Wreath Laying Ceremony in Honour of Queen Elizabeth Il - Elizabeth Knight Reserve

e Tony Pasin MP - Big Aussie Barbie Raising Awareness for Prostate Cancer Research

¢ WIiBRD Chamber of Commerce Breakfast Meeting

e Meeting with Member for Flinders Mr Sam Telfer MP and and Hon Nicola Centofanti MLC

e Fortnightly LCLGA Mayor’s Virtual Meeting

e Audit and Risk Committee Meeting

¢ Meeting with Gareth Williams - Little Blue Wren Gifts and Art

¢ National Police Remembrance Day 2022 - Wreath Laying Ceremony

¢ Mount Gambier Solders Memorial — 100 Year Anniversary

¢ Meeting with Leader of the Opposition David Spears MP

¢ Mandatory Training Standards Information Session - Virtual

¢ Meeting with Boandik Lodge Interim CEO Glen Rappensberg and new CEO Declan Moore
e Fortnightly LCLGA Mayor’s Virtual Meeting

¢ Regional Development Australia Limestone Coast - Leadership Program - Networking Event
e Red Cross Telecross 50" Anniversary Celebration

e Mayor's Christmas Appeal Meeting

e International Soccer Club Senior Presentations

e SA CFS Mount Gambier & District Group 2022 Service Medal and Life Membership Presentation
e Mount Gambier A & H Society - Opening

e Meeting with Rachel Leonow, Regional Business Lead - SA/NT, Regional Development and
Engagement

Item 5.1 Page 6 ‘
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6 REPORTS FROM COUNCILLORS
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7 QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE

7.1 QUESTION WITH NOTICE - OLYMPIC PARK / REIDY PARK TENNIS COURTS

Meeting: Council
CM9 Reference: AF21/496
Member: Paul Jenner, Councillor

The following question on notice was received from Councillor Paul Jenner.

Question

Can the General Manager City Infrastructure provide an update on the standard and conditions
including life expectancy of the Olympic Park and Reidy Park tennis courts?

Can this update also include future plans for tennis in line with the Sport, Recreation and Open
Spaces Strategy (SROSS)?

What conversations have Council had with Tennis SA, the Mount Gambier and District Tennis
Association and the District Council of Grant with regards to the current condition of courts and the
future direction of tennis in Mount Gambier since the discussions when Wulanda Recreation and
Convention Centre started?

Response
To be provided at the meeting.

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

That the response to the question regarding Olympic Park Tennis Courts raised by Councillor Paul
Jenner be received and noted.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil

Iltem 7.1 Page 8 ‘
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7.2 QUESTION WITH NOTICE - CRATER LAKES FIRE UPDATE

Meeting: Council
CM9 Reference: AF21/496
Member: Paul Jenner, Councillor

The following question on notice was received from Councillor Paul Jenner.

Question

Given the community and tourist industries vast interest in the re-opening of trails and future fire
management of the Crater Lakes Precinct, can Council please be advised of any updates and when
a report on last summer’s fire (with investigation outcomes and recommendations) be provided to
Council?

When will important and imperative fire preventative measures start?

Response

To be provided at the meeting.

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

That the response to the question regarding the Crater Lakes Fire raised by Councillor Paul Jenner
be received and noted.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil

Item 7.2 Page 9 ‘




City of Mount Gambier 18 October 2022
Ordinary Council Meeting Agenda

7.3 QUESTION WITH NOTICE - CENTENARY TOWER ELECTRICITY

Meeting: Council
CM9 Reference: AF21/496
Member: Paul Jenner, Councillor

The following question on notice was received from Councillor Paul Jenner.

Question

Given the community’s interest, the heritage and symbolic importance of Mount Gambier’s leading
light being the Centenary Tower, can Council please be advised when the electricity and lighting of
the Tower will resume, and why it has taken a very long time to repair?

Response

To be provided at the meeting.

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

That the response to the question regarding the Centenary Tower raised by Councillor Paul Jenner
be received and noted.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil
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7.4 QUESTION WITH NOTICE - ADOLESCENT MENTAL HEALTH

Meeting: Council
CM9 Reference: AF21/496
Member: Paul Jenner, Councillor

The following question on notice was received from Councillor Paul Jenner.

Question
Is the City Council aware how big the issue is in our 2 x high schools and 2 x colleges since Covid
first started, if so, what actions has the City Council taken?

What advocacy actions is the City Council taking to help adolescent mental health get more
appropriate and professionally targeted help in Mount Gambier?

Response

To be provided at the meeting.

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

That the response to the question regarding Adolescent Menta Health raised by Councillor Paul
Jenner be received and noted.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil

Iltem 7.4 Page 11 ‘




City of Mount Gambier 18 October 2022
Ordinary Council Meeting Agenda

7.5 QUESTION WITH NOTICE - WULANDA RECREATION AND CONVENTION CENTRE
DEPRECIATION SCHEDULE

Meeting: Council
CM9 Reference: AF21/496
Member: Paul Jenner, Councillor

The following question on notice was received from Councillor Paul Jenner.

Question

Can Council please be advised of the depreciation approach and schedule to Wulanda Recreation
and Convention Centre and how a future valuation may impact depreciation?

What happens if the new valued price is hugely higher than the build price with regards to forward
budgeting? Please give an example?
Response

To be provided at the meeting.

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

That the response to the question regarding Wulanda Recreation and Convention Centre
Depreciation Schedule raised by Councillor Paul Jenner be received and noted.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil

Item 7.5 Page 12 ‘
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7.6 QUESTION WITH NOTICE - CITY DRAINAGE

Meeting: Council
CM9 Reference: AF21/496
Member: Kate Amoroso, Councillor

The following question on notice was received from Councillor Kate Amoroso.

Question

Can you please provide a drainage update within the City of Mount Gambier?

Response
To be provided at the meeting.

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

That the response to the question regarding city drainage raised by Councillor Kate Amoroso be
received and noted.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil

Item 7.6 Page 13 ‘
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7.7 QUESTION WITH NOTICE - REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORT REVIEW

Meeting: Council
CM9 Reference: AF21/496
Member: Kate Amoroso, Councillor

The following question on notice was received from Councillor Kate Amoroso.

Question

Can an update please be provided on the Regional Public Transport Review?

Response
To be provided at the meeting.

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

That the response to the question regarding the Regional Public Transport Review raised by
Councillor Kate Amoroso be received and noted.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil

Iltem 7.7 Page 14 ‘
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8 QUESTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE
9 PETITIONS
Nil

10 DEPUTATIONS
Nil
11 NOTICE OF MOTION TO RESCIND OR AMEND
Nil
12 ELECTED MEMBERS WORKSHOPS
Nil
13 ELECTED MEMBERS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Nil
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14 COUNCIL ACTION ITEMS

14.1 COUNCIL ACTION ITEMS - 20/09/2022 — REPORT NO. AR21/71042

Meeting: Council

CM9 Reference: AF21/496

Author: Sally Wilson, Executive Administrator City Infrastructure
Authoriser:

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

1.  That Council Report No. AR21/71042 titled ‘Council Action Items - 20/09/2022’ as presented
on 18 October 2022 be noted.

ltem 14.1 Page 16 ‘
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ATTACHMENTS
1. Council Action Items - 20/09/2022 §
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Division: Date From: 200%2022
Meeting Councl Date To: 2009202
Officer:
| Action Sheets Report 212 LF
Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
Councit 20092022 McCarity, Michael | NOUCE of Mobion 10 Rescind of Amend NOtiCE of MoBon 10 Amend - Release of e Mourt Gambrer PTivale HOSpRal I easibiity Study
Barber, Daren

RESOLUTION 2022/143

Moved:  CrPaul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1. That Council Report No. AR22/64162 titled ‘Notice of Motion to Amend - Release of the Mount Gambier Private Hospital Feasibilty Study’ as presented
on 20 September 2022 be noted.

2.  That. having received approval from the administrator of the Mount Gambier Private Hospital, the Confidentiality Order in resolution 2021/276
associated with Report No. AR21/51525 titled 'Community Health Information’ that was passed on 21 September 2021 be amended as follows:

Confidentiality Order Resolution 2021/276 be amended from:

In accordance with Sections 91(7) and 91(9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council orders that the report 5.1 AR21/51525 Community
Health Information and its attachments, the discussion and the resolution/s and minutes arising from the report, having been considered by the
Council in confidence under Section 80(2) & (3) (b), (d) and (g) be kept confidential and not available for public inspection until a further order is
made by Council 1o be reviewed at least once every 12 months.

Confidentiality Order Resolution 2021/276 be amended to:

In accordance with Sections 91(7) and 91(9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Coundil orders that the report 5.1 AR21/51525 Community
Health Information and its attachments, the discussion and the resolution/s and minutes arising from the report, having been considered by the
Council in confidence under Section 90(2) & (3) (b), (d) and (g) be kept confidential and not available for public inspection until a further order is
made by Council to be reviewed at least once every 12 months.

A letter and a copy of the confidential full financial feasibility assessment dated May 2021 for the Mount Gambier Private Hospital be sent to:

(a) the CEO for the Department of Health and Wellbeing - Dr Robyn Lawrence
(b) the Minister of Health and Wellbeing for SA - Chris Picton MP

(¢) the CEO of Limestone Coast Local Health Network - Ngaire Buchanan

(d) the Chairperson of the Limestone Coast Local Health Network - Grant King
(e) the Member for Mount Gambier - Troy Bell MP

CARRIED
08 Oct 2022 8:20am McCarthy, Michael - Completion
Action completed by McCarthy, Michael
Infocouncil Page1o19
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Division: Date From: 20/0%2022
Meeting Council Date To: 2009202
Officer:
__Action Sheets Report Printed: 12 October 2022 1:38 PM
Otficer/Authoriser Section Su
Council 200092022 Tedord, Mekssa Elected Members Workshops Elected Member INormationBrefing Sessions from 120872022 1o 14/092022
Philpott, Sarah

RESOLUTION 2022/144

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1. That Council Report No. AR21/71022 titled ‘Elected Member Information/Briefing Sessions from 12/08/2022 to 14/09/2022' as presented on 20
September 2022 be noted.

CARRIED

23 Sep 2022 1:57pm Telford, Melissa - Completion
Action completed by Telford, Melissa

Officer/Authorizer Section Subject
Council 20092022 Tedors, Melssa  Council Action flems Counct Action Hems - 16/08/2022
Phiipott. Sarah

RESOLUTION 2022/145

Moved:  Cr Sonya Mezinec
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1. That Council Report No. AR21/71040 titled ‘Council Action ltems - 16/08/2022' as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.
CARRIED

23 Sep 2022 1:57pm Telford, Melissa - Completion
Action completed by Telford, Melissa

Infocouncil Page 29
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Division: Date From: 2092022
Meeting. Councl Date To: 2009202
Officer:
| Action Sheets Report Printed: 120ctober 2022 1:30PM |
Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
Councit 20092022 Pasquazs, Astiee  BUIGng Fre Saely Commitee Mnutes  MInules of the Bulking F e Salety COmMitiee hex on 12 Sepiember 2022
Barver, Daren

RESOLUTION 2022/146

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Frank Morello

That the Minutes of the Building Fire Safety Committee meeting held on 12 September 2022 as previously circulated be noted,
CARRIED

23 Sep 2022 2:29pm Pasquazzi, Ashlee - Completion
Action completed by Pasquazzi, Ashlee

| Meeting Otticer/Authoriser Section Subject
Council 200092022 Keang, Xama Councit Reports 2022 Mount Gambier Chrisimas Parade temporary road closures
Coote, Tim

RESOLUTION 2022/147

Moved:  Cr Sonya Mezinec
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1. That Council Report No. AR22/61414 titled ‘2022 Mount Gambier Christmas Parade temporary road closures’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be
noted.

2. That Council be notified that, pursuant to Section 33 of the Road Traffic Act 1961 and Instrument of Delegation, the Minister of Transport has made the
order to close the following roads on Saturday, 19 November 2022:

STREET CLOSURES
COMMERCIAL - Davison Street to Crouch Street closed 8:00am to 12:30pm
STREET EAST - N/S (North/South) Anthony Street closed 10:00am to
12:30pm
- N/S Crouch Street closed 10:45am to 12:30pm

Infocouncil PageSof9
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Division: Date From: 20092022
Meeting Councl Date To: 2009202
Officer:
COMMERCIAL Crouch Street to Bay Road closed 8:30am - 2:00pm
STREET EAST N/S Crouch Street closed 10:45am - 12:30pm
N/S Krummel Street closed 10:00am - 12:30pm
N/S Compton Street closed 10:00am - 2:00pm
N/S Ferrers Street closed 8:30am - 2:00pm
N/S Bay Road closed 10:55am - 12:30pm
WATSON TERRACE N/S Watson Terrace closed 6:30am - 5:00pm
E/W Watson Terrace Bay Road closed 8:00am - 12:30pm
COMMERCIAL Bay Road to Wehl Street closed 8:30am - 2:00pm
STREET WEST - N/S Bay Road closed 10:55am - 12:30pm
N/S Gray closed 10:55am -~ 2:00pm
- N/S Elizabeth closed 10:55am - 2:00pm
N/S Wehl closed 10:30am - 2:00pm
COMMERCIAL - Wehl Street to Bertha Street closed 10:00am ~ 2:.00pm
STREET WEST
VICTORIA TERRACE | - Ellis Street to Jubilee Highway West 10:00am - 2:00pm
3. That Council be notified that, SAPOL has granted exemption for persons taking part in the Parade from the following Australian Road Rules and
Conditions:
ROAD RULES & CONDITIONS ON EXEMPTIONS FROM AUSTRALIAN
ROAD RULES
Persons taking part in the Parade are exempt from the following Road Rules when on
closed roads:
Rule 221 | Using hazard warning lights
Infocouncil Paged4 a9
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Division: Date From: 2092022
Meeting Councll Date To: 2009202
Officer:
| Action Sheets Report Printed: 12 October20221:38PM |
Rule 230 Crossing a road - general CARRIED
Rule 231 Crossing a road at pedestrian lights
Rule 232 Crossing a road at traffic lights
Rule 234 Crossing a road on or near a crossing for pedestrians
Rule 238 Pedestrians travelling along a road (except in or on a wheeled
recreational device or toy)
Rule 264 Wearing of seat belts by drivers
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:
Rule 265 Wearing of seat belts by passengers 16 years old or older
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:
Rule 266 Wearing of seat belts by passengers under 16 years old
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicie does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:
Rule 268 How persons must travel in or on a motor vehicle
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:
Rule 269 Opening doors and getting out of a vehicle etc
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 5km/h
Exemption:
Rule 298 Driving with a person in a trailer
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:
Infocouncil PageS5of9
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Division: Date From: 20/0%2022
Meeting Councll Date To: 2009202
Officer:
| Action Sheets Report .12 022 1:38 PM
Officer/Authoriser Section Subgect
TZioutZiouklans, Removal of Land Management Agreement - 109 - 113 Commercial Street West, Mount Gambier - Barry
Council 20092022 Tracy Council Reports Maney Used Venicies
Barver, Daren

RESOLUTION 2022/148

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1. That Council Report No. AR22/60483 titled ‘Removal of Land Management Agreement - 109 - 113 Commercial Street West, Mount Gambier - Barry
Maney Used Vehicles' as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.

2. That Council proceed with the removal of the Land management Agreement between the City of Mount Gambier and West Gambier Properties Pty Ltd
dated 8 December 2000.

3. Thatthe removal of the Land Management Agreement for the property located at 109-113 Commercial Street East be at the full cost and arrangement of
the current property owner of 109-113 Commercial Street East, Mount Gambier including all documentation costs, legal and conveyancing costs,
lodgement and registration fees, and including reimbursement/payment of any out of pocket expenses incurred by the Council in dealing with the
removal of the Land Management Agreement from the date of this resolution,

4. The Chief Executive Officer and Mayor be authorised to affix the Common Seal to any documentation necessary to give effect to the removal of the
Land Management Agreement for the property located at 109-113 Commercial Street East, Mount Gambier in accordance with resolutions (2) and (3) as

above.
CARRIED
23 Sep 2022 2:25pm Tzioutziouklaris, Tracy - Completion
Action completed by Tzioutzioukians, Tracy
Infocouncil Page6of9
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Division: Date From: 20/0%2022
Meeting Council Date To: 2009202
Officer:
| Action Sheets Report Printed: 12 October 2022 1:38PM |
Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
TZioutZioukians,
Council 20092022 Tracy ' Council Reports Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 - City of Mount Gambler - Development Appications
Barver, Daren

RESOLUTION 2022/149

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec

1. That Council Report No. AR22/61646 titled ‘Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 - City of Mount Gambier - Development Applications’ as
presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.

CARRIED

23 Sep 2022 2:25pm Tzioutziouklaris, Tracy - Completion
Action completed by Tzioutziouklans, Tracy

| Mesting Otficer/Authoriser Section Subject
Council 200092022 McCarthy. Mchael  Council Reports Election of LGA Presdernt
Barver, Daren

RESOLUTION 2022/150

Moved: Cr Max Bruins
Seconded: Cr Frank Morello

1. That Council Report No. AR22/62077 titled ‘Election of LGA President ’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.
2. That Council endorse the following candidate for the 2022 election for Local Government Association President:
* Mayor Erika VICKERY OAM
The ballot paper be marked, sealed and returned to the Returning Officer accordingly.
CARRIED

08 Oct 2022 8:21am McCarthy, Michael - Completion
Action completed by McCarthy, Michael

Infocouncil Page 719

Iltem 14.1 - Attachment 1 Page 24 ‘



City of Mount Gambier
Ordinary Council Meeting Agenda

18 October 2022

RESOLUTION 2022/151

Moved:  Cr Sonya Mezinec
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

* Ms Annette Martin
s Mr Michael Sedgman

and the ballot paper be marked, sealed and returned to the Retumning Officer accordingly.

Division: Date From: 20¥%2022
Meeting Councll Date To: 2009202
Officer:
|_Action Sheets Report Printed: 12 October 2022 1:38 PM
Otficer’Authoriser a_oﬂlen Su
Council 200092022 Mccamgamael Council Reponts Election of 2022 LGFA Representative Members
Barver, Daren

1. That Council Report No. AR22/61125 titled 'Election of 2022 LGFA Representative Members' as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.
2. That Council endorse the following two candidates for the 2022 election of Local Government Finance Authority Representative Members:

CARRIED
08 Oct 2022 8:17am McCarthy, Michael - Compietion
Acton completed by McCarthy, Michael
[Weeting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
Council 20092022 Solly. Elisa Council Reports Freedom of information - Update
Bamer, Daren
RESOLUTION 2022/152
Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Saconded: Cr Max Bruins
1. That Council Report No. AR21/65251 titled ‘Freedom of Information - Update’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.
CARRIED
26 Sep 2022 2:51pm Solly, Elisa - Completion
Action completed by Solly, Elisa
Infocouncil Page 8ol 9
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Division: Date From: 20092022
Meeting Councll Date To: 2009202
Officer.
| Action Sheets Report Printed: 12 October 20221:38PM |
OfficeriAuthoriser Section Subject
Council 20092022 g:’w;“";“" Council Reports Wulanda Recrealion and Convention Cenire - Verbal Update
Prilpat, Saran

RESOLUTION 2022/153

Moved:  CrPaul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec

1. That Council Report No. AR22/64190 titled ‘Wulanda Recreation and Convention Centre - Verbal Update’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be

noted.
CARRIED
[(Taseting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
Council 20092022 BC:’;“‘”"“‘ Motions with Notice Notice of Motion - Department of Infrastnucture and Transport (DIT) Highways
Philpott, Sarah

RESOLUTION 2022/154

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Kate Amoroso

1.  That Council Report No. AR22/62438 titled ‘Notice of Motion - Department of Infrastructure and Transport (DIT) Highways' as presented on 20
September 2022 be noted.

2. That Council writes to the Minister for Infrastructure and Transport, Mr Tom Koutsantonis MP with a copy to Mr Troy Bell MP, Mr Nick McBride MP and
Mr Jon Whelan, Chief Executive, Department of Infrastructure and Transport, seeking clarification:

(a) as to the future works and outcome required to improve all highways that were discussed at the Regional Transport meeting in 2021, which
included Fulton Hogan; and

{b) as to why the improvement work for the roundabout at Wehl Street North and Jubilee Highway West has stopped and when it will continue.
3. The Minister for Infrastructure and Transport, Mr Tom Koutsantonis MP be invited to Mount Gambier to look first hand at the situation.
Carried

Infocouncil Page 99
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15 ECONOMIC  AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE MINUTES  AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

In Recess
16 PEOPLE AND PLACE COMMITTEE MINUTES AND RECOMMENDATIONS

In Recess
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17 JUNIOR SPORTS ASSISTANCE (SECTION 41) COMMITTEE MINUTES AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

17.1 MINUTES OF THE JUNIOR SPORTS ASSISTANCE FUND HELD ON 5 OCTOBER 2022
- Go to Attachment

RECOMMENDATION

That the Minutes of the Junior Sports Assistance Fund meeting held on 5 October 2022 as
attached be noted.

17.2 Payments to Member Organisations — Report No. AR22/61426

RECOMMENDATION

1.  That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61426 titled ‘Payments to Member
Organisations ’ as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2. That the allocation be calculated based on 10% of the total cost of the principle event and
capped at $200 minimum and $500 maximum.

3. Thatin the event of extenuating circumstances the determination will be at the discretion of
the Committee.

17.3 Statement of Revenue and Expenditure - Year Ended 30/06/2022 — Report No.
AR22/61255

RECOMMENDATION

1.  That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61255 titled ‘Statement of Revenue
and Expenditure - Year Ended 30/06/2022’ as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2. The Statement of Income and Expenditure for period ended 30 June, 2022 detailing
payments to or payments from the Fund with a 30 June 2020 cash balance of $122,093.90
be received.
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17.4 Member Organisation Contributions — Report No. AR22/61465

RECOMMENDATION

1. That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61465 titled ‘Member Organisation
Contributions ’ as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2. Member Organisations be advised that to continue to assist its members as a consequence
of the COVID-19 crisis, member contributions to the Junior Sports Assistance Fund for the
2022/2023 financial year be waived with member contributions to be reviewed at the next
annual general meeting.

17.5 General Developments of the Fund since the Thirty Sixth Annual General Meeting —
Report No. AR22/61636

RECOMMENDATION

1. That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61636 titled ‘General Developments
of the Fund since the Thirty Sixth Annual General Meeting’ as presented on 05 October 2022
be noted

17.6 Committee Appointments — Report No. AR22/67353

RECOMMENDATION

1.  That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/67353 titled ‘Committee Appointments
" as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2. The Committee Appointments to approve applications to the Junior Sports Fund Assistance
Fund as referenced in Report No. AR22/67353 titled ‘Committee Appointments ’ be adopted.
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18 AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MINUTES AND RECOMMENDATIONS

18.1 MINUTES OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE HELD ON 26 SEPTEMBER 2022 -
Go to Attachment

RECOMMENDATION

That the Minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee meeting held on 26 September 2022 as
attached be noted.

18.2 Correspondence Received — Report No. AR22/58445

RECOMMENDATION

1. That Audit and Risk Committee Report No. AR22/58445 titled ‘Correspondence Received’
as presented on 26 September 2022 be noted.

18.3 Draft 2021/2022 Financial Statements — Report No. AR22/60846

RECOMMENDATION

1. That Audit and Risk Committee Report No. AR22/60846 titled ‘Draft 2021/2022 Financial
Statements’ as presented on 26 September 2022 be noted.

2.  That in accordance with Section 126 (4) (a) of the Local Government Act 1999, the draft
annual financial statements of Council for the financial year 2021/2022 have been reviewed
and ‘they present fairly the state of affairs of the council’.

3.  That having been reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee on 26 September 2022, the
Audit Completion Report and Management Representations Letter as attached to Report
No. AR22/60846 be noted.

18.4 Comparison of Actual to Budget for the year ending 30 June 2022 — Report No.
AR22/60848

RECOMMENDATION

1. That Audit and Risk Committee Report No. AR22/60848 titled ‘Comparison of Actual to
Budget for the year ending 30 June 2022’ as presented on 26 September 2022 be noted.

2. That the estimates comparison for the financial year ending 30 June 2022 as contained in
Attachment 1 to Report No. AR22/60848 be adopted.
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19 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PERFORMANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE MINUTES
AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Nil
20 BUILDING FIRE SAFETY COMMITTEE MINUTES

Nil
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21 COUNCIL REPORTS

21.1 WULANDA RECREATION AND CONVENTION CENTRE - VERBAL UPDATE - REPORT
NO. AR22/68452

Meeting: Council

CM9 Reference: AF21/496

Author: Barbara Cernovskis, General Manager City Infrastructure
Authoriser: Sarah Philpott, Chief Executive Officer

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

1.  That Council Report No. AR22/68452 titled ‘Wulanda Recreation and Convention Centre -
Verbal Update’ as presented on 18 October 2022 be noted.

BACKGROUND
Council, at its meeting held on 16 August 2022, resolved (in part):

“3. That the General Manager City Infrastructure provides a verbal report in open Council on the
Wulanda Recreation and Convention Centre construction progress each month.”

The General Manager City Infrastructure, Barbara Cernovskis, to provide a verbal update report on
the monthly progress of the Wulanda Recreation and Convention Centre.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil
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21.2 STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2022 —
REPORT NO. AR22/65118

Committee: Council

Meeting Date: 18 October 2022

Report No.: AR22/65118

CM9 Reference: AF21/496

Author: Julie Scoggins, Manager Financial Services

Authoriser: Darren Barber, General Manager Corporate and Regulatory Services

Summary: This report presents the draft 2021/2022 Financial Statements for
adoption by Council.

Strategic Plan Goal 1: Our People

Reference:

Goal 2: Our Location

Goal 3: Our Diverse Economy

Goal 4: Our Climate, Natural Resources, Arts, Culture and Heritage
Goal 5: Our Commitment

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

1. That Council Report No. AR22/65118 titled ‘Statutory Financial Statements for the Year
Ending 30 June 2022’ as presented on 18 October 2022 be noted.

2. Thatthe audited Financial Statements for the year ending 30 June 2022 as attached to Report
No. AR22/65118 be adopted.

3. That the Management Representations Letter signed by the Chief Executive Officer as
attached to Report No. AR22/65118 be noted.

4.  That the Chief Executive Officer and the Mayor of the City of Mount Gambier be authorised
to certify the financial statements.
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TYPE OF REPORT
Legislative

BACKGROUND

1.

Report Purpose - The purpose of the annual financial statements is to provide Council, the
community and other interested parties, a record of the financial activities and the financial
position of Council, comparative to the preceding financial period.

Section 125 - Pursuant to Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999, a Council must
ensure that appropriate policies, practices and procedures of internal control are implemented
and maintained in order to assist the council to carry out its activities in an efficient and orderly
manner to achieve its objectives, to ensure adherence to management policies, to safeguard
the Council's assets, and to secure (as far as possible) the accuracy and reliability of Council
records.

Section 126 - Pursuant to Section 126 (4) of the Local Government Act 1999, the functions of
an Audit and Risk Committee include — (a) reviewing annual financial statements to ensure that
they present fairly the state of affairs of the Council and (c) reviewing the adequacy of the
accounting, internal control, reporting and other financial management systems and practices
of the Council on a regular basis.

Section 129 - Pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Local Government Act 1999, (3) The auditor
must provide to the Council— (a) an audit opinion with respect to the financial statements; and
(b) an audit opinion as to whether the controls audited under sub section (1) (b) are sufficient to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the Council have been
conducted properly and in accordance with law.

Section 16 - Pursuant to Section 16 of the Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011, on or before 30 November a copy of the audited financial statements for the
preceding year must be submitted to the Minister and the presiding member of the South
Australian Local Grants Commission.

Appointment of External Auditors - Samantha Creten, Dean Newbery and Partners were
appointed as Council’s Auditors for the period 2022 - 2026.

Interim Audit - Council’s external auditors (Dean Newbery and Partners) undertook an interim
site visit in relation to the external audit for the year ended 30 June 2022 in April 2022.

First Audit - The financial audit of the 2021/2022 financial statements is the first audit to be
undertaken by Dean Newbery and Partners as part of their engagement to undertake five audits
for Council.

Financial Year Balance Date External Audit Attendance - Dean Newbery and Partners
attended Council’s offices between 22-24 August 2022.

PROPOSAL

1.

Model Financial Statements - The Model Financial Statements set out a recommended format
(covering the four principal financial statements and notes to be read in conjunction with those
statements) complying with Australian Accounting Standards.

Form and Contents - The form and contents of the financial statements are prescribed by the
Local Government Act 1999 and Financial Regulations 2011, in conjunction with associated
Australian Accounting Standards, and in particular Part 4 13 of the regulations requires that; the
financial statements of a council, council subsidiary or regional subsidiary (other than notes and
other explanatory documentation) must be in accordance with the requirements set out in the
Model Financial Statements.

External Audit - Council’s Financial Statements (covering the four principal financial statements
and notes which are read in conjunction with those statements) were audited by Dean Newbery
and Partners in August 2022. Dean Newbery and Partners were awarded a 5 year contract in
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2021 to undertake the external audit of the Council's financial report and audit of internal controls
for the financial year period 1 July 2021 — 30 June 2026.

4. Audit and Risk Committee Review - The Financial Statements for the year ending 30 June
2022 were presented to the Audit and Risk Committee on 26 September 2022. The Committee
recommended that the draft Financial Statements for the Year ending 30 June 2022 presented
fairly the state of affairs of the Council, that the Chief Executive Officer and the Mayor be
authorised to certify the financial statements and that the statements be adopted by Council.
(The Financial Statements are attached). It should also be noted that Samantha Creten and
Kyle Harrison of Dean Newbery and Partners attended the Audit and Risk Committee meeting.

5. Significant Notes - Apart from the four principal financial statements, key financial performance
information is included in Note 13 Financial Indicators that highlight Council’s financial
sustainability, and Note 14 Uniform Presentation of Finances that shows the net
lending/(borrowings) for the year.

6. Financial Performance - Council’s financial performance for the 2021/22 financial year
included;

(@) An operating surplus before capital revenue of $2,001k;

(b) An increase in Council equity of $22,552k; and

(c) (net borrowing) position for the year of ($9,722k).
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Financial Statements must be prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999, the
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and relevant Australian Accounting
Standards.

STRATEGIC PLAN
N/A
COUNCIL POLICY

Asset Accounting Policy

A900 Asset Management Policy
B300 Budget Framework

R105 Rating Policy

T150 Treasury Management Policy
ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS

N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

SOCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
N/A

VALUE FOR MONEY

N/A
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RISK IMPLICATIONS

Prudent management of Council’s financial sustainability ensures that long and short term financial
risk is mitigated.

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

N/A

ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION STRATEGY
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY

N/A

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

The financial statements are general purpose statements representing the financial performance of
the Council for the 2021/22 financial year and the financial position as at 30 June 2022. The financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, Local
Government Act 1999 and Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

ATTACHMENTS

1.  General Purpose Financial Statement - Year Ending 30/06/2022 §
2. Management Representations Letter 4
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City of Mount Gambier

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Contents Page

Council Certificate 2

Principal Financial Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income 3
Statement of Financial Position 4
Statement of Changes in Equity 5
Statement of Cash Flows 6
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements 7
Independent Auditor's Report - Financial Statements n/a
Independent Auditor's Report - Internal Controls nia
Certificates of Audit Independence

Council Certificate of Audit Independence 48
Audit Certificate of Audit Independence 49

Page 10f 49
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Certification of Financial Statements

We have been authorised by the Council to certify the financial statements in their final form.
In our opinion:

« the accompanying financial statements comply with the Local Government Act 1999, Local Government (Financial
Management) Requlations 2011 and Australian Accounting Standards,

« the financial statements present a true and fair view of the Council's financial position at 30 June 2022 and the results
of its operations and cash flows for the financial year,

+ intemal controls impiemented by the Council provide a reasonable assurance that the Council’s financial records are
complete, accurate and reliable and were effective throughout the financial year,

« the financial statements accurately reflect the Council's accounting and other records

Sarah Philpott Lynette Martin
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER MAYOR
Date Date

Page 2 of 49
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City of Mount Gambier

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

$'000 Hotes 2022 2021
Income

Rates 2a 23,822 22,769
Statutory Charges 633 621
User Charges X 5,515 4,880
Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 23 6,615 4505
Investment Income 2 14 25
Reimbursements 2¢ 65 60
Other income 498 635
Total Income 37,162 33,4485
Expenses

Employee costs 13,090 13,058
Matenals, Contracts and Other Expenses 3t 13,234 14,018
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment % 8,479 7,940
Finance Costs 3 358 226
Total Expenses 35 161 35,242
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 2.001 (1,747)
Physical Resources Received Free of Charge ] 1,760 1,230
Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments i (787) (730)
Amounts Received Specifically for Mew or Upgraded Assets 3 17,940 2677
Net Surplus / (Deficit) 20,914 1,430
Total Comprehensive Income 20,914 1,430

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Page 3 of 49
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2022

$°000 Hotes 2022 2021

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets 5a 250 1,893

Trade & Other Receivables 2,974 4579

Inventories & ) 64 47
Subtotal 3,288 6519

Total current assets 3,288 6,519

Non-current assets

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Gt 301,171 263,422
Total non-current assets 301171 263422

TOTAL ASSETS 304,459 269,941

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables Ta 9,331 6,274
Borrowings 1,222 447
Provisions 2,784 2,902
Subtotal 13,337 9,623
Total Current Liabilities 13,337 9623
Non-Current Liabilities

Borrowings G 22,311 13,502
Provisions 3,507 4,064
Total Non-Current Liabilities 25818 17,566
TOTAL LIABILITIES 39,155 27,189
Net Assets 265,304 242,752
EQUITY

Accumulated surplus 83,080 66,406
Asset revaluation reserves 180,852 175,462
Other reserves 8t 1,372 884
Total Equity 265,304 242752

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Page 4 of 49
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Asset

Accumulated revaluation Other Total
$'000 Hotes surplus reserve reserves equity
2022
Balance as at 1 July 66,406 175,462 884 242752
Adjustments (Correction of Prior Penod Errors) (3,752) 5,390 - 1,638
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 20,914 - - 20,914
Total comprehensive income 20,914 - - 20,914
Transfers between Reserves Y (488) - 488 -
Balance at the end of period 83,080 180,852 1,372 265,304
2021
Balance as at 1 July 64 986 175,462 874 241322
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 1430 - - 1430
Total comprehensive income 1,430 - - 1.430
Transfers between Reserves @ (10) - 10 -
Balance at the end of period 66,406 175,462 884 242,752

The above Statement of Changes in Equity shoulkd be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022

$°000 Hotes 2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Rates Receipts 23,829 22978
Statutory Charges 633 621
User Charges 4335 5214
Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 6,615 5,210
Investment Receipts 14 26
Reimbursements 65 66
Other Receipts 896 3,517
Payments
Payments to Employees (13,157) (13,005)
Payments for Matenals, Contracts & Other Expenses (13,852) {17,433)
Finance Payments B (136) (212)
Net cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities o 9.242 6982
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts
Amounts Received Specifically for Mew/Upgraded Assets 20,443 555
Sale of Replaced Assets 12 393
Payments
Expenditure on Renewal/Replacement of Assets (5,623) (5,326)
Expenditure on New/Upgraded Assets _ (35,134) (16,298)
Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities {20,202)  (20,676)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts
Proceeds from Loans 9,581 11,550
Payments
Repayments of Loans - (206)
Repayment of Lease Liabilties (202) (163)
Repayment of Bonds & Deposits {62) ~
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Financing Activities 9317 11,181
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held (1,643) (2,513)
plus: Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of penod ) 1,893 4,406
Cash and cash equivalents held at end of period 250 1,893
The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Page 6 of 49
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Contents of the Notes accompanying the General Purpose Financial Statements

Note Details Page
1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 8
2 Income 14
3 Expenses 17
4 Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments 18
5 Curmrent Assets 19
6 Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property 20
7 Liabilities 24
8 Reserves 25
9 Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows 27
10(a) Functions 29
10(b) Components of Functions 30
1 Financial Instruments 31
12 Capital Expenditure and Investment Property Commitments 35
13 Financial Indicators 36
14 Uniform Presentation of Finances 39
15 Leases 40
16 Superannuation 42
17 Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet 43
18 Events after the Balance Sheet Date 44
19 Related Party Transactions 45
Page 7 of 49
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The prinapal accounting policies adopted by Counal in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Basis of Preparation
1.1 Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards as they apply to
not-for-profit entities, other authontative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Interpretations and
relevant South Australian legisiation.

The financal report was authorised for issue by certificate under regulation 14 of the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011,

1.2 Historical Cost Convention

Except as stated below, these financal statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.

1.2 Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financal statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and requires management to exercise its judgement in applying Council's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are specfically referred to in the relevant sections of this Note

1.3 Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).
1.4 Estimates and assumptions

The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the 2021/22 financial statements. The financial impacts are a direct result of either
Council’s response to the pandemic or due to mandatory shutdowns as directed by the Australian Government and the advice
from the Australian Government Department of Health and SA Health

With the aim of rminimising any impact of Covid-19, Council worked to reduce discretionary expenditure in the short term to
assist in mitigating decreased revenue and increased costs. It i1s expected further financial impacts will flow into the 2022/23
financial year but these have been largely taken into account durng the development of the budget process for 2022/23.
The budget assumptions for 2022/23 assume a continued easing of restrictions put in place by the government. Coundil has
determined that there is no material uncertainty that casts doubt on Council's ability to continue as a going concermn.

{(2) The Local Government Reporting Entity

City of Mount Gambier is incorporated under the SA Local Government Act 1998 and has its principal place of business at
10 Watson Terrace, Mount Gambier. These consolidated financial statements indude the Council's direct operations and all
entities through which Counal controls resources to carry on its functions.

(3) Income Recognition

The Council recognises revenue under AASB 1058 income of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 1058) or AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (AASB 15) when appropnate.

In cases where there is an ‘enforceable’ contract with a customer with “sufficiently speafic’ performance obligations, the
transaction is accounted for under AASB 15 where income 1s recognised when (or as) the performance obligations are satisfied
(i.e. when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer). Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which
the Council expects to be entitied in a contract with a customer.

In other cases, AASB 1058 applies when a not-for-profit (NFP) entity enters into transactions where the consideration to acquire
an asset is significantly less than the fair value of the asset principally to enable the entity to further its objectives. The excess

continued on next page Page 8 of 49
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

of the asset recognised (at fair value) over any ‘related amounts’ is recognised as income immediately, except in the case
where a financial asset has been received to enable the council to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial asset that
IS to be controlled by the council. In this case, the council recognises the excess as a liability that is recognised over time in
profit and loss when (or as) the entity satisfies its obligations under the transfer.

In recent years, the payment of untied grants (financal assistance grants’ local roads/ supplementary grants) has varied from
the annual allocation as shown in the table below

Cash
g:g:veer:’t Allc;A:atniouar: Difference
2019/20 $3,384000| $3546000| -$162,000
2020121 $3,410267| $3381972 +$28,295
2021122 $5,134,125| $3,891585| + $1,242 540

Because these grants are untied, the Australian Accounting Standards require that payments be recognised upon receipt
Accordingly, the operating results of these penods have been distorted compared to those that would have been reported had
the grants been paid in the year to which they were allocated

The Operating Surplus Ratio disclosed in Note 13 has aiso been calculated after adjusting for the distortions resulting from
the differences between the actual grants received and the grants entitiements allocated

Construction Contracts
Construction works undertaken by Council for third parties are generally on an agency basis where the third party reimburses

Council for actual costs incurred, and usually do not extend beyond the reporting penod. Reimbursements not received are
recognised as receivables and reimbursements received in advance are recognised as "payments received in advance”

(4) Cash, Cash Equivalents and other Financial Instruments

Cash assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at Council's option with an insignificant risk of changes
in value with a matunty of three months or less from the date of acquisition

Receivables for rates and annual charges are secured over the subject land, and bear interest at rates determined in
accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 Other receivables are generally unsecured and do not bear interest

All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the receipt of which is
considered doubtful,

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value at the date of recognition. A detailed statement of the accounting policies
applied to financial instruments also form part of Note 11

(5) Inventories

Inventories held in respect of stores have been valued by using the weighted average cost on a continual basis, after
adjustment for loss of service potential. Inventories held in respect of business undertakings have been valued at the lower
of cost and net realisabie value.

continued on next page Page 9of 49
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{6) Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
6.1 Initial Recognition

All assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost is determined as
fair value at the date of acquisition.

All non-current assets purchased or constructed are capitalised as the expenditure is incurred and deprecated as soon as the
asset is held “ready for use”. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental
to the acquisition, including architects' fees and engineering design fees and all other costs incurred. The cost of non-current
assets constructed by the Council includes the cost of all matenals used in construction, direct labour on the project and an
appropriate proportion of vanable and fixed overhead.

6.2 Materiality
Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition exceeds materiality
thresholds established by Council for each type of asset. In determining (and in annually reviewing) such thresholds, regard is

had to the nature of the asset and its estimated service life. Examples of capttalisation thresholds applied during the year are
given in Note 6. No capitalisation threshold is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land or the Riddoch art Collection.

6.3 Subsequent Recognition

All material asset classes are revalued on a regular basis such that the carrying values are not materially different from fair
value. Significant uncertainties exst in the estimation of fair value of a number of asset classes including land, buildings and
associated structures and infrastructure. Further detail of these uncertainties, and of existing valuations, methods and valuers
are provided at Note 6,

6.4 Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

Other than land, footpath nature strips, the Les Hill Collection and the Riddoch art Collection, all infrastructure, property, plant
and equipment assets recognised are systematically depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis which, in the
opinion of Council, best reflects the consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets. Waste management assets
are depreciated on an asset capacity in use basis.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of classes of assets are revewed annually

Major depreciation periods for each class of asset are shown in Note 6. Deprecation periods for infrastructure assets have
been estimated based on the best information available to Council, but appropnate records covering the entire life cycie of
these assets are not available, and extreme care should be used in interpreting financial information based on these estimates.
6.5 Impairment

Assets whose future economic benefits are not dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and where the future economic
benefits would be replaced if Council were deprived thereof, are not subject to impairment testing.

Other assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount (whichis the higher of the present value of future cash infiows or value in use).

Where an asset that has been revalued is subsequently impaired, the impairment is first offset against such amount as stands
to the credit of that dass of assets in Asset Revaluation Reserve, any excess being recognised as an expense.

6.6 Correction of errors relating to a previous reporting period
Two errors from prior years have been identified with corrections made as at 1 July 2021.

Caroline Landfill
Adjustment of $1,675,800 to reflect the actual usage and remaining capacity of the 3C landfill cell.

Asset Disposal
Adjustment of $5,390,079 to correct an asset disposal error.

continued on next page Page 10 of 49
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{7) Payables
7.1 Goods & Services

Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the supply of goods and services and are recognised as liabilities when the
goods and services are received. Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month of invoice. No interest is payable on
these amounts.

7.2 Payments Received in Advance & Deposits

Amounts other than grants received from external parties in advance of service delivery, and security deposits held against
possible damage to Council assets, are recognised as liabilities until the service is delivered or damage reinstated, or the
amount is refunded as the case may be.

(8) Borrowings

Borrowings are carried at their principal amounts which represent the present value of future cash flows associated with
servicing the debt. Interest is accrued over the period to which it relates and 1s recorded as part of "Payables”. Interest free
loans are carmmied at their nominal amounts; interest revenues foregone by the lender effectively being a reduction of interest
expense in the period to which it relates

(9) Employee Benefits
9.1 Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences

Liabilities for employees’ entitiements to salanes, wages and compensated absences expected to be paid or settled within
12 months of reporting date are accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based oncosts) measured in accordance with
AASB 119

Liabilities for employee benefits not expected to be paid or settied within 12 months are measured as the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows (including payroll based oncosts) to be made in respect of services provided by employees up
to the reporting date. Present values are calculated using government guaranteed securities rates with similar maturity terms

Weighted avg. discount rate 3. 29% (2021, 0.36%)
Weighted avg. settiement period 1 year (2021, 1 year)

9.2 Superannuation

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Statewide Superannuation
Scheme. The Scheme has two types of membership, each of which is funded differently. Details of the accounting policies
applied and Council's involvement with the schemes are reported in Note 16.

9.3 Capitalised and Distributed Costs

Historically, Capitalised and Distributed Costs have not been included in note 3.
This additional information is disclosed in Note 3 Employee costs (for 2021/2022 and restated for 2020/2021).
This change is a reallocation of capitalised and distrubeted costs and does not impact the overall employee costs.

(10) Provisions for Reinstatement, Restoration and Rehabilitation

Council operates the Caroline landfill site, incorporating cells which require capping upon complete fill. Capping and restoration
costs can include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure and the removal of residual materials and remediation and
rehabilitation of disturbed areas. Estimated close down and restoration costs are provided for in the accounting period when
the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs and are carried at the net present value of estimated future costs.

Although estimated future costs are based on a closure plan, such plans are based on current environmental requirements
which may change. Council’s policy to maximise recycling is extending the operational life of these facilities, and significant
uncertainty exists in the estimation of the future closure date

The Council recognises a liability (disclosed as a provision) on the Balance Sheet and in Note 7. of the financial statements

to recognise the estimated future obligation of undertaking the required works per the conditions of the EPA licence held. A
number of assumptions are factored into the calculation of the liability to the estimated cost, required activities to be undertaken

continued on next page Page 11 of 49
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

and the timing of when they will occur. Coundil is planning on undertaking an independent assessment and update of the key
assumptions and for the liability to be updated in the 2022/23 financial year.

(11) Leases

Leases the Council assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Council as a lessee

The Council recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and nght-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

1) Right-of -Use-Assets

The Coundail recognises right-of -use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of ight-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received and the estimate of costs to be incurred to restore
the leased asset.

Right of use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives
of the assets, as follows:

Office equipment 3to5years
Land Improvements 4 years

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 6.5 - Impairment of non-
financial assets above.

it) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Council recognises lease hiabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Council uses its incremental
borrowing rate or the interest rate implicit in the lease

{(12) GST Implications
In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 "Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax”

Receivables and Creditors include GST receivable and payable

Exceptin relation to input taxed activities, revenues and operating expenditures exclude GST receivable and payable.
Non-current assets and capital expenditures include GST net of any recoupment

Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis

(13) New accounting standards and UIG interpretations

The Council applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021. New standards and amendments relevant to the Council are listed below. The Council has not early
adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Amendments to AASB 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions

In 2020, the AASB issued AASB 2020-4, Amendments 1o AASs - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions. The amendments
provide relief to lessees from applying AASB 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a
direct consequence of the Cowid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19
related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in
lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under IFRS
16, if the change were not a lease modification. The amendment was intended to apply until 30 June 2021, but as the impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic is continuing, in 2021 the AASB extended the period of application of the practical expedient to 30
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

June 2022. The amendment applies to annual reporting penods beginning on or after 1 April 2021. This amendment had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Standards issued by the AASB not yet effective

The AASB has issued Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations which are not effective at 30 June 2022, these
standards have not been adopted by Council and will be incdluded in the financial statements on their effective date. Where
the standard is expected to have a significant impact for Council then further information has been provided in this note

The following list identifies all the new and amended Australian Accounting Standards, and Interpretation, that were issued
but not yet effective at the time of compiling these illustrative statements that could be applicable to Councils.

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

*  AASB 2020-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Annual Improvements 2018-2020 and Other
Amendments

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
« AASB 2020-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current
and associated standards (amended by AASB 2020-6)
« AASB 2021-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure of Accounting Polcies and Definition of
Acccounting Estimates ( amended by AASB 2021-6)
Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

«  AASB 2014-10 Sale or Contnibution of Assets between and Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (amended by
AASB 2015-10, AASB 20175 and AASB 2021-7))

Page 13 of 49
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Note 2. Income

$ 000 2022 2021

(a) Rates

General Rates

General Rates 19,944 21,773

Less: Mandatory Rebates (236) (236)

Less: Discretionary Rebates, Remissions & Write Offs 17y (27)
Total General Rates 19,691 21,510
Other Rates (Including Service Charges)

Landscape Levy 1,213 1,179
Waste Collection 2,790 -
Total Other Rates (Including Service Charges) 4,003 1,179

Other Charges

Penalties for Late Payment 81 57
Legal & Other Costs Recovered 47 23
Total Other Charges 128 80

Total Rates 23.822 22,769

(b) Statutory Charges

Development Act Fees 189 219
Town Planning Fees 147 160
Animal Registration Fees & Fines 195 148
Parking Fines / Expiation Fees 20 13
Other Licences, Fees & Fines 82 81
Total Statutory Charges 633 621

(c) User Charges

Cemetery/Crematona Fees 869 77
Hall & Equipment Hire 8 11
Sales - General 98 64
Sundry 199 150
Green Waste Collection 38 63
Landfill Charges 4012 3,537
Sales - Waste Transfer Station 291 284
Total User Charges 5515 4,880

(d) Investment Income

Local Government Finance Authority 13 25
- Banks & Other 1 -
Total Investment Income 7 14 25
continued on next page .. Page 14 of 49

Iltem 21.2 - Attachment 1 Page 51 ‘



City of Mount Gambier 18 October 2022
Ordinary Council Meeting Agenda

Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 2. Income (continued)
$'000 2022 2021

(e) Reimbursements

Private Works 16 16
Other 49 44
Total Reimbursements 65 60

(f) Other income

Insurance & Other Recoupments - Infrastructure, IPP&E 155 158
Sundry 284 405
Donations 59 72
Total Other income 498 635

{(g) Grants, Subsidies, Contributions

Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 17,940 2677
Total Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 17,940 2677
Untied - Financial Assistance Grant 5134 3410
Roads to Recovery 409 404
Library and Communications 172 163
Sundry 184 285
Local Roads and Community Infrastructure 716 243
Total Other Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 6,615 4,505
Total Grants, Subsidies, Contributions 24,555 7.182

The functions to which these grants relate are shown in Note 12

(i) Sources of grants

Commonwealth Government 10,162 2,155
State Government 13,877 4770
Other 516 257
Total ) 24 555 7182
continued on next page Page 15 of 49
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Note 2. Income (continued)
$'000 2022 2021
(h) Conditions over Grants & Contributions

Grants and contributions which were obtained on the condition that they be expended
for spedified purposes or in a future period, but which are not yet expended in
accordance with those conditions, are as follows:

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 427

Less:

Expended during the current period from revenues recognised in previous reporting

periods

Pine Hall / O'Leary Road (8) -
Tertiary Education (15) -
State Bicycle (19) -
Subtotal {42) -
Plus:

Amounts recognised as revenues in this reporting penod but not yet expended in
accordance with the conditions

Pine Hall / O'Leary Road - 378
Tertiary Education - 49
State Bicycle 31 -
Subtotal 31 427
Unexpended at the close of this reporting period 416 427

Net increase (decrease) in assets subject to conditions in the current reporting
period {11} 427

(i) Physical Resources Received Free of Charge

Land & Improvements 24 108
Roads 1,052 736
Other 10 -
Footpaths & Kerbing 674 386
Total Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 1,760 1,230
Page 16 of 49
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Note 3. Expenses
$'000 Hotes 2022 2021

(a) Employee costs

Salanes and Wages 11,095 10,382
Employee Leave Expense 863 1,508
Superannuation % 1,268 1,205
Workers' Compensation Insurance 305 282
Other Employee Related Costs 49 58
Less: Capitalised and Distributed Costs _(490) _8m)
Total Operating Employee Costs 13,090 13,058
Total Number of Employees (full time equivalent at end of reporting period) 135 129

(b) Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses

(i) Prescribed Expenses

Auditor's Remuneration

- Auditing the Financial Reports 25 13
Bad and Doubtful Debts (72) 73
Elected Members' Expenses 224 236
Election Expenses 9 10
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 186 332
(i) Other Materials, Contracts and Expenses

Contractors 3,445 3516
Energy 916 864
Maintenance 708 980
Legal Expenses 201 199
Levies Paid to Government - Regional Landscape levy 1,209 1173
Sundry 779 460
Contributions/Donations 464 508
Insurance 325 335
Levies Paid to Government - EPA, ESL & Dog Levies 2,065 2,040
Materials 1,035 1,116
Training 185 188
Water 121 149
Communication 263 289
Consultants 388 888
Licences and Subscriptions 944 981
Subtotal - Other Material, Contracts & Expenses 13,048 13,686
Total Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses 13,234 14,018
continued on next page .. Page 17 of 49
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Note 3. Expenses (continued)
$'000 2022 2021
(c) Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment

(i) Depreciation and Amortisation

Buildings & Other Structures 2,895 2,630

Infrastructure

Stormwater Drainage 117 115
Kerbing and Footpaths 1,206 1,157

Roads 1,932 1,861

Carparks 257 257

Right-of-use Assets 188 165

Plant & Equipment 788 724

Waste Management 842 795
Office Equipment 115 114

Other Assets 139 122
Subtotal 8479 7.940

Total Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 8479 7,940

(d) Finance Costs

Interest on Loans 126 135
Interest on Leases 10 18
Unwinding of Present Value Discounts 222 73
Total Finance Costs 358 226

Note 4. Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments

$ '000 2022 2021
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

(i) Assets Renewed or Directly Replaced

Proceeds from Disposal 112 393
Less: Carrying Amount of Assets Sold (899) (1,123)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal ) {787) _ (730}
Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal or Revaluation of Assets (787) (730)
Page 18 of 49
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$'000

(a) Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets

Cash on Hand at Bank
Deposits at Call

Total Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets

(b) Trade & Other Receivables

Rates - General & Other
Accrued Revenues
Debtors - General

GST Recoupment
Prepayments

Subtotal

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Total Trade & Other Receivables

(c) Inventories

Stores & Matenals
Trading Stock
Total Inventories

continued on next page .
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2022 2021
250 95
- 1,798
250 1,893
79 803
- 2,500
1411 1,007
655 398
114 27
2,976 4,735
2) (156)
2,974 4,579
41 35
2 12
64 47
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Note 6. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property (continued)

(b) Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property
Valuation of Assets

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various Accounting Standards for either recognition
and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a "level” in the
fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1. Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liabilty that are not based on observable market data {(unobservable inputs})
Refer to Note 6a for the disclosure of the Fair Value Levels of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment Assets.
Information on Valuations

Fair value hierarchy level 2 valuations - Certain land, and the buildings and structures thereon, are shown above as being
based on fair value hierarchy level 2 valuation inputs. They are based on pnices for similar assets in an active market, with
directly or indirectly observable adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset.

Fair value hierarchy level 3 valuations of land - Valuations of Crown land, community land and land subject to other restrictions
on use or disposal, shown above as being based on fair value hierarchy level 3 valuation inputs, are based on prices for similar
assets inan active market, but include adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset
that are not directly or indirectly observable in that market, or the number and / or amount of observable adjustments of which
are so great that the valuation is more fairly described as being based on level 3 valuation inputs.

Fair value hierarchy level 3 valuations of buildings, infrastructure and other assets - There is no known market for buildings,
infrastructure and other assets. These assets are valued at depreciated current replacement cost. This method involves:

« The determination of the cost to construdt the asset (or its modern engineering equivalent) using current prices for
matenals and labour, the quantities of each being estimated based on recent expenence of this or similar Councils, or
on industry construction guides where these are more appropnate

» The calculation of the depreciation that would have accumulated since onginal construction using current estimates of
residual value and useful life under the prime cost depreciation method adopted by Council.

This method has significant inherent uncertainties, relying on estimates of quantities of matenals and labour, residual values
and useful lives, and the possibility of changes in prices for materials and labour, and the potential for development of more
efficent construction techniques. Accordingly, formal sensitivity analysis does not provide useful information.

Other Information

At 1 July 2004 upon the transition to AIFRS, Council elected pursuant to AASB 1.D5 to retain a previously established deemed
cost under GAAP as its deemed cost. With subsequent addition at cost, this remains as the basis of recognition of non-material
asset classes.

Upon revaluation, the current new replacement cost and accumulated depreciation are re-stated such that the difference
represents the fair value of the asset determined in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement: accumulated
depreciation is taken to be the difference between current new replacement cost and fair value. In the case of land, current
replacement cost is taken to be the fair value.

Highest and best use
All of Council's non financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.

Highest and best use - For land which Council has an unfettered right to sell, the “highest and best use” recognises the
possibility of the demolition or substantial modification of some or all of the existing buildings and structures affixed to the land.
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Note 6. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property (continued)

Much of the land under Council’s care and control is Crown land or has been declared as community land under the provisions
of the Local Government Act 1999. Other types of restrictions also exist.

For land subject to these restrictions, the highest and best use is taken to be the "highest and best use” available to Council,
with a rebuttable presumption that the current use is the "highest and best use”. The reason for the current use of a large
proportion of Council’s assets being other than the “highest and best use” relates to Council’s principal role as the provider of
services to the community, rather than the use of those assets for the generation of revenue

For buildings and other structures on and in the land, including infrastructure, “highest and best use” is determined in
accordance with the land on and in which they are situated.

Transition to AASB 13 - Fair Value Measurement

The requirements of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement have been applied to all valuations undertaken since 1 July 2013 as
shown by the valuation dates by individual asset dasses below

Capitalisation Thresholds

Capitalisation thresholds used by Council for a representative range of assets are shown below. No capitalisation threshold
1s apphed to the acquisition of land or interests in land

$
Office Furniture & Equipment 1,000
Other Plant & Equipment 5,000
Buildings - new contruction/extensions 5,000
Park & Playground Fumiture & Equipment 1,000
Road construction & reconstruction 5,000
Paving & Footpaths, Kerb & Gutter 5,000
Stormwater Drainage 5,000
Waste Management 5,000

Estimated Useful Lives

Useful lives are estimated for each individual asset In estimating useful lives, regard is had to technical and commercial
obsolescence, as well as legal and other imitations on continued use. The range of useful lives for a representative range of
assets is shown below, although indivdual assets may have an estimated total useful life of greater or lesser amount:

Plant, Furniture & Equipment

Office Equipment 3to 10 years
Vehicles and Road-making Equipment 310 25 years
Other Plant & Equipment 4 to 20 years
Building & Other Structures

Buildings 15 to 100 years
Park Structures 20 to 30 years
Playground Equipment 20 to 30 years
Benches, Seats, etc 10 to 30 years
Waste Management

Landfill assets capacity in use
Infrastructure

Sealed Roads - Surface 1210 40 years
Sealed Roads - Structure 30 to 150 years
Unsealed Roads 40 to 75 years
Paving & Footpaths, Kerb & Gutter 10to 70 years
Stormwater Drainage 50 to 70 years
Other Assets

continued on next page Page 22 of 49
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Note 6. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property (continued)

Library Books 7 1o 10 years
Anworks indefinite
Right-of-Use Assets (refer to Note 15) 3to 5years

Land & Land Improvements

Council being of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value sufficiently reliably to qualify for recognition, land under
roads has not been recognised in these reports. Land acquired for road purposes during the year is initially recognised at cost,
but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing off the expenditure.

Freehold land and land over which Counall has control, but does not have title, is recognised on the cost basis. No capitalisation
threshold is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land,

Land was last revalued in 2020 based on Valuer General's valuations provided to Counal

Buildings & Other Structures
Buildings and other structures were revalued as at 30 June 2020 by Mitch Ekonomopoulos of AssetVal Pty Ltd. Revaluations
occur every four years. All additions are intially recorded at cost

Infrastructure

Infrastructure assets include stormwater drainage, footpath and kerbing, roads and carpark assets. Infrastructure assets were
valued by Council officers at depreciated current replacement cost durng the reporting period ended 30 June 2018, based
on actual costs incurred during the reporting penod ended 30 June 2018 All acquisitions made after the respective dates of
valuation are recorded at cost.

Waste Management - Landfill

Landfill remediation and cell development assetls are amortised on a consumption basis over the individual landfill cell's
capacity to receive waste. At the time of construction of a cell, Counal indudes the present value of estimated costs to cap
and close the cell into the landfill cell. This estimate 1s offset by the recognition of a prowvision. This recognition of the capping
costs is amortised in line with the consumption of the landfill cell's capacity used in any one year.

Plant, Furniture & Equipment
These assets are recognised on the cost basis

Riddoch Art Collection

The Riddoch art collection was revalued as at 30 June 2018 by Simon Storey Art and Cultural Collection valuers. These assets
are not depreciated.

All other Assets

These assets are recognised on the cost basis. Library books and other lending materials are capitalised in bulk, and written
out when fully depreciated.
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Note 7. Liabilities

2022 2022
$ '000 Current Non Current
(a) Trade and Other Payables
Goods & Services 7,645 -
Payments Received in Advance 396 -
- Grants & Contributions - Capital 401 -
- Other 37 -
Accrued Expenses - Employee Entittements 331 -
Accrued Expenses - Other 308 -
Deposits, Retentions & Bonds 86 -
Other 37 -
Total Trade and Other Payables 9,331 -
(b) Borrowings
Loans 1,100 22202
Lease Liabilities 122 109
Total Borrowings 1,222 22,311
All interest bearing liabilities are secured over
the future revenues of the Counail
(¢) Provisions
Employee Entitlements (including oncosts) 2.784 179
Future Reinstatement / Restoration, etc - 3,328
Total Provisions 2,784 3,507

Item 21.2 - Attachment 1 Page 61

Financial Statements 2022

2021
Current

2,348
3N
378

49
291

2,646

148
43
6,274

219
228

447

2,902

2,902

2021
Non Current

13,502

13,502

168
3,896
4,064
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Note 8. Reserves

as at 30/06/21 as at 30/06/22
Opening Increments Closing
$°000 Balance {Decrements) Transfers Impairments Balance
(a) Asset Revaluation Reserve
Land 42 801 - - - 42 801
Buildings & Other Structures 53.310 - - - 53,310
Infrastructure 70,636 - 5.390 - 76.026
Plant & Equipment 770 - - - 770
Minor Piant 34 - - - 34
Waste Management 2926 B - - 2,926
Other Assets 4 985 - - - 4,985
Total Asset Revaluation Reserve 175,462 5,390 : 180,852
Comparatives 175,462 - - - 175,462
continued on next page Page 25 of 49
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Note 8. Reserves (continued)

as at 3006721 _as at30106/22
Opening Tfrsto Ttrs from Other Closing
$°'000 Balance Reserve Reserve  Movements Balance
(b) Other Reserves
Mount Gambier Cemetery 7 - - - 71
Mayor Christmas Appeal 69 23 - - 92
Chnstmas Parade {3) 3 - B -
Junior Sports Assistance Fund 107 15 - - 122
Waste Management - 150 - - 150
Open Space - 297 - - 297
Total Other Reserves 884 488 - - 1372
Comparatives 874 13 (3) - 884

Purposes of Reserves

Asset Revaluation Reserves
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements ansing from changes in fair value of non current
assets (less any subsequent impairment losses, where applicable).

Other Reserves
Other Reserves are used when reserves are maintained for the purpose of specific Council committees or for committed funds
of Counail

Mount Gambier Cemetery
The Mount Gambier Cemetery reserve represents funds that have been separated for any development works or projects that
may be required at the Carinya Gardens Cemetery and crematorium

Mayor Christmas Appeal
The Mayor Christmas Appeal represents bank funds and payables of the City of Mount Gambier related to the Mayor Christmas
Appeal and to be used for that purpose.

Christmas Parade

The Chnstmas Parade reserve represents bank funds and payables of the City of Mount Gambier related to the Christmas
Parade to be used for that purpose

Junior Sports Assistance Fund

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund reserve represents bank funds and payables of the City of Mount Gambier related to the
Junior Sporting Assistance Fund and to be used for that purpose.

Waste Management
Residual monies (income less expenses) from activities relating to waste collection.

Open Space
Monies held from creatrion of sub-divisons to be used for future open space projects.
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Note 9. Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows

$'000 Hotes 2022 2021

(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash Assets compnse highly liquid investments with short penods to

maturity subject to insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the end of

the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled

to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Total Cash & Equivalent Assets 5 - 250 1,893

Balances per Statement of Cash Flows 250 1,893

(b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash from

Operating Activities

Net Surplus/(Deficit) 20914 1430

Non-Cash Items in Income Statements

Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 8479 7,940

Premiums & Discounts Recognised & Unwound - 73

MNon-Cash Asset Acquisitions (8,252) (3,906)

Grants for capital acquisitions treated as Investing Activity (20,443) (555)

Net (Gain) Loss on Disposals 787 730
1,485 5712

Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 1,759 (2,208)

Change in Allowances for Under-Recovery of Receivables 154 61

Met (Increase)Decrease in Inventories (17) 8

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables 6,536 3,296

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Unpaid Employee Benefits (107) 53

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Other Prowvisions (568) 60

Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 9,242 6,982

(c) Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities

Acquisition of assets by means of:

Physical Resources Received Free of Charge a 1,760 1,230

Amounts recognised in Income Statement 1,760 1,230

Leases 203 21

Estimated Future Reinstatement etc. Costs 264 210

Total Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities 2,227 1.461

(d) Financing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following lines of credit

{$ '000):

Bank Overdrafts 250 250

Corporate Credit Cards 30 30

LGFA Cash Advance Debenture Facility 30,000 20,000

continued on next page Page 27 of 49
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Note 9. Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the
bank without notice.
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Note 10(a). Functions
Income, Expenses and Assets have been directly attributed to the foliowing FUnctons / Activties.
Details of these Functions/Activities are provided in Note 10(b).
TOTAL ASSETS HELD
OPERATING GRANTS INCLUDED (CURRENT &
INCOME EXPENSES SURPLUS (DEFICIT) IN NCOME NON-CURRENT)
$ 000 2022 2021 2022 2021 202 2021 2022 202t 2022 2021
Functions/Activities
Other - - - - - - - - 1,364 398
Administration ; Support Services 27,961 25156 6827 6380 2115 18,776 5,148 3410 9.9% 20,824
Community Support B9 808 1829 1918 931) {1,110) - 1 13,362 20534
Culture 368 28 3.7 4086 {3.403) {3,788) 203 185 »772 26,034
Economic Deveiopment 162 188 2.060 1871 (1.898) {1.683) 34 - 3,840 3.890
Environment 4621 4,355 8982 8470 {4.361) i8,115) 50 201 8,980 11,075
Recreaton 2207 1,397 4159 5160 (1952) (3.763) m K| 113266 74411
Reguiatory Senices 587 736 1.002 1,232 815) 4% - - 18 18
Tearsport 444 728 3788 3817 {3344) (3,089) 409 677 106,067 105.715
Engneenng / Indirect 85) (1 2.743 2347 {2829) 2.518) - - 8168 8,965
Unclassified Activities - - - {39) - 39 - - 6626 L4
Total FunclionsiAcivities 37 162 33,495 35 161 35242 2001 {1,747} 6 615 4506 304450 266541
R and &axp Net GRin (1063) 0N BISPOSA! OF IVBLANON OF 3SSalS, AMOUNS 10CHved SDACITCAll 101 NEW OF URGraded SiSetE and DAYSSCE 16S0urces MecRived Fee Of charge
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Note 10(b). Components of Functions

The activities relating to Council functions are as follows:

Administration / Support Services

Governance, elected members, organisational, support services, accounting/finance, payroll, human resources, information
technology, communication, rates administration, records, occupancy, customer service, other support services, revenues,
separate and specal rates.

Community Support

Public order and safety, cnme prevention, emergency services, other fire protection, other public order and safety, health
services, pest control — health, immunisation, preventive health services, other health services, community support, senior
citizens facilities, children and youth services, community assistance, other community support, community amenities, bus
shelters, cemeteries / crematona, public conveniences, car parking — non-fee-paying and other community amenities.

Culture
Library services, other library services, cultural services, cultural venues, heritage, museums and art galleries and other
cultural services.

Economic Development
Regional development, tournism, visitor information and other economic development

Environment

Animal/plant boards, waste management, domestic waste, green waste, recycling, transfer station, other waste
management, other environment, stormwater and drainage, street cleaning, street lighting, street-scaping, Natural Resource
Management levy, and other environment

Recreation
Parks and gardens, sports fadlities — indoor, sports faalities - outdoor, swimming centres — Outdoor, and other recreation.

Regulatory Services

Dog and cat control, building control, town planning, clean air/poliution control, litter control, health inspection, parking
control, and other requlatory services

Transport

Footpaths and kerbing, roads — sealed, roads ~ formed, roads - natural formed, roads - unformed, traffic management and
other transport

Engineering / Indirect
Depot management, indirect and general plant cost not included in other functions

Unciassified Activities
Finance charges and investment revenue, private works and sundry property maintenance
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Note 11. Financial Instruments

Recognised Financial Instruments
Bank, Deposits at Call, Short Term Deposits

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost; interest is recognised when eamed.

Terms & Conditions:
Deposits are retumning fixed interest rates between 0.3% and 1.05% (2021: 0.3% and 1.95%).

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value due to the short term to matunty

Receivables - Rates & Associated Charges

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised using
the expected credit loss method

Terms & Conditions:
Secured over the subject land, arrears attract interest of 0.42% (2021: 0.43%). Council is not materially exposed to any
individual debtor, credit risk exposure is concentrated within the Council's boundarnies in the State.

Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance)

Receivables - Fees & Other Charges

Accounting Policy:

Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised using
the expected credit loss method

Terms & Conditions:

Unsecured, and do not bear interest. Council 1s not matenally exposed to any indindual debtor, credit risk exposure is
concentrated within the Council's boundanes.

Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).

Receivables - Other Levels of Government

Accounting Policy:

Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised using
the expected credit loss method.

Terms & Conditions:

Amounts due have been calculated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the respective programs following advice
of approvals, and do not bear interest. All amounts are due by Departments and Agencies of State and Federal Governments.
Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value.

Liabilities - Creditors and Accruals

Accounting Policy:

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Council.

continued on next page Page 31 of 49
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Note 11. Financial Instruments (continued)
Terms & Conditions:
Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

continued on next page Page 32 of 49
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Note 11. Financial Instruments (continued)

Liabilities - Interest Bearing Borrowings

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate.

Terms & Conditions:

Secured over future revenues, borrowings are repayable (describe basis), interest is charged at fixed (or varable - describe)
rates between 1.3% and 5.97% (2021: 1.3% and 5.97%)

Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value.

Liabilities - Leases

Accounting Policy:
Accounted for in accordance with AASB 16 as stated in Note 17

Total

Due Due > 1 year Due Contractual Carrying
$'000 <1 year & £ 5years > 5 years Cash Flows Values
Financial Assets and
Liabilities
2022
Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 250 - - 250 250
Receivables 2,860 - - 2860 2,860
Total Financial Assets 3.110 - - 3,110 3,110
Financial Liabilities
Non-Current Borrowings 6,350 8,139 12,630 27,119 22,202
Payables 8,498 - B 8,498 8,498
Current Borrowings 1,925 - - 1,925 1,100
Leases 122 109 - 231 231
Total Financial Liabilities 16,895 8,248 12,630 37,773 32,031
2021
Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,893 - - 1,893 1,893
Receivables 4 552 - - 4,552 4,552
Total Financial Assets 6,445 - - 6,445 6,445
Financial Liabilities
Non-Current Borrowings 11676 2,164 - 13,840 13,502
Payables 5476 - B 5476 5476
Current Borrowings 219 - - 219 219
Leases 228 - - 228 228
Total Financial Liabilities 17.599 2,164 - 19,763 19,425
continued on next page Page 33 of 49
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Note 11. Financial Instruments (continued)

The following interest rates were applicable to Counal's Borrowings at balance date:

o 2022 2021 -

Weighted Avg Carrying Weighted Avg Carrying

$'000 Interest Rate Value Interest Rate Value
Other Variable Rates 2.42% 6,350 1.79% 11,550
Fixed Interest Rates 519% 17,183 597% 2,399
_ 23533 13,949

Net Fair Value
All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments. There is no recognised market for the
financial assets of the Council

Risk Exposures

Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The maximum credit
nsk on financial assets of the Council is the camrying amount, net of any impairment. All Council investments are made with
the SA Local Government Finance Authority and are guaranteed by the SA Government. Except as detailed in Notes 5 &6 in
relation to individual classes of receivables, exposure is concentrated within the Council's boundaries, and there is no material
exposure to any individual debtor.

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. All of Council's
financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market, and hence neither market risk nor

currency risk apply

Liquidity Risk is the risk that Counal will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial liabilities. In accordance with
the model Treasury Mangement Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a range of matunty dates. Council also has
available a range of bank overdraft and standby borrowing facilities that it can access

Interest Rate Risk is the nsk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Council has a

balance of both fixed and vanable interest rate borrowings and investments. Cash flow fluctuations are managed holistically
in seeking to minimise interest costs over the longer term in a risk averse manner
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Note 12. Capital Expenditure and Investment Property Commitments
$'000 2022 2021
Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not recognised in
the financial statements as liabilities:

Buildings & Other Structures 6,579 41,206

Plant & Equipment 542 369

Other 341 -
7,462 41,575

These expenditures are payable:

Not later than one year 7462 41,575
7,462 41,575
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Note 13. Financial Indicators

Amounts Indicator Indicators
$°'000 2022 2022 2021 2020

These Financial Indicators have been calculated in accordance
with Information paper 9 - Local Government Financial
Indicators prepared as part of the LGA Financial Sustainability
Program for the Local Government Association of South
Australia.

1. Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating Surplus 2,001
Total Operating Income 37,162

5.4% {5.2)% (1.7)%

This ratio expresses the operating surplus as a percentage of
total operating revenue

2. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net Finanaal Liabilities 35,931

. . .
Total Operating Income 37,162 97% 62% 18%

Net Financial Liabilities are defined as total habiities less
financial assets (exduding equity accounted invesiments In
Council businesses). These are expressed as a percentage of
total operating revenue

Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating Surplus 759
Total Operating Income 35,920

2.1% (5.31% (1.2)%

Adjustments to Ratios

In recent years the Federal Government has made advance
payments prior to 30th June from future year allocations of
financial assistance grants, as explained in Note 1. These
Adjusted Ratios correct for the resulting distortion in key ratios
for each year and provide a more accurate basis for comparison

Adjusted Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net Finanaal Liabilities 32,891
Total Operating Income 35,920

92% 67% 17%

3. Asset Renewal Funding Ratio
Asset Renewals 5,623
Infrastructure & Asset Management Plan required expenditure 7.140

79% 84% 105%

Asset renewals expenditure is defined as capital expenditure on
the renewal and replacement of existing assets relative to the
optimal level planned, and excludes new capital expenditure on
the acquisition of additional assets.
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Note 13. Financial Indicators (continued)

Financial Indicators - Graphs
1. Operating Sugus Ratio
" Commentary on 2021/22 result
. 54 Purpose of operating
surpius ratio
25 .
# The operating surplus ratio in 2022 is significantly
i o higher than in previous years driven by the timing of
B | Financial Assistance Grants and additional Local
) 17 ) Roads and Community Infrastructure grant revenue,
5 . This indicator is to determine the and increased user charges (including Carofine
o age the op ol fandfil facilties). Overall operating expenditure was
% vanes from operaling expenditure broadly in line with the prior year.
. o The target as per Cauncis Treasury Management
’ 2020 200 2022 olicy s a mndqg;:gmqwnoo.wby

2. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio

s
Commentary on 2021/22 result
. Purpose of netfinancial | pm—
100 9 labilities ratio
£}
# 6
§ %0 Councif's Net Financial Liabilities Ratio s greater
This indicator shows the mnmsyabr:mr;aamm level of
W‘ to av:r;“ o ed t l
2% 18 COMPAEIIT | | 1y 1 timing of the Wulanda project and associated
Operatng tevenue borrowings the fatio is lower than the target of lower
. __. than 100% by 2026127,
2020 2041 2022
Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio
#
Commentary on 2021/22 resuit
21 Purpose of adjusted —_—
7 .— operating surplus ratio
0
;T
§ 12
2 This indicator is to determine the | | The operating surplus ratio in 2022 is significantly
percentage the operating revenue higher than in previous years driven by additional
{adpsted for tming differences in Local Roads and Community Infrastructure grant
-4 the Financial Assstance Grant) revenue, and increased user charges (including
vanes from operating expenditure Caroline landfill facilties).
5.3
2020 2021 2022
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Note 13. Financial Indicators (continued)

Adjusted Net Financial Liabilities Ratio

92

120
160
80

2 67
§ 60
a0

20 17
,— |
2020 2041

022

Purpose of adjusted net
financial hiabilities ratio

This indicator is to determine the
percentage the operating revenue
{adusted for tming dfferences n
the Financial Assstance Grant)
vanes from operating expenditute

Commentary on 2021/22 result

Councifs Net Financial Liabilities Ratio is greater
than previous years reflecting a higher level of
DOrOWINGS,

3. Asset Renewal Funding Ratio

150

125

105
8« 79
50
P
o

Purpose of asset
renewal funding ratio

Commentary on 2021/22 result

Counct developed and adopted revised Asset
Management Plans at the end of 2022 which proviie
guidance of when and how much needs to be spent

This indicatoc aims to determine if to mantain Council's infrastaucture.
assets are being renewed and
Distuptions and supply shartages including
fepiaced in an oplmal vay equipment, materials and fabour have impacted on
the timing of the delivery of planned works. These
projects are expected to be completed in the 202223
2020 2021 2022 fnancial year.
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Note 14. Uniform Presentation of Finances
$'000 2022 2021

The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital investment
activities of the Council prepared on a simplified Uniform Presentation Framework
basis.

All Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarnse annual budgets and long-term
financial plans on the same basis.

The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common ‘core’ of financial
information, which enables meaningful compansons of each Council's finances.

Income 37,162 33,495
less Expenses (35,161) {35,242)
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 2,001 (1,747)
Net Qutlays on Existing Assets

Capital Expenditure on Renewal and Replacement of Existing Assets (5.623) {5,326)
add back Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 8479 7.940
add back Proceeds from Sale of Replaced Assets 112 393

2,968 3,007

Net Outlays on New and Upgraded Assets
Capital Expenditure on New and Upgraded Assets (including Investment Property &

Real Estate Developments) (35,134) (16,298)
add back Amounts Received Specifically for New and Upgraded Assets 20,443 555
(14,691) (15,743)
Net Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial Year (9,722) (14,483)
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Note 15. Leases

(iy Council as a lessee
Terms and conditions of leases

Council entered contracts as a lessee for vanous IT equipment, the Dimjalla skate park and RFID

Set out below are the carrying amounts (written down value} of nght of use assets recognised within Infrastructure Propery,
Plant & Equipment.

(a) Right of use assets

$'000 Office Other Total
2022

Opening balance 217 1 228
Additions to right-of-use assets 204 - 204
Depreciation charge (177) (11) {188)
Balance at 30 June 244 - 244
2021

Opening balance 350 21 371
Additions to right-of-use assets 22 - 22
Depreciation charge (155) (10) (165)
Balance at 30 June 217 11 228

(b) Lease liabilities

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the

movements durnng the penod

$ ‘000 2022 2021
Balance at 1 July 228 370
Additions 202 21
Accretion of interest 10 18
Payments (209) (181)
Balance at 30 June 231 228
Classified as:

Current 122 228
Non Current 109 -

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities 1s included in Note 13.

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of $198,000.
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Depreciation expense of Right-of-Use Assets 188 165
Interest expense on lease liabilities 10 18
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 198 183
continued on next page .. Page 40 of 49
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Note 15. Leases (continued)

(i} Council as a lessor

Council owns various buildings, plant and other facilities that are available for hire or lease (on a non-cancellable basis
wherever practicable) in accordance with the published revenue policy. Rentals received from such leases are disclosed as
rent and hire of non-investment property in Note 2
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Note 16. Superannuation

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to Hostplus (formerly Statewide Super).
There are two types of membership, each of which is funded differently. Permanent and contract employees of the South
Australian Local Government sector with Salarylink benefits prior to 24 November 2009 have the option to contribute to the
Accumulation section and/or Salarylink. All other employees (including casuals) have all contnbutions allocated to the
Accumulation section.

Accumulation only Members

Accumulation only members receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer contributions
are based on a fixed percentage of ordinary time eamings in accordance with superannuation guarantee legisiation (10.00%
in 2021/22; 9.50% in 2020/21) and enterprise bargaining agreement (1% in 2022 and 2021). No further liability accrues to the
Council as the superannuation benefits accruing to employees are represented by their share of the net assets of the Fund.

Salarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members

Salarylink is a defined benefit scheme where the benefit payable is based on a formula determined by the member’s contribution
rate, number of years and level of contribution and final average salary. Council makes employer contributions to Salarylink as
determined by the Fund's Trustee based on advice from the appointed Actuary. The rate is currently 6.3% (6.3% in 2020/21)
of "superannuation” salary.

In addition, Council makes a separate contribution of 3% of ordinary ime eamings for Salarylink members to their Accumulation
account. Employees also make member contributions to the Salarylink section of the Fund. As such, assets accumulate in the
Salarylink section of the Fund to meet the member's benefits, as defined in the Trust Deed, as they accrue.

The Salarylink section is a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Salarylink section's assets and liabilities are pooled and
are not allocated by each employer, and employees may transfer to another employer within the local government sector and
retain membership of the Fund, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers. As
provided by AASB 119 34(a), Council does not use defined benefit accounting for these contributions

The most recent actuarial investigation was conducted by the Fund's actuary, Louise Campbell, FIAA, of Willis Towers Watson
as at 30 June 2021. The Trustee has determined that the current funding arrangements are adequate for the expected
Salarylink habilties. However, future financial and economic circumstances may require changes to Council’s contribution
rates at some future time.

Contributions to Other Superannuation Schemes
Council also makes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the “choice of fund”

legislation. All such schemes are of the accumulation type, where the superannuation benefits accruing to the employee are
represented by their share of the net assets of the scheme, and no further liability attaches to the Council.
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 17. Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but knowledge is
considered relevant to the users of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the allocation of scarce
resources.

1. Land under roads

As reported in the Financial Statements, Counal is of the opinion that itis not possible to attribute a value sufficiently reliably for
these assets to qualify for recognition, and accordingly land under roads has not been recognised in the reports. Land acquired
for road purposes during the year is initially recognised at cost, but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing
off the expenditure,

At reporting date, Council controlled 230 9 km of road reserves of average width 20 metres,

2. Potential insurance losses

Council is a multi-purpose organisation providing a large range of building, parks infrastructure, playgrounds and other facilities
accessible to the public. At any time, it is likely that claims will have been made against Counal that remain unsettied

Council insures against all known insurable nsks using a range of insurance policies, each of which is subject to deductable
“insurance excesses”, the amount of which varies according to the dass of insurance.

Council has recognised the potential losses arising from daims known at reporting date based on average historical net cost
(including insurance excess) of similar types of claims. Other potential claims not reported to Council may have existed at
reporting date.

3. Legal expenses

Council is the planning consent authonty for its area under the Development Act 1993 (as amended). Pursuant to that Act,
certain persons aggneved by a planning deasion of the Counal may appeal. It 1s normal practice that parties bear their own
legal costs. At the date of these reports, Council has not received notice of any appeals against planning decisions made prior

to reporting date. All known costs have been recognised, but the amount of further costs cannot be known until the appeals
are determined.
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City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 18. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events that occur after the reporting date of 30 June 2022, up to and including the date when the financial statements are
"authorised for issue™ have been taken into account in preparing these statements

Council has adopted the date of receipt of the Auditors' Report as the appropnate "authonsed for issue” date relating to
these General Purpose Financial Statements

Council is aware of the following "non adjusting event” that merits disdosure;

- a deed of settlement and vanation was signed with Badge Constructions (SA) Pty Ltd on 5 September 2022 which
amended the timescales for delivery of the Wulanda project and the amount payable
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City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 19. Related Party Transactions

Key Management Personnel
Transactions with Key Management Personnel

The Key Management Personnel of the Council indude the Mayor, Councillors, CEO and certain prescribed officers under
section 112 of the Local Government Act 1999 In all, 16 persons were paid the following total compensation:

$°000 2022 2021

The compensation paid to Key Management Personnel comprises:

Salanes, allowances & other short term benefits 1,005 974
Post-Employment Benefits 82 72
Long-Term Benefits - 41
Total 1,087 1,087

One key management personnel and/or relatives of key management personnel are members in organisations that received
Council support in the year, e g. through sponsorship of community and sporting

Key management personnel and/or relatives of key management personnel own retail businesses from which various supplies
were purchased as required either for cash or on 30 day account. These purchases were made on normal commercial terms

on an arm's length basis. No indivdual purchases from these businesses exceeded $188.30 with the total cumulative spend
for 21/22 being $1,845 21
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Independent Auditor's Report - Financial Statements

Independent Auditor's Report - Financial Statements: ONLY PDF inserted here

Council needs to uplift custom PDF here - please uplift via "ONLY PDF" choice in the Home/TOC screen
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Independent Auditor's Report - Internal Controls

Independent Auditor's Report - Internal Controls: ONLY PDF inserted here

Council needs to uplift custom PDF here - please uplift via "ONLY PDF" choice in the Home/TOC screen
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City of Mount Gambier

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Certification of Auditor Independence

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of City of Mount Gambier Council for the
year ended 30 June 2022 the Council's Auditor, Dean Newbery and Partners has maintained its independence in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Govemment Act 1999 and the Local Govemment (Financial Management) Regulations
2011 made under that Act.

S

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requlremems w‘mon 22(3) Local Govemment (Financial

Managemen!) Regulabons 01 1. (/

Paul Duka
PRESIDING MEMBER, AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
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City of Mount Gambier

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement by Auditor

| confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of City of Mount Gambier for the year ended 30 June 2022, | have
maintained my independence in accordance with the requirements of APES 110 - Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants,
Section 290, published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that At

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Reguiation 22 (5) Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011.

Samatha Creten

Dean Newbery

Date:
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Clty Of . Civic Centre, 10 Watson Terrace
Mount Gambier Mount Gambier SA 5290
PO Box 56
Mount Gambier SA 5290
Telephone 08 87212555
Refarence: AF211125 Facsimile 08 87249791
Enquiries to: Mrs J Scoggins city@mountgambier.sa gov.au
mounigambier.sa.gov.au
10 October 2022

Samantha Creten

Partner

Dean Newbery

PO Box 755

NORTH ADELAIDE SA 5006

Dear Samantha,

RE: MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS: EXTERNAL AUDIT, FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30
JUNE 2022

This Management Representation letter is provided in connection with your audit examination of the
General Purpose Financial Report (2022 Financial Report) of City of Mount Gambier Council (‘the
Council’) for the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

We hereby confirm, at your formal request, that to the best of our knowledge and belief, the
following representations relating to the 2022 Financial Report are correct.

In making these representations, we understand that they are provided to you in connection with
your external audit of the Council for the year ended 30 June 2022 as prescribed by the Local
Government Act 1999, for the express purpose of your expressing an opinion as to whether the
2022 Financial Report is, in all material respects, presented fairly in accordance with all applicable
standards and requirements, including statutory. In making these representations, we have read
and understood the standard unqualified Audit Opinion that would be normally expressed to the
Council by you as is required under Section 129(3) of the Local Government Act 1999 for the
financial year ended 30 June 2022. We therefore understand, without exception, the potential
ramifications of making any representations to you that are not correct, to the best of our knowledge
and belief as of the date of this letter.

We understand and acknowledge that it is the Council management’s responsibility for the fair
presentation of the 2022 Financial Report and that management, as appropriate, have approved the
Financial Report. Accordingly, management of the Council are of the opinion that the 2022 Financial
Report is free of material misstatements, including omissions.

1. Compliance with all Applicable Standards, including Statutory

The Financial Report of the Council has been prepared so as to present a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Council as at 30 June 2022 and of the results of operations of the Council for
the financial year ended on that date, including for all post balance date matters, as applicable.

The accounting and financial management policies, practices and records of the Council were at all
times maintained in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1999, Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and that the Financial Report was prepared
in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999, Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011, Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board together with all other mandatory professional reporting
requirements in Australia.
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Egquivalents

(1) Cash on hand at balance date was represented by cash floats reconciled and on hand as at
30 June 2022.

(2) Cash at bank at balance date represented the reconciled operating account(s) of the
Council.

(3) Short term deposits represented amounts held with the LGFA by the Council.
Rates and Other Receivables

(1) Current rate receivables at balance date represented all outstanding amounts owed by rate
payers.

(2) Current other receivables at balance date represented all outstanding amounts owed by
debtors other than rate payers.

(3) Debts due at balance date that are known to be uncollectible have since been written-off and
adequate provision has been made for impairment to cover allowances, discounts and
losses that may be sustained by Council in the collection of the debts.

Inventories.

(1) All inventories were the property of the Council and have either been paid for or the liability
has been brought to account.

(2) All inventories have been physically counted and valued in accordance with the applicable
Australian Accounting Standard.

Other Current Assets

(1 Prepayments at balance date represented payments for goods and services to be received
in the 30 June 2022 financial year.

(2) There are no non-current assets held for sale.

Financial Assets — Loans to Community Groups

(1) There are no grounds to provide for any impairment loss for loans to community groups or
other organisations, none are held.

Investments Accounted using the Equity Method

(1)  Council has complied with all applicable Australian Accounting Standards with regard to
Council's equity in subsidiaries, regional subsidiaries and other interests, as applicable.

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment and Depreciation
(1) Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment at the 2022 balance date was represented by

the following fair values, cost. accumulated depreciation and carrying amounts for each
class of asset, in accordance with all prescribed requirements and standards, as follows:
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(2)

@)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7

(8)

Item 21.2 - Attachment 2

As at 30/8/22
Fair
Value Accumulated Carrying

$'000 Level At Fair Value At Cost Depreciation Amount
\Waste Management 3 1,683 8.548 (8,086} 2,145
Capital Works in Progress 0 §7.782 0 57,789
Land 2 15,601 o I 15,601
iLand 3 37,683 133 Q 37,816
IOffice Equipment o 2288 {1,808} 679
IRigdoch Collection 3 3,515 10 Qo 3,525

uildings & Other Structures 2 3,887 33 {2,131) 1,889
Euﬁmgs & Other Structures 3 102,030 1,343 {50,605) 52,768

tormwater Drainage 3 8,022 127 (2.471) 5878
Kerbing and Footpaths 3 74038 3,532 {20,981} 56,590
Roads 3 66,920 6,088 (22,029) 50,996
ICarparks 3 10,451 127 {3,122) 7,456
IRight-of-use Assets o 593 (349) 244
Piant & Equipment 0 9,385 (3.304) 8,081
IOther Assels 0 4,408 {2,497) 1011

Total infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (117,184)

46 881

omparatives {113,185)

The additions during the 2022 financial year to Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
general ledger control accounts and asset registers represents the cost of additions and or
improvements to existing facilities or replacements thereof. All units of property which have
been replaced, sold, dismantled or otherwise disposed of, or which are permanently
unusable, have been removed frem general ledger and applicable asset register. Adequate
provision, determined in @ manner consistent with that of the preceding financial year, has
been made to write-off depreciable assets over their useful economic working lives.

No circumstances have arisen which render adherence to the existing basis of depreciation
misleading or inappropriate and that depreciation expense for the financial year ended 30
June 2022 is reliable.

All additions to depreciable assets represent actual additions or improvements of a capital
nature, based on capitalisation thresholds consistently applied for the 2022 financial year
and unchanged from the 2021 financial year.

Where the recorded carrying amount of any depreciable assels exceeds its recoverable
amount as at 30 June 2022, that asset's recorded carrying amount has been written down to
its recoverable amount.

Contractual commitments for capital expenditure(s) included in the Financial Report payable
not later than one year are as described in the notes accompanying the Financial Report. It
should be noted that in Note 18 Events after the Balance Sheet date that a deed of
settlement and variation was signed with Badge (SA) Pty Ltd on 5 September 2022 which
amended the timescales for the delivery of the Wulanda project and the amount payable.

There are no deficiencies or encumbrances attaching to the title of the assets of the Council
at 30 June 2022 other than those reflected in the financial report and those are not greater
than the value of the asset.

No Operating or Finance Lease commitments exist that have not been disclosed in the
Financial Report. All Operating Lease expenses have been fully disclosed in the notes to
the 2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income. Finance Leasing commitments have been
fully disclosed in the notes to the 2022 Balance Sheet.

No asset revaluations of infrastructure assets were undertaken during the 2022 financial
year.
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9) Depreciation expense reported in the 2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income is reliable,
being based on reliable ‘whole of life’ asset management information for each class of
depreciable non-current asset.

LIABILITIES - Current and Non-Current

(1) All liabilities which have arisen or which will arise out of the activities of the Council to the
end of the 2022 financial year have been included in the 2022 Financial Report.

(2) All outstanding frade payables at balance date have been taken up as at the 2022 balance
date.

(3) All applicable accrued wages and salaries and accrued employee entitlements at the 2022
balance date have been taken up.

(4) All accrued interest at the 2022 balance date have been taken up.
(5) All revenue received in advance as at the 2022 balance date have been taken up.

(6) Provisions for employee benefits, inclusive of on-costs, all discounted as at the 2022
balance date representing long service leave benefits calculated for all valid employees (as
at balance date) have been taken up.

(7) Accrued employee benefits represent annual leave accrued for all valid employees as at the
2022 balance date.

(8) Borrowings as at the 2022 balance date represented amounts owed to the Local
Government Finance Authority and have varying maturity dates and interest rates with
details fully provided in the notes to the 2022 Financial Report.

(9) There were no contingent liabilities including for:
a) guarantees;
b) bills and accounts receivable discounted, assigned or sold and which are subject to
recourse,
c) endorsements; or
d) repurchase agreements.

(10) We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects
should be ‘considered when preparing the financial report; and accounted for and disclosed
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

EQUITY

(1) There have been no adjustments to the Accumulated Surplus other than those allowable
under the Australian Accounting Standards.

(2) There have been no adjustments to the Asset Revaluation Reserve other those allowable
under the Australian Accounting standards and the balance of the reserve has been
reconciled to each class of asset.

(3) Ali reserve funds required by legislation to be maintained have been at all times maintained
in the accounting records of the Council, with the exception of the Open Space Reserve as
detailed below.

(4) All transfers to and from reserve funds (including the Accumulated Surplus) are aligned with
previous years with the exception of the following:
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» Open Space Reserve - This was reinstated for the FY 2022 year aligned with
legislation;

» Waste Management Reserve - Following the adoption of the 2021/2022 Annual
Business Plan in June 2021 a reserve has been established (as foreshadowed in the
adopted Annual Business Plan document that stated “The WSC (Waste Service Charge)
will be used to cover all waste associated costs. In any year that the total WSC resuits in
a surplus, funds will be accounted for in a specific ‘waste’ reserve as per the Local
Government Act 1999, to be used on waste related services”); and

» Prior Year Correction - FY 2022 has been restated as requested following the interim
audit for 2021/2022 in April 2022 which has resulted in a transfer of $5,390k between
Accumulated Surplus and the Asset Revaluation Reserve (Other Infrastructure Assets).

¢ Prior Year Correction — FY 2022 has been restated with entries requested following
the balance date audit for 1 July and 30 July for the Caroline landfill construction and
capping assets. This resulted in a $1,676k adjustment to Accumulated Surplus as at 1
July 2022.

(5) Other than for the Asset Revaluation Reserve, all other reserve accounts are those applied
for 2022 Council budget purposes and have the same balances as at 30 June 2022, with
the exception of those items noted in point 4 above.

(6) Council does not maintain a “Contingency Reserve’ (or equivalent).

(7) No reserves are ‘cash backed'.

2022 STATEMENT OF COMPREHESIVE INCOME

(1) Please find attached a summary of all variations greater than 10% for all income and
expense amounts (variances less than $5,000 have been deemed immaterial and not
included) disclosed in the 2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income, compared to 2021,

(2) Please find enclosed a summary of all 2022 amounts that have been re-classified in the
2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income, including the reasons for the reclassification.

(3) All depreciable physical resources received free of charge have been included in the
appropriate asset register and depreciated from the date when Council assumed control (of
the asset).

(4) Depreciation expense for 2022 is in accordance with Council's asset registers and has been
determined on the same basis as for 2021 with the exception of Caroline Landfill where
depreciation has been restated to amortise the assets over the available airspace of the
landfill rather than on a straight- line depreciation basis.

(5) Salaries and Wages expense disclosed in the 2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income
reconciles to the last budgeted salaries and wage amount approved by Council for 2022
annual budget funding purposes.

(6) Capital grants have been correctly separaled from operating grants, in accordance with the
requirements of the Model Financial Statements.

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Operating Surplus Ratio - The ratio in FY 2022 is significantly greater than the previous year and
the anticipated target as per the adopted budget, driven by the rating increase of 4.5%, higher than
expected untied grant revenue (Financial Assistance Grants and LRCI) and higher Landfill charges
and cemetery fees. Operating expenditure is also lower than the previous year where employee
costs are broadly in line with the prior year and depreciation is higher which is more than offset by
lower materials contracts other driven by lower consultant expenditure and a more focused
approach to financial controls in the year.
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Net Financial Liabilities Ratio — The ratio is higher than the previous year driven by increased
borrowings from the Wulanda project. It should be noted that the ratio is lower than the target set in
the adopted budget where borrowings are lower than anticipated due to Wulanda and other capital
projects timing.

Asset Renewal Funding Ratio — This is lower than the previous year, LTFP/adopted budget target
and SA recommended target. Disruptions and supply shortages combined with the organisation’s
capacity to deliver have impacted upon the timing of the renewals program. A review of the
organisation’s capacity to deliver is expected to occur in the first half of FY 2023.

OTHER REQUIRED REPRESENTATIONS

(1) No events have occurred (or are known to occur) subsequent to the 30 June 2022 that
would require any consideration for adjustment to or additional disclosure in the 2022
Financial Report.

(2) The Council does not have any plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying
value or classification of all assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2022.

(3) The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual arrangements and agreements that
would have a material effect on the 2022 Financial Report in the event of non-compliance.

(4) There were no material commitments for construction or acquisition of property, plant and
equipment or to acquire other non-current assets, other than those disclosed in the 2022
Financial Report.

(5) There are no violations or possible violations of laws, compulsory standards or regulations
whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the 2022 Financial Report or as a basis
for recording as an expense or ctherwise.

(6) The methods, the data, and the significant assumptions used in making accounting
estimates, and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition,
measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in the context of the applicable financial
reporting framework.

(7) The Council has full title to all assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

(8) All details concerning related party transactions and related amounts receivable or payable
(including sales, purchases, loans and guarantees) have been correctly recorded in the
accounting records. All related parties have been identified and disclosed to you during your
audit.

(9) The Council reviews, at least on a quarterly basis, the adequacy of insurance cover on all
assets and insurable risks. This review has been consistently performed, and where it is
considered appropriate, assets and insurable risks of the Council are at all times adequately
covered by appropriate insurance.

(10)  The minutes of all meetings of Council and its Committees were made available to you and
are complete and authentic records of all such meetings held during the 2022 financial year
and to the date of this letter. All other statutory records were properly kept at all times during
the year and have been made available to you for audit purposes.

(11)  All audit correspondence has been formally and promptly responded.

(12)  All audit correspondence has been referred to Council and Council's Audit and Risk
Committee.
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(13) Salaries and wages records together with records for the Goods and Service Tax were at all
times fully maintained in accordance with the requirements of the Australian Taxation Office,
as applicable.

(14)  All documentation relating to the capture of Related Party Disclosures and Transactions
(AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures) including all authorised forms provided by the
deemed Key Management Personnel, evidence of review of total related party transactions
processed during the financial year by the Council e.g. Transaction reports of payments
made by Council to related parties and any working papers of calculation methodologies for
the disclosures in the 30 June 2022 financial statements have been made available to the
auditors.

(15) All deemed material transactions relating to Related Party Disclosures and Transactions
(AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures) have been included and adequately disclosed in the
30 June 2022 financial statements.

(16)  Council has formally in place and has at all times maintained an appropriate standard of
accounting, internal control structure and framework, segregation of duties and risk
management structure and framework across the entire organisation, including appropriate
controls and mechanisms specifically designed to prevent and detect fraud and error.
Further, we advise that there have not been any instances of fraud or error during the
financial year ended 30 June 2022 or to the date of this letter. In addition, there are no
matters that should be brought to your attention for the purposes of your making an
assessment as to Sections 128(5) and 128(6) of the Local Government Act 1999,

(17)  The 2022 Financial Report has been adjusted for all agreed audit adjustments for the year
ended 30 June 2022.

(18) Council's Audit and Risk Committee has addressed all of its prescribed responsibilities and
no member of the Committee has undertaken other professional services for the Council.

(19)  In our opinion, there are no grounds to believe that the Council will not be able to pay its
debts as and when they fall due, that assets will be at all time maintained to the service
standards currently determined by Council and accordingly, the Council is long term
financially sustainable.

Yours sincerely

oy E/),

\
Chief Exeéuthe'éfﬁcer

Enclosures (as applicable)

Enclosure 1 - Statement of Comprehensive Income Variance Analysis
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Variance Variance
A:?::l ; $'000s Ref zziﬁ:ﬂ to Pri'or Yr to Prior Yr
$'k %
Income
22,769 Rates 23,822 1,053 4.6%
621  Statutory Charges 633 12 1.9%
4,880 User Charges 1 5515 835 13.0%
4,505 Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 2 6615 2110 468.8%
25  Investment Income 3 14 {(11) -44.0%
80  Reimbursements 65 5 8.3%
635  Other income 4 498 (137} -21.6%
33,495 Total Income 37,162 3,667 10.9%
Expenses
13,058 Employee Costs 13,080 {32) -0.2%
14,018 Materiais, Contracts & Other Expenses 13,234 784 5.6%
7,940 Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 8479 (539) -6.8%
226  Finance Costs 5 358 (132} -58.4%
(1,747) Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 2,001 3,748 215%
1,230 Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 6 1,760 530 43.1%
(730} Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments {787) (57) <7.8%
2,677 Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 7 17.840 15,263 570.2%

1,430 Net Surplus / (Deficit) 20,914 19,484 1363%

) Total Other Comprehensive Income 0 0 0

1,430 Total Comprehensive Income 20,914 19,484 1363%

As per the reference numbers listed, piease find explanations for material variances of greater than
+/- 10% for 2022, compared to 2021:

1. User Charges Increase $635k — Mainly due to increased landfill charges $475k (partly offset by
additional expenditure) and additional cemetery fees $98k.

2. Grants, Subsidies, Contributions Increase $2,110k - Including the following:

* Additional Financial Assistance Grants Increase $1,724k - (including 75% additional
payment of following year's grant compared to 50% in previous year and payment of Special
Local Roads Fund (no payment was made in 2021 as the payment for that year had been
received in 2019).

* LRCI Grant Funding Increase $473k - Council received $716k (50% of the Phase 2 grant
of $520k and 40% of the Phase 1 grant $196k), compared to 50% of the Phase 1 grant
received in 2021 of $243k.

3. Investment Income Decrease ($11k) - Lower investment income arising from higher
borrowings.

4. Other Income Decrease ($137k) - Main variances include trainee/training revenue $152k, more
than offset by lower open space revenue ($174k) and fuel tax credits ($62k).

5. Finance Costs Increase ($132k) - Higher finance costs mainly due to increased Caroline
unwinding of NPV costs ($149k).

6. Physical Resources Free Of Charge Increase $530k - Increased revenue from
developments/land divisions including: Footpaths & Kerbing $288k and Roads $316k.

7. Amounts Received for New/Upgraded Assets Increase $15,263k - Mainly grant revenue for
Wulanda $9,000k from State Government ($7,500k higher than the previous year of $1,500k)
and $8,500k from Federal Government ($7,000k higher than the previous year).
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21.3 CREATIVE ARTS FUND - RECOMMENDATION TO RESCIND/AMEND — REPORT NO.

AR22/69932

Committee: Council

Meeting Date: 18 October 2022

Report No.: AR22/69932

CM9 Reference: AF21/496

Author: Michael McCarthy, Manager Governance and Property

Authoriser: Sarah Philpott, Chief Executive Officer

Summary: This report presents arecommendation from the Chief Executive
Officer under Regulation 21 of the Procedures at Meetings
Regulations 2013 to rescind resolution 2022/129 dated 16 August
2022 relating to the 2021/2022 Creative Arts Fund.

Strategic Plan Goal 5: Our Commitment

Reference:

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

1. That Council Report No. AR22/69932 titled ‘Creative Arts Fund - Recommendation to
Rescind/Amend’ as presented on 18 October 2022 be noted.

2.  That, having considered the implications set out in Report No. AR22/69932, resolution
2022/129 be rescinded in its entirety.

3.  That, in line with Council’s intent from the original resolution 2022/129, Council notes that a
budget adjustment for the equivalent amount as was underspent from the Creative Arts Fund
in 2021/22, will be presented to Council as part of Budget Review 1, along with an
adjustment to the value of $500 for the payment made from the 2022/23 budget for the
Portrait Project
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TYPE OF REPORT
Legislative

BACKGROUND

At the meeting on 19 October 2021 Council resolved, in relation to the Creative Arts Fund, as follows:

RESOLUTION 2021/306

Moved: Cr Frank Morello
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec

1. That People and Place Committee Report No. AR21/57404 titled ‘Creative Arts Fund 2021/2022
Applications’ as presented on 07 October 2021 be noted.

2. That Council notes the total funding request from applicants was $186,285.15 and shortlisted
applicants was $63,865.00 which exceeds the budgeted amount of funding available.

3. That $50,000 be endorsed for distribution for the 2021/2022 Creative Arts Fund as follows:

Project Name Applicant Requested Approved
The Portrait Project April Hague $ 16,885.00 $ 17,000.00*%
Return Henry Wolff $ 26,350.00 $ 18,000.00
Mount Gambier Theatre Group Mount Gambier Theatre Group $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00
Railway Lands Interactive Yunita Manfrin $ 15,630.00 $ 10,000.00
$ 63,865.00 $ 50,000.00

*Includes $177.00 Planning SA lodgement fee for Development Application

4, That all applicants be notified accordingly, advising that the provision and acquittal of these grant
funds will always be subject to:

e all necessary land holder and development approvals being obtained; and
e all works being completed in accordance with all relevant legislative and compliance
standards.
CARRIED

Following a memo dated 5 August 2022 advising Elected Members that the 2021/2022 Creative Arts
Fund budget had not been fully expended, the following Motion with Notice was presented to the 16
August 2022 Council meeting:

MOTION

1. That Council Report No. AR22/54975 titled ‘Notice of Motion - Creative Arts Fund 2021/2022’ as
presented on 16 August 2022 be noted.

2. That funds not allocated in the Creative Arts Fund 2021/2022 be redirected to the Riddoch Art
Gallery.
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Following consideration at the August meeting, the following resolution was carried:

RESOLUTION 2022/129

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1.

That Council Report No. AR22/54975 titled ‘Notice of Motion - Creative Arts Fund 2021/2022’ as
presented on 16 August 2022 be noted.

The Portrait Project be allocated an additional $500 from the 2021/2022 Creative Arts Fund for
additional unexpected costs due to unforeseen environmental damages to the works.

That funds not allocated in the Creative Arts Fund 2021/2022 be redirected to the 2022/2023
Creative Arts Fund.

CARRIED

The practical effect of parts 2 and 3 of resolution 2022/129 being:

2.

To fund 2022/2023 expenditure from the previous (closed) 2021/2022 financial year budget
allocation, and to amend a resolved position from the August 2021 Council meeting.

The first of these two issues is addressed (under 3) below whilst the second, relating to a
motion, the effect of which if carried, would be to revoke or amend a resolution passed since
the last general election, is contrary to Regulation 12(3) of the Local Government
(Procedures at Meetings) Regulations 2013 which requires such a motion to be brought by
written notice of motion (i.e. given to the CEO at least 7 clear days before the date of the
meeting at which the motion is to be moved).

Accordingly, part 2 of resolution 2022/129 is invalid, being ‘ultra vires’ or ‘beyond the power’
of Council to make.

to expend and allocate funds from the 2021/2022 budget in the 2022/2023 financial
year/budget.

The 2021/2022 budget year having been closed at 30 June 2022, neither Council nor the
Administration are able to ‘redirect’ funds from a prior year into another year. Council may
however determine to increase (or decrease) a budget allocation during the budget year as
a part of, or by referral to, its periodical budget review process.

Part 3 of resolution 2022/129 cannot be practically implemented in its current form.

Recognising Council’s intention, and notwithstanding the invalidity of resolution 2022/129, the Chief
Executive Officer exercised delegated authority to give effect to the intent of part 2 of the resolution
by making an additional $500 payment the Portrait Project artist from the 2022/2023 Creative Arts
Fund budget. This will be the subject of an adjustment to the 2022/23 budget at Budget Review 1.
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PROPOSAL

To rectify the issue of two invalid and unactionable Council resolutions remaining on the public
record, this report contains recommendations from the Chief Executive Officer in accordance with
Regulation 21 of the Local Government (Procedures at Meetings) Regulations 2013 that resolution
2022/129 dated 16 August 2022 be rescinded.

The general intent of part 2 of resolution 2022/129 having been actioned under delegated authority,
Council is just requested to note that an adjustment to 2022/23 budget in relation to the contribution
to the Portrait Project will be made at Budget Review 1.

Council is also by way of resolution 3 to this report, asked to note that the equivalent amount as was
underspent in the Creative Arts Fund in 2021/22 will be brought to Budget Review 1 in the 2022/23
budget period, to reflect the intent of Council. Essentially, the will of Council has been interpreted
that the equivalent amount of unspent funds for the Creative Arts (ie a saving in one year) should
still be made available for the purposes of the Creative Arts fund in the following year. Therefore,
this is best managed by way of a budget adjustment in 2022/23 noting that it will reflect an increased
budget for 2022/23 in so doing.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The validity of Council decisions is governed, in part, by adherence to the Local Government
(Procedures at Meetings) Regulations 2013.

It is the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer to implement valid decisions of Council, and the
(public) minutes provide an enduring record of the decisions of Council.

Accordingly, when a decision is found to be invalid or ‘ultra vires’ it is appropriate to address such
decisions to enable them to properly implemented and/or to ensure the validity of the public record.

STRATEGIC PLAN

N/A

COUNCIL POLICY

N/A

ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS
N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

SOCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The allocation of funds toward a 2021/2022 funded project from the 2022/2023 program budget, has
the effect of reducing the available pool of funds for the current year program.

Similarly, any proposed increase to a funded program has a budgetary impact.

Council is being asked in resolution 3 to this report to note that these matters will be addressed in
Budget Review 1 to increase the fund in line with the intent of the original resolution.
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VALUE FOR MONEY
N/A
RISK IMPLICATIONS

The making, and non-rectification, of invalid decisions have the capacity to undermine public
confidence in Council decision making. By addressing the matters raised by the resolutions, and
proposing a path where the intent of Council may still be realised, such a risk can be mitigated.

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

Council should turn its mind to matters of equity, accountability and transparency associated with
competitive grant rounds and the allocations of funding for such programs and the associated
decision making processes.

ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION STRATEGY
N/A
IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY

Upon rescission of resolution 2022/129, if made by Council, the minute book record for the 16 August
2022 Council meeting will include a notation to reflect the rescission.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

The consideration of this matter provides a timely reminder for the outgoing and incoming Council of
the importance of the meeting procedures and decision making formalities,

Having considered the implications associated with resolution 2022/129 dated 16 August 2022 this
report includes recommendations to rescind resolution 2022/129 in its entirety and to note the
alternative action proposed which Council will ultimately consider during Budget Review 1.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil
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22 MOTIONS WITH NOTICE

22.1 NOTICE OF MOTION - SMART LED LIGHTING AND CARBON CREDITS

Meeting: Council
CM9 Reference: AF21/496
Member: Paul Jenner, Councillor

I, Councillor Paul Jenner, give notice that at the next Ordinary Meeting of Council to be held on 18
October 2022, | intend to move the following motion:

MOTION

1. That Council Report No. AR22/62509 titled ‘Notice of Motion - Smart LED Lighting and
Carbon Credits’ as presented on 18 October 2022 be noted.

2.  That Council undertake a business case in relation to smart LED lighting and decorative
lighting including investigation into carbon credits by April 2023.

RATIONALE

Recently getting finance to re look at how LED street lighting is looked at through how to look at it
financially, Capital or Expense, the query has worked out better for Councils borrowing situation this
year and secondly asking Council administration to look at street light emissions and putting in for
carbon credits.

The outcome as first suggested 3 1/2 years ago should help Councils financial position.

I commend this Notice of Motion to Council.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil
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23 URGENT MOTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE

24 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS OF COMMITTEES

Nil
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25 NEW CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

25.1 PROJECT CONTROL GROUP (PCG) PROGRESS REPORT #22 - AS AT 04/10/2022 -
REPORT NO. AR22/68454

CONSIDERATION FOR EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

Pursuant to section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council orders that all members
of the public, except the Mayor, Councillors and (Council Officers) be excluded from attendance
at the meeting for the receipt and consideration in confidence of Agenda Item 25.1 AR22/68454
Project Control Group (PCG) Progress Report #22 - As at 04/10/2022.

The Council is satisfied that, pursuant to section 90(3) (b), (d), (g) and (h) of the Act, the information
to be received, discussed or considered in relation to the Agenda Item is:

. information the disclosure of which could reasonably be expected to confer a
commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is

- conducting business; or
- proposing to conduct business; or
- to prejudice the commercial position of the Council

o commercial information of a confidential nature (not being a trade secret) the
disclosure of which could reasonably be expected:

- to prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied the information,
or

- to confer a commercial advantage on a third party

° information concerning matters that must be considered in confidence in order to
ensure that the Council does not:

- breach any law, order or direction of a court or tribunal constituted by law,
- breach any duty of confidence, or
- breach any other legal obligation or duty

° legal advice

The Council is satisfied that the principle that the meeting be conducted in a place open to the
public has been outweighed in the circumstances because the information contained within the
report and attachments presents matters relating to contracts between Council and contractors
associated with the construction and operation of the Wulanda Recreation and Convention Centre.
The disclosure of information contained in this report and attachments could reasonably be
expected to prejudice the commercial position of Council or the third parties and is considered on
balance to be contrary to the public interest as it could prejudice the Councils position in obtaining
best value project delivery on behalf of the community.
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CONSIDERATION FOR KEEPING ITEMS CONFIDENTIAL

1. In accordance with Sections 91(7) and 91(9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council
orders that the report 25.1 AR22/68454 Project Control Group (PCG) Progress Report #22
- As at 04/10/2022 and its attachments, resolution/s and minutes arising from the report,
having been considered by the Council in confidence under Section 90(2) & (3) (b), (d), (9)
and (h) be kept confidential and not available for public inspection until 12 months after
completion of the project.

2. Further that Council delegates the power to review, revoke, but not extend the confidential
order to the Chief Executive Officer in accordance with the provisions of Section 91(9)(c) of
the Local Government Act 1999.
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26 MEETING CLOSE
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MINUTES OF CITY OF MOUNT GAMBIER ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC CENTRE, 10 WATSON TERRACE,
MOUNT GAMBIER ON TUESDAY, 20 SEPTEMBER 2022 AT 6.00 P.M.

PRESENT: Mayor Lynette Martin (OAM), Cr Sonya Mezinec, Cr Kate Amoroso, Cr Max
Bruins, Cr Paul Jenner, Cr Frank Morello

OFFICERS IN Chief Executive Officer - Mrs S Philpott

ATTENDANCE: General Manager City Infrastructure - Ms B Cernovskis
General Manager Corporate and Regulatory Services - Mr D Barber
General Manager City and Community Growth - Mr T Coote
Manager Governance and Property - Mr M McCarthy
Manager Development Services - Mrs T Tzioutziouklaris
Manager Financial Services - Mrs J Scoggins
Media and Communications Coordinator - Mr J McDonald
Communications Officer - Miss M Brookes
Councillor Support Officer - Mrs M Telford
Executive Administrator - Mrs S Dohnt

1 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

WE ACKNOWLEDGE THE BOANDIK PEOPLES AS THE TRADITIONAL CUSTODIANS OF THE
LAND WHERE WE MEET TODAY. WE RESPECT THEIR SPIRITUAL RELATIONSHIP WITH THE
LAND AND RECOGNISE THE DEEP FEELINGS OF ATTACHMENT OUR FIRST NATIONS
PEOPLES HAVE WITH THE LAND.

2 APOLOGIES

RESOLUTION 2022/139

Moved: Cr Max Bruins
Seconded: Cr Kate Amoroso

That the apologies from Cr Ben Hood and Cr Christian Greco be received.

CARRIED
3 LEAVE OF ABSENCE
Nil
4 CONFIRMATION OF COUNCIL MINUTES

meeting.

RESOLUTION 2022/140

Moved: Cr Sonya Mezinec
Seconded: Cr Frank Morello

That the minutes of the Ordinary Council meeting held on 16 August 2022 and the Special Council
meeting held on 23 August 2022 be confirmed as an accurate record of the proceedings of the

CARRIED
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5

MAYORAL REPORT

5.1 MAYORAL REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2022

Wreath Laying, Vietham Veterans Day

LG Ring Meeting - How Councils can support historical acceptance within communities
Queen’s Jubilee Tree Planting Ceremony

With CEO and GM City Growth, Meeting with Hon Clare Scriven MLC

Elected Member Briefing - Induction Feedback

Fortnightly LCLGA Mayor’s Virtual Meeting

Citizenship Ceremony

Mount Gambier Chamber of Commerce AGM & Mix and Mingle

ac.care Mount Gambier Foster Care Forum

Introductory Meeting with incoming General Manager, Nigel Boyd and Paul Hartung, General
Manager - One Forty One

Mount Gambier Bowls Club Season Opening

Queen’s Jubilee Tree Planting Ceremony

Castec Rural Pioneers Serle-Scott Medal Dinner

Fortnightly LCLGA Mayor’s Virtual Meeting

Flinders University - 20 Years Anniversary Rural Medical Program
Anglican Church Memorial Service for Queen Elizabeth Il

Elected Member Briefing - Induction Feedback

Meeting with Dr Roger Thomas - Commissioner for Aboriginal Engagement - Celebrating
Aboriginal Leaders and Heroes Initiative

Meeting with Para Quad Push Thru Group

RESOLUTION 2022/141

Moved: Mayor Lynette Martin
Seconded: Cr Paul Jenner

1.
2.

That the Mayoral report made on 20 September 2022 be received.

On behalf of the community of the City of Mount Gambier, Council offer condolences to King
Charles lll, his family and the people of Great Britain and the Commonwealth on the passing
of Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth II.

Council honours the memory and service of Her Majesty and gives thanks for an extraordinary
life well lived and a lifetime of service to the Crown, and as Queen of Australia and her other
Realms and Territories, Head of the Commonwealth.

Council acknowledges the accession of King Charles Ill, our new sovereign.

Long live the King!

CARRIED

Mayoral Address on the passing of Queen Elizabeth II
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On behalf of the City of Mount Gambier, Elected Members and residents, we offer condolences to
King Charles 111, his family and the people of Great Britain and the Commonwealth on the passing of
Her Majesty, Queen Elizabeth 1.

| believe Her Majesty has a special place in the hearts of Mount Gambier residents, especially those
who remember her visit in February 1954.

Of significance is the fact that Mount Gambier was the first place the Queen visited in South Australia
during the royal tour that year.

Much has been documented about Her Majesty since her sudden passing a little over a week ago
and it is testament to the oath that she gave at her coronation in 1953 that she would serve her
people for the whole of her life, no matter how short or long that be.

Queen Elizabeth 1l was a truly remarkable lady and leader, always leading by example and in
Australia, despite our geographical remoteness from the United Kingdom, we looked up to her with
respect and admiration, and this is being borne out by the public response to her passing.

We have much to be thankful for after such an incredible reign of 70 years as the longest serving
British Monarch.

We give thanks for an extraordinary life well lived and for a lifetime of service to the crown and as
Queen of Australia and her other realms and territories, head of the Commonwealth.

It is the end of an era.

Vale Queen Elizabeth II.

Long live the King!

6 REPORTS FROM COUNCILLORS

Cr Max Bruins Queen Elizabeth Wreath Laying Ceremony, Castec Pioneers Dinner,
Chamber of Commerce - Mix and Mingle

Cr Paul Jenner Public Lighting Working Group Meeting, LCLGA 2030 Regional Transport
Plan Workshop, Riddoch Art Gallery - Luke Pellen's Electric Sheep
Exhibition, St Martin's Lutheran College Tour, Pioneers Game at the
Icehouse, End Overdose - Substance Misuse, Chamber of Commerce Mix
and Mingle, Platinum Jubilee Tree Planting Ceremony, Pioneers Basketball
Medal Presentation, Limestone Coast Veteran's Hub Sausage Sizzle,
Wreath Laying Ceremony in Honour of Queen Elizabeth I

Cr Sonya Mezinec Christmas Parade Advisory Group, Platinum Jubilee Tree Planting
Ceremony, International Overdose Awareness Day, Pioneers Serle-Scott
Medal Dinner, Mount Gambier and Districts Health Advisory Council
Meeting, Out of the Shadows Breakfast raising awareness regarding suicide,
Wreath Laying Ceremony in Honour of Queen Elizabeth 11
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RESOLUTION 2022/142

Moved: Cr Frank Morello
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

That the reports made by Councillors on 20 September 2022 be received.
CARRIED

7 QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE

7.1 QUESTION WITH NOTICE - AUTOMATED EXTERNAL DEFIBRILLATORS

Question:

Does Council have a database which details the locations of all of the Automated external
defibrillators located within the Council area?

If not, are there any plans to compile a list and publish online or make data available for a third
party app provider to publish?

Answer:

We currently do not have a database for all Automated External Defibrillators (AED) in the City of
Mount Gambier area. To do this we would need to rely on those in the community who purchase
AED’s to provide us with information and keep us updated with any changes on the location of the
AED and if it is accessible to the public 24/7.

Instead of Council keeping information on AED’s, defibrillators should be registered online with SA
Ambulance. Third party app providers should contact SA Ambulance if they wish to receive this
information to make available online. St John’s used to provide a map online that would show all
registered defibrillators, however the map was retired November 2021.

If anyone was to call 000 and requires a defibrillator, the emergency response caller can direct
them to the nearest registered AED.

7.2 QUESTION WITH NOTICE - WULANDA RECREATION AND CONVENTION CENTRE
SOLAR PANELS
Question:

Following a question from a member of the public in relation to the Wulanda Recreation and
Convention Centre solar panels. Could the General Manager City Infrastructure please outline the
design process and the direction the solar panels face to maximise the energy collection?

Answer:

When consolidating the solar panels onto one roof, the designers have considered the whole of
the design, the orientation of the building, and various building elements. They have also reviewed
the calculations undertaken that informed the design to ensure that the 720kw system, as installed,
satisfies the brief and maximises the efficiency of the building.

8 QUESTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE

Nil resolved.
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9

10

11
111

PETITIONS

DEPUTATIONS

NOTICE OF MOTION TO RESCIND OR AMEND

NOTICE OF MOTION TO AMEND - RELEASE OF THE MOUNT GAMBIER PRIVATE
HOSPITAL FEASIBILITY STUDY

1.

RESOLUTION 2022/143

Moved:
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

That Council Report No. AR22/64162 titled ‘Notice of Motion to Amend - Release of the
Mount Gambier Private Hospital Feasibility Study’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be
noted.

That. having received approval from the administrator of the Mount Gambier Private
Hospital, the Confidentiality Order in resolution 2021/276 associated with Report No.
AR21/51525 titled '"Community Health Information’ that was passed on 21 September 2021
be amended as follows:

Confidentiality Order Resolution 2021/276 be amended from:

Confidentiality Order Resolution 2021/276 be amended to:

Cr Paul Jenner

In accordance with Sections 91(7) and 91(9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the
Council orders that the report 5.1 AR21/51525 Community Health Information and its
attachments, the discussion and the resolution/s and minutes arising from the report,
having been considered by the Council in confidence under Section 90(2) & (3) (b), (d)
and (g) be kept confidential and not available for public inspection until a further order
is made by Council to be reviewed at least once every 12 months.

In accordance with Sections 91(7) and 91(9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the
Council orders that the report 5.1 AR21/51525 Community Health Information and its
attachments, the discussion and the resolution/s and minutes arising from the report,
having been considered by the Council in confidence under Section 90(2) & (3) (b), (d)
and (g) be kept confidential and not available for public inspection until a further order
is made by Council to be reviewed at least once every 12 months.

A letter and a copy of the confidential full financial feasibility assessment dated May
2021 for the Mount Gambier Private Hospital be sent to:
(a) the CEO for the Department of Health and Wellbeing - Dr Robyn Lawrence
(b) the Minister of Health and Wellbeing for SA - Chris Picton MP
(c) the CEO of Limestone Coast Local Health Network - Ngaire Buchanan
(d) the Chairperson of the Limestone Coast Local Health Network - Grant King
(e) the Member for Mount Gambier - Troy Bell MP
CARRIED
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12 ELECTED MEMBERS WORKSHOPS

12.1 ELECTED MEMBER INFORMATION/BRIEFING SESSIONS FROM 12/08/2022 TO
14/09/2022

RESOLUTION 2022/144

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1.  That Council Report No. AR21/71022 titled ‘Elected Member Information/Briefing Sessions
from 12/08/2022 to 14/09/2022’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.

CARRIED

13 ELECTED MEMBERS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
Nil
14 COUNCIL ACTION ITEMS

141 COUNCIL ACTION ITEMS - 16/08/2022

RESOLUTION 2022/145

Moved: Cr Sonya Mezinec
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1.  That Council Report No. AR21/71040 titled ‘Council Action Items - 16/08/2022’ as presented
on 20 September 2022 be noted.

CARRIED

15 ECONOMIC  AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE MINUTES  AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

Committee in Recess
16 PEOPLE AND PLACE COMMITTEE MINUTES AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Committee in Recess

17 JUNIOR SPORTS ASSISTANCE (SECTION 41) COMMITTEE MINUTES AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

Nil
18 AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MINUTES AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Nil

19 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PERFORMANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE MINUTES
AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Nil
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20 BUILDING FIRE SAFETY COMMITTEE MINUTES

20.1 MINUTES OF THE BUILDING FIRE SAFETY COMMITTEE HELD ON 12 SEPTEMBER
2022

RESOLUTION 2022/146

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Frank Morello

That the Minutes of the Building Fire Safety Committee meeting held on 12 September 2022 as
previously circulated be noted.

CARRIED

21 COUNCIL REPORTS

21.1 2022 MOUNT GAMBIER CHRISTMAS PARADE TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURES

RESOLUTION 2022/147

Moved: Cr Sonya Mezinec
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1. That Council Report No. AR22/61414 titled ‘2022 Mount Gambier Christmas Parade
temporary road closures’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.

2. That Council be notified that, pursuant to Section 33 of the Road Traffic Act 1961 and
Instrument of Delegation, the Minister of Transport has made the order to close the following
roads on Saturday, 19 November 2022:

STREET CLOSURES
COMMERCIAL - Davison Street to Crouch Street closed 8:00am to 12:30pm
STREET EAST - N/S (North/South) Anthony Street closed 10:00am to
12:30pm
- N/S Crouch Street closed 10:45am to 12:30pm
COMMERCIAL - Crouch Street to Bay Road closed 8:30am - 2:00pm
STREET EAST - N/S Crouch Street closed 10:45am - 12:30pm
- N/S Krummel Street closed 10:00am - 12:30pm
- N/S Compton Street closed 10:00am - 2:00pm
- N/S Ferrers Street closed 8:30am — 2:00pm
N/S Bay Road closed 10:55am - 12:30pm
WATSON TERRACE - N/S Watson Terrace closed 6:30am - 5:00pm
- E/W Watson Terrace Bay Road closed 8:00am - 12:30pm
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COMMERCIAL - Bay Road to Wehl Street closed 8:30am — 2:00pm
STREET WEST - N/S Bay Road closed 10:55am - 12:30pm

- N/S Gray closed 10:55am - 2:00pm

- N/S Elizabeth closed 10:55am - 2:00pm

- N/S Wehl closed 10:30am - 2:00pm

COMMERCIAL - Wehl Street to Bertha Street closed 10:00am — 2:00pm
STREET WEST

VICTORIA TERRACE | - Ellis Street to Jubilee Highway West 10:00am — 2:00pm

3.  That Council be notified that, SAPOL has granted exemption for persons taking part in the
Parade from the following Australian Road Rules and Conditions:

ROAD RULES & CONDITIONS ON EXEMPTIONS FROM AUSTRALIAN
ROAD RULES

Persons taking part in the Parade are exempt from the following Road Rules when on
closed roads:

Rule 221 Using hazard warning lights

Rule 230 Crossing aroad — general

Rule 231 Crossing a road at pedestrian lights

Rule 232 Crossing a road at traffic lights

Rule 234 Crossing a road on or near a crossing for pedestrians

Rule 238 Pedestrians travelling along a road (exceptin or on a wheeled

recreational device or toy)

Rule 264 Wearing of seat belts by drivers
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:

Rule 265 Wearing of seat belts by passengers 16 years old or older
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:

Rule 266 Wearing of seat belts by passengers under 16 years old
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:

Rule 268 How persons must travel in or on a motor vehicle
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:

Rule 269 Opening doors and getting out of a vehicle etc
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 5km/h
Exemption:

Rule 298 Driving with a person in a trailer
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:.

CARRIED
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21.2 REMOVAL OF LAND MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT - 109 - 113 COMMERCIAL
STREET WEST, MOUNT GAMBIER - BARRY MANEY USED VEHICLES

RESOLUTION 2022/148

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1. That Council Report No. AR22/60483 titled ‘Removal of Land Management Agreement - 109
- 113 Commercial Street West, Mount Gambier - Barry Maney Used Vehicles’ as presented
on 20 September 2022 be noted.

2. That Council proceed with the removal of the Land management Agreement between the
City of Mount Gambier and West Gambier Properties Pty Ltd dated 8 December 2000.

3.  That the removal of the Land Management Agreement for the property located at 109-113
Commercial Street East be at the full cost and arrangement of the current property owner of
109-113 Commercial Street East, Mount Gambier including all documentation costs, legal
and conveyancing costs, lodgement and registration fees, and including
reimbursement/payment of any out of pocket expenses incurred by the Council in dealing
with the removal of the Land Management Agreement from the date of this resolution.

4.  The Chief Executive Officer and Mayor be authorised to affix the Common Seal to any
documentation necessary to give effect to the removal of the Land Management Agreement
for the property located at 109-113 Commercial Street East, Mount Gambier in accordance
with resolutions (2) and (3) as above.

CARRIED

21.3 PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE ACT 2016 - CITY OF MOUNT
GAMBIER - DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS

RESOLUTION 2022/149

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec

1.  That Council Report No. AR22/61646 titled ‘Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act
2016 - City of Mount Gambier - Development Applications’ as presented on 20 September
2022 be noted.

CARRIED
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21.4 ELECTION OF LGA PRESIDENT

RESOLUTION 2022/150

Moved: Cr Max Bruins
Seconded: Cr Frank Morello

1.  That Council Report No. AR22/62077 titled ‘Election of LGA President ’ as presented on 20
September 2022 be noted.

2. That Council endorse the following candidate for the 2022 election for Local Government
Association President:

e Mayor Erika VICKERY OAM
The ballot paper be marked, sealed and returned to the Returning Officer accordingly.
CARRIED

21.5 ELECTION OF 2022 LGFA REPRESENTATIVE MEMBERS

RESOLUTION 2022/151

Moved: Cr Sonya Mezinec
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1. That Council Report No. AR22/61125 titled ‘Election of 2022 LGFA Representative
Members’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.

2. That Council endorse the following two candidates for the 2022 election of Local
Government Finance Authority Representative Members:

e Ms Annette Martin
e Mr Michael Sedgman

and the ballot paper be marked, sealed and returned to the Returning Officer
accordingly.

CARRIED

21.6 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION - UPDATE

RESOLUTION 2022/152

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1.  That Council Report No. AR21/65251 titled ‘Freedom of Information - Update’ as presented
on 20 September 2022 be noted.

CARRIED

21.7 WULANDA RECREATION AND CONVENTION CENTRE - VERBAL UPDATE

RESOLUTION 2022/153

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
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Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec

1. That Council Report No. AR22/64190 titled ‘Wulanda Recreation and Convention Centre -
Verbal Update’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.

CARRIED

A verbal update was provided by Barbara Cernovskis on the construction progress of the Wulanda
Recreation and Convention Centre.

22 MOTIONS WITH NOTICE

22.1  NOTICE OF MOTION - DEPARTMENT OF INFRASTRUCTURE AND TRANSPORT
(DIT) HIGHWAYS

RESOLUTION 2022/154

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Kate Amoroso

1.  That Council Report No. AR22/62436 titled ‘Notice of Motion - Department of Infrastructure
and Transport (DIT) Highways’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.

2. That Council writes to the Minister for Infrastructure and Transport, Mr Tom Koutsantonis
MP with a copy to Mr Troy Bell MP, Mr Nick McBride MP and Mr Jon Whelan, Chief
Executive, Department of Infrastructure and Transport, seeking clarification:

(@) as to the future works and outcome required to improve all highways that were
discussed at the Regional Transport meeting in 2021, which included Fulton Hogan;
and

(b) as to why the improvement work for the roundabout at Wehl Street North and Jubilee
Highway West has stopped and when it will continue.

3.  The Minister for Infrastructure and Transport, Mr Tom Koutsantonis MP be invited to Mount
Gambier to look first hand at the situation.

CARRIED

23 MOTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE
Nil

24 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS OF COMMITTEES
Nil

25 NEW CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

25.1 PROJECT CONTROL GROUP (PCG) PROGRESS REPORT #21 - AS AT 06/09/2022
— REPORT NO. AR22/61993

RESOLUTION 2022/155

Moved: Cr Max Bruins
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec

CONSIDERATION FOR EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

Pursuant to section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council orders that all members
of the public, except the Mayor, Councillors and S Philpott, B Cernovskis, D Barber, T Coote, M
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McCarthy, J Scoggins, J McDonald, M Brookes, M Telford and S Dohnt be excluded from
attendance at the meeting for the receipt, discussion and consideration in confidence of Agenda
Item 25.1 AR22/61993 Project Control Group (PCG) Progress Report #21 - As at 06/09/2022.

The Council is satisfied that, pursuant to section 90(3) (b), (d), (g) and (h) of the Act, the information
to be received, discussed or considered in relation to the Agenda Item is:

. information the disclosure of which could reasonably be expected to confer a
commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is
- conducting business; or
- proposing to conduct business; or
- to prejudice the commercial position of the Council

o commercial information of a confidential nature (not being a trade secret) the
disclosure of which could reasonably be expected:
- to prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied the information,
or
- to confer a commercial advantage on a third party
° information concerning matters that must be considered in confidence in order to
ensure that the Council does not:
- breach any law, order or direction of a court or tribunal constituted by law,
- breach any duty of confidence, or
- breach any other legal obligation or duty

° legal advice

The Council is satisfied that the principle that the meeting be conducted in a place open to the
public has been outweighed in the circumstances because the information contained within the
report and attachments presents matters relating to contracts between Council and contractors
associated with the construction and operation of the Wulanda Recreation and Convention Centre.
The disclosure of information contained in this report and attachments could reasonably be
expected to prejudice the commercial position of Council or the third parties and is considered on
balance to be contrary to the public interest as it could prejudice the Councils position in obtaining
best value project delivery on behalf of the community.

CARRIED

The Mayor sought the approval of at least two-thirds of the members present at the meeting to
suspend meeting procedures:

Purpose of the Suspension: To discuss item 25.1 Project Control Group (PCG) Progress Report
#21 - As at 06/09/2022.

Carried by more than two-thirds of the members present at the meeting.

Meeting Procedures were suspended at 6:53 pm

Cr Kate Amoroso left the meeting at 7:03 pm and did not return.

The Mayor determined that the period of suspension should be brought to an end;
Carried by more than two-thirds of the members present at the meeting.

The Period of Suspension came to an end and Meeting Procedures resumed at 07:08 PM

RESOLUTION 2022/156

Page 117



Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments 18 October 2022

Moved: Cr Max Bruins
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec

CONSIDERATION FOR KEEPING ITEMS CONFIDENTIAL

1. In accordance with Sections 91(7) and 91(9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council
orders that the report 25.1 AR22/61993 Project Control Group (PCG) Progress Report #21
- As at 06/09/2022 and its attachments, the discussion and the resolution/s and minutes
arising from the report, having been considered by the Council in confidence under Section
90(2) & (3) (b), (d), (g) and (h) be kept confidential and not available for public inspection
until 12 months after completion of the project.

2. Further that Council delegates the power to review, revoke, but not extend the confidential
order to the Chief Executive Officer in accordance with the provisions of Section 91(9)(c) of
the Local Government Act 1999.

CARRIED

26 MEETING CLOSE

The Meeting closed at 7.10 pm.

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 18
October 2022.

PRESIDING MEMBER
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MINUTES OF CITY OF MOUNT GAMBIER
JUNIOR SPORTS ASSISTANCE FUND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
HELD IN THE LEVEL 1 CONFERENCE ROOM, CIVIC CENTRE, 10 WATSON TERRACE,
MOUNT GAMBIER ON WEDNESDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2022 AT 5.45 P.M.

PRESENT: Cr Christian Greco, Cr Megan Dukalskis, Ms Karen Cunningham, Mayor
Lynette Martin (OAM)

COUNCIL MEMBER Cr Paul Jenner
AS OBSERVER:

OFFICERS IN Councillor Support Officer - Mrs M Telford
ATTENDANCE:
1 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

WE ACKNOWLEDGE THE BOANDIK PEOPLES AS THE TRADITIONAL CUSTODIANS OF THE
LAND WHERE WE MEET TODAY. WE RESPECT THEIR SPIRITUAL RELATIONSHIP WITH THE
LAND AND RECOGNISE THE DEEP FEELINGS OF ATTACHMENT OUR FIRST NATIONS
PEOPLES HAVE WITH THE LAND.

2 APOLOGY(IES)

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION

Moved: Karen Cunningham
Seconded: Cr Megan Dukalskis

That the apologies from Jeanette Elliott, Felicity Walker and Jenny Burston be received.
CARRIED

3 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION

Moved: Karen Cunningham
Seconded: Cr Megan Dukalskis

That the minutes of the Junior Sports Assistance Fund meeting held on 27 October 2021 be
confirmed as an accurate record of the proceedings of the meeting.

CARRIED

4 QUESTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE

Nil
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5 REPORTS

5.1 PAYMENTS TO MEMBER ORGANISATIONS

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Megan Dukalskis
Seconded: Karen Cunningham

1.  That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61426 titled ‘Payments to Member
Organisations ’ as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2. That the allocation be calculated based on 10% of the total cost of the principle event and
capped at $200 minimum and $500 maximum.

3. Thatin the event of extenuating circumstances the determination will be at the discretion of
the Committee.

CARRIED

5.2 STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE - YEAR ENDED 30/06/2022

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Christian Greco
Seconded: Mayor Lynette Martin

1.  That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61255 titled ‘Statement of Revenue
and Expenditure - Year Ended 30/06/2022’ as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2. The Statement of Income and Expenditure for period ended 30 June, 2022 detailing
payments to or payments from the Fund with a 30 June 2020 cash balance of $122,093.90
be received.

CARRIED

5.3 MEMBER ORGANISATION CONTRIBUTIONS

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Megan Dukalskis
Seconded: Mayor Lynette Martin

1. That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61465 titled ‘Member Organisation
Contributions ’ as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2. Member Organisations be advised that to continue to assist its members as a consequence
of the COVID-19 crisis, member contributions to the Junior Sports Assistance Fund for the
2022/2023 financial year be waived with member contributions to be reviewed at the next
annual general meeting.

CARRIED
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5.4 GENERAL DEVELOPMENTS OF THE FUND SINCE THE THIRTY SIXTH ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION

Moved: Karen Cunningham
Seconded: Cr Megan Dukalskis

1. That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61636 titled ‘General Developments
of the Fund since the Thirty Sixth Annual General Meeting’ as presented on 05 October 2022
be noted

CARRIED

5.5 COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Christian Greco
Seconded: Karen Cunningham

1.  That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/67353 titled ‘Committee Appointments
" as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2. The Committee Appointments to approve applications to the Junior Sports Fund Assistance
Fund as referenced in Report No. AR22/67353 titled ‘Committee Appointments ’ be adopted.

CARRIED

6 MEETING CLOSE

The Meeting closed at 5.57 p.m.

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Junior Sports Assistance Fund held on

PRESIDING MEMBER
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17.2 PAYMENTS TO MEMBER ORGANISATIONS — REPORT NO. AR22/61426

Committee: Junior Sports Assistance Fund

Meeting Date: 5 October 2022

Report No.: AR22/61426

CM9 Reference: AF11/725

Author: Melissa Telford, Councillor Support Officer

Authoriser: Tim Coote, General Manager City and Community Growth
Summary: This report provides Members with an insight into the formula used

to determine payments made to Member Organisations for their
nominees to ensure consistency and fairness.

Strategic Plan Goal 1: Our People
Reference:

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

1.  That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61426 titled ‘Payments to Member
Organisations ’ as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2.  To be determined at the meeting.

ltem 17.2 Page 122 ‘




Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments 18 October 2022

TYPE OF REPORT
Other

BACKGROUND

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund was created for the express purpose of providing financial
assistance to local junior sportspersons of Mount Gambier and District who have achieved as a
minimum, selection in a formal State team and who compete at National sporting events (or
equivalent) and who are a member of an Affiliated Sporting Organisation. Council joined with local
sporting organisations to establish an ongoing pool of money for distribution to those juniors selected
to represent the State or to represent Australia or equivalent.

The Fund assists those who already have ability and have shown natural skills, commitment and
advancement to, as a minimum, selection to a State team.

Council oversees the administrative procedures to receive, consider and process funding
applications and then distribute funds to the relevant Member Organisations to assist their junior.

PROPOSAL

To ensure all applications are processed in a fair manner and to ensure juniors are receiving the
same amount with respect to the money outlaid the funding formula of 10% of the cost of the principal
event is used to determine the contribution paid. There are minimal applications received that fall
below the $200 mark or above the $500 mark. The terms of reference allow the Committee the
discretion to review and amend the distribution policy annually.

The current funding formula is as follows:

1.  Allocations are calculated based on 10% of the total cost of the principle event and capped at
$200 minimum and $400 maximum.

2.  That in the event of extenuating circumstances the determination will be at the discretion of
the Committee.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

STRATEGIC PLAN

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund supports its member sporting organisations to develop and grow
to achieve their aspirations and encourage and support participation.

1.1.1 Fostering and supporting community-based organisations.

1.1.2 Supporting programs that allow our community groups to be more effective in achieving
their goals.

1.2.2 Helping community groups to help themselves by providing support for effective
networks to develop and grow.

1.3.2 Providing opportunities to enable our community to be supported and involved.
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COUNCIL POLICY
N/A

ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS
N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

SOCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund provides financial assistance to local junior sportspersons of
Mount Gambier and District who have achieved as a minimum, selection in a formal State team and
who compete at National sporting events (or equivalent) and who are a member of an Affiliated
Sporting Organisation to aid in the financial burden these events place on regional families.

The Fund provides an ongoing pool of money for distribution to those juniors selected to represent
the State or to represent Australia or equivalent and it also provides additional funding sourced from
external sponsorship which is awarded to an exceptional junior on an annual basis.

CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
The Junior Sports Assistance Fund places no additional financial implications for Council.

VALUE FOR MONEY
N/A

RISK IMPLICATIONS
N/A

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS
N/A

ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION STRATEGY

Communication with Member Organisations is ongoing. Applications for funding for State and
National events can be received at any time. Specialised programs run on an annual basis such as
Specialised Coaching Clinics, Disadvantaged Juniors and Exceptional Juniors and these Programs
are promoted to Member Organisations of the Fund as they arise.
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IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY
N/A

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION
The current funding formula is as follows:

1.  Allocation are calculated based on 10% of the total cost of the principle event and capped at
$200 minimum and $400 maximum.

2. That in the event of extenuating circumstances the determination will be at the discretion of
the Committee.

Any changes to the funding formula to be determined at the meeting.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil
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17.3 STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE - YEAR ENDED 30/06/2022 -
REPORT NO. AR22/61255

Committee: Junior Sports Assistance Fund

Meeting Date: 5 October 2022

Report No.: AR22/61255

CM9 Reference: AF11/725

Author: Melissa Telford, Councillor Support Officer

Authoriser: Tim Coote, General Manager City and Community Growth

Summary: This report presents the financial position of the Junior Sports
Assistance Fund for period 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022.

Strategic Plan Goal 1: Our People

Reference:

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

1.  That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61255 titled ‘Statement of Revenue
and Expenditure - Year Ended 30/06/2022’ as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2. The Statement of Income and Expenditure for period ended 30 June, 2022 detailing
payments to or payments from the Fund with a 30 June 2020 cash balance of $122,093.90
be received.
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TYPE OF REPORT

BACKGROUND

The statement of income and expenditure of the Junior Sports Assistance Fund for the period 1 July
2021 to 30 June 2022 is reported for information.

PROPOSAL

The report provides the Junior Sports Assistance Fund statement of income and expenditure for
financial year 2021/2022, detailing payments to or payments from the Fund as at 30 June 2022.
Revenue from the member sporting organisations, Council contributions, bank interest and any
donations received during the reporting period are also listed. Also, payments to junior
sportspersons, coaching clinics, exceptional and financially disadvantaged juniors are also provided
to inform the members of the expenditure incurred during this reporting period.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Nil

STRATEGIC PLAN

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund supports its member sporting organisations to develop and grow
to achieve their aspirations and encourage and support participation.

1.1.1 Fostering and supporting community-based organisations.

1.1.2 Supporting programs that allow our community groups to be more effective in achieving
their goals.

1.2.2 Helping community groups to help themselves by providing support for effective
networks to develop and grow.

1.3.2 Providing opportunities to enable our community to be supported and involved.

COUNCIL POLICY
N/A

ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS
N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

SOCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund provides financial assistance to local junior sportspersons of
Mount Gambier and District who have achieved as a minimum, selection in a formal State team and
who compete at National sporting events (or equivalent) and who are a member of an Affiliated
Sporting Organisation to aid in the financial burden these events place on regional families.
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The Fund provides an ongoing pool of money for distribution to those juniors selected to represent
the State or to represent Australia or equivalent and it also provides additional funding sourced from
external sponsorship which is awarded to an exceptional junior on an annual basis.

CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
The Junior Sports Assistance Fund places no additional financial implications for Council.

VALUE FOR MONEY
N/A

RISK IMPLICATIONS
N/A

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS
N/A

ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION STRATEGY

Communication with Member Organisations is ongoing. Applications for funding for State or National
Funding can be received at any time. Specialised programs run on an annual basis such as
Specialised Coaching Clinics, Disadvantaged Juniors and Exceptional Junior and these programs
are promoted to Members Organisations of the Fund as the arise.

IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY
N/A

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

The financial position of the Junior Sports Assistance Fund as at 30 June 2022 is sound. The
consolidated balance of the fund as at 30 June 2022 is $122,093.90.

ATTACHMENTS

1. 2022 Audited Junior Sports Assistance Fund Audit Report - Financial Report
2. 2022 Audit Report - Junior Sports Assistance Fund
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CITY OF MOUNT GAMBIER JUNIOR SPORTS ASSISTANCE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 30 June 2022
REVENUE
Task 984  Member Contributions $ -
Task 985  Council Contributions $ 16,000.00
City of Mount Gambier $ 1200000
District Council of Grant $ 4,000.00
Task 1160 Donations Income - General $ -
Task 1161 Donations Income - Coaching Clinics $ -
Task 1162 Donations Income Exceptional Juniors $ -
Task 1163 Donations Income - Disadvantaged Junior $
Task 1165 Interest - Income $ 607.26
TOTAL REVENUE $ 16,607.26
LESS EXPENDITURE
TASK 986 Payment to Sportsperson $ 2,950,00
Basketbal Mount Gambier Inc $ 900.00
Lower South East Hockey $ 400.00
Mount Gambier & District Baseball League $ 350.00
Mount Gambier & District Little Athletics $ 400.00
Mount Gambier Cycling Club $ 600.00
West Gambier Netball $ 300.00
TASK 987 Payment to Coaching Clinic $
TASK 988 Payment to Exceptional Junior $ 2,000.00
Mount Gambier & Districts Junior Cricket Association - Elwood Geary $ 1,000.00
Mount Gambier & Districts Litte Athletics - Emily Lynch $ 1.000.00
TASK 989 Payment to Financially Disadvantaged Junior $ 1,600.00
Blue Lake Y Swimming Club $ 300.00
Basketbal Mount Gambier Inc S 600.00
Limestone Coasr Football Association $ 300.00
Lower South East Hockey $ 400.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURE $ 6,550.00
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) $ 10,057.26
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CITY OF MOUNT GAMBIER JUNIOR SPORTS ASSISTANCE FUND

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
For the year ended 30 June 2022

This is represented by:

Net Assets as at 30 June 2021 $ 112,036.64
Add Surplus/Defecit year ending 30 June 2022 $ 10,057.26
$ 122,093.90

City of Mount Gambier Reserve Account
8900.9950 9970 Junior Sports Assistance Fund Reserve $ 122,093.90
TOTAL ASSETS $ 122,093.90

Prepared by

Kylie Harradine
TEAM LEADER FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING
14/09/2022
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CITY OF MOUNT GAMBIER JUNIOR SPORTS ASSISTANCE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are a special purpose financial report prepared for use by members of
the Association. The committee have determined that the Association is not a reporting entity
and therefore there is no requirement to apply Australian Accounting Standards, Australian
Accounting Interpretations and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board in the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared from historical cost records and do not take into
account changing money values or, except where stated, current valuations of non-current
assets. The cash basis of accounting has been adopted. The financial statements have been
prepared on the going concern basis, and the concept of matenality has been applied. No
accounting standards, accounting interpretations or other authoritative pronouncements have
been applied

The following material accounting policies which are consistent with the previous period unless
otherwise stated, have been adopted in the preparation of this financial statement

(a) Income Tax
The association is exempt from Income Tax
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Chartered
DeanNEWbery /\CC.()UT:U;HI‘E

HEAD OFFICE
214 Melbourne Street
North Adelaide SA 5006

PO Box 755

North Adelaide SA 5006
INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT 1:(08) 8267 4777
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE CITY OF MOUNT GAMBIER JUNIOR SPORTS ASSISTANCE FUND  www.deannewbery.com.au
SECTION 41 COMMITTEE

Dean Newbery
Opinion ABN: 30 154 612 890

We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement on the City of Mount Gambier’s (Council) compliance, in all
material respects, with the City of Mount Gambier Junior Sports Assistance Fund Terms of Reference as evaluated
against the accompanying Financial Report titled the City of Mount Gambier Junior Sports Assistance Fund, which
comprises the Statement of Revenue and Expenditure for the financial year ended 30 June 2022, Note 1 comprising of
a summary of significant accounting policies and the Certification of Financial Report.

In our opinion, Council has complied, in all material respects, with the Terms of Reference as evaluated against the
accompanying Financial Report for the period of 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Standard on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3100 Compliance
Engagements issued by the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnrate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The City of Mount Gambier’s Responsibilities

The City of Mount Gambier is responsible for:
a) The compliance activity undertaken to meet the Junior Sports Assistance Fund Terms of Reference;
b) Identification of risks that threaten the compliance activity identified above being met and controls which will
mitigate those risks and monitor ongoing compliance.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other relevant ethical requirements relating to assurance engagements
and apply Auditing Standards ASQC 1 Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Reports and
Other Financial information, and Other Assurance Engagements in undertaking this assurance engagement.

Assurance Practitioner’s Responsibilities

Our Responsibility is to express an opinion on the Council’s compliance, in all material respects, with the Junior Sports
Assistance Fund Terms of Reference as evaluated against the against the accompanying Financial Report titled the City
of Mount Gambier Junior Sports Assistance Fund for the financial year ended 30 June 2022. ASAE 3100 requires that
we plan and perform our procedures to obtain reasonable assurance over the above.

An assurance engagement to report on the Council’s compliance with the Terms of Reference involves our procedures
for the examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts disclosed in the Statement of Revenue and

Expenditure. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion whether, in all material respects, the attached
Statement of Revenue and Expenditure is presented fairly in accordance with the Terms of Reference

North Adeicide | BOlOkICVO Liability imited by o scheme opproved under Professional Standards Legisiation
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Inherent Limitations

Because of the inherent limitations of an assurance engagement, together with the internal control structure it is
possible that fraud, error, or non-compliance with the compliance requirements may not be detected.

A reasonable assurance engagement for the period of 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 does not provide assurance on

whether compliance with the Junior Sports Assistance Fund Terms of Reference will continue in the future.

DEAN NEWBERY

Samantha Cretan

PARTNER

Signed on the 26" day of September 2022,

at 214 Melbourne Street, North Adelaide, South Australia 5006.
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Chartered
DeanNEWbery /\CC.()UT:U;HI‘E

HEAD OFFICE
214 Melbourne Street
North Adelaide SA 5006

PO Box 755

North Adelaide SA 5006
INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT 1:(08) 8267 4777
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE CITY OF MOUNT GAMBIER JUNIOR SPORTS ASSISTANCE FUND  www.deannewbery.com.au
SECTION 41 COMMITTEE

Dean Newbery
Opinion ABN: 30 154 612 890

We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement on the City of Mount Gambier’s (Council) compliance, in all
material respects, with the City of Mount Gambier Junior Sports Assistance Fund Terms of Reference as evaluated
against the accompanying Financial Report titled the City of Mount Gambier Junior Sports Assistance Fund, which
comprises the Statement of Revenue and Expenditure for the financial year ended 30 June 2022, Note 1 comprising of
a summary of significant accounting policies and the Certification of Financial Report.

In our opinion, Council has complied, in all material respects, with the Terms of Reference as evaluated against the
accompanying Financial Report for the period of 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Standard on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3100 Compliance
Engagements issued by the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnrate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The City of Mount Gambier’s Responsibilities

The City of Mount Gambier is responsible for:
a) The compliance activity undertaken to meet the Junior Sports Assistance Fund Terms of Reference;
b) Identification of risks that threaten the compliance activity identified above being met and controls which will
mitigate those risks and monitor ongoing compliance.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other relevant ethical requirements relating to assurance engagements
and apply Auditing Standards ASQC 1 Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Reports and
Other Financial information, and Other Assurance Engagements in undertaking this assurance engagement.

Assurance Practitioner’s Responsibilities

Our Responsibility is to express an opinion on the Council’s compliance, in all material respects, with the Junior Sports
Assistance Fund Terms of Reference as evaluated against the against the accompanying Financial Report titled the City
of Mount Gambier Junior Sports Assistance Fund for the financial year ended 30 June 2022. ASAE 3100 requires that
we plan and perform our procedures to obtain reasonable assurance over the above.

An assurance engagement to report on the Council’s compliance with the Terms of Reference involves our procedures
for the examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts disclosed in the Statement of Revenue and

Expenditure. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion whether, in all material respects, the attached
Statement of Revenue and Expenditure is presented fairly in accordance with the Terms of Reference

North Adeicide | BOlOkICVO Liability imited by o scheme opproved under Professional Standards Legisiation
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Inherent Limitations

Because of the inherent limitations of an assurance engagement, together with the internal control structure it is
possible that fraud, error, or non-compliance with the compliance requirements may not be detected.

A reasonable assurance engagement for the period of 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 does not provide assurance on

whether compliance with the Junior Sports Assistance Fund Terms of Reference will continue in the future.

DEAN NEWBERY

Samantha Cretan

PARTNER

Signed on the 26" day of September 2022,

at 214 Melbourne Street, North Adelaide, South Australia 5006.
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17.4 MEMBER ORGANISATION CONTRIBUTIONS — REPORT NO. AR22/61465

Committee: Junior Sports Assistance Fund

Meeting Date: 5 October 2022

Report No.: AR22/61465

CM9 Reference: AF11/725

Author: Melissa Telford, Councillor Support Officer

Authoriser: Tim Coote, General Manager City and Community Growth

Summary: This report reflects Member Organisation contributions to be paid
to the Fund for financial year 2022/2023.

Strategic Plan Goal 1: Our People

Reference:

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

1.  That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61465 titled ‘Member Organisation
Contributions ’ as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2.  The Member Organisation contributions for the 2022/2023 financial year continue to be
based on the funding formula as adopted at the Annual Meeting of Members held on 2™
August 2005 i.e. the annual Member Organization financial contributions be based on 30%
of the previous five (5) year annual average of the financial support they have received from
the Fund to the individual Member Organization.

3. The “previous five (5) year annual average” be interpreted and calculated on a rolling basis
i.e. the previous five (5) year annual average include the then financial year just ended so
that the Member Organisation contributions reflect the most current figures.

4.  The minimum payment of $400 and the maximum payment of $800 apply for the 2022/2023
financial year.

(Committee to consider and make final decision re (4)
OR

1. That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61465 titled ‘Member Organisation
Contributions ’ as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2. Members Organisations be advised that to continue assist its members during the COVID-
19 crisis, member contributions to the Junior Sports Assistance Fund for the 2022/2023
financial year be waived.

OR

1.  That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61465 titled ‘Member Organisation
Contributions ’ as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2. Member Organisations be advised that to continue to assist members during the COVID-19
crisis, member contributions to the Junior Sports Assistance Fund for the 2022/2023
financial year reduced by 50%.

Iltem 17.4 Page 136 ‘




Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments 18 October 2022

TYPE OF REPORT
Other

BACKGROUND

The Junior Sports Assistance Funds affiliated sporting organisations contribute annually to the Fund
based on a formula determined by the Committee annually and adopted by the affiliated sporting
organisations at the Annual Meeting to apply for the ensuing financial year.

PROPOSAL
Member Organisation Contributions 2022/2023

The Secretary reported that the implications associated with the COVID-19 crisis have had an impact
on our sporting community.

Whilst things have settled somewhat, the number of applications for funding for State and National
events continue to be quite low.

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund does have the capacity to provide relief of certain financial
obligations during this time to our sporting community. To assist our sporting members an option to
waive member contributions for the 2022/2023 financial year totalling $8,500 could assist Clubs to
continue to regroup following a difficult few years. Alternatively a reduction of 50% of the 2022/2023
Member Contributions could be another option as the situation eases.

With this in mind, the Junior Sports Assistance Fund has three options for consideration.

Option 1:

The Member Contributions remain in place:

The Secretary report that Member Organisation contributions for the 2022/2023 year continue to be
based on the same formula.

For the 2022/2023 financial year it is suggested that the financial contributions by Member
Organisations be retained at:

()  minimum of $400
(i)  maximum of $800

For the information of Members the last change to the financial contributions was made in 2014/2015
ie.

2013/2014 2014/2015

Minimum $350 $400
Maximum $800 $800
Option 2:

The Fund being in a very sound financial position suggests member contributions for the 2022/2023
financial year totalling approximately $8,500 be waived to provide relief to Clubs allowing them to
continue to rebuild following a difficult few years.
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Option 3:

The Fund being in a very sound financial position offer a 50% reduction to member contributions
calculated on the same funding formula as previous years providing member organisations the
opportunity to continue to rebuild and lessen any financial burden.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

STRATEGIC PLAN

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund supports its member sporting organisations to develop and grow
to achieve their aspirations and encourage and support participation.

1.1.1 Fostering and supporting community-based organisations.

1.1.2 Supporting programs that allow our community groups to be more effective in achieving
their goals.

1.2.2 Helping community groups to help themselves by providing support for effective
networks to develop and grow.

1.3.2 Providing opportunities to enable our community to be supported and involved.

COUNCIL POLICY
N/A

ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS
N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

SOCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund provides financial assistance to local junior sportspersons of
Mount Gambier and District who have achieved as a minimum, selection in a formal State team and
who compete at National sporting events (or equivalent) and who are a member of an Affiliated
Sporting Organisation to aid in the financial burden these events place on regional families.

The Fund provides an ongoing pool of money for distribution to those juniors selected to represent
the State or to represent Australia or equivalent and it also provides additional funding sourced from
external sponsorship which is awarded to an exceptional junior on an annual basis.

CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A
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RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund places no additional financial implications for Council.

VALUE FOR MONEY
N/A

RISK IMPLICATIONS
N/A

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS
N/A

ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION STRATEGY

Communication with Member Organisations is ongoing. Applications for funding for State and
National events can be received at any time. Specialised programs run on an annual basis such as
Specialised Coaching Clinics, Disadvantaged Juniors and Exceptional Juniors and these Programs
are promoted to Member Organisations of the Fund as they arise.

IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY
N/A

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION
The Junior Sports Assistance Fund Committee to determine:
Option 1: The Member Organisation contributions for the 2022/2023 financial year be retained at:

() minimum of $400
(i) maximum of $800

Option 2: Members Organisations be advised that to continue to assist its members during the
COVID-19 crisis, Member Contributions to the Junior Sports Assistance Fund for the
2022/2023 financial year be waived.

Option 3: Member Organisations be advised that to continue to assist members during the COVID-
19 crisis, member contributions to the Junior Sports Assistance Fund for the 2022/2023
financial year reduced by 50%.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil
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17.5 GENERAL DEVELOPMENTS OF THE FUND SINCE THE THIRTY SIXTH ANNUA
GENERAL MEETING — REPORT NO. AR22/61636

Committee: Junior Sports Assistance Fund

Meeting Date: 5 October 2022

Report No.: AR22/61636

CM9 Reference: AF11/725

Author: Melissa Telford, Councillor Support Officer

Authoriser: Tim Coote, General Manager City and Community Growth
Summary: The report provides details on applications received for financial

assistance from Members of the Junior Sports Assistance Fund
and payments made from the Fund for financial year 2021/2022. It
also provides general information in relation to membership

Strategic Plan Goal 1: Our People
Reference:

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/61636 titled ‘General Developments
of the Fund since the Thirty Sixth Annual General Meeting’ as presented on 05 October 2022
be noted.
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TYPE OF REPORT
Other

BACKGROUND

The report provides details on applications received for financial assistance from Members of the
Junior Sports Assistance Fund, payments made from the Fund and general information in relation to
Membership of the Fund for financial year 2021/2022 and is reported for information.

PROPOSAL
General Developments since the Thirty-Second Annual Meeting

(@) Seventeen (17) individual sporting organisations are formal Members of the Fund as at June
2021.

(b) The Committee that manages the Fund comprises the following members as at 30 June 2021

Cr Christian Greco (Presiding Member)

Cr Megan Dukalskis

Mrs Jeanette Elliott

Mrs Jenny Burston

Mrs Karen Cunningham

Mrs Felicity Walker

Mr Tim Coote (Secretary)

and the Committee met formally on 18 August 2021, 19 August 2021, 27 October 2021
and 2 March 2022.

(c) The Committee's current policies are that the payments from the Fund for support to juniors in
any one financial year should not exceed 30% of the value of the Fund calculated as at 1% day
of July of that financial year and that $5,000 be made available in any one financial year for
specialised coaching clinics.

(d) The Committee has appointed small specific sub-committees for its Members to consider all
applications for financial assistance from the Fund and for the sub-committees to act on those
applications in consultation with the Secretary.

(e) The following applications for financial assistance to Juniors from the Fund had been approved
and paid during the 2021/22 year:

Basketball Mount Gambier Inc. 900
Blue Lake Y Swim Club -
Lower South East Hockey Assaciation Inc. 400
Mount Gambier & District Baseball League Inc. 350

Lakes Junior Tennis Inc. -
Mount Gambier & District Pony Club -
Mount Gambier Golf Club Inc. -
Mount Gambier Netball Association Inc. -
North Gambier Football/Netball Clubs -
South Gambier Football/Netball Clubs -
Mount Gambier & District Junior Cricket Association -
Mount Gambier & District Little Athletics Club 400
Mount Gambier Touch Association -
South East Women’s Football Association -
Mount Gambier Swimming Club -
Mount Gambier Cycling & Triathlon Club 600
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()

(9)

(h)

(i)

Item 17.5

Limestone Coast Football Association (formerly Western Border Soccer) -

West Gambier Netball Club 300
Discretionary _
$2,950

The following applications for specialised Coaching Clinic funding had been approved
and/or paid during the 2021/2022 year:

Nil

The following applications for Disadvantaged Junior funding had been approved and/or
paid during the 2021/2022 year:

Blue Lake Y Swim Club 300
Basketball Mount Gambier 600
Limestone Coast Football Association 300
Lower South East Hockey Association 400

$1,600

Funded entirely from the generous sponsorship of the Rotary Club of Mount Gambier
Lakes from Blue Lake Fun Run proceeds.

Commercial Club Exceptional Junior Award

The Commercial Club Inc. has continued to provide a generous donation of $2,500 to the
Fund with $1,000 of this donation supporting the Exceptional Junior Program. The
donation of $1,000 is awarded to a young person (or two) who has demonstrated
exceptional commitment and skills to achieve excellence in their chosen sport (the
Exceptional Junior Award was previously funded by Blue Ribbon Insurance Services with
the Commercial Club taking over naming rights to the Program in 2013).

The awardees of over the past eleven (11) years of the initiative are:

2010 Jack Pudney (Cricket)

2011 Jaime Mclnerney (Athletics)

2012 Matthew Markiewicz (Basketball)

2013 Connor Prior (Karate)

2014 Dylan Ridding (Baseball)

2015 Lachlan Hunter (Basketball)

2016 Isabella Stratford (Basketball/Cricket)

2017 Mitchell Hunter and Emily Close (Basketball)

2018 Georgia Clark (Hockey)

2019 Tess White (Cycling)

2020 Elwood Geary (Mount Gambier & District Cricket) and Emily Lynch (Mount
Gambier & District Little Athletics)

Of the total incomes of the Fund for the 2021/22 financial year:

Council’s contributions 16,000 96%
Member organisation contributions * - -
Bank Interests 607 4%
Donations - -%
Sponsorship - -%

$16,607 100%

* 2021/2022 Member Contributions waived due to COVID
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()  The following TOTAL payments have been made to Junior sportspersons from the Fund -
15t July 1988 to 30™ June 2022:

Mount Gambier and District Little Athletics 22,800
Mount Gambier Netball Association 2,150
Blue Lake Y Swimming Club 12,065
Basketball Mount Gambier 92,360
Mount Gambier Cycling & Triathlon Club 12,450
Mount Gambier & District Baseball League 86,620
Lakes Junior Tennis Association 2,100
North Gambier Football and Netball Clubs 3,950
Lower South East Hockey Association 90,075
South Gambier Football and Netball Clubs 6,650
Mount Gambier Golf Club 4,650
Mount Gambier & District Pony Club 2,600
Mount Gambier Touch Association 4,150
Mount Gambier & District Junior Cricket 7,950
South East Women'’s Football Association 13,525
Limestone Coast Football Assoc. (formerly Western Border Soccer Association) 9,600
Mount Gambier Swimming Club 300
West Gambier Netball Club 300
Discretionary 10,460
Blue Lake Sports Club * 1,500
Gambier Centrals Soccer Club * 1,150
Mount Gambier Pistol Club * 4,800
Blue Lake City Roller Skating Club * 11,550
Mount Gambier Ten Pin Bowling * 700
Mount Gambier Junior Motorcycle * 5,100
Blue Lake Gymnastic Club * 1,300
Shingokan Go Ju Ryu Karate * 15,720
West Gambier Football Junior Colts * 800
Mount Gambier Athletics Talent & Development * 8,350
Blue Lake BMX Club Inc. * 22,620
Australian Karate - Do Seishikan * 4,400
East Gambier Football and Netball Clubs * 1,500
Mount Gambier Show Jumping Association * 350
Mount Gambier Softball League * 33,450

$498,045

*No longer a Member

(K) The following TOTAL payments have been made to Member Organisations for specialised
Coaching Clinics from the Fund - 15t July 1991 to 30" June 2022:

Mount Gambier Cycling & Triathlon Club 4,315
Basketball Mount Gambier 7,837
Lakes Junior Tennis Association 7,625
Mount Gambier Netball Association 4,900
Blue Lake Y Swimming Club 10,100
Mount Gambier & District Baseball League 6,750
Lower South East Hockey Association 3,050
Mount Gambier & District Pony Club 10,634
North Gambier Football and Netball Clubs 1,790
Mount Gambier & District Junior Cricket 600
Mount Gambier Little Athletics 2,100
Mount Gambier Golf Club 2,800
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South East Women’s Football Association 4,500
Limestone Coast Football Association 2,700
Mount Gambier Swimming Club 3,050
Mount Gambier Golf Club 2,000
Mount Gambier Ten Pin Bowling * 1,000
Mount Gambier District Korfball Club * 1,140
Mount Gambier Pistol Club * 1,200
Mount Gambier Junior Motorcycle * 862
Shingokan Go Ju Ryu Karate * 8,040
Blue Lake Gymnastic Club * 2,500
Mount Gambier Athletics Talent Squad * 1,000
Blue Lake City Roller Skating Club * 300
Mount Gambier Table Tennis Association * 3,850
Blue Lake BMX Club * 2,000
Mount Gambier Showjumping Club * 2,450
Mount Gambier Softball League * 5,590

$104,683

* No longer a Member

()  The following TOTAL payments have been made to Member Organisations for
Disadvantaged Junior from the Fund - 15 July, 2012 to 30" June, 2022:

Mount Gambier & District Baseball League 900
South East Women’s Football Association 2,400
Mount Gambier Cycling and Triathlon Club 600
Basketball Mount Gambier 5,710
Mount Gambier Athletics Talent & Development Squad 300
Lower South East Hockey Association 400
Blue Lake Y Swim Club 1,100
Limestone Coast Football Association 3,990
Mount Gambier Softball League 300
Mount Gambier Netball Association 600
Mount Gambier Golf Club 300
Special Olympics SA (Discretionary) 1,500
East Gambier Sportsmens Football Club 600
Discretionary 300

$19,000

Non Resident Applications

The Secretary reported that a previous amendment to the operating guidelines now allows persons
not resident of the area of the two local Councils (but who are Members of a Member Organisation of
the Fund) to now apply for financial assistance, the Committee wished to be informed of the number
of applications received on an annual basis.

During 2021/22 there were no non-resident applications received.
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Applications for Financial Assistance - Discretionary Assistance

(@) that the Annual Meeting of Members held on 27" July, 2004 resolved:
“as a matter of Policy this Annual Meeting of Members hereby adopts and delegates the power
to the Committee to make a discretionary donation to a local junior sportsperson when in the
opinion of the Committee any such application deserves the Committee’s support based on
special merit and circumstances and where the application is not able to be processed under
the current procedures of the Fund.”

(b) During the 2021/22 year there were no discretionary applications received.

Applications for Assistance Denied

The Secretary reported that during the 2021/2022 there were no applications for financial assistance
denied.

Resigned (Suspended) and new Member Organisations

(@) During 2021/2022 no Member Organisations were suspended from the Fund for non-payment
of their Member Contribution.

(b) During 2021/2022 no Members Organisations withdrew from the Fund.

(c) During 202/2021 West Gambier Football/Netball Club was admitted as a new Member of the
Junior Sports Assistance Fund.

Financial Position

With the number of applications for support to juniors, the Fund was able to cope with demand. The
financial position is continually reviewed.

This 2022 Annual Meeting of Members will again be required to reflect upon the reforms necessary
to stabilise and sustain the financial position of the Fund to achieve our aspirations in the 2022/2023
year.

Interest rates on our small investment continue to be at a low level.

Suggested 2022/2023 reforms can be summarised as:

= Reductions or increase in individual financial support to junior sportspersons (if the Committee
deems necessary)

The Member Contributions to be determined via separate report as follows:

»= Sustain the current annual minimum payment of $400 from Member Organisations but the
Committee review the current annual maximum payment of $800 from Member Organisations
and determine ceiling limit.

Individual Member contributions continue to be calculated to have regard to returns to that
Member Organisation from the Fund based on applications granted and not on the number of

juniors.

or
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= The Secretary reported that the continuing implications associated with the COVID-19 crisis
have had an immediate impact on our sporting community. To assist our sporting members an
option to waive member contributions for the 2022/2023 financial year to assist Clubs rebuild
may be a form of financial assistance offered to its Members.

The Fund is in a very sound financial position and the consideration to waive the member
contributions of approximately $8,500 to provide ongoing support to its sporting members is
viable.

or

= An alternative option to assist members during the COVID-19 crisis is to reduce member
contributions to the Junior Sports Assistance Fund for the 2022/2023 financial year by 50%.

Unpaid Membership 2021/2022
All Member contributions were waived for 2021/2022.
Financial Support to Juniors not able to attend the National Event due to Iliness /Injury

From time to time it can occur that a junior who has received financial support from the Fund to attend
a National event is not able to finally participate due to injury, iliness.

Depending on the timing of the need to withdraw the family could have purchased equipment, special
purpose clothing or paid other non-refundable costs.

In the past the Funds contribution to a junior who has been required to withdraw from a State Team
has been refunded in full back to the Fund.

The question is whether some or all of the Funds contribution to a junior (via a Member Organisation)
can be retained by the family to cover some of the non-refundable costs incurred by the family.

The City of Mount Gambier Junior Sports Assistance Fund Committee at its meeting held on 315 July,
2013 resolved:

(@) the report be received;

(b) () asamatter of Policy, should it occur that within the twenty one (21) days prior to the actual
event date, a junior sportsperson(s) is forced through injury or iliness to withdraw from the
principal event for which funds have been provided to the junior sportsperson(s) (via their
Member Organisation) by the Fund, then the Secretary may negotiate with the family for
the family to retain some of the donation provided by the Fund should the family prove
that they have incurred and paid non-refundable costs;

(i)  in all other cases a full refund of the original donation should be returned to the fund by

the recipient member organisation/family if a junior sportsperson(s) is not able to attend
the principal event due to iliness or injury.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A
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STRATEGIC PLAN

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund supports its member sporting organisations to develop and grow
to achieve their aspirations and encourage and support participation.

1.1.1 Fostering and supporting community-based organisations.

1.1.2 Supporting programs that allow our community groups to be more effective in achieving
their goals.

1.2.2 Helping community groups to help themselves by providing support for effective
networks to develop and grow.

1.3.2 Providing opportunities to enable our community to be supported and involved.

COUNCIL POLICY
N/A

ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS
N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

SOCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund provides financial assistance to local junior sportspersons of
Mount Gambier and District who have achieved as a minimum, selection in a formal State team and
who compete at National sporting events (or equivalent) and who are a member of an Affiliated
Sporting Organisation to aid in the financial burden these events place on regional families.

The Fund provides an ongoing pool of money for distribution to those juniors selected to represent
the State or to represent Australia or equivalent and it also provides additional funding sourced from
external sponsorship which is awarded to an exceptional junior on an annual basis.

CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund places no additional financial implications for Council.

VALUE FOR MONEY
N/A

RISK IMPLICATIONS
N/A
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EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS
N/A

ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION STRATEGY

Communication with Member Organisations is ongoing. Applications for funding for State or National
Funding can be received at any time. Specialised programs run on an annual basis such as
Specialised Coaching Clinics, Disadvantaged Juniors and Exceptional Junior and these programs are
promoted to Members Organisations of the Fund as the arise.

IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY
N/A

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION
This report is provided for information purposes.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil
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17.6 COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS - REPORT NO. AR22/67353

Committee: Junior Sports Assistance Fund

Meeting Date: 5 October 2022

Report No.: AR22/67353

CM9 Reference: AF11/725

Author: Melissa Telford, Councillor Support Officer

Authoriser: Tim Coote, General Manager City and Community Growth
Summary: This report reflects the appointment of members of the Committee

who are authorised to consider and approve applications for Junior
Sports Fund assistance.

Strategic Plan Goal 1: Our People
Reference:

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

1. That Junior Sports Assistance Fund Report No. AR22/67353 titled ‘Committee
Appointments ’ as presented on 05 October 2022 be noted.

2. The committee appointments to approve applications to the Junior Sports Fund Assistance
Fund as referenced in Report No. AR22/67353 titled ‘Committee Appointments * be adopted.

Item 17.6 Page 149 ‘




Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments

18 October 2022

TYPE OF REPORT
Other

BACKGROUND

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund appoints Committee Members to consider and approve
applications for funding from Member Organisations. This report reflects the appointments made.

PROPOSAL

The following appointments of members the Committee be authorised to consider and approve
applications for Junior Sports Assistance Fund assistance:

APPLICATIONS FROM

COMMITTEE MEMBERS EMPOWERED TO

4. BASKETBALL

AND (those Netball Clubs associated with
Mount Gambier WBFL Football Clubs

the Fund i.e.
e South Gambier
¢ North Gambier)
6. BASEBALL
7. TENNIS
8. PONY CLUB
9. GOLF
10. CRICKET

11. ATHLETICS

12. TOUCH FOOTBALL

5. NETBALL — MGT NETBALL ASSOCIATION

provided those Football Clubs are Members of

CONSIDER

1. SWIMMING KAREN CUNNINGHAM
FELICITY WALKER

2. FOOTBALL JEANETTE ELLIOTT
JENNY BUSTON

3. HOCKEY KAREN CUNNINGHAM

JEANETTE ELLIOTT

FELICITY WALKER
JENNY BURSTON

JEANETTE ELLIOTT
JENNY BURSTON

KAREN CUNNINGHAM
FELICITY WALKER

KAREN CUNNINGHAM
FELICITY WALKER

JEANETTE ELLIOTT
JENNY BURSTON

JENNY BURSTON
FELICITY WALKER

KAREN CUNNINGHAM
JEANETTE ELLIOTT

KAREN CUNNINGHAM
JEANETTE ELLIOTT

JEANETTE ELLIOTT
FELICITY WALKER

KAREN CUNNINGHAM
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APPLICATIONS FROM COMMITTEE MEMBERS EMPOWERED TO
CONSIDER
13. WOMEN’S FOOTBALL JENNY BURSTON

JEANETTE ELLIOTT
14. CYCLING & TRIATHLON FELICITY WALKER

KAREN CUNNINGAM
15. SOCCER JENNY BURSTON

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

STRATEGIC PLAN

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund supports its member sporting organisations to develop and grow
to achieve their aspirations and encourage and support participation.

1.1.1 Fostering and supporting community-based organisations.

1.1.2 Supporting programs that allow our community groups to be more effective in achieving
their goals.

1.2.2 Helping community groups to help themselves by providing support for effective
networks to develop and grow.

1.3.2 Providing opportunities to enable our community to be supported and involved.

COUNCIL POLICY
N/A

ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS
N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

SOCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund provides financial assistance to local junior sportspersons of
Mount Gambier and District who have achieved as a minimum, selection in a formal State team and
who compete at National sporting events (or equivalent) and who are a member of an Affiliated
Sporting Organisation to aid in the financial burden these events place on regional families.

The Fund provides an ongoing pool of money for distribution to those juniors selected to represent
the State or to represent Australia or equivalent and it also provides additional funding sourced from
external sponsorship which is awarded to an exceptional junior on an annual basis.

CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS

N/A

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund places no additional financial implications for Council.
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VALUE FOR MONEY
N/A

RISK IMPLICATIONS
N/A

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS
N/A

ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION STRATEGY

Communication with Member Organisations is ongoing. Applications for funding for State and
National events can be received at any time. Specialised programs run on an annual basis such as
Specialised Coaching Clinics, Disadvantaged Juniors and Exceptional Juniors and these Programs
are promoted to Member Organisations of the Fund as they arise.

IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY
N/A

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

The committee appointments referenced above to consider and approve applications to the Junior
Sports Fund Assistance Fund be adopted.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil
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MINUTES OF CITY OF MOUNT GAMBIER
AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEETING
HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC CENTRE, 10 WATSON TERRACE, MOUNT
GAMBIER
ON MONDAY, 26 SEPTEMBER 2022 AT 4.45 P.M.

PRESENT: Mr Paul Duka (Presiding Member), Mayor Lynette Martin (OAM), Cr Sonya
Mezinec, Mr Alexander Brown (virtual), Ms Belinda Johnson

IN ATTENDANCE: Samantha Creten (virtual), Kyle Harrison (virtual), Cr Paul Jenner

OFFICERS IN Acting Chief Executive Officer - Ms B Cernovskis

ATTENDANCE: General Manager Corporate and Regulatory Services - Mr D Barber
Manager Financial Services - Mrs J Scoggins
Executive Administrator - Mrs A Pasquazzi
Executive Administrator - Mrs S Dohnt

1 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

WE ACKNOWLEDGE THE BOANDIK PEOPLES AS THE TRADITIONAL CUSTODIANS OF THE
LAND WHERE WE MEET TODAY. WE RESPECT THEIR SPIRITUAL RELATIONSHIP WITH THE
LAND AND RECOGNISE THE DEEP FEELINGS OF ATTACHMENT OUR FIRST NATIONS
PEOPLES HAVE WITH THE LAND.

2 APOLOGY(IES)
Nil
3 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION

Moved: Mayor Lynette Martin
Seconded: Belinda Johnson

That the minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee meeting held on 25 July 2022 and the Special
Audit and Risk Committee meeting held on 22 August 2022 be confirmed as an accurate record
of the proceedings of the meeting.

CARRIED

4 QUESTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE

Nil
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5 REPORTS

5.1 CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION

Moved: Cr Sonya Mezinec
Seconded: Belinda Johnson

1.  That Audit and Risk Committee Report No. AR22/58445 titled ‘Correspondence Received’
as presented on 26 September 2022 be noted.

CARRIED

5.2 DRAFT 2021/2022 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Presiding Member sought the approval of at least two-thirds of the members present at the
meeting to suspend meeting procedures:

Purpose of the Suspension: to discuss Report AR22/60846
Carried by more than two-thirds of the members present at the meeting.
Meeting Procedures were suspended at 4:56 pm

The Presiding Member determined that the period of suspension should be brought to an end;
Carried by more than two-thirds of the members present at the meeting.
The Period of Suspension came to an end and Meeting Procedures resumed at 5:20 pm

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION

Moved: Paul Duka
Seconded: Alexander Brown

1. That Audit and Risk Committee Report No. AR22/60846 titled ‘Draft 2021/2022 Financial
Statements’ as presented on 26 September 2022 be noted.

2.  That in accordance with Section 126 (4) (a) of the Local Government Act 1999, the draft
annual financial statements of Council for the financial year 2021/2022 have been reviewed
and ‘they present fairly the state of affairs of the council’.

3. That having been reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee on 26 September 2022, the
Audit Completion Report and Management Representations Letter as attached to Report
No. AR22/60846 be noted.

CARRIED
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5.3 COMPARISON OF ACTUAL TO BUDGET FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2022

COMMITTEE RESOLUTION

Moved: Belinda Johnson
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec

1. That Audit and Risk Committee Report No. AR22/60848 titled ‘Comparison of Actual to
Budget for the year ending 30 June 2022’ as presented on 26 September 2022 be noted.

2.  That the estimates comparison for the financial year ending 30 June 2022 as contained in
Attachment 1 to Report No. AR22/60848 be adopted.

CARRIED

6 MOTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE
Nil
7 MEETING CLOSE

The Meeting closed at 5:24 pm.

The minutes of this meeting were confirmed at the Audit and Risk Committee

PRESIDING MEMBER
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18.2 CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED — REPORT NO. AR22/58445

Meeting: Audit and Risk Committee

CM9 Reference: AF11/863

Author: Ashlee Pasquazzi, Executive Administrator Corporate and
Regulatory Services

Authoriser: Darren Barber, General Manager Corporate and Regulatory
Services

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

1. That Audit and Risk Committee Report No. AR22/58445 titled ‘Correspondence Received’
as presented on 26 September 2022 be noted.
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BACKGROUND

The report provides details of correspondence received since the previous ordinary meeting of the
Audit and Risk Committee held 25 July 2022 and is provided for information.

DISCUSSION
The following correspondence has been received since the last ordinary meeting:

e Report of the Auditor-General - Report 5 of 2022 - Management of kerbside waste services

CONCLUSION

This report presents the attached correspondence received for presentation to the Audit and Risk
Committee for noting in line with the Audit and Risk Committee Terms of Reference:

13.3 Other Matters - Shall give consideration to:

* Relevant Audits - Consider the findings and recommendations of relevant audits undertaken by
the SA Auditor General’s Office, the South Australian Ombudsmen, Independent Commissioner
Against Corruption (ICAC) and other agencies to ensure Council considers the relevant
recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

1.  Auditor-General's Report 5 of 2022 - Management of kerbside waste services
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Government of South Australia
Auditor-General's Department

Lovel §

State Aaminsstration Centre
200 Victorsa Square
Adeaide SA 5000

Tol <616 8226 96540

Fax +618 8226 0688

ABN 53 327 061 410
audgensa@audi sa gov au
wWawaudt sa govau

15 August 2022

President Speaker

Legislative Council House of Assembly

Parliament House Parliament House

ADELAIDE SA 5000 ADELAIDE SA 5000

Dear President and Speaker

Report of the Auditor-General:

Report 5 of 2022 Management of kerbside waste services

Under section 32(1)(c) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 (PFAA), | have conducted

a review of the management of kerbside waste services by The Corporation of the City of
Norwood, Payneham and St Peters (NPSP Council) and the City of West Torrens (West Torrens
Council).

I present to each of you my independent assurance report on the findings of the review.

Copies of this report have also been provided to the NPSP Council and the West Torrens Council.
Content of the report

Our review assessed whether the NPSP Council and the West Torrens Council have effectively
managed kerbside waste services to work towards achieving their targets and the targets set by
the State Government for diversion of waste from landfill.

We concluded that both Councils successfully collect, transport and process kerbside waste toa
high level of community satisfaction. We found some common areas where neither Council was

operating effectively, including that they:

* did not have strategic plans for waste management setting out their objectives, strategies
and performance targets

¢ did not have a formal waste education strategy and program

+ did not monitor and report against local waste performance targets.
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We also found some areas where both Councils were operating effectively in managing kerbside
waste services.

Our detailed conclusions are in section 4.1 for the NPSP Council and section 5.1 for the West
Torrens Council of this report.

My responsibilities

Reviews conducted under section 32(1)(c) of the PFAA are assurance engagements

that assess whether a publicly funded body is achieving economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its activities. These engagements conclude on the performance of the activities evaluated against
identified criteria.

The Auditor-General’s roles and responsibilities in undertaking reviews are set out in the

PFAA. Section 32{1){c) of the PFAA empowers me to conduct this review while sections

32(4) to (6) deals with the reporting arrangements.

The review was conducted in line with the Standard on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3500
Performance Engagements. We complied with the independence and other relevant ethical
requirements for assurance engagements.

Acknowledgements

The audit team for this report was Salv Bianco, Andrew Corrigan, lolanda Telford, Kris Slaytor and
Sharon Ryan. They were assisted by Blue Environment Pty Ltd.

We appreciate the cooperation and assistance given by staff of the NPSP Council and the West
Torrens Council.

Yours sincerely

Andrew Richardson
Auditor-General
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1  Report overview

1.1 Introduction

We chose two councils, The Corporation of the City of Norwood, Payneham and St Peters
(NPSP Council) and the City of West Torrens (West Torrens Council), to assess whether they
have effectively managed their kerbside waste services to work towards achieving their
targets and the targets set by the SA Government for diverting waste from landfill.

Kerbside waste management is an essential and highly valued service provided by councils to
their communities. The kerbside waste services we refer to in this report are the household
three-bin waste system: residual waste bin (red or blue), co-mingled recyclables bin (yellow)
and organics bin (green).

Metropolitan councils spent $158 million on providing these services in 2019-20 and not
effectively managing them increases the risks of:

. reduced levels of waste services, negatively impacting community satisfaction and
public health and safety

. significant cost increases
. less waste diverted from landfill, and the associated costs and environmental impacts

. higher rates of contamination in recyding and organic kerbside bins.

However, if kerbside waste services are properly managed, waste can become a valuable
resource for reuse, repurposing or recycling.

The SA Government has set targets for metropolitan councils for landfill diversion in its
waste strategies. While these targets are not mandatory, we found that both Councils we
reviewed are committed to working towards them and to continuous improvement in this
area.

All further comments and analysis are for kerbside waste management in the metropolitan
area unless otherwise stated.

1.2 Overall observations

We concluded that both Councils successfully collect, transport and process kerbside waste
to a high level of community satisfaction.

There are many related areas that contribute to the overall effective management of
kerbside waste services. We found some common areas where neither Council was
operating effectively, including that they:

. did not have strategic plans for waste management setting out their objectives,
strategies and performance targets
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. did not have a formal waste education strategy and program

. did not monitor and report against local waste performance targets.

We also found some areas where both Councils were operating effectively in managing
kerbside waste services.

Our detailed conclusions are in section 4.1 for the NPSP Council and section 5.1 for the West
Torrens Council.

Councils face many challenges in providing kerbside waste services to their communities and
achieving the State targets for waste. Section 2.7 provides more detail on these challenges.

1.3 The structure of this report

This report details our review approach and results (including audit conclusions, findings and
recommendations) for the two metropolitan councils we reviewed and their responses as
follows:

. section 2 provides an overview of kerbside waste management across the local
government sector

. section 3 details our review mandate, objectives and approach

. section 4 provides an overview of the NPSP Council’s kerbside waste management
services, the results of our review and the Council’s responses

. section 5 provides an overview of the West Torrens Council’s kerbside waste
management services, the results of our review and the Council's responses.
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2 Background

2.1 Why this review is important

Kerbside waste is a shared concern for governments, communities and individuals. It must
be effectively managed to ensure the health, wellbeing and safety of the public is preserved,
the environment is protected and resources are recovered.

Councils incur significant costs in providing these services and not effectively managing them
increases the risks of:

. reduced levels of waste services, negatively impacting community satisfaction and
public health and safety

. significant cost increases
. less waste diverted from landfill, and the associated costs and environmental impacts

. higher rates of contamination in recyding and organic kerbside bins,

The benefits of effective kerbside waste management to public health, wellbeing and safety
are clear. They range from preventing the infestation and spread of disease by vermin and
the emission of odours, to averting unsightly and cluttered kerbsides that can impact the
safety of pedestrians and enjoyment of street aesthetics.

The environmental benefits of effectively managing kerbside waste are also well established.
Less waste in landfill (particularly food waste) reduces the release of greenhouse gases,
keeps valuable material resources circulating within the economy, lowers energy demands
and saves water usage.! Diverting organic waste such as food and garden waste from landfill
to appropriate resource recovery and treatment, including aerobic commercial composting
systems reduces the amount of methane,? a contributor to climate change, being emitted
from landfills.

However, waste generation per capita remains a challenge for South Australians.? Figure 2.1
shows the total waste generated per capita in South Australia for the last five years.

¥ Green Industries SA 2021, South Australio’s Recycling Activity Survey 2019-20 Report, Government of South
Australia, Adelaide, p. 77.

2 Green Industries SA 2021, Valuing our Food Waste, South Australia’s strategy to reduce and divert
household and business food waste 2020-2025, Government of South Australia, Adelaide.

¥ Green Industries SA 2020, South Australia’s Recycling Activity Survey 2018-19 Report, Government of South
Australia, Adelaide, p. 8.
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Figure 2.1: Total per capita waste generation for South Australia

2300
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Source: South Australia’s Recycking Activity Survey 2016-17 Finonaol Year Report, p 10 and South Austrolia’s Recyding Activity Survey
2019-20 Report, p. 12.

South Australia’s Waste Strategy 2015-2020 set a target to reduce waste generated per
capita by 5% by 2020 from 2015 levels. In 2017-18, waste generated per capita increased by
8.7% from the 2015 baseline. While 2018-19 saw a decrease, waste generated per capita
was still 4.3% higher than 2015. In 2019-20, waste generated per capita was 1.4% lower than
the baseline, but still fell short of the 5% reduction target.

All levels of government have publicly committed to improving waste management practices
to reduce landfill disposal rates. This is demonstrated by the frameworks and strategies
currently in place, including the national waste policy and action plan and South Australia’s
waste and food waste strategies.

2.2 Roles and responsibilities

Appendix 2 lists the international, national, state and local government frameworks that
govern the roles and responsibilities for managing waste.

While all levels of government, together with business, waste industry groups and the
community, have a role to play in managing waste, the regulation of waste management and
resource recovery in Australia is shared between the Commonwealth, state and local
governments. Appendix 5 provides an overview of these roles, legislation and policy.

2.2.1 Commonwealth Government

The Commonwealth Government is responsible for a national framework for waste and
resource recovery, which recognises obligations under international agreements. In addition,
the Recycling and Waste Reduction Act 2020 (Cth) establishes a legislative framework to
enable Australia to manage the environmental and human health and safety impacts of
products and waste material more effectively, as well as the impacts of disposing of our
waste.
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The Commonweaith Government has developed the 2018 National Waste Policy: Less
Waste, More Resources, and the corresponding 2019 action plan, which focuses on circular
economy principles and outlines the roles and responsibilities for collective actions by
businesses, governments, communities and individuals for waste management. It sets
national targets, including an 80% average resource recovery rate from all waste streams by
2030.

The Commonwealth Government has also established a national food waste strategy that
aims to halve food waste by 2030.

2.2.2 State government

The regulation and management of waste and resource recovery in Australia is primarily the
responsibility of state and territory governments. The SA Government’s key legislation in this
area is the:

. Environment Protection Act 1993 (EP Act) which provides a broad framework for the
protection of the State’s environment, including the regulation of waste management
and promoting the waste management hierarchy. Under the EP Act, the SA Government
has issued the Environment Protection (Waste to Resources) Policy 2010. This requires
metropolitan councils to provide a weekly kerbside residual waste collection service for
residential premises within their areas®

. Green Industries SA Act 2004 (GISA Act) which promotes innovation and business
activity in the State’s waste management, resource recovery and green industry
sectors and includes the principles of:

—  the circular economy

—  the waste management hierarchy

—  ecologically sustainable development

—  best practice methods and standards in waste management and efficient use of
resources.

The GISA Act requires Green Industries SA (GISA) to develop a waste strategy for the
state every five years.®> The South Australian waste strategy is discussed further in
section 2.3. The GISA Act also allows GISA to provide grants to the waste and resource
recovery industry, including local government.

2.2.3 Local government

The Local Government Act 1999 (the LG Act) requires South Australian councils to provide
services that benefit their areas, ratepayers, residents and visitors.®

In line with the LG Act, local councils:

. provide household waste and recycling collection and disposal services

Environment Protection (Waste to Resources) Policy 2010, clause 10{2).
5 GISA Act, section 18.
¥ LG Act. section 7.
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. deliver education and awareness programs

. can form regional subsidiaries (waste management authorities) that receive and
process material for their constituent councils and a range of clients, including
businesses and industry.

Some South Australian councils have established waste management authorities to provide
waste management services. Others provide these services directly or outsource them to the
private sector.

Metropolitan councils must provide a weekly kerbside collection of residual waste. However,
in consulting with their communities, councils determine the level of service they will
provide for recyclables and organic waste, including the frequency of bin collections. While
these services are discretionary, there is a long history of metropolitan councils collecting
recyclables and organic waste fortnightly. All metropolitan councils have offered a food
organics and garden organics (FOGO) collection service since 2020.

Councils must balance the cost of providing these services against community expectations
and the SA Government’s desire that they work towards achieving landfill diversion targets.

Councils are supported by the Local Government Association of South Australia, which
advocates on their and the communities’ behalf to the Commonwealth and SA Governments.
It has established a Waste Action Plan that outlines local government views on actions needed
to stabilise the waste industry, ensure the ongoing commercial viability of recycling services
and establish a circular economy.

2.3 South Australia's waste strategies

In 2005, the SA Government released South Australia’s first waste strategy. Since then,
waste strategies setting out the State’s objectives, targets and priorities have been released
every five years. Each one has sought to avoid and reduce waste, maximise the useful life of
materials through reuse and recycling and maximise the diversion of waste from landfill.

Our review principally focused on the period of South Australia’s Waste Strategy 2015-2020,

although we also considered developments to December 2021. The strategy had three

objectives:

. to encourage a resource efficient economy where the best or full value is obtained
from products and materials produced, consumed and recovered

. to establish a clear policy framework to encourage investment in the sector

. to establish a culture enabling the community to implement zero waste strategies/
programs.
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The SA Government set a landfill diversion target of 70% for metropolitan municipal solid
waste by 2020. Included in this target was a goal of 60% diversion from landfill for waste in
the kerbside bin system that is not mandatory for metropolitan councils. The most recent
available published data about kerbside waste performance’ shows that no metropolitan
council has achieved this goal. Some possible reasons for this are discussed in section 2.7.

The State’s current waste strategy Supporting the Circular Economy: South Australia’s Waste
Strategy 2020-2025 has increased the landfill diversion target for municipal solid waste to
75% by 2025. This includes a goal of 70% diversion from landfill for waste in the kerbside bin
system for metropolitan councils by 2025.%

The State’s current waste strategy also includes the internationally recognised waste
management hierarchy model. This model sets the guiding principles for waste management
in South Australia and its principles are enshrined in legislation across Australian states,
including the EP Act and GISA Act.

Figure 2.2 shows the waste management hierarchy, which provides an order of priority® for
managing waste. The first priority is to avoid producing waste and the last option is to
dispose of it where all other options are not reasonably practicable.

Figure 2.2: The waste management hierarchy
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Source: Supporting the Crcular Economy: South Australia’s Waste Strategy 2020-2025.

’

Green Industries SA 2021, South Australio’s Kerbside Waste Performance Report 2018-19, March,
Government of South Australia, Adelaide.

Green Industries SA 2020, Supporting the Circular Economy: South Australia’s Waste Strategy 2020-2025,
Government of South Australia, Adelaide, p. 17.

?  Environment Protection Act 1993, section 48.
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Councils generally focus their education programs on the priorities of avoid, reduce, reuse
and recycle, while offering waste collection and processing services involving recycling,
recovery, treatment and disposal.

In support of the State’s waste strategy and move to a circular economy, some councils have
implemented the waste management hierarchy in their own strategies, for example by:

. using recyclable materials (such as glass and plastics) in roads and park bench seats
. creating plastic-free council run venues and events
. building infrastructure to process recyclable materials.

In support of the national and State waste strategies, the SA Government has also
established a food waste strategy, Valuing our Food Waste: South Australia’s strategy to
reduce and divert household and business food waste 2020-2025. Its objectives include
reducing the generation of food waste, improving food waste collection and processing
systems for beneficial resource use, and working towards 3 biological circular economy. It
also includes actions for change to address food waste in households, as well as in the
commercial and industrial sectors.

24 Waste management services

In South Australia, local councils are responsible for providing waste management services
to residents. They do this primarily by collecting, processing and disposing of kerbside waste,
as well as through education programs and materials for residents about responsible waste

behaviour.
Figure 2.3: Metropolitan councils kerbside waste management services

Minimising and sorting waste Waste collection ST Waste processing and disposal

»  Providing kerbside bins and o Collect kertside residual bies o Disposwe of residual waste to landtsl
food caddies weekly o Dispose of recyclables at materisl

o Educating rosicents ¢ Collect racyciabies and riecovery facility

o Maontoring residents organics fortnghtly o Dispose of food and garden
behaviour *  Trarsport waste 10 waste OrRanics at processing facitity

facitity

All metropolitan councils offer the three-bin system to residents. However, in some
metropolitan councils organics bins are optional or must be purchased by residents.

All metropolitan councils collect the residual waste bins weekly as mandated by the
Environment Protection (Waste to Resources) Policy 2010, and the recyclables and organics
bins fortnightly.
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All metropolitan coundils use a waste contractor or regional subsidiary to manage waste
collection and disposal, with the exception of two that collect their own residual waste.

While some metropolitan councils have issued food caddies to all their households to
encourage the collection of food waste, many provide them on an opt-in basis. Appendix 3
lists Adelaide metropolitan councils” organics food waste systems.

In 2019-20, South Australian councils (metropolitan and regional) spent $228 million on
waste management services. Figure 2.4 shows where this was spent,

Figure 2.4: South Australian councils’ waste management costs for 2019.20

$30m

Other waste management
&g hard waste and street sweepings

$20m
Waste disposal facility
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was spent on waste
management services
$27m by SA Councils in 2019-20

Kerbside recycdables ($207m in 2018-19)
waste
$128m (56%)
Kerbside residual waste
$2 3m indudes solid waste levy
Kerbside green waste

Source: Prepared from South Australian Local Government Grants Commission naudited data and GISA's annual kerbside waste
performance reparts,

Figure 2.5 shows that metropolitan councils spent $158 million on waste management
services in 2019-20, an increase of $21 million (15%) from 2018-19.
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Figure 2.5: Metropolitan councils’ waste management costs for 2019-20
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Source: Prapared from South Australian Local Government Grants Commassion unaudited data and GISA"s annuai kebside waste
performance freports,

While the public expects kerbside waste will be managed effectively and provided at a
reasonable cost, councils’ waste management expenses have increased significantly in

recent years as shown in figure 2.6.

Figure 2.6: Metropolitan councils’ waste management costs for last four years
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Source: GISA’s kerbside waste performance reports, information for 2016-17 1s based on South Australian local Government Grants

Commission unaudited data.
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Ratepayers are directly impacted by the cost increases as councils seek to recover them
through rates. But despite these increasing costs, there has been little change in the rate at
which metropolitan councils have diverted kerbside waste from landfill. Potential reasons for
this are explored in section 2.7.

2.5 Metropolitan councils’ kerbside waste performance

GISA helps councils to improve kerbside waste collection systems for residents through
grants, incentives and education campaigns. Reporting undertaken by GISA and published on
its website includes councils’ three-bin recovery rate, which represents the percentage of
recyclable material {co-mingled recyclables and organics) diverted from landfill.

The formula used to calculate the three-bin recovery rate is:*®

Three-bin recovery rate = organics + recyclables x  100%

organics + recyclables + residual

While GISA’s kerbside waste performance report refers to this recovery rate, the State's
waste strategy sets a non-mandatory landfill diversion target of 60% for metropolitan
councils’ household kerbside bin system. Metropolitan councils provide the waste tonnes
collected from the household kerbside bin system to GISA. GISA uses this data to calculate
the average metropolitan council three-bin recovery rate and reports this against the landfill
diversion target in its annual kerbside performance reports. This measures the household
kerbside waste performance at the beginning of the waste diversion process, being at the
point of waste collection. Because recovery rates and the diversion target in this instance are
both based at the point of collection from the kerbside, these measures can be compared,

The three-bin recovery rate formula does not consider contamination in the organics and
recyclables bins. Contamination constitutes any material found in the recyclables bin thata
materials recovery facility cannot recycle or any material found in the organics bin that is not
compostable by a processing facility. Therefore, the three-bin recovery rate does not reflect
the actual amount of material diverted from landfill. GISA has reported contamination of
around 13% by weight (post-collection) in recyclables bins and 2% in organics bins,*

GISA advised us that it collects gross data about organics and recyclables collections because
this provides valuable insights into understanding:

. household behaviour and areas requiring further intervention

. trend analysis of kerbside behaviour

. geographic and socio-economic impact

B actions needed to support the State’s waste strategy targets, such as education
. investment requirements for resource recovery infrastructure.

In 2019-20, about 517,800 tonnes of waste was collected from kerbsides in metropolitan
Adelaide. This represented an increase of 5.8% from 2018-19 and equated to 390 kilograms

¥ Green Industries SA 2021, South Australia’s Kerbside Waste Performance Report 2018-19, March,
Government of South Australia, Adelaide, p. 9.
1 bid, p. 29.
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of kerbside waste per person or 1,039 kilograms of kerbside waste per serviced household.
Of this, 262,600 tonnes were recovered as organics (60.2%) or recyclables (39.8%), for a total
recovery rate of 50.7% (48.7%. in 2018-19).*?

Figure 2.7 shows the tonnes of waste collected in kerbside bins between 2015-16 and
2020-21 by metropolitan councils. It shows that the amount of waste collected for each
kerbside bin type has remained consistent during this period. There was a slight increase in
organics waste collected in 2016-17 due to higher levels of rainfall** and in 2019-20 due to
the full impact of a fortnightly organics bin service being introduced in Adelaide’s largest
metropolitan council.**

Figure 2.7: Metropolitan councils tonnages collected by kerbside bin type

300,000 800
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200,000 — Redidual
40 W= Organics
Recydables
100,000
200 i Rai0fall data (men)
0 0
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Tonnes

Source: GISA's annual kerbside waste performance reports,

Figure 2.8 shows the metropolitan councils’ average three-bin recovery rate against the
State’s waste strategy target for metropolitan councils of 60% landfill diversion from the
kerbside bin system for the last six years.

Figure 2.8: Metropolitan councils’ average recovery rate against the State landfill diversion target

0%

e Mero average
—=— State target

Diversion rate

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2015-20 2020-21

Source: GISA's annual kerbside waste performance reports and South Australia’s waste strategy.

2 Data provided to us by GISA.

13 Green Industries SA 2020, South Australia’s Kerbside Waste Performance Report 2017-18, Government of
South Australia, Adelaide, p. 26.

¥ Data provided to us by GISA.
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The average recovery rate for metropolitan councils between 2015-16 and 2020-21 has
fluctuated between 48.2% and 50.6% (an increase of 2,2%).

The Adelaide metropolitan council recovery rate of 50.7% for 2019-20 is below the State’s
landfill diversion target of 60% for metropolitan councils. In 2020-21 the Adelaide
metropolitan council recovery rate decreased by 0.1% to 50.6%, but still fell short of the
target. The State's target remains at 60% until 2023 but increases to 70% by 2025.%°

2.6 Solid waste levy

Under the EP Act a solid waste levy is payable to the Environment Protection Authority (EPA)
on solid waste disposed to landfill. The waste levy incentivises resource recovery by
increasing the costs of waste disposal, making resource recovery a preferable financial
option.*®

The levy comprises a proportion of overall waste management costs for councils. The waste
levy has significantly increased in recent years, reflecting:

. the SA Government’s desire to reduce waste to landfill and move to a circular
economy model*’

. China’s introduction of the National Sword Policy in 2018, which prevents Australia
from exporting certain waste and heavily reduces contamination rates for recyclables.

The solid waste levy was $146 per tonne in 2021-22 compared to $35 per tonne 10 years
ago, an increase of 317%. The levy has increased by 151% since 2015-16 for metropolitan
councils.

Figure 2.9 shows the increase in the solid waste levy for metropolitan councils over the past

12 years.
Figure 2.9: Solid waste levy for metropolitan councils
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¥ Green Industries SA 2020, Supporting the Circular Economy: South Australia’s Woste Strategy 20202025,
Government of South Australia, Adelaide, p. 17,

% www.epa.sa.gov.au, viewed 20 June 2022,

7 Green Industries SA 2020, Supporting the Circular Economy: South Australia’s Waste Strategy 2020-2025,
Government of South Australia, Adelaide.
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Figure 2.10 shows the effect the increase in the solid waste levy has had on the cost of
disposing residual waste since 2015-16.

Figure 2.10: Total metropelitan councils’ residual tonnes and solid waste levy
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e SOUd Waste Levy
220,000 N :
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Source: GISA's annual kerbside waste performance reports for residual tonnes. Solid waste calculation based on total tonnage multiplied by
soid waste levy.

The GISA Act requires the EPA to transfer 50% of the levies to the Green Industry Fund. The
fund can only be applied by:

. GISA:
— inline with a business plan approved by the Minister
— in any other manner authorised by the Minister for the purposes of the Gl Act

. the Minister for Climate, Environment and Water, towards the costs of:

—  climate change initiatives, including research and development, education,
innovation and business activity, for mitigating the effects of climate change,
minimising carbon emissions and adapting to climate change

—  managing waste or debris, or harm to the environment, following an identified
major incident, major emergency or disaster under the Emergency Management
Act 2004.

In 2020-21, the EPA transferred $48 million (537 million in 2019-20) to the fund, which had a
balance of $90 million on 30 June 2021 (5114 million on 30 June 2020).

GISA has provided approximately $13 million in grants for waste management to councils
from the fund over the last six years.

2.7 Challenges in managing kerbside waste services

Councils face many challenges in providing kerbside waste management services and
achieving local and state landfill diversion targets. While some can be addressed by council
activities, others are externally imposed and beyond their control. Some of the challenges
are discussed below.
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2.7.1 Cost pressures

Cost pressures faced by councils include:

. increases in costs at landfill sites to dispose of residual waste, primarily due to the
increase in the solid waste levy explained in section 2.6. Food waste discarded in the
residual bin is heavy, contributing substantially to the weight of waste sent to landfill
and therefore these costs

. increases in gate fees at materials recovery fadilities to dispose of co-mingled
recyclables. The gate fees are impacted by the often fluctuating market prices for
recycled products. For example, China’s 2018 National Sword Policy impacted the price
of mixed paper and cardboard and mixed plastics. At the time, the estimated increase
in cost was around $8.8 million across South Australia based on a one-year period®

. increases in transport costs (eg fuel) to collect and dispose of all waste.

2.7.2 Food waste in residual bins

The SA Government has recognised that food waste in residual bins is a financial challenge
for councils with significant environmental impact. In response it published a food waste
strategy (see section 2.3).%*

South Australian households and businesses send around 200,000 tonnes of food waste to
landfill each year. Up to 40% of the material content in residual waste bins is food waste.?”
This directly impacts the costs paid by councils to dispose of waste to landfill, such as the
solid waste levy. The NPSP Council has estimated that savings of $395,000 per year in landfill
fees could be achieved if food waste is diverted from landfill. Appendix 4 provides a copy of
the flyer that the NPSP Council distributed to its community.

Food waste is heavy due to its moisture content. If discarded with residual waste, it
contributes substantially to the weight of waste sent to landfill, increasing the solid waste
levy and gate fee costs paid by councils.

Food decomposing in landfill without the aid of air produces methane, a greenhouse gas
around 28 times more potent than carbon dioxide at trapping heat,?! and a contributor to
the global greenhouse gas emissions causing climate change.

Food waste in landfill is also a lost resource that could have been used, together with other
types of organic waste streams, to produce commercial compost and soil enhancement
products.?? As composting is an aerobic process, it produces less or prevents the release of
methane and is a better environmental alternative to landfill.

There are many reasons why residents do not dispose of food waste in organics bins. These

' Rawtec Pty Ltd 2018, Market Analysis of South Australion Kerbside Comingled Recyclables Report for the
Local Government Association of SA, May, Adelaide.

¥ Green Industries SA 2021, Valuing our Food Waste, South Australia’s strategy to reduce and divert
household and business food waste 2020-2025, Government of South Australia, Adelaide.

2 |bid, pp. S and 8.

2 jbid, p. 7.

7 bid, p. 14.
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include a personal dislike of the look of a food caddy on a benchtop, lack of access to free
compostable bags or lack of awareness about the impact of food waste in landfill. However,
it is likely that most concerns are about the pests and odours produced from decomposing
food while organics bins await the fortnightly collection.

Several councils have recently trialled the weekly collection of organics bins. The results of
these trials have shown positive changes in residents’ waste disposal behaviour and an
increase in landfill diversion rates. For example, the City of Holdfast Bay recently completed
an 18-month FOGO trial that involved more than 1,000 households having their organics bin
collected weekly and their residual waste bin collected fortnightly. The trial found the
amount of food waste disposed of in the organics bins more than doubled, achieving a
landfill diversion rate of 84% in the areas participating in the trial.* From July 2022, the City
of Holdfast Bay will provide this bin collection service to all its residents unless they want to
continue having their residual bin collected weekly,

This trial shows that a weekly collection of organics bins would encourage residents to
dispose of food waste more responsibly and discourage them from putting food into residual
waste bins. This would help divert food waste from landfill and increase council recovery
rates. However, collecting organics bins weekly without any changes to the collection
frequency of other bins would increase costs for most councils. Current legislation requires
metropolitan councils to collect residual waste weekly but does not prescribe how often
organics and recyclables bins must be collected.

2.7.3 Legislation mandates weekly collection of residual waste bins

The SA Government’s Environment Protection (Waste to Resources) Policy 2010 requires
metropolitan councils to collect kerbside residual waste weekly from residential premises
within their areas.** Councils determine how often they collect recyclables and organics bins
and there is a long history of councils collecting them fortnightly. These services are highly
valued and relied on. All metropolitan councils now collect organics and recyclables bins
fortnightly, with the exception of three that provide these services on an opt-in basis.

Councils must balance the cost of providing weekly residual waste collections against:
. the cost of collecting organics and recyclables waste more frequently

. residents’ expectations about the frequency of organics and recyclables collections

. the cost of providing services that will help achieve the SA Government’s landfill
diversion targets.

The most recent data published by GISA indicates that no metropolitan council’s recovery
rate has achieved the SA Government’s landfill diversion target.”® Figure 2.11 shows that the
average metropolitan councils’ recovery rate has remained relatively unchanged in the last

21 www.holdfast.sa.gov.au/council/news - Households embrace weekly green bin collections | City of Holdfast
Bay, viewed 22 June 2022,

¥ Environment Protection (Waste to Resources) Policy 2010, clause 10(2).

35 Green Industries SA 2021, South Australia’s Kerbside Waste Performance Report 2018-19, March,
Government of South Australia, Adelaide, p. 19.
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11 years. In 2009-10, the recovery rate was 48%,%® with the same result achieved in 2019-20.
Prior to 2015-16, the State’s waste strategy did not include landfill diversion targets for
kerbside waste in the targets set for total municipal solid waste.

Figure 2.11: Metropolitan councils’ average recovery rate compared to the State target for landfill diversion
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Source: GISA's annual kerbside waste performance reports.

Allowing coundils to decide how often they collect each bin type to meet community
expectations may be a solution to improving landfill diversion, as demonstrated by the City
of Holdfast Bay's recent FOGO trial.

2.7.4 Multi-unit dwellings and urban infill

Multi-unit dwellings (MUDs) are generally accepted to be any dwelling other than a
standalone single unit dwelling and can range from townhouses, semi-detached or row
terraces, through to multi-storey apartment complexes.

Urban infill and the rise in the number of MUDs present unique challenges to councils for
waste management. Councils often contract these services out to commercial contractors,
as the kerbside collection service does not align with the bin types required for these
buildings.

MUDs do not generally perform well in source separation, landfill diversion and the
contamination of recyclables. Reasons for poor performance can include:

. design issues. Older MUDs were designed for a one or two bin waste system.
Introducing a third bin can be difficult due to limited space. New MUDs may not
consider waste management sufficiently in the design phase or developers may see
areas for bins as expensive and wasted space.?” This may result in bin systems that do
not offer all three waste streams, as well as increased, ongoing waste management
costs for councils and residents

3 Green Industries SA 2019, Adeloide Metropolitan Area Kerbside Waste Performance Report 2016-17,
February, Government of South Australia, Adelaide, p. 23,

37 The Local Government Association of South Australia continues to advocate for the planning and design
code to be reviewed to consider effective, efficient and safe waste management for medium to high density
development areas.
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. a lack of street access and limited turning points for waste collection vehides
. a lack of public road verge or presentation space for kerbside bin collection

. contamination issues due to the lack of supervision or management of communal bins
and residents’ lack of ownership of bins.

Exploring ways to improve MUD waste performance remains a challenge for councils but is
necessary to improve recovery rates.

2.7.5 Educating the community

Councils play an important role in educating the community about waste reduction and
responsible recycling. Through education the community can improve its waste practices,
which will reduce the amount of waste sent to landfill and councils’ disposal costs and
increase the volume of materials to be recycled.

However, education programs can be expensive and can absorb significant human
resources. A challenge for councils is balancing the areas most in need of education to
achieve the best results against the cost of providing them.

While education, in addition to other strategies such as the wider rollout and promotion of

food caddy use, will help councils raise community awareness about responsible waste
disposal, changing residents’ behaviour long-term will remain a challenge.
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3 Audit mandate, objective and scope

3.1  Our mandate

We performed our review under section 32(1)(c) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987.
This allows the Auditor-General to review the efficiency, economy and effectiveness of a
publicly funded body.

A council constituted under the LG Act is included in the definition of a publicly funded body.

3.2 Our objective

The objective of our review was to conclude on whether the two councils we reviewed were
effectively managing kerbside waste services to work towards achieving their targets (and
the targets set by the SA Government).

Our review covered the period of South Australia’s Waste Strategy 2015-2020. We extended
it to also consider developments between June 2020 and December 2021.
We considered whether the two councils had:

. documented plans and/or strategies to deliver kerbside waste services to meet their
targets and community expectations

. implemented governance structures to manage and oversee the performance of their
kerbside waste services to meet their targets and community expectations

. processes to assess the effectiveness of their education activities.

3.3 What we reviewed and how

There are many areas that contribute to the successful management of kerbside waste
services. To inform our conclusion about how effectively the two Councils were managing
their services, we assessed whether they had:

. established a waste strategy/plan that detailed service levels, local waste performance
targets and the actions to be taken to achieve them

. established a waste education strategy and program to educate and promote
responsible waste behaviour to the community in support of local and State targets

. engaged with the community and considered their expectations in waste planning
. established dear roles and responsibilities for waste management
B established frameworks and processes to identify, assess and manage waste risks

. implemented contract management processes to manage roles and responsibilities,
communication with contractors and the community, and the reporting and
monitoring of performance, costs and risks

. collected accurate and reliable data to monitor waste performance.
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Our assessment considered:

. the LG Act requirements

. the Environment Protection (Waste to Resources) Policy 2010

. each Council’s strategic management framework and policies

. South Australia’s Waste Strategy 2015-2020 and 2020-2025 issued by GISA

. South Australia’s Valuing Our Food Waste Strategy

. generally accepted standards of contract management and risk management practices.

We reviewed documents in detail and held discussions with relevant staff of each Council.

The NPSP Council’s regional subsidiary, Eastern Waste Management Authority (East Waste),
delivers kerbside waste management services to the community on its behalf.

For the NPSP Council, we also held discussions with East Waste staff to obtain an
understanding of their role and responsibilities in delivering kerbside waste management
services on the NPSP's behalf. We did not assess the activities of East Waste as part of this
review.

We would like to acknowledge the staff of each Council and East Waste who went to

considerable effort to promptly respond to our information requests and inquiries during
the review,

3.4 What we did not review

We did not review the Councils’ waste collection practices for:

. kerbside hard waste

. street sweepings, council operated parks and other public place locations
. other drop-off facilities they operate

. their commercial service operations.

We did not review waste collection practices managed by the private sector for:

. commercial and industrial waste
. construction and demolition waste
. the Container Deposit Scheme returns.

While we used waste data provided by the Councils to calculate recovery rates, we did not
independently confirm the integrity of the data.

We did not review the methodology of kerbside bin audits performed by East Waste or
contractors on behalf of the Councils.

We did not assess the activities of East Waste.

West Torrens Council has outsourced its waste management services to an independent
contractor. We did not review the independent contractor’s activities.
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4  The Corporation of the City of Norwood,
Payneham and St Peters

4.1 Executive summary

4.1.1 Audit conclusion

We assessed the effectiveness of the NPSP Council’s management of kerbside waste services
between 2015 and 2021 against our review objective in section 3.2.

We concluded that the NPSP Council successfully collects, transports and processes kerbside
waste to a high level of community satisfaction.

There are many areas that contribute to the overall effective management of kerbside waste
services. We identified some areas that were not operating effectively during the period we
reviewed. These were:

. the development of a plan to support waste management services
. setting waste performance measures and targets

. establishing a service level agreement with East Waste

. evaluating and reporting on waste performance

. developing a waste education strategy and program.

These issues are explained in section 4.1.2.

We also identified some areas that were operating effectively during the period we
reviewed. These were that the NPSP Council had:

. consulted its community and key stakeholders when it reviewed CityPlan 2030 to
understand their expectations and satisfaction with the levels of waste management
service

. sound processes to manage and resolve complaints from residents about collection
services.

4 1.2 What we found and recommended

The key findings from our review of the NPSP Council’s management of kerbside waste

services were that it:

. did not have a corporate plan or an overarching plan to support its strategic objective
and strategy for waste management (section 4.3.2)

. had not documented the initiatives it had identified and implemented to support its
strategic objective and strategy for waste management. This reduced the effectiveness
of achieving its strategic objectives and reaching its long-term vision (section 4.3.3)

. did not have a service level agreement with East Waste for waste management
services (section 4.4.2)

. had not evaluated and reported its kerbside waste performance against the set target.
This reduced the effectiveness of monitoring its waste performance and its capacity to
take necessary action to improve its performance to reach, or get closer to, the set
target (section 4.4.3)
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. had not set any performance standards, measures and targets to monitor and evaluate
East Waste's performance in delivering kerbside waste management services to its
community (section 4.4.3)

. did not have a formal waste education strategy outlining its approach to community
education on waste and recycling issues {section 4.5.1)

. had not evaluated and reported on the effectiveness of the waste initiatives and
activities it implemented each financial year {section 4.5.1).

We recommended the NPSP Council:

. develop a corporate plan, and a plan that specifically covers waste management,
which outlines its key priorities, corporate objectives, actions and activities to achieve
the corporate objectives, and measures and targets to monitor and evaluate its
performance {sections 4.3.2 and 4.3.3)

. set performance measures and targets for kerbside waste management that are
consistent with those set by East Waste and support the State’s waste strategy target
{section 4.3.4)

. establish a service level agreement with East Waste to darify and agree on the roles
and responsibilities and other matters important to waste management services
(section 4.4.2)

. evaluate and report on the outcome of all its kerbside waste initiatives and activities,
actual kerbside waste performance against set targets and the performance of East
Waste (section 4.4.3)

. develop and document a waste education strategy and program outlining its approach
to community education on waste and recycling issues (section 4.5.1).

4.1.3 NPSP Council's response

The NPSP Council responded to our findings and advised us how it would action our
recommendations, which it generally accepted. Its response to each recommendation is
included in sections 43 to 4.5,

The NPSP Council provided a response to our proposed report to Parliament that is included
as Appendix 6.

4.2 Overview of The Corporation of the City of Norwood,
Payneham and St Peters

421 Waste management services

The NPSP Council is located just east of Adelaide’s CBD and covers an area of around 15 km?,
with an estimated resident population of about 37,000.%*

2% Australian Bureau of Statistics 2020, Norwood Payneham St Peters: Region summary: Data by region, ABS,
viewed 25 May 2022, <https://dbr.abs.gov.au/region.htmi?lyr=igadrgn=45290>,
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Population, area and dwelling types determine the nature, type and collection frequency of
the waste services councils provide.

The NPSP Council provides a standard kerbside three-bin service to about 17,500 residential
households and 2,000 commercial properties.?® 49.6% of households are multi-unit
dwellings and 49.7% are separate houses.*

Figure 4.1: NPSP Council standard kerbside three-bin waste coliection service

1 x 140L bin

Source: NPSP Councd website,

The NPSP Council also provides households with a free food caddy and two rolls of
compostable bags annually to make it easier for residents to compost food waste through
their green bin.

A regional subsidiary,*! East Waste, delivers waste management services to the NPSP Council’s
community on its behalf. More information on East Waste is provided in section 4.4.1.

4.2.2 Waste management costs

In addition to the kerbside three-bin waste service, the NPSP Council’s waste management
services include collecting and disposing of kerbside hard waste, public litter bins, street
sweepings and illegal dumping. The costs of waste management are shown in figure 4.2 and
totalled $5.7 million in 2020-21.

¥ (ity of Norwood, Payneham and St Peters 2021, Council Agenda and Minutes, 5 October 2021, item 11.1,
p. 19, <https://www.npsp.sa.gov.aufabout_council/council_and_committees/council_agenda_and_minutes>.

¥ City of Norwood Payneham and St Peters 2021, City of Norwood Payneham and St Peters: Dwelling type,
viewed 15 July 2022, <https://profile.id.com.au/npsp/dwellings>.

3 Constituent councils are Adelalde Hills Council, City of Burnside, Campbelitown City Counci, City of
Norwood, Payneham and St Peters, City of Mitcham, Corporation of the Town of Walkerville and City of
Prospect.
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Figure 4,2: NPSP Council waste management costs for the past six years
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Source: Based on data provided by the NPSP Councit (unaudited).

Figure 4.2 shows that the NPSP Council’s waste management costs fluctuated annually up to
2018-19 and then increased by 17% in 2019-20 and 9% in 2020-21. This is partly due to the
increase in the solid waste levy during this period. On 30 June 2019, this levy was $100 per
tonne and increased to $143 per tonne by 30 June 2021, an increase of 43%. The increase in
costs is also the result of the increase in residual waste collected by NPSP Council since 2018-
19, as shown in figure 4.6. In 2020-21, the NPSP Council spent $5.7 million on waste
management services, an increase of $500,000 (10%) from 2019-20. Figure 4.3 shows where

this was spent.
Figure 4.3: NPSP Council waste management costs for 2020-21
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Of the $5.7 million, 53% was spent on collecting and disposing kerbside residual waste,
including the solid waste levy. The solid waste levy is 18%* of the NPSP Council's total waste
management costs for 2020-21.

42.3 Kerbside waste management performance

The NPSP Council's actual kerbside waste diversion from landfill rate compared to its target
and the actual metropolitan council average recovery rate since 2015-16 is shown in figure 4.4.

Figure 4,4; Kerbside waste diversion from landfill rate and performance targets

NPSP Council NPSP Council Metropolitan
Year actual’ target*  council average®
2015-16 52.4% 53.2% 48.2%
2016-17 54.5% 55.2% 49.9%
2017-18 52.5% 57.2% 48.2%
201819 53.4% 59.2% 48.7%
2019-20 54.5% 60% 50.7%

no landfill

2020-21 539% diversion target set 50.6%

Figure 4.5 shows the above rates compared to the State's landfill diversion target of 60%.

Figure 4.5: Kerbside waste diversion from landfill rate and performance targets
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Source: Based on data provided by the NPSP Council, East Waste and GISA.

3 Calculated by us based on the residual tonnes provided by the NPSP Coundil multiplied by the solid waste
levy.

¥ This rate was calculated by us based on the formula published in GISA’s annual kerbside waste performance
reports. The waste collection tonnages used in the formula were provided by the NPSP Council and are
unaudited. The tonnages of recycling and organics collected have not been adjusted for contamination.

¥ We calculated these percentages based on the performance measure and target information disclosed in
the NPSP Council’s CityPlan 2030 over that period.

35 Taken from GISA’s annual kerbside waste performance reports. Data provided to us by GISA for 2019-20
and 2020-21 on 15 June 2022,
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Figure 4.5 shows that the NPSP Council achieved a higher diversion from landfill rate than
the metropolitan council average but fell short of its own target each year. 2016-17 and
2019-20 were the NPSP Council’s best performing years. It was close to its targetin 2016-17
but by 2019-20 was 5.5% below it. Both the NPSP Council and the metropolitan council
average fell short of the 60% State target by 2020-21. GISA provided us with data it has not
yet published which shows that only one metropolitan council achieved a recovery rate of
60% in 2020-21.

Figure 4.6 shows the NPSP Council’s total tonnes collected by kerbside bins for each waste
stream for the last six years.

Figure 4.6: NPSP Council’s kerbside waste collected
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Figure 4.6 shows that the amount of waste collected for each waste stream has remained
steady during this period. There was a slight increase in organics waste collected in 2016-17
due to higher levels of rainfall. *

Figure 4.7 shows total kerbside waste and residual waste generated per person in the NPSP
Council area over the last six years.

Figure 4.7: NPSP Council waste per person
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¥ Green Industries SA 2020, South Australia’s Kerbside Waste Performance Report 2017-18, Government of
South Australia, Adelaide, p. 26.

26

Item 18.2 - Attachment 1



Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments 18 October 2022

Figure 4.7 shows a decrease in kerbside waste generated per personin 2017-18 and an
increase in 2019-20. The 2017-18 decrease was driven by a 13% decrease in organics due to
higher rainfall in the previous year.’” An explanation for the increase in 2019-20 may be that
during the pandemic more people shopped online, increasing the amount of packaging used
in shipping/postage and discarded by residents. This may have been further impacted by
people establishing home offices during the initial lockdown as evidenced by the shortage of
office furniture and IT equipment in South Australia in March, April and May 2020. Figure 4.7
also shows that residual waste per person has remained consistent in the NPSP Council area
over the past six years.

4.2.4 Other waste management initiatives

The NPSP Council has recognised the importance of implementing innovative waste
reduction and education initiatives to manage waste resources sustainably and efficiently.
During our review we noted some examples of this where the NPSP Council:

. joined the Local Government Association of South Australia’s circular procurement
pilot project. The project is working towards developing local markets and onshore
processing for recyclable materials

. implemented the plastic free precincts project, which helps food retailers in the
Norwood Parade precinct to switch from single-use plastic products to reusable or
compostable alternatives. This aligns with an SA Government priority to ban single-use
plastics

. promotes product stewardship and buy recycled opportunities on its website.

4.3 Strategic planning for waste management services

4.3.1 Background

Section 122 of the LG Act requires a council to develop and adopt strategic management
plans for the management of its area. It establishes a framework for each council to:

. identify its strategic objectives over a period of at least four years

. identify and implement strategies to achieve its strategic objectives and to deliver the
range and level of services it intends to provide to its community

. identify the resources needed to support its strategies and protect its long-term
financial sustainability

. set measures used to monitor and assess its performance against its objectives

. identify the extent of participation with other councils, regional bodies and State and
national governments achieving common objectives.

37 Green Industries SA 2020, South Australia’s Kerbside Waste Performance Repart 2017-18, Government of
South Australia, Adelalde, p. 14.
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The NPSP Council’s CityPlan 2030: Shaping our future (CityPlan 2030) provides its long-
term strategic vision and plan. The plan is reviewed every four years to ensure it reflects
the community’s vision and aspirations to 2030. It sets out the strategic planning and
reporting framework and identifies the key plans that support its implementation (as
shown in figure 4.8).

Figure 4.8: NPSP Council's strategic planning and reporting framework

Community
Well-being

>

Source: The NPSP Courncil's CityPian 2030.

CityPlan 2030 focuses on four outcomes, with one being environmental sustainability where
the NPSP Council strives to be a leader in this area. It provides the following objective and
strategy for waste management:

Objective 4.1: Sustainable and efficient management of waste resources
Strategy 4.1.2: Investigate and implement innovative waste reduction and education®®
initiatives

CityPlan 2030 also states that minimising waste and increasing recycling and reuse remain
important environmental priorities. The NPSP Council wants to use less resources,
proactively monitor its waste production and recycing, and adapt its programs to continue
to reduce waste.

3% Education initiatives were included in the strategy in response to the 2020 mid-term review of CityPlan
2030.
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4.3.2 The NPSP Council does not have overarching corporate
objectives and priorities for waste management

Recommendation

The NPSP Council should develop a corporate plan that outlines the:

. key priorities and corporate objectives covering essential services like waste
management

. actions and activities needed to achieve the corporate objectives and reach the
Coundil’s long-term vision

. measures and targets to monitor and evaluate its performance against the objectives.

The corporate plan should be published on the NPSP Council’s website, The NPSP Coundil
should also report outcomes against targets each year in its annual report to ensure
transparency and accountability to the community.

Finding

CityPlan 2030 has a series of strategic documents to support its implementation. It states
that:

The Council will also prepare a Corporate Plan to identify the specific programs and
actions required to implement and integrate all of the elements of CityPlan over the
next four years.

We found that the NPSP Council had not prepared a corporate plan. The risk register
presented to its audit committee in October 2019 identified the development of a corporate
plan as an action to mitigate the following strategic risks:

. not delivering the project or the right project
. the lack of innovation and forward planning
. the lack of organisational and departmental strategy.

A year later, an October 2020 report on the risk status to the audit committee stated that
developing the corporate plan was deferred until the existing strategic plan documents®?
were finalised. The NPSP Council was performing a mid-term review of its CityPian 2030 at
the time.

Why it is important to have a corporate plan

Long-term strategic plans should be integrated into a council’s daily operations through its
operational plans (such as annual business plan, annual budget, project plans) and policies.
This provides assurance that a council’s resources are allocated to activities that will achieve
its long-term strategic objectives. A corporate plan should clearly explain how the CityPlan
2030 strategic vision will be achieved and integrated into operational plans and processes,
including waste management.

¥ These documents include the NPSP Council's CityPlan 2030, long-term financial plan and asset and
infrastructure asset management plans,
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A corporate plan also addresses the administration of the NPSP Council’s own activities to
ensure resources are employed efficiently and effectively to achieve its strategic and
corporate objectives. It provides detailed guidance to integrate into short-term plans the key
priorities and resources needed for each financial year.

NPSP Council’s response

While there is not @ legislative requirement for the Council to develop a
corporate plan, the Council will prepare a corporate plan.

Waste management is an operational service ... the Council will consider the
Auditor-Generai’s comments in relation to waste management as an inclusion
in a corporate plan.

4.3.3 The NPSP Council has not documented the initiatives that support
its waste strategy

Recommendation

The NPSP Council should develop a specific plan for waste management, or a plan that is
focused on environmental sustainability and includes waste as one component, that clearly
documents:

. the innovative waste reduction and education initiatives identified that will be
implemented to support CityPlan 2030 strategy 4.1.2

. the actions and activities performed annually that contribute to strategic objective 4.1

. the financial and human resources needed to implement the initiatives, actions and
activities, and who is assigned the responsibility to implement them

. the measures and targets to monitor and evaluate the NPSP Council’s performance
. how the NPSP Council has adopted the principles of the waste management hierarchy

. how East Waste's strategic actions and activities contribute te achieving the NPSP
Council’s strategic objectives.

Finding

The NPSP Council’s planned strategy under CityPlan 2030 was to investigate innovative
waste reduction and education initiatives that it intended to implement over time to meet
its strategic objective. We found no documentary evidence of the outcome of this
investigation.

NPSP Council staff advised us that there were no specific plans that provided this
information and that the following activities were performed each year and resourced
through the annual business plan and budget:

. the Reinvigorate the Food Recycling Project 2018-2021 - providing food caddies to
new residential properties and to those existing ones that did not have access to one
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. education activities including stalls at NPSP Council events, an annual collection
calendar with waste service and ‘which bin" information, a local services app, and an
online waste and recycling guide.

We found that the annual business plans produced since 2015-16 had limited or no
information on the NPSP Council’s specific planned actions to implement its waste strategy
and did not target kerbside waste avoidance or minimisation, the most preferred option of
the waste management hierarchy.

East Waste delivers waste management services to the community on the NPSP Council’'s
behalf, including education programs. The NPSP Council relies on East Waste’s service and
performance to help meet its strategic objectives. There is little to no detail in the NPSP
Council’s existing documented plans of these services to demonstrate the alignment of
waste management strategies between the entities.

Why this is important

As waste disposal costs have grown substantially in recent years following SA Government
increases to the solid waste levy, there is significant financial incentive for the NPSP Council
to provide a cost-effective and efficient kerbside waste management service to:

. reduce the amount of kerbside waste going to landfill
. increase waste recycling and recovery
. contribute to the reduction in carbon emissions from landfill.

A documented waste management plan would help the NPSP Council to effectively
implement waste strategies, achieve its strategic objectives and reach its vision.

NPSP Council's response

There is no legisiative requirement on the Council to develop o waste
management plan either separately or as component of another plan.

East Waste has been established by the Constituent Councils for the purposes
of delivering effective kerbside waste monagement. it is Fast Waste's role to
develop plans which reduce landfill, promote recycling and organics re-
processing, East Waste reports to the Council in its Annuol Report on how it
achieves its functions under its Strategic Pian and Charter.

Notwithstanding this, East Waste has a 2030 Strategic Plan which sets out
Strategies and Key Performance Indicators for leadership in waste
management logistics and innovative collection and resource management
services for the Constituent Councils of East Waste.

4.3.4 The NPSP Council no longer has kerbside waste performance
measures and targets

Recommendation

The NPSP Council should set performance measures and targets in line with the kerbside
waste management results it wants to achieve. These should be consistent with any key
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performance indicators set by East Waste and support the State’s waste strategy target for
metropolitan councils.

Finding
Section 122(1){d) of the LG Act requires a council’s suite of strategic management plans to

provide the financial and non-financial measures used to monitor and assess a council’s
performance against its objectives.

CityPlan 2030 outlined an objective and strategy for kerbside waste management along with
the performance measure and target to evaluate the NPSP Council’s performance. The
performance measure and target changed over the period we reviewed.

We found that from 2016-17 the NPSP Council's kerbside performance target*® was to
achieve the State’s waste target of 60% of waste diverted from landfill by 2020.

The NPSP Council removed this performance measure and target when it reviewed the
CityPlan 2030 in 2020 and no longer has a landfill diversion target. NPSP Council staff
advised us:

... that this performance measure was no longer a volid measurement due to
the following factors, packaging weight can change, might be more volume of
plastic but is lighter; or people are avoiding packaging and tonnes decrease.

We consider that these factors would impact the performance target set but would not
make the performance measure invalid.

NPSP Council staff advised us that it decided to focus on circular procurement. The target
set for this is a year-on-year increase in corporate purchases of products or materials that
contain recycled content. However, this is not a relevant measure for the kerbside three-bin
waste system.

Removing the performance measure and target means that the NPSP Council cannot clearly
demonstrate:

. what it will monitor and evaluate its waste performance against. This may reduce the
effectiveness of understanding changes in waste behaviours and making better and
informed decisions about future education programs/initiatives

. its commitment to contributing to the State’s waste target, which increases to 70% by
20254

We noted that East Waste's 2030 Strategic Plan provides key performance indicators to
measure its success in reaching its objectives. These include:

. a percentage of total kerbside three-bin system materials is separately collected and
recycled, targeting 75% by 2030 (ie waste diverted from landfill)

“ We calculated this percentage based on the performance measure and target information disclosed in the
NPSP Council's CityPlan 2030 over that period.

#1 Green Industries SA 2020, Supporting the Circular Economy: South Australia’s Waste Strategy 2020-2025,
Government of South Australia, Adelaide.
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. a percentage of total food waste is separately collected and recycled by 2030,
targeting 100% by 2030

. reduced average contamination of the kerbside co-mingled recyding stream, targeting
less than 7% by 2030.

The NPSP Council has not set performance measures and targets that align with those set by
East Waste.

Why it is important to have kerbside waste performance measures and targets

For the NPSP Council to effectively oversee and monitor its kerbside waste performance, it
should set performance measures and targets and regularly report actual results against
them. This will inform the NPSP Council about whether its actions have been successful in
achieving its targets, or whether changes to activities are needed to improve results.

NPSP Council’s response

Waste reduction targets have been removed from City Plan 2030, which due to
current legislative constraints, is an outcome of the Council having little
control over this, other than through seeking to influence behaviour change
through education. Obtaining accurate information through household bin
oudits, to measure progress against targets, is very costly and cannot be
replicated or indeed justified on an annual basis.

it is noted that the South Australian Waste Strategy 2020-2025, sets a
Municipal Solid Waste target of 75% diversion by 2025. The Council has and
will continue to work with the State Government to deliver programs and
initiatives that seek to achieve this target. It is noted that following previous
major waste system interventions, such as food waste programs, a plateau
has been reached in household behaviours and new critical intervention will be
required which are led or supported by the State Government. These
interventions will, by necessity, need to inciude changes to legislation which
has been set by the State Government in respect to Local Government waste
collection services.

The Council accepts that it should set performance measures and targets that
align with East Waste’s 2030 Strategic Pian. However, these performance
measures and targets are operational rather than strategic. it is intended to
incorporate performance measures and targets in the service agreement with
East Waste.

44 Governance and service arrangements

4.4.1 Background

The NPSP Council is a constituent council of East Waste, a regional subsidiary established
under section 43 of the LG Act, East Waste operates under a Charter that outlines its
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governance, administrative and financial management arrangements. It is governed by a
board of management and a coundillor of the NPSP Council has been appointed to this
board. The NPSP Council receives a copy of the board of management’s meeting minutes
and agenda papers.

East Waste delivers waste management services to the community on the NPSP Council’'s
behalf. Its primary purpose is to collect and dispose of waste within the areas of its
constituent councils. The NPSP Council may arrange for East Waste to provide other
functions such as:

. promote the minimisation of waste and recycling of recyclable materials
. undertake waste community education programs

. conduct all activities in a way that complies with regulatory requirements and
minimises risk to the constituent councils.*

An NPSP Council manager attends a regular East Waste Committee meeting to discuss
service and operation matters.

44.2 The NPSP Council does not have a service level agreement with
its service provider for waste management services

Recommendation

The NPSP Council should establish a service level agreement with East Waste to have clarity
and agreement on roles and responsibilities and other matters important to delivering waste
management services.

Finding

We found that there is no contract or service level agreement between the NPSP Council
and East Waste for the provision of waste services. East Waste prepared an ‘offerings’
spreadsheet that outlines the services agreed with the NPSP Council. This document did not
include any details on the NPSP Council’s operational performance expectations and
standards.

East Waste is subject to the joint direction and control of its constituent councils, who are
ultimately liable for its activities. It is important that the NPSP Council properly oversees and
monitors East Waste's performance, manages risks and takes action to direct its activity
when necessary. This will help ensure East Waste effectively implements the NPSP Council's
service level policy decisions.

We found the NPSP Council has little oversight over the waste activity and service delivery
performance specific to it and its community. This is because the NPSP Council has not set
any key performance measures and targets to enable it to monitor and evaluate East
Waste’s performance.

%7 Eastern Waste Management Autharity Charter, clause 9.2, 26 September 2017.
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NPSP Council staff advised us that information specific to the NPSP Council’s performance
and activity is limited to waste tonnages, additional bins and service exceptions.
The NPSP Council should have a service level agreement that at a minimum:

. dearly outlines its and East Waste’s roles and responsibilities for common functions
such as community education activities and dealing with complaints

. sets out its expectations of performance standards, measures and targets in delivering
the agreed services. These would need to be aligned with the NPSP Council’s strategic
objectives, performance standards and targets for waste management

. provides the data and information required to enable it to:

—  monitor and evaluate East Waste's performance in service delivery against the
pre-determined standards, performance measures and targets

—  inform its future waste management strategy and policy decisions

— inform its future community education programs, including an evaluation of the
effectiveness of existing education programs and waste initiatives

— assess and evaluate East Waste's management of risks

. requires East Waste to detail the controls in place to ensure waste data used for
reporting and decision making is complete and accurate. East Waste should also certify
annually that the controls have been operating effectively.

NPSP Council's response

The Council agrees that a Service Level Agreement with East Waste would
alfow the Council to set governance and performance measures and targets
addressing waste management. The Council intends to develop a Service Level
Agreement that allows the Council to monitor East Waste on the service
delivery of kerbside waste management and other services. As discussed, the
Service Level Agreement will include the recommendation outlined in

[section 4.3.4].

443 The NPSP Council did not evaluate and report against the key
performance targets and waste initiatives

Recommendation
The NPSP Council should ensure there is proper oversight, monitoring and reporting on the

performance of kerbside waste management services by:

. setting clear performance measures and targets it wants to achieve and that support
the State’s waste strategy

. evaluating and reporting actual performance against set targets

. evaluating and reporting on the outcome of all waste initiatives and activities that
support performance

. consulting with East Waste to establish key performance measures and targets and
define the data and information needed to monitor and evaluate their performance.
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Finding

We reviewed how the NPSP Council monitored, evaluated and reported on the performance
of its kerbside waste management services. We found that it has gaps in some important
areas. This is because the NPSP Council:

. did not evaluate and report on actual performance against established targets

. did not evaluate the effectiveness of all waste initiatives and activities to inform
decisions on future actions and allocation of resources

. did not consider and decide on the opportunities identified as part of evaluating one of
its key waste initiatives

. did not establish performance measures and targets for East Waste.
Key performance measure and target

Prior to 2020-21, the NPSP Council aimed to achieve a target of 60% of waste diverted from
landfill by 2019-20.

East Waste provided the total tonnages collected by waste stream and the percentage of
waste diverted from landfill for each financial year. The NPSP Council’s annual reports
provided the annual waste tonnages by waste stream but did not report on its performance
against the 60% diversion target.

Our analysis of the NPSP Council’s actual kerbside waste diversion from landfill rate
compared to the performance target and the metropolitan council average since 2015-16 is
provided in section 4.2.3.

If the NPSP Council had clear oversight of its kerbside bin waste performance against targets,
it would have been evident that it had not achieved its target each year and was not on track
to achieve this and the State target over time. It could have then considered changes
needed to improve its performance to reach, or get close to, the targets.

Waste reduction and education initiatives and activities

NPSP Council staff advised us that information on waste management activity is provided to
elected members when needed. For example, the elected members were informed of the
Reinvigorate the Food Recycling Project 2018~2021. This project’s purpose was to increase
the use of food caddies by giving them out to residents between 31 August 2019 and 30 June
2021. The NPSP Council exceeded its target of 3,200 with a total of 4,211 food caddies given
out,

The NPSP Council prepared a report for the elected members and GISA* on the outcome of
its evaluation of the project, which included:

. the outcome of the resident survey results
. an analysis of organics collection data.

** GISA provided funding to the NPSP Council under its Kerbside Performance Plus Food Organic Incentives
Program.
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The report outlined a further opportunity to increase the diversion of food waste from
landfill by reviewing the frequency of kerbside waste collection at the State level and
undertaking further modelling and trials to better understand how this could further
influence behaviour change. The report did not provide any recommendations to the elected
body for decision on these opportunities and the next steps to further the NPSP Council's
waste initiatives and education programs.

We also found that the NPSP Council is not evaluating the effectiveness of all the waste
management initiatives and activities it undertakes during the year. Consequently, a
summary of the outcome and impact of these activities on achieving strategic objectives is
not provided to the elected body to inform future decisions on waste management services.

East Waste's performance and kerbside bin service fo the community

The NPSP Council has not set any performance standards, measures and targets to monitor
and evaluate East Waste's performance in delivering kerbside waste management services
to its community.

East Waste’s 10-year business plan recommends key performance indicators that could be
implemented and reported against to the NPSP Council.

Why it is important to monitor and report on kerbside waste performance

To effectively oversee and monitor its waste performance, the NPSP Council must regularly
see actual results reported against set performance targets. This comparison, together with
evaluation of programs/initiatives and East Waste’s performance, will inform the NPSP
Council about whether its actions have been successful in achieving its targets, or whether
changes are needed to improve results and work towards achieving its strategic objectives
and vision.

NPSP Council's response

The Council intends to develop a Service Level Agreement with East Waste and
part of that Agreement, will include key performance measures and targets for
East Waste to deliver and report to the Council. This will increase East Waste's

accountability to the Coundil, as well as shaping future performance measures

and targets.

The Council accepts that regular reporting of key performance measures and

targets is necessary and is ultimately a key facet in informing the community
on waste management indicators.

4.4.4 No reporting on kerbside waste performance targets to the
community

Recommendation

The NPSP Council’s annual report should provide performance information on its kerbside
waste management activity against measures and targets.
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Finding

Schedule 4 of the LG Act requires a council to report on its performance in implementing its
strategic management plans and against its annual business plan each year. A council is
required to provide this information in its annual report.

Consistent with these requirements, the NPSP Council’s strategic planning and monitoring
framework provides for regular reporting to its community through its annual report.

Our review of the NPSP Council’s annual reports from 2015-16 to 2020-21 found that they
did not provide information on waste management performance against the measure and
target published in CityPlan 2030. However, they did comment on the various waste
activities and initiatives the NPSP Council had implemented during the year. The lack of
performance reporting makes it difficult for a reader of the annual report to have a clear and
accurate understanding of how well the NPSP Council performed against its waste
management objectives.

Why it is important to report on performance
Clear performance reporting on the delivery of waste management services against set

measures and targets:

B enables the NPSP Council to demonstrate, and be held to account for, its achievements
in meeting its objectives and working towards its vision

. provides useful information about the effectiveness of services provided that
strengthens community trust

. keeps the community and key stakeholders better informed, which may strengthen
future community engagement in managing waste.

NPSP Council’s response
It is intended to report the established performance measures and targets as

per the Service Level Agreement with East Waste in the Council’s 2022-2023
Annual Report.

445 Residual waste tonnages collected are not reconciled
Recommendation

The NPSP Council should consult with East Waste to:

. identify effective controls to ensure residual waste data is complete and accurate
. determine who is responsible for implementing these controls.

Finding
East Waste provides data on the waste tonnages collected from the kerbside three-bin

system to the NPSP Council, which is published in its annual report. NPSP Council staff
advised us that they do not check the data for accuracy or completeness.
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East Waste staff advised us that each month they reconcile the tonnes of organics and
recyclables collected recorded on its drivers’ weigh bridge dockets to invoices received from
third parties who sort and process this material. East Waste then invoices the NPSP Council
for the disposal of organics and recyclables once this reconciliation is done.

East Waste records the data on the drivers’ weigh bridge dockets for residual waste, but
does not perform a reconciliation as the NPSP Council receives these invoices directly from
the third party. NPSP Council staff advised us that they review the invoices for
reasonableness only.

Why it is important to reconcile the data

Reconciling the data East Waste records and what the NPSP Council is invoiced helps to
minimise the risk of overpayment.

NPSP Council's response

The Council agrees that tighter measures need to be put in place to cross-
check data provided by East Waste and the third-party at the time of
invoicing. To progress this, discussions will be held with East Waste to better
understand the process and take correct action as required.

446 Risk management framework not fully implemented
Recommendation

The NPSP Council should finalise and fully implement its risk management framework as a
matter of priority. To assist with this, it should develop an implementation plan that
provides the key activities, allocation of responsibilities and time frames to implement the
framework. Key activities should include:

. endorsing the risk management procedure and distributing it to all staff

. delivering a risk management training program to all staff as soon as practicable after
the risk management procedure is released

. having a dedicated resource to ensure its policy requirements are being met, risks are
regularly reviewed, evaluated and reported, and the risk register is maintained

. assigning responsibility for managing individual risks to the manager level and
recording this in the risk register

. regularly reviewing and reporting on risks as provided in the policy and procedure.
Finding
Risk management is the process by which potential impediments and opportunities for a

council to achieve its objectives are managed. It underpins a council’s control environment
and is therefore integral to its operations.
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The NPSP Council’s risk management policy (dated October 2020) provides its risk
management principles and defines responsibilities for risk management across its
operations. Its audit committee is responsible for monitoring the NPSP Council’s risk
exposure by determining if appropriate risk management processes are in place.

We found that some aspects of the NPSP Council’s risk management process had not been
finalised and fully implemented across its operations. This is because:

. the risk management procedure was in draft and had not been distributed to NPSP
Council staff

. the risk register does not assign responsibility for managing risk at the manager level

. the information in the risk register is incomplete as the risk assessment and the
evaluation of the effectiveness of controls are not documented for some risks

. the risk treatment plans we reviewed did not assign responsibility and time frames for
implementing the appropriate action

. there was no documentary evidence that the risk registers had been reviewed since
2019

. the executive leadership team had not provided the audit committee with quarterly
reports on extreme and high operational risks

. there was no annual reporting of strategic risks to the audit committee.

NPSP Council staff advised us that the manager responsible for helping the executive
leadership team to implement the risk management framework was seconded to assist the
local government sector in responding to emergency events for extended periods of time.
The NPSP Council did not have a dedicated resource to progress the implementation of its
risk management framework and practices during these absences. Our review of audit
committee meeting minutes and agenda papers found no evidence that it had considered
the implications of these secondments and whether to reassess the time frames to
implement the framework.

NPSP Council’s response

The Council has endorsed a Risk Management Policy which is periodically
reviewed and updated and which is supported by a Risk Register which sets
out key strategic and operational risks. A new Risk Management Procedure
and a Risk Management implermentation Plan is currently being finalised to
ensure that the new Procedure is effectively embedded throughout the
organisation. The new Procedure - and supporting Implementation Plan - hos
been designed to improve the quality of Council’s Risk Register, assign risk
control plans (including responsibilities) and ensure the necessary training is
undertaken.
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Since the examination conducted by the Auditor-General, the Council has
drafted an Implementation Plan. A large number of the comments and
recommendations in these findings have been actioned and systematically
adopted to the risk management fromework.

In addition, a Service Level Agreement with East Waste will assist the Council
set, monitor and evaluate key performance measures and targets delivered by
East Waste.

447 Waste management risks not fully assessed and documented
Recommendation

The NPSP Council should regularly assess East Waste's assessment and response to risks to
determine whether they are appropriate and adequate in delivering waste management
services. The outcome of this assessment should be documented in the NPSP Council’s risk
register and reported to its audit committee.

The NPSP Council should identify and assess any remaining waste management risks it is
responsible for managing. These risks should be clearly documented in the risk register.

The NPSP Council should review its business continuity plan (BCP) to ensure it is up to date
and contains accurate information in preparing and responding to emergency events. The
NPSP Council should have a copy of East Waste’s current BCP.

Finding

We found that the NPSP Council’s risk register did not specifically identify risks related to the
delivery of waste management services. Without these risks being clearly documented it was
difficult to determine if the NPSP Council had identified and was managing all of its waste
management risks. NPSP Council staff advised us that the risk statements are broad and the
operational risk of business interruption was relevant to these services,

The NPSP Council’s risk register identifies its BCP as a key existing control to mitigate
business interruption risk. its BCP (dated May 2018) identifies domestic waste management
as a critical function. It outlines the policy and procedures in place to be ready for an event
and the immediate action response. For waste management, the contract with East Waste is
identified as the policy and procedure but we found that there is no contract. One
immediate action needed in response to an emergency is to ask East Waste about its BCP.

it is important that the NPSP Council has a copy of East Waste’s current BCP in preparedness
for an emergency. This will ensure the risks and responsibilities of the NPSP Council and East
Waste are clearly understood before an event occurs and enable the NPSP Council to
respond quickly.
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In response to our document requests, NPSP Council staff also referred us to East Waste's
risk documents, including its risk management framework, risk registers and business
continuity framework and plan.

This shows how reliant the NPSP Council is on East Waste’s risk management practices.
However, the NPSP Council did not provide documentary evidence that it had assessed and
accepted East Waste's risk responses as appropriate and adequate in delivering waste
management services.

We also found that the NPSP Council’s risk analysis did not consider:

. the financial impacts of a failure in recyclables and organic waste collections, to
facilitate waste reduction and the market fluctuations in recyclable materials

. the impacts on pathways of collected material due to various disruptions. For example,
the NPSP Council relies on third parties to manage the recycling and disposal of
collected materials. In recent years there have been fires and materials recovery
facilities market failures that have had major impacts on pathways of collected
material, including additional financial outlays (such as costs for transporting
recyclables to interstate facilities or storing them pending local sorting availability, or
additional costs and levies of sending recyclables to landfill) and reputational impacts
(such as community affront on landfilling collected recydables)

. the oversight and monitoring of East Waste’s performance.
NPSP Council's response

See the NPSP Council’s response in section 4.4.6.

4.5 Waste management education activities

4.5.1 Background

East Waste’s services include delivering waste community education programs to its
constituent councils. It developed an education program for them in 2016-17, which focused
on promoting behaviours to ensure residential waste material is put in the correct bin.

The program is updated each year for the activities that will be delivered across the
constituent councils, including the delivery of waste education to schools and the general
community and a range of education resource materials {such as waste tips via social media,
street signage, bin stickers and articles for the constituent councils” websites).

The NPSP Coundil also provides community education, which includes:

. stalls at events

. an annual collection calendar with waste service and ‘which bin’ information

. a local services app

. an online waste and recycling guide to things like the supply of compostable bags and
educational materials.

a2
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The NPSP Council provides education resources directly to residents based on weekly
reports it receives from East Waste for illegal additional bins and service exceptions (such as
missed bins, contamination in bins and bins too heavy to lift).

45.2 The NPSP Council does not have a formal waste education
strategy

Recommendation

The NPSP Council should develop and document a waste education strategy and program.
This should align with its overall waste strategy and support the achievement of its strategic
objectives.

The NPSP Council should establish a system for annual planning of the education program,
monitoring its implementation and reviewing its performance.
Finding

The NPSP Council relies primarily on East Waste’s community education activities but also
carries out some of its own.

We met with NPSP Council and East Waste staff to discuss the waste education activities
that had been carried out during the review period.
We found that the NPSP Council does not have its own policy, strategy or plan that:

. demonstrates how its, and East Waste’s, community education programs will support
its strategic objectives and contribute towards achieving the State’s waste strategy and
targets

. outlines the activities and information needed to inform the education approach to
address waste and recycling issues

. describes the nature and extent of East Waste's role in community waste education

. shows how East Waste's waste education strategy aligns with its own

. provides the financial and human resources allocated to deliver education programs
and activities

. outlines the approach to evaluating the effectiveness of waste education programs

and activities in improving kerbside waste performance, such as bin audits, regular
analysis of waste data and community involvement

. supports the implementation of innovative waste education initiatives.
East Waste's education activities

We found that East Waste’s education program was not documented in, or linked to, an
NPSP Council strategy. There was no documentary evidence that the NPSP Council had
assessed this program to ensure it would help meet its strategic objectives for waste
management and agreed service delivery to its community (such as how many and which
schools in the NPSP Council area East Waste would deliver waste education to in each year).
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The NPSP Council's waste education activity evaluation

East Waste staff advised us that it is very difficult to evaluate the effectiveness of a specific
education activity/initiative. It conducted a kerbside bin audit in late 2019 to assess kerbside
waste performance and understand household waste disposal and recycling behaviour.
These audits identify issues in waste behaviours, such as the nature of contamination and
the incorrect use of bins. This information helps to make informed decisions to improve
services and make changes to the education program for the region and the NPSP Council.

The NPSP Council engaged a third party to do a kerbside bin audit in 2016. The purpose was
to gain accurate and reliable data on the performance of the kerbside waste management
system and the recycling behaviours of its residents. This information would then be used to
identify opportunities for performance improvement and develop education materials
targeting specific behaviour issues.

NPSP Council staff advised us that some recommendations from the 2016 bin audit were
progressed, including facilitating ongoing and more frequent data collection to monitor
progress. We found no documentary evidence that the NPSP Council had regularly analysed
kerbside waste data to monitor performance and determine whether it was successful in
changing community behaviour.

We found that the NPSP Council did not have a documented approach to evaluating the
effectiveness of its waste education activities, such as the impact the education activity has
on landfill diversion rates.

Why it is important to have a waste education strategy

A documented waste education strategy will help the NPSP Council to define its strategic
education directions, set clear objectives and describe the actions it will take to educate the
community on areas such as:

. practicing the waste management hierarchy with increased focus on avoiding or
minimising waste

. increasing the level of food scrap recycling

. disposing of food scrap recyding in the organics bin

. increasing the level of recycling

. decreasing the level of contamination in recycling.

Further, a documented strategy will help the NPSP Council make decisions about the priority
of education programs and activities, prepare plans and allocate resources to them.
Education programs can be expensive and can absorb significant human resources. Without

a clear vision of program objectives, the NPSP Council may find it difficult to assess whether
sufficient and suitable resources have been applied to deliver specific programs.

NPSP Council's response

The Council agrees that educating the community on waste management with
a focus on minimising waste and increasing the recycling, food scrap and
general recycling, is fundamental to reducing landfill and improving recycling.
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The Council will seek to provide greater clarity over the educational activities
which it already conducts each year, with the production of an internal Waste
Education Calendar, documenting events, campaigns, materials that will be
rolled out in any given year and how this integrates with the educational
activities conducted by East Waste which the Constituent Councils fund.

The Service Level Agreement will also document the education programs and
formats to be delivered or overseen by East Waste (such as schools’ education)
and the expectation for the minimum number of sessions to be delivered. The
Service Level Agreement will include a requirement on East Waste to report to
the Council on the effectiveness of the education activities in accordance with
the opening statement of the service level agreement and East Waste'’s 2030
Strategic Plan.

The Service Level Agreement will not remove the education activities
undertaken by the Council. However, these activities will be consistent with
the topics provided for in the Service Level Agreement, The Council will
endeavour to publish the annuel education plan on its website.

46 What the NPSP Council did well

We found some areas of effective waste management that were operating effectively during
the period we reviewed. These included the NPSP Council:

consulting its community and key stakeholders when it reviewed CityPlan 2030 to
understand their expectations and satisfaction with the levels of waste management

service

having sound processes to manage and resolve complaints from residents about

kerbside waste collection services

having a waste management policy that outlined domestic kerbside waste collection
services, additional bin requirements and lost and stolen bins. It was updated in late
2021 to provide direction on specific areas such as MUDs and hard waste services.
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5 City of West Torrens

5.1 Executive summary

5.1.1 Audit conclusion

We assessed the effectiveness of West Torrens Council’s management of kerbside waste
services between 2015 and 2021 against our review objective in section 3.2,

We concluded that West Torrens Council successfully collects, transports and processes
kerbside waste to a high level of community satisfaction.

There are many areas that contribute to the overall effective management of kerbside waste
services. We identified three areas that were not operating effectively during the period we
reviewed. These were:

. establishing a stand-alone waste strategy
. setting local performance targets
. establishing a formal education strategy.

These issues are explained in section 5.1.2.

We also identified some areas where West Torrens Council was operating effectively during
the period, including that it had:

. established dear roles and responsibilities for waste management, including an
oversight and monitoring committee
. sound frameworks and processes to identify, assess and manage waste risks

. clear processes to manage and resolve complaints from residents about collection
services,

West Torrens Council has recognised the importance of continuous improvement in waste
management. For example, it has recognised the need for and developed a local waste
strategy and has completed, or has plans in place to start, other initiatives.

5.1.2 What we found and recommended

The key findings from our review of West Torrens Council’s management of kerbside waste
services were that it:

. did not have a stand-alone waste strategy that identified its key priorities and
objectives for waste management, established local targets and measures to monitor
performance and detailed the specific actions and activities that it would take to
achieve these. We acknowledge West Torrens Council commenced developing a stand-
alone waste strategy (see section 5.3.2)
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. had not set local performance targets for waste management, reducing the
effectiveness of its monitoring of waste performance (see section 5.3.3)

. did not have a formal waste education strategy that outlined its approach to
community education on waste and recycling issues and defined how it would assess
the effectiveness of its education activities (see section 5.5.1).

We recommended that West Torrens Council:

. sets local performance targets that support the State’s waste strategy targets for
metropolitan coundils and reports its waste performance against them

. develops and documents a waste education strategy that aligns to its waste strategy
and local targets.

5.1.3 West Torrens Council's response

West Torrens Council responded to our detailed findings and advised us how it would action
our recommendations, which it accepted.

West Torrens Council’s response to each individual recommendation is included in sections
5.3to 5.5 and in section 5.7.

West Torrens Council provided a response to our proposed report to Parliament that is
included as Appendix 7.

5.2 Overview of the City of West Torrens

5.2.1 Waste management services

West Torrens Council is located immediately west of the City of Adelaide. Its estimated
resident population is around 61,000 with a population density of 1,649 people per square
kilometre. It covers an area of around 37 km? and census data from 2021 shows that 37% of
its dwellings are medium or high density, while 63% are separate houses.*

Population, area and dwelling type determine the nature, type and collection frequency of
the waste services councils provide. West Torrens Council provides a three-bin kerbside
waste collection service that consists of:

. weekly residual waste
. fortnightly organics
. fortnightly recycling.

ity of West Torrens 2021, City of West Torrens: dwelling type, viewed 15 July 2022,
<https://profile.id.com.au/west-torrens/dwellings>.
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Residents are entitled to a free food caddy and a roll of compostable bags, as well as
replacement bags.

West Torrens Council has developed a shared waste service for MUDs to provide kerbside
services to developments that would not have qualified for its waste collection service.

An independent waste contractor provides collection and transportation services for West
Torrens Council's three-bin kerbside waste.

In addition to the kerbside three-bin waste service, West Torrens Council collects and
disposes of kerbside hard waste and public litter bins, street sweepings and illegal dumping.

5.2.2 Waste management costs
In 2020-21, West Torrens Council incurred $7.5 million in waste management costs.

Figure 5.1 shows West Torrens Council’s waste management costs over six years.

Figure 5.1: West Torrens Council's waste management costs over six years

g 6 e Total waste management
expenditure

201516 201617 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Source: West Torrens Counci's audited finanaal st s which are audited by a private sector accounting fem.

Figure 5.1 shows that waste management costs have increased since 2018-19. This is partly
due to the increase in the solid waste levy during this period. On 30 June 2019, the solid
waste levy for metropolitan councils was $100 per tonne. By 30 June 2021, the levy for
metropolitan councils was $143 per tonne, an increase of 43%. The increase in costs is also
the result of the increase in residual waste collected by West Torrens Council since 2018-19,
as shown in figure 5.3. In 2020-21, West Torrens Council spent $7.5 million on waste
management services, an increase of $800,000 (12%) from 2019-20. Figure 5.2 shows where
this was spent.
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Figure 5.2: West Torrens Council waste management costs for 2020-21
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{$6.7m in 2019-20)

$1.3m

Kerbside green waste

S4m
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indudes solid waste fevy

Of the $7.5 million, 53% was spent on collecting and disposing kerbside residual waste,
including the solid waste levy. The solid waste levy is 24%*° of West Torrens Council's total
waste management costs for 2020-21.

5.2.3 Kerbside waste management performance

Figure 5.3 shows the total tonnages by waste stream collected by West Torrens Council over
Six years.

% (alculated by us based on the residual tonnes provided by West Torrens Council multipked by the solid
waste levy.
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Figure 5.3: Kerbside waste collected by West Torrens Council
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Source: Based on data provided by West Torrens Coundl (unaudted).
Figure 5.3 shows that residual waste is consistently West Torrens Council’s largest waste

stream, followed by organics and then recyclables. This is in line with other metropolitan
councils as shown in figure 2.7.

Figure 5.4 shows total kerbside waste and residual waste generated per person in the West
Torrens Council area over six years.

Figure 5.4: Waste per person in West Torrens Council

§ 300 ~—a Total kerbside waste per person
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Source: Based on data about tonnes provided by West Torrens Council. Data about population & from the Australian Bureau of Statistics
(estmated resident population by local government area) (https://explore. data.abs gov.au/}).

Figure 5.4 shows that total kerbside waste generated per person decreased from 2016-17
until 2019-20. The decrease in 2017-18 was driven by a 13% decrease in organics due to
higher rainfall in the previous year.*® An explanation for the increase in 2019-20 may be that
during the pandemic more people shopped online, increasing the amount of packaging used
in shipping/postage then discarded by residents. This may have been further impacted by

% Green Industries SA 2020, South Australia’s Kerbside Waste Performance Report 2017-18, Gavernment of
South Australia, Adelalde, p. 14.
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people establishing home offices during the initial lockdown as evidenced by the shortage of
office furniture and IT equipment in South Australia in March, April and May 2020, Figure 5.4
also shows that residual waste generated per person has remained relatively consistent in
the West Torrens Council area over the past five years.

Figure 5.5 shows West Torrens Council’s actual recovery rates compared to the metropolitan
council average since 2015-16 and the State target for metropolitan councils of 60% landfill
diversion from the kerbside bin system.

Figure 5.5: Kerbside waste recovery rates and performance targets

0%

State Target
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Source: Based on data provided by West Torrens Counal and GISA.

West Torrens Council’s actual recovery rates compared to the State metropolitan council
averages are shown in figure 5.6.

Figure 5.6: West Torrens Council and metropolitan council average recovery rates

West Torrens Coundil Metropolitan councils

kerbside collection average
Year recovery rate*’ recovery rate*
2015-16 51.2% 48.2%
2016-17 53.4% 49.9%
2017-18 50.7% 48.2%
2018-19 51.2% 48.7%
2019-20 52.1% 50.7%
2020-21 50.6% 50.6%

These results show that West Torrens Council has mostly achieved a higher recovery rate
than the average attained by metropolitan councils. 2016-17 was West Torrens Council’s
best performing year with it ahead of the metropolitan councils’ average recovery rate by
3.5%. However, during this period West Torrens Council still fell 6.6% short of the State’s
waste strategy landfill diversion target for metropolitan councils of 60%. The 1.5% decrease
in West Torrens Council’s recovery rate from 2019-20 to 2020-21 was in part due to people

“T This rate was calculated by us using unaudited data about collection tonnages provided by West Torrens
Councll using the formula published in GISA’s kerbside waste performance reports. The tonnages of
recycling and organics collected from the kerbside have not been adjusted for contamination.

¥ GISA’s annual kerbside waste performance reports. Data provided by GiSA for 2019-20 and 2020-21.
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working from home during the pandemic and some residents disposing of recyclable
material in the residual bin rather than waiting for the recycling bin collection week. There
was also a fruit fly outbreak in late 2020 and 2021 and some residents were instructed to
dispose of fruit in their residual bin instead of their organics bin. In June and July 2020 and in
March, April and May 2021, Adelaide experienced drier than average weather resultingin a
reduced need for pruning and therefore garden waste generation.

GISA provided us with data it has not yet published which shows that only one metropolitan
council achieved a recovery rate of 60% in 2020-21.4°

5.2.4 Other waste management initiatives

West Torrens Council has recognised the importance of continuous improvement in waste
services and the solutions it provides to its community are key to encouraging responsible
waste behaviour. During our review we noted some examples of its commitment to
improvement and innovation including that it:

. had recently undertaken a weekly green waste bin collection trial in West Beach,
intended to encourage responsible food waste recycling and diversion of food waste
away from landfill

. planned a trial with RecycleSmart to provide a booked home collection service for
recyclable items not accepted through kerbside recycling

. planned a pilot to determine the most effective interventions to improve source
separation of waste in MUDs

. together with industry parties is investigating the technical, commercial and economic
feasibility of using municipal solid waste to produce hydrogen from gasification to be
used for hydrogen derived fertiliser products and hydrogen powered heavy haulage
vehicles.

5.3 Governance and strategic planning for waste
management services

5.3.1 Background
Legislation

The LG Act requires councils to develop and adopt plans for the strategic management of
their areas.®® These are published on councils’ websites for community scrutiny and
information.®' Strategic planning helps councils to set long-term directions and priorities,
evaluate their operations (including community services) and address issues unique to their
local areas. This process also gives councils the opportunity to consider strategies to achieve
SA Government objectives.

*% GISA's annual kerbside waste performance reports. Data provided by GiSA for 2019-20 and 2020-21.
0 LG Act, section 122,
51 LG Act, section 132.
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While the LG Act does not require councils to have dedicated waste strategies, their strategic
management plans must indicate how they have considered State objectives and strategies.
Increasingly councils have recognised the importance of waste strategies to set goals for
waste reduction, communicate how these will be achieved and demonstrate their support
for State objectives.

Community plan

West Torrens Council’s community plan has guided the strategic planning of waste
management. It is the lead strategic document that determines key priorities for the coming
years and is a statement about what West Torrens Council will do to achieve the
community’s vision.

The Towards 2025 Community Plan was first released in 2009 and updated several times
during its lifetime. 1t was replaced in February 2021 by the current lead strategic plan, the
Community Plan 2030.

City Facilities and Waste Recovery General Committee

West Torrens Council has established the City Facilities and Waste Recovery General
Committee under the LG Act. The Committee’s primary objective is to assist West Torrens
Council in its oversight and monitoring responsibilities as well as enquire into and report
about operational matters including waste management. It is comprised of the Mayor and
up to seven elected members and meets in alternate months.

5.3.2 West Torrens Council does not have stand-alone waste strategy
Recommendation

Although not required by legislation, we acknowledge and support West Torrens Council’s
development of a stand-alone waste strategy.

We recommend the waste strategy:

. identifies West Torrens Council’s key priorities and objectives for waste management

. establishes local targets and measures to monitor performance and describes the
actions and activities that will be taken to achieve them

. dearly identifies how West Torrens Council will support the objectives of the State’s
waste strategy, including any targets.

We further recommend West Torrens Council publishes the waste strategy on its website
and reports outcomes against targets each year in its annual report for community
information and accountability purposes.

Finding

West Torrens Council does not have a stand-alone waste strategy or plan.

53

Item 18.2 - Attachment 1



Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments 18 October 2022

Its community plan has guided the strategic planning of waste management. The Towards
2025 Community Plan acknowledged the community aspiration of reducing the ecological
footprint and outlined West Torrens Council’s long-term and short-term waste management
strategies. Although these strategies altered slightly between versions of the plan, their
intent was consistent:

. Long-term strategy:

—  To facilitate the minimisation of waste production and disposal to landfill and
maximise resource recovery.

. Short-term strategies:

—  To promote waste minimisation and resource recovery within West Torrens
Council, community, local businesses and industry.

—  To establish alternative waste disposal and utilisation options to reduce waste to
landfill.

These strategies broadly aligned with the State’s objectives of minimising waste and
reducing landfill.

While each version of the plan communicated West Torrens Council’s waste management
goals through these strategies, it did not include detailed information about specific actions
or activities that would be taken to achieve them. Further, clear targets to measure West
Torrens Council's performance against were set at a high level or were not set at all and no
details were provided about how waste management performance would be monitored and
reviewed.

Why a waste strategy is important and what it should say

As waste disposal costs have substantially grown in recent years following the SA Govemment’s
increases to the solid waste levy,*? there is significant financial incentive for West Torrens
Council to make every effort to reduce the amount of kerbside waste going to landfill. Further,
to protect the environment it should promote reducing waste generation and increasing reuse
and recycling in line with the waste management hierarchy ** A waste strategy would support
West Torrens Council in this regard.

A local based waste strategy would enable West Torrens Council to:

. identify its objectives, principles and strategies, including measurable performance
targets, and state how these will support the State’s waste strategy

. describe the activities and actions it will take to achieve these targets, including time
frames, resources and responsibilities

. describe the activities and actions it will take to monitor and maintain its performance

B assess whether its activities and actions have been effective and have resulted in
reduced waste disposal costs such as the solid waste levy

52 The SA Government announced the solid waste levy Increase in its 2019-20 State Budget. The solid waste
levy increased to $110 per tonne on 1 July 2019, and to $140 per tonne on 1 January 2020,
51 Environment Protection Act 1993, section 48.
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. identify and assess risks that may prevent it from achieving its objectives and targets
and communicate plans about how they will be addressed.

West Torrens Council has recognised the importance of establishing a local waste strategy
and has engaged a consultant to develop a 10-year waste and resource recovery strategy
and a five-year action plan.

West Torrens Council's response

The Council acknowledges that there is no legisiative requirement to have a
standalone waste strategy. Waste management has always formed a part of
Council's Community Plan and as a resuit departmental service plans have
been prepared and reported on regularly by the waste team. However, since
the 2018-2019 restructure of the waste team, efficiencies have emerged
including new management with fresh and focused considerations for waste
innovation, planning, processes and practices. This has culminated in Council
providing budgeted funding for, and engaging with, a consultant to design a
foundational waste strategy which is expected to be completed in the 2nd half
of 2022. This will be a 10 year waste strategy and will align with the State’s
Waste Strategy and Council's Community Plan (2030), and it will consider
broader global and environmental factors, and is open to bold future
opportunities and innovations.

Council supports transparency and accountability in the local government
sector. Publishing the strategy on the Council website facilitates improving
community understanding of the Council's commitment to waste
management.

While Council provides an overview of activities undertaken in the Annual
Report, we currently do not measure against targets. Consideration will be
given to future annual reports and whether it is appropriate to include
comparison of outcomes against targets following the formal release of
Council's Waste and Resource Recovery Strategy and Action Plan. Council will
also consider the development of data tracking and comparisons against
targets on a regular basis in a format that will be easily accessible by the
general public.

5.3.3 West Torrens Council does not have local targets to easily assess
its waste management performance against

Recommendation

To improve the effectiveness of the City Facilities and Waste Recovery General Committee’s
monitoring and oversight function, we recommend:

. West Torrens Council sets local targets in line with the waste management results it
wants to achieve. These should support the State’s waste strategy targets for
metropolitan coundils
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. the bi-monthly waste management activity reports received by the Committee include
reporting of actual performance against West Torrens Coundil’s targets. This will
inform the Committee which waste strategies are effective and help it to make
decisions about where to spend money to achieve the best results.

Finding

The Towards 2025 Community Plan, which outlined West Torrens Council's long-term and
short-term waste management strategies, did not include targets to easily measure and
assess its performance against. Also, one version of the plan included an indicator of success
that reflected the State average of waste to landfill. As this indicator included regional
councils’ performance it was not the most appropriate measure, as many regional councils
do not offer all bin types and the same frequency of collection services as those offered by
West Torrens Council and other metropolitan councils.

Why West Torrens Council needs local targets to monitor its waste
performance

West Torrens Council needs local targets to help the City Facilities and Waste Recovery
General Committee effectively oversee and monitor its waste performance,

The Committee receives a waste management activity report at each meeting that includes
year-to-date data about:

. monthly kerbside bin collection tonnages by waste stream
. the monthly percentage of kerbside bin collections diverted from landfill.

While the report compares West Torrens Council’s current year waste performance to the
prior year, it does not compare this data to either local or State targets. This results in a less
effective review by the Committee, which cannot easily assess actual waste performance
against the goals West Torrens Council hopes to achieve.

Comparing actual performance to targets will inform the Committee about whether West
Torrens Council’s actions have been successful, or whether changes to activities are needed
to achieve success. The Committee must be able to readily identify where targets are not
being met, so it can determine why this has occurred and what action is needed to improve
results. For instance, the effectiveness of education programs and other waste trials aimed
at changing community behaviour, such as diverting food waste from residual to organic
collections, can be determined by observing improved landfill diversion rates against targets
over time.

West Torrens Council's response

Council is not legally required to report waste management targets against
the State targets, however the Council agrees that this would provide
transparency and performance benchmarking in the sector.

Council will consider opportunities to progress a reporting system to improve
the tracking of real-time service and kerbside performance.
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Council currently reports on the performance of kerbside service through the
City Facilities and Waste Recovery General Committee, and will consider
enhancing this report to compare this data against Council, Local and State
targets. However, Council have identified that tracking Council's performance
against other metropolitan councils is difficult while the State's Waste
Strategy is not legislated. Councils calculate waste performance data using
different methodologies so comparing metropolitan councils would not give a
correct or clear indication of results.

5.3.4 West Torrens Council does not have a formal program for
kerbside bin audits

Recommendation

We recommend West Torrens Council:
. formalises in its waste strategy its approach to kerbside bin audits which considers:

—  how often audits will be performed and their purpose, such as to provide timely
and relevant information about community behaviour and waste performance to
inform an education strategy

—  the audit methodology and sampling base to be used
—  the reporting requirements

. darifies with its independent contractor who is responsible for performing kerbside
bin audits and how they will be funded.

Finding

West Torrens Council does not have a formal program for kerbside bin audits. However, it
did perform two audits during the period we reviewed. A formal program for kerbside bin
audits would help it to:

. determine how often audits should be performed
. schedule audits

. select suburbs/streets for review

. allocate sufficient resources in advance

. ensure audits are performed.

Why kerbside bin audits are important

Kerbside bin audits are a valuable tool in the management of waste. They help a council
understand the waste and recycling disposal behaviour of its community, by measuring the
contents of residual waste, recycling and organics bins. This data allows the council to:

. identify waste and recycling trends within its community
. identify problems in the kerbside bin system and opportunities for improvement
. provide feedback to its community about waste management performance
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. design targeted education programs to change community waste behaviour

. measure residents’ waste behaviour over time, to assess whether education programs
or other waste initiatives, such as supplying and distributing food caddies and
compostable bags, have been successful

. compare community performance to other councils performing similar audits.

What the waste and recycling collection contract says about kerbside bin
audits

An independent contractor provides West Torrens Council with kerbside waste collection,
transportation and processing services.

The waste and recycling collection contract requires the independent contractor to provide
West Torrens Council with electronic reporting and data for certain services. The contract
describes the timing and reporting requirements for these services and refers to biennial
kerbside garbage, recyclables and organics audits.

The independent contractor did not perform kerbside bin audits during the period we
reviewed.

West Torrens Council has not interpreted this reporting requirement as obliging the
independent contractor to perform biennial kerbside bin audits. It believes the independent
contractor is obliged to contribute to the cost of the audits arranged or performed by West
Torrens Council. The independent contractor has previously contributed in-kind support for
kerbside audits arranged or performed by West Torrens Council by providing staff and
vehicles to collect and transport bins for auditing from households to its waste and recycling
centre.

How often kerbside bin audits should be performed

We are not aware of any industry standard that indicates how often kerbside bin audits
should be performed. Bin audits can be costly, so West Torrens Council must weigh up the
benefits of the usefulness of the information and intelligence they provide about community
behaviour against the financial and human resources they commit.

The waste and recycling collection contract refers to kerbside bin audits being performed
every two years. A biennial audit would provide West Torrens Council with timely and useful
data about community waste behaviour and give valuable and relevant insight about areas
needing improvement for its waste and education strategies.

West Torrens Council’s response
Council agrees that tangible and measurable data collected through reqular
auditing would provide valuable measurements to identify how Council is

performing, however the cost associated with the routine oudit would require
ongoing budget considerations.
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Routine auditing will be considered for integration in Council's Waste and
Resource Recovery Strategy and Action Plan (currently under development) to
support budget development and will be subject to endorsement from Council
each financial year. As part of the Waste and Resource Recovery Strategy and
Action Plan development, Council will confer with [its) ... (waste contractor)
regarding the responsibility for performing kerbside bin audits.

54 Service arrangements

5.4.1 West Torrens Council's original waste disposal contract could not
be located

Recommendation

In line with the requirements of the LG Act, we recommend West Torrens Council keeps all
contracts or correspondence that describe the terms and conditions agreed with service
providers in its records management system for safekeeping and ease of retrieval.

Finding

West Torrens Council first engaged its independent contractor to provide kerbside waste
transportation and disposal services in September 2010. Since then it has extended these
arrangements three times.

At the time of our review, West Torrens Council’s original contract with the independent
contractor could not be located. Some terms of the original contract, such as those
concerning fees, have no doubt changed over time or been superseded by more recent
agreements, Other terms, such as those concerning roles and responsibilities, may still form
the basis of current arrangements.

West Torrens Council was able to provide us with an extract from the original contract. This
referred to documents that were stated to comprise the contract. However, these
documents were not described in a manner that would allow them to be clearly and easily
identified. For instance, no details of dates or identity of authors and recipients of
correspondence were included in the references to these documents.

Without these details there is no certainty about which documents comprise the contract,
and therefore the nature, content and extent of the terms and conditions agreed between
the West Torrens Council and the independent contractor.

The risks to West Torrens Council if a contract cannot be found

Contracts confirm and demonstrate a meeting of the minds between parties and contain
essential information about their roles and responsibilities. If West Torrens Council cannot

refer to a contract to confirm these, it could be exposed to the risk of uncertainty about
terms and conditions agreed with the independent contractor should a dispute arise.
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Further, contracts contain valuable information needed for planning, managing compliance,
performance and decision making. West Torrens Council may overlook details or information
relevant to these activities if it cannot confirm the agreed terms and conditions.

The LG Act requires councils to keep accounting records that explain their revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities.>* The LG Act includes all records and documents relevant to
any receipt or payment of money in its definition of accounting records.>

We believe a contract for the provision of services would constitute an accounting record as
defined by the LG Act.

West Torrens Council’'s response

Since 2018, records management processes within Council’s waste team have
greatly improved ensuring routine uploading of documents and emails into the
Council's document management system using uniformity in naming
conventions to enable efficient information retrieval. This has been facilitated
by the review of the waste management team and expanding the number of
employees in this area with a designoted team leader. As a resuit, Council has
addressed this finding.

5.4.2 West Torrens Council does not independently check the weight of
kerbside bin collections

Recommendation

We recommend the West Torrens Council investigates ways it can obtain independent
assurance about the weight of kerbside bin collections. This could include:

. performing regular spot audits to observe the independent contractor’s staff
performing the weighing and recording process

. requesting confirmation of the calibration of the independent contractor’s
weighbridge, such as a letter of confirmation or a certificate from the calibrator

. considering how independent assurance of the calibration process could be included in
the processing and disposal service specifications in the next procurement of these
services,

Finding

West Torrens Council does not independently check the weight of kerbside bin collections.
The independent contractor weighs the kerbside residual waste, recyclables and organics bin
collections on behalf of the landfill operator, the recycling company and the organics

processor. It provides West Torrens Council with a monthly report on the weight of kerbside
bin collections.

5% LG Act, section 124,
5% ibid, section 4.
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West Torrens Council reviews the monthly report and monitors tonnages for unexpected
variances against its large history of collection data. It also relies on the routine calibration of
the independent contractor’s weighbridge by an expert, although it does not obtain
evidence that the calibration process has occurred.

Why West Torrens Council should independently check the weight of kerbside
bin collections

West Torrens Council receives a monthly invoice for collection, processing and disposal
services. While collection fees are based on the number of bins serviced or a fortnightly
collection rate, processing and disposal fees are based on the number of tonnes collected.
Further, the solid waste levy is based on the number of residual waste tonnes disposed of.

Without an independent check of the weight of collections, West Torrens Council cannot be
certain of the accuracy of tonnages advised by the independent contractor, the amounts
invoiced for kerbside bin processing and disposal, and the solid waste levy.

West Torrens Council's response

[The waste contractor is] ... required to operate in accordance with
Environment Protection Regulations 2009. The Environment Protection
Regulations 2009 outline the approval, maintenance and certification of
accuracy for weighbridges in accordance with the National Measurement Act
1960. However, as part of independent data checking, Council will consider
requesting calibration reports from [the waste contractor] and conduct
periodic audits of weighbridge dockets to verify accuracy.

5.5 Processes to assess the effectiveness of education
activities

5.5.1 West Torrens Council does not have a formal waste education
strategy

Recommendation

We recommend West Torrens Council develops and documents a waste education strategy
that aligns to its waste strategy and local targets. The waste education strategy should:

. demonstrate how the education programs will support West Torrens Council’s and the
State’s waste strategy objectives and targets

. outline activities/information needed to inform the education approach, for instance
kerbside bin audits

. consider the nature of resources required to develop and deliver education programs
and activities
. include community input options

. include mechanisms for measuring the effectiveness of education programs and
activities.
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We further recommend West Torrens Council establishes a system for annual planning of the
education program, monitoring its implementation and reviewing performance.

Finding

West Torrens Council does not have a formal policy, strategy or plan outlining its approach
to community education on waste and recycling issues. It also does not have a process to
formally evaluate the effectiveness of its education tools and programs.

In December 2020, West Torrens Council engaged its community on what they found
important and what actions it should prioritise to meet their expectations. Waste
management was identified as an area of community interest. Key considerations for West
Torrens Council included:

. seeking to reduce waste volumes through best practice management, education and
recycling

. helping businesses and organisations to pursue waste minimisation philosophy as well
as West Torrens Council leading by example

. considering how it can positively influence community values of recyclable materials to
help rebuild the recycling industry in South Australia and Australia %

What community waste education West Torrens Council currently provides

West Torrens Council currently provides a comprehensive range of waste and recycling
education resources on its website, including ‘what goes in which bin’, an Ato Z guide on
waste and recycling, and a chatbot that can be used to determine whether an item can be
recycled. West Torrens Council also invites face-to-face engagement with schools,
community groups and businesses, and has participated in events such as National Recycling
Week to engage its community on waste education.

Why West Torrens Council needs a waste education strategy

Councils play a key role in educating the community about waste reduction and responsible
recycling. Through education the community can improve its waste practices, which will
reduce the amount of waste sent to landfill and increase the volume of materials to be
recycled.

Community behaviour directly impacts costs paid by councils for waste disposal. As the solid
waste levy increases the cost of sending kerbside waste to landfill, there is strong financial
incentive along with environmental concern for West Torrens Council to promote the
reduction of waste generation and increase in reuse and recycling in line with the waste
management hierarchy. Changing community behaviour will be key to achieving this.

A documented waste education strategy will help West Torrens Council define its strategic
education directions, set clear objectives and describe the activities it will take to educate

% Intermethod, 6 March 2020, Community Needs Analysis prepared for The City of West Torrens, 6 March,
p. 59.

62

Item 18.2 - Attachment 1



Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments 18 October 2022

the community on areas such as:

. practicing the waste management hierarchy

. increasing the level of food scrap recycling

. disposing of food scraps in the organics recycling bin
. increasing the level of recycling

. decreasing the level of contamination in recycling.

Further, a documented strategy will help West Torrens Council to make decisions about the
priority of education programs and activities, prepare plans and allocate resources for them.
Education programs can be expensive and can absorb significant human resources. Without
a clear vision of education program objectives, West Torrens Council may find it difficult to
assess whether sufficient and suitable resources have been applied to deliver specific

programs.
West Torrens Council's response

Council recognises that no formal waste education strategy or program
existed during the Review period. However, a dedicated officer has been
appointed and is responsible for waste education in the community.

Following the 2018-20189 restructure of the waste team, Council’s general
approach to waste management has developed and matured. A new Team
Leader Waste Management role was created in 2019 and a comprehensive
review of the Project Officer Waste and Recycling role was completed in 2022.
Council's newly employed Project Officer Waste and Recycling is seeking new
tools and systems for the purposes of waste education. So, whilst no formal
waste education strategy was in place during the Review period, significant
developments have occurred in this area and a strategy of this nature is
currently being developed as appropriately skilled and experienced resources
have been engaged.

Council's current waste education program is being reviewed and reconsidered
to meet the needs and expectations of the Community (including the State
intended targets). The Council will consider the development of @ Waste
Education Strategy which aligns Council’s intended goals and efforts with the
State strategies. KPI's will be considered for each activity whereby measurable
outputs will be generated identifying with success, and effect of chonge.

5.6 What West Torrens Council did well

We identified some areas of effective waste management that were operating effectively
during the period we reviewed. These included that the West Torrens Council had:

. established clear roles and responsibilities for waste management, including an
oversight and monitoring committee

. sound frameworks and processes to identify, assess and manage waste risks

. clear processes to manage and resolve complaints from residents about collection
services,

63

Item 18.2 - Attachment 1



Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments 18 October 2022

5.7 Other observation

5.7.1 Background
Legislation

The LG Act requires councils to have procurement policies, practices and procedures
directed towards achieving:

. value in the expenditure of public money
. the ethical and fair treatment of participants
. probity, accountability and transparency in procurement >’

The LG Act requires the procurement policies to identify the circumstances when councils
will call for tenders.*®

West Torrens Council’s procurement policy

West Torrens Council’s procurement policy provides its framework for procuring goods,
works and services. It requires the West Torrens Council to be guided by principles such as
value for money, probity and accountability, support of local business and engagement with
the market,

While the policy recognises the appropriate procurement approach will be determined by
the nature and circumstances of each purchase, it requires the West Torrens Council to use a
select or open request for tender for purchases above $200,000.

5.7.2 West Torrens Council has not used competitive procurement
processes since its initial agreements for kerbside waste services

Recommendation

We recommend the West Torrens Council, in line with its procurement policy, undertakes a
competitive tender process for its:

. kerbside waste, recycling and organics collection services when the current
arrangements with the independent contractor expire in 2025

. kerbside waste disposal services when the current arrangements with the independent
contractor expire in 2022.
Finding

West Torrens Council has not used a competitive procurement process for its kerbside
waste, recycling and organics collection services since its initial contract with the
independent contractor in 2005.

5T LG Act, Part 4 section 49,
% LG Act, Part 4 section 49.
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West Torrens Council has not used a competitive procurement process for its kerbside waste
transportation and disposal services since it first engaged the independent contractor to
provide these services in 2010.

West Torrens Council's kerbside waste, recycling and organics collection
services

In December 2005, West Torrens Council established a contract with the independent
contractor to provide kerbside waste, recycling and organic bin collection services, following
a tender process. The contract was for about seven years and offered an extension to these
arrangements of up to three years. It has been extended at least three times since the first
extension expired, but terms have changed and services expanded during this time.

In January 2019, the independent contractor approached West Torrens Council with an offer
to extend the kerbside bin collection arrangements. At this time, West Torrens Council
engaged an independent waste expert to review and provide feedback about the
independent contractor’s offer. Following the expert’s advice, West Torrens Council
renegotiated certain terms and these, together with the original contract, form the basis of
current arrangements that will expire in April 2025.

West Torrens Council's kerbside waste disposal services

Following a competitive procurement process, West Torrens Council first engaged the
independent contractor to provide kerbside waste transportation and disposal services in
September 2010.

Since its initial engagement, West Torrens Coundil has extended arrangements with the
independent contractor three times.

In October 2014, the independent contractor presented West Torrens Council with two
offers to extend the disposal arrangements. At this time, West Torrens Council engaged an
independent consultant to provide advice about the competitiveness of the independent
contractor’s offers. This resulted in a revised offer and the first extension to the contract in
February 2015.

West Torrens Council has since extended the arrangements in February 2020 and March
2021 without undertaking a competitive procurement process.

Why a competitive procurement process is important

Waste management is a key local government service provided to communities and is a
substantial annual expense for councils. In 2020-21, West Torrens Council spent

$7.6 million*® {approximately 30% of its materials, contractors and other expenses) on waste
management activities. Collection and disposal costs of kerbside waste comprise a significant

5% (City of West Torrens audited financial report for the year ended 30 June 2021:
« note 3{b} shows materials, contracts and other expenses of $24.983 million
* note 12(a) shows waste management costs of $7.557 million.
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portion of these expenses. Therefore, it is important that West Torrens Council can
demonstrate it has acted appropriately and in the community’s best interest when engaging
providers of these services.

A competitive procurement process inviting potential suppliers to bid for the opportunity to
provide West Torrens Council with significant goods or services will help demonstrate this.
By encouraging competition, the community will have increased confidence that public
money is used efficiently and effectively, and that:

. value for money will be achieved

. suppliers will be treated fairly and ethically

. there will be probity and transparency of process

. officers will be held accountable for their decisions.

These principles are acknowledged in the LG Act and in West Torrens Council’s procurement
policy.

West Torrens Council’s response

Council has entered into agreements for kerbside waste services using
appropriate and risk assessed procurement practices.

Council have invested significant resources in its procurement program during
the Review period. Similarly to the waste team review, the procurement teom
was subjected to a three (3) year facilitative audit as the procurement
roodmap was enacted.

Procurement processes are robust with structured templates, conventions and
an increase in dedicated resources.

Council is comeitted to undertaking a competitive tender process in 2025 for
its kerbside waste collection.
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Appendix 1 — Abbreviations and terms used in this
report

The terms used in this report were sourced from legislation and information published by
the Environment Protection Authority and Green Industries SA.

Abbreviation or term Description
China's National Sword In 2018 China introduced its National Sword Policy. This policy
Policy included restrictions on imports of 24 categories of waste and

requiring contamination to be 0.5% or lower. Prior to the policy,
accepted contamination rates varied from 1,5% to 5%. Other
countries such as Malaysia, Thailand and Vietnam also declared
restrictions on importing waste following China’s policy
implementation.

it is estimated that China’s policy has predominantly impacted the
price of mixed paper and cardboard as well as mixed plastics. Due to
the high proportion of mixed paper and cardboard that materials
recovery facilities receive, the estimated increase in cost is
approximately $8.8 million across the State based on a one-year
period.*®

A $12.4 million support package for local government and the
recycling industry was released by the SA Government in response
to the National Sword Policy. The package included a range of
measures to enable industry investment in remanufacturing and
local re-use, as well as improved sorting and processing to enhance
the quality of recovered materials.*

Circular economy This refers to an economic model that contemplates the production
of goods and services:

« by areduced reliance on virgin materials

« on the basis of continuously functioning utility and an extended
lifecycle

« ina manner that eliminates, as far as is reasonably practicable,
waste or pollution, or harm to the environment.

At the broadest level, a circular economy aims to change the
patterns of natural resource use in the economy to achieve
sustainable growth by slowing, narrowing or closing material loops.

5  Rawtec Pty Ltd 2018, Market Analysis of South Australian Kerbside Comingled Recyclables Report for the
Local Government Association of SA, May, Adelalde,

51 Green Industries SA, China’s New Policy on Waste and Recycling, Government of South Australia, Adelaide,
<https://www.greenindustries.sa gov.au/chinas-new-policy-on-waste-and-recycling>.
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Abbreviation or term

Commercial and industrial
waste

Construction and
demolition waste

Food caddy

Food organics

Food Organics Garden
Organics (FOGO)

Garden organics

Hard waste

Kerbside collection

Landfill

Materials recovery facility

Metropolitan council
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Description

ANOO & A L

L

Comprises solid waste generated by the business sector as well as
solid waste created by state and federal government entities,
schools, and tertiary institutions.

Includes waste from residential, civil and commercial construction
and demolition activities, such as fill material {eg soil), asphalt, bricks
and timber. This waste excludes construction waste from owner/
occupier renovations, which is included in the municipal waste
stream.

A kitchen benchtop food container for the collection of household
food waste, usually with a compostable bag, to be placed in the
organic waste bin,

Organic waste derived from food preparation and/or surplus food.

A FOGO is a common name used for the green organics bin

Organics derived from garden sources such as grass clippings and
tree prunings.

Large materials that are not suitable for collection in the kerbside
three-bin system. Common items include furniture, appliances and
mattresses.

Collection of household waste, recyclable materials (separated or
co-mingled) and organic waste that are left at the kerbside for
collection by a local council collection service,

A waste disposal site used for the controlled deposit of solid waste
onto or into land.

A facility where mixed recyclable materials are received, stored and
sorted to specification, then baled, shredded, crushed, compacted
or otherwise prepared for shipment to market,

Comprises Adelaide, Adelaide Hills, Campbelitown, Burnside,
Norwood Payneham and St Peters, Prospect, Unley, Walkerville,
Gawler, Playford, Salisbury, Tea Tree Gully, Marion, Mitcham,
Onkaparinga, West Torrens, Charles Sturt, Holdfast Bay and Port
Adelaide Enfield councils



Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments 18 October 2022

Abbreviation or term Description

Muiti-unit dwelling (MUD} ~ Medium and high density housing. Sometimes includes commercial
tenancies such as cafés in addition to residential dwellings.

Municipal solid waste — Solid waste generated from domestic (household) premises and

kerbside bin collection council activities such as street sweeping, litter and street tree
lopping. May also includes waste dropped off at recyding centres,
transfer stations and construction waste from owner/occupier

renovations.
Recovery A process that extracts materials or energy from the waste stream.
Residual waste ' Waste determined by its owner to be unsuitable for recovery.
Resource recovery In relation to waste, means reusing or recycling or recovering energy
or other resources from the waste.
Waste disposal 3(3) Waste disposal
the conduct of —

{a) a lendfill depat, being a depot, facility or works for the
disposal of waste to lond; or

{b) a iquid woste depot, being a depot, facility or works for
the reception and disposal of liquid waste, or the
reception, treatment and disposal of hiquid waste; or

{c) an incineration depot, being a depot, facility or works
for the disposal, by incineration, pyrolysis or gasification
by high temperature chemical decomposition, or
thermal oxidation using fuel burning equipement, of solid
waste, a listed waste or quarantine waste,

but excluding a prescribed approved activity or an activity

in respect of which the Authority is satisfied, having regord

to the prescribed factors, that an environmental

authorisation is not justified

Waste reprocessing 3{2) Waste reprocessing
the conduct of —
{a] composting works, being a depot, facility or works with
the capacity to treat, during @ 12-month period—

(i) in the case of works located wholly or partly within a
water protection area—more than 200 tonnes of
organic waste or matter; or

(ii) in the case of works located wholly outside of a
water protection area—more than 1 000 tonnes of
organic waste or matter, for the production of
compost; or

(b) scrap metal treatment works, being a depot, facility or
works for the treatment of scrap metal (by processes
invalving electrically heated furnaces or other fuel
burning equipment or by mechanical processes); or

{c} tyre waste treatment works, being a depot, facility or
works with the capacity to treat more than 5 tonnes of
twre waste during a 12-month period; or
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Abbreviation or term Description

(d) woste lead acid bottery treatment works, being o depot,
facility or works with the capacity to treat more than
500 waste lead acid batteries during a 12-month period;
or

(e) any other waste reprocessing facility, being a depot,
works or facility other than a depot, facility or works
specified in a preceding paragraph) that, during a 12-
month period, receives or has the capacity to treat—

{t) more than 100 tonnes of solid waste or matter; or
{ii) more than 100 kilolitres of liquid waste or matter

Waste treatment The removal, reduction or immobilisation of hazardous
characteristics to enable the waste to be sent to its final fate or
further treatment.
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Appendix 2 — Waste management frameworks

Figure A2.1 shows that the three levels of government, waste industry groups, businesses,
community groups and Australian citizens all play a role in managing waste.

Figure A2.1 Roles and relationships in managing waste
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Source: Green Industries SA 2020, Supporting the Circular Economy: South Australia’s Waste Strategy 2020-2025, Government of South
Australia, Adelaide.
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Appendix 3 — Metropolitan councils’ organics food
waste systems

This table shows the organics food waste system for each metropolitan council, which was

provided to us by GISA.

Metropolitan coundil Organics bin Kitchen caddy
Adelaide City Area-wide Opt-in
Adelaide Hills Limited
Burnside Area-wide Area-wide
Campbelitown Area-wide Opt-in
Charles Sturt Area-wide Opt-in
Holdfast Bay Area-wide Area-wide
Marion Area-wide Opt-in
Mitcham Area-wide Limited trial
Norwood, Payneham Area-wide Area-wide
Onkaparinga Area-wide Opt-in
Playford Optin Opt-in
Port Adelaide Enfield Area-wide Area-wide
Prospect Area-wide Area-wide
Salisbury Optin Opt-in
Tea Tree Gully Area-wide Opt-in
Town of Gawler Optin Opt-in
Town of Walkerville Area-wide Opt-in
Unley Area-wide Opt-in
West Torrens Area-wide Opt-in
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Appendix 4 — NPSP Council flyer

Don’t waste
your rates.

$395,000 per year
in landfill fees
could be saved.

Clry of
Norwood
Pavacham
www.npsp.sa.gov.au & St Petors
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Commonwealth
Government

Role

Responsible for a national
framework for waste and
resource recovery which
recognises obligations
under international
agreements

Act
Recyciing and Waste
Reduction Act 2020 (Cth)

Policy

National Waste Policy
2018: Less Waste, More
Resources

Plan/Strategies
National Waste Action
Plan 2019

National Food Waste
Strategy
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State
Government

Role

Responsible for
regulation and
management of waste
and resource recovery

Act
Environment Protection
Act 1993

Green Industries SA Act
2004

Policy

Environment Protection
{Waste to Resources)
Palicy 2010

Plan/Strategies
State Waste Strategy

State Food Strategy
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Appendix 5 — Overview of roles, legislation and policy

Local
Government

Role

Responsible for providing
household waste and
recycling collection and
disposal services and
deliver waste education
and awareness programs

Act
Loca! Government Act
1999

Policy
Waste management
service policy

Plan/Strategies

A council determines its
strategies for waste
management and the
actions it will take. This
information is commonly
presented in a council’s
strategic management
planis)
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Appendix 6 — Response from the Chief Executive
Officer, The Corporation of the City of Norwood,
Payneham and St Peters

Pt Phawber. QATRYSS
Engeras 1o Les Man
Dewct Teiephone. 8300 4545

4 August 2022 City of
Norwood
Payneham
e Andrew Rchardson AT
Auditor General
Lavel @
CHIEF
State Acministraton Centre EXECUTIVE'S

200 Victoria Square
ADELAIDE SA 5000 orres

175 Tre Pacade,
Searoveind SA SORY

Doar Andrew

PO Box 20¢
Review of the Management of Korhside Waste Services Yawt T $A 8071
Thank you for providing a copy of the fingd report, Review of M Masegemen! of Tatwohone
Kerbsice Waste Sesvices (the Repaort), 1o the Councel FI6H 455
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Appendix 7— Response from the Mayor, City of West

Torrens
T
Fion, SA 5033 | !
TR ORRUIE I | Cory of Wt Yorrens
vl coionicx 18 Qo l Futnners e Eong el 58 Suw
SME: 0429 208 S8
Wb vemsttonman s gos oy
27 July 2022
Andrew Richardson
Auditor-General
Level 9 State Administration Centre
200 Victoria Square

ADELAIDE SA 5000
Dear Mr Richardson,

Review of the management of kerbside waste services

The City of West Torrens ('Council') supports transparency and accountability in all levels of
government thus the Auditor-General's review into the Council's kerbside waste management
services ('Review') was welcomed as a continuous improvement and assurance measure.
Further, Council recognises the importance of effective waste management for communities in
a range of different contexts inciuding public health, environment and climate change as well

as amenity

| am pleased tc advise that there are no additional comments regarding the draft report to
Parfiament regarding the management of kerbside waste services received by Council on 20
July 2022, The report represents a fair and accurate assessment of the City of West Torrens'
performance and capability. The recommendations will be considered and integrated where
required into future programs.

| take this opportunity to thank the Lecal Government Audit team from the Auditor-General's
Department for the collaborative approach to the audit process.
Yours sinceraly,

UL L Coen

Michael S Coxon
Mayor
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18.3 DRAFT 2021/2022 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — REPORT NO. AR22/60846

Committee:
Meeting Date:
Report No.:
CM9 Reference:
Author:
Authoriser:

Summary:

Strategic Plan
Reference:

Audit and Risk Committee

26 September 2022

AR22/60846

AF11/863

Julie Scoggins, Manager Financial Services

Darren Barber, General Manager Corporate and Regulatory Services

This report presents the draft 2021/2022 Financial Statements for
review by the Audit and Risk Committee.

Goal 1: Our People

Goal 2: Our Location

Goal 3: Our Diverse Economy

Goal 4: Our Climate, Natural Resources, Arts, Culture and Heritage
Goal 5: Our Commitment

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

1.  That Audit and Risk Committee Report No. AR22/60846 titled ‘Draft 2021/2022 Financial
Statements’ as presented on 26 September 2022 be noted.

2. Thatin accordance with Section 126 (4) (a) of the Local Government Act 1999, the draft
annual financial statements of Council for the financial year 2021/2022 have been
reviewed and ‘they present fairly the state of affairs of the council’.

3.  That having been reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee on 19 September 2022, the
Audit Completion Report and Management Representations Letter as attached to Report
No. AR22/60846 be noted.

Item 18.3ltem 5.1

Page 244



Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments 18 October 2022

TYPE OF REPORT

Legislative

BACKGROUND

1. Report Purpose - The purpose of the annual financial statements is to provide Council, the
community and other interested parties with a record of the financial activities and the
financial position of the Council, comparative to the proceeding financial period.

2.  Section 125 - Pursuant to Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999, a council must
ensure that appropriate policies, practices and procedures of internal control are
implemented and maintained in order to assist the council to carry out its activities in an
efficient and orderly manner to achieve its objectives, to ensure adherence to management
policies, to safeguard the council’s assets and to secure (as far as possible) the accuracy
and reliability of council records.

3.  Section 126 - Pursuant to Section 126 (4) of the Local Government Act 1999, the functions
of an audit committee include — a) reviewing annual financial statements to ensure that they
present fairly the state of the Council and c) reviewing the adequacy of the accounting,
internal control, reporting and other financial management systems and practices of the
council on a regular basis.

4.  Section 129 (3) - Pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Local Government Act 1999, the auditor
must provide to the council — a) an audit opinion with respect to the financial statements,
and b) an audit opinion as to whether the controls audited under sub section 1) b) are
sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the council have
been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

5. Section 16 - Pursuant to Section 16 of the Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011, on or before November 30 a copy of the audited financial statements for
the preceding year must be submitted to the presiding member of the South Australian Local
Government Grants Commission.

6. Audit and Risk Committee Terms of Reference - The following section of the Audit and
Risk Committee Terms of Reference is relevant to this report:

12.1 Financial Reporting:
The Committee shall:

12.1.1 Financial Statements - Monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the
Council, including in its annual report, reviewing significant financial reporting
issues and judgements which they contain.

12.5 External Audit:
The Committee shall:

12.5.4 Meeting - Meet as needed with the external auditor. The Committee shall meet the
external auditor at least once a year to discuss the external auditor’s report and
any issues arising from the audit.

12.5.6 Audit Findings - Review the findings of the audit with the auditor. This shall
include, but not be limited to, the following:

¢ A discussion of any major issues which arose during the external audit;
¢ Any accounting and audit judgements; and
o Levels of errors identified during the external audit.

12.5.7 Effectiveness - The Committee shall also review the overall effectiveness of the
external auditor.
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12.5.8 Representation Letter(s) - Review any representation letter(s) requested by the
auditor before they are signed by management.

12.5.9 Management Letter - Review the management letter and management’s
response to the external auditor’s findings and recommendations. Subsequent to
the initial review the Committee will oversee action to follow up on matters raised
by the external auditors.

7. Appointment of External Auditors - Samantha Creten, Dean Newbery and Partners were
appointed as Council’s Auditors for the period 2022 - 2026.

8. Interim Audit - Council’s external auditors (Dean Newbery and Partners) undertook an
interim site visit in relation to the external audit for the year ended 30 June 2022 in April
2022.

9. First Audit - The financial audit of the 2021/2022 financial statements is the first audit to be
undertaken by Dean Newbery and Partners as part of their engagement to undertake five
audits for Council.

10. Financial Year Balance Date External Audit Attendance - Dean Newbery and Partners
attended Council’s offices between 22-24 August 2022.

PROPOSAL

1. Model Financial Statements - The Model Financial Statements set out a recommended
format (covering the four principal financial statements and notes to be read in conjunction
with those statements) which complies with Australian accounting standards.

2. Form and Contents - The form and contents of the financial statements are prescribed by
the Local Government Act 1999 and Financial Regulations 2011, in conjunction with
associated Australian accounting standards.

3.  Section 13 - of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 requires
that the financial statements of a council, council subsidiary or regional subsidiary (other
than notes and other explanatory documentation) must be in accordance with the
requirements set out in the Model Financial Statements.

4, External Auditor Attendance - Samantha Creten of Dean Newbery and Partners will
attend the Audit and Risk Committee meeting.

5. External Auditor Documentation - Dean Newbery and Partners have provided their Audit
Completion Report (Attachment 2) which acts as their audit clearance and includes their
proposed audit opinions on the finance report and on the internal controls, as well as the
Auditor's Independence Declaration. Council’'s Auditors have also provided a Draft
Management Representations Letter (Attachment 3) that Council staff have completed to
be reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee prior to signing by the Chief Executive Officer.

6. Council’s financial statements will be published in the Council’'s Annual Report for the
2021/2022 financial year and will be provided to the:
e Minister for Local Government;
e South Australian Local Government Grants Commission; and
e Other key stakeholders.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Financial Statements must be prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999, the
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and relevant Australian accounting
standards.

STRATEGIC PLAN

The budget was developed in the context of the Strategic Plan.
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COUNCIL POLICY

Asset Accounting Policy

A900 Asset Management Policy
B300 Budget Framework

R105 Rating Policy

T150 Treasury Management Policy
ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS

N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

SOCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
N/A

VALUE FOR MONEY

N/A

RISK IMPLICATIONS

Prudent management of Council’s financial sustainability ensures that short and long term
financial risk is minimised.

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS
N/A
ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION STRATEGY

Once adopted, the audited financial statements will be available on Council’s website and
included in Council’s annual report.

IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY
N/A
CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

The financial statements are general purpose statements representing the financial performance
of the Council for the 2021/2022 financial year and the financial position as at 30 June 2022. The
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards
and Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

That having reviewed the report and attachments, it is recommended that:

o for the financial year 2021/2022 in accordance with Section 126 (4) (a) of the Local
Government Act 1999, the Audit and Risk Committee confirm the draft annual financial
statements of Council ‘present fairly the state of affairs of the council’;

e the Presiding Member of the Audit and Risk Committee and the Chief Executive Officer of the
City of Mount Gambier sign Council’s Certification of Auditor Independence Statement that
will accompany the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2022;
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o the Chief Executive Officer sign the Management Representation letter that will accompany
the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2022 (Attachment 3);

o the Audit and Risk Committee note the Certification of Financial Statements document is
included as page 2 to the draft financial statements (Attachment 1). The Certification of
Auditor Independence document is included as the page 48 to the draft financial statements;

¢ the Audit and Risk Committee note the Audit Completion Report (Attachment 2).

ATTACHMENTS

1.  Draft 2021/2022 Financial Statements
2.  Audit Completion Report - Financial Year Ended 30/06/2022
3. Draft Management Representations Letter - 2021/2022
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City of Mount Gambier

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Contents Page

Council Certificate 2

Principal Financial Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income 3

Statement of Financial Position 4

Statement of Changes in Equity 5

Statement of Cash Flows 6

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements 7

Independent Auditor's Report — Financial Statements n/a
Independent Auditor's Report - Internal Controls n/a
Certificates of Audit Independence

Council Certificate of Audit Independence 48
Audit Certificate of Audit Independence 49
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Certification of Financial Statements

We have been authorised by the Council to certify the financial statements in their final form.
In our opinion:

« the accompanying financial statements comply with the Local Government Act 1999, Local Government (Financial
Management) Requlations 2011 and Australian Accounting Standards,

« the financial statements present a true and fair view of the Council's financial position at 30 June 2022 and the results
of its operations and cash flows for the financial year,

+ intemal controls impiemented by the Council provide a reasonable assurance that the Council’s financial records are
complete, accurate and reliable and were effective throughout the financial year,

« the financial statements accurately reflect the Council's accounting and other records

Sarah Philpott Lynette Martin
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER MAYOR
Date Date

Page 2 of 49
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

$'000 Kotes 2022 2021
Income

Rates 23,822 22,769
Statutory Charges 25 633 621
User Charges X 5,515 4,880
Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 2g 6,615 4,505
Investment Income 2 14 25
Reimbursements 2¢ 65 60
Other income 498 635
Total Income 37,162 33,495
Expenses

Employee costs 3a 13,090 13,058
Matenals, Contracts and Other Expenses 13,234 14,018
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment % 8,479 7,940
Finance Costs 3y 358 226
Total Expenses 35,161 35,242
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 2,001 (1,747)
Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 1,760 1,230
Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments B (787) (730)
Amounts Received Specifically for Mew or Upgraded Assets 17,940 2677
Net Surplus / (Deficit) 20,914 1,430
Total Comprehensive Income 20,914 1,430

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Page 3 of 49
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2022

$'000 Hotes 2022 2021
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets Sa 250 1,893
Trade & Other Receivables 2974 4579
Inventories 5 64 47
Subtotal 3,288 6519
Total current assets 3,288 6,519
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Gan 301,171 263422
Total non-current assets 301,171 263,422
TOTAL ASSETS 304,459 269,941
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables 9,331 6,274
Borrowings 1,222 447
Provisions 2,784 2,902
Subtotal 13,337 9,623
Total Current Liabilities 13,337 9,623
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 22,311 13,502
Provisions 3507 4,064
Total Non-Current Liabilities 25,818 17,566
TOTAL LIABILITIES 39,155 27,189
Net Assets 265,304 242,752
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 83,080 66,406
Asset revaluation reserves 180,852 175,462
Other reserves 8t: 1,372 884
Total Equity 265,304 242,752
The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Page 4 of 49
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Asset

Accumulated revaluation Other Total
$ '000 Hotes surplus reserve reserves equity
2022
Balance as at 1 July 66,406 175,462 884 242752
Adjustments (Correction of Prior Penod Errors) (3,752) 5,390 - 1,638
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 20,914 - - 20,914
Total comprehensive income 20914 - - 20,914
Transfers between Reserves & (488) - 488 .
Balance at the end of period 83,080 180,852 1,372 265,304
2021
Balance as at 1 July 64 986 175,462 874 241322
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 1430 - - 1430
Total comprehensive income 1,430 - - 1,430
Transfers between Reserves @ (10) - 10 -
Balance at the end of period 66,406 175,462 884 242,752

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Page 5 of 49
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City of Mount Gambier

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022

$°000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts

Rates Receipts

Statutory Charges

User Charges

Grants, Subsidies and Contributions
Investment Receipts

Reimbursements

Other Receipts

Payments

Payments to Employees

Payments for Matenals, Contracts & Other Expenses
Finance Payments

Net cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts

Amounts Received Specifically for Mew/Upgraded Assets

Sale of Replaced Assets

Payments

Expenditure on Renewal/Replacement of Assets
Expenditure on New/Upgraded Assets

Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts

Proceeds from Loans

Payments

Repayments of Loans

Repayment of Lease Liabilties
Repayment of Bonds & Deposits

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held

plus: Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents held at end of period

Financial Statements 2022

10tes 2022

(13,157)
(13,852)

(136)

9,242

20,443
12

(5.623)
(35,134)

(20,202)

9,581

(202)
(62)
9,317

(1,643)
1,893

250

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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2021

(13,005)
(17,433)
(212)
6,982

556
393

(5,326)
(16,298)

(20,676)

11,550

(206)
(163)

11,181

(2,513)

4,406
1,893
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City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Financial Statements 2022

Contents of the Notes accompanying the General Purpose Financial Statements

Note

© O NO O AsE WN =

-
o

P
()

~—

10(b)
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

Details

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Income

Expenses

Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments

Curmrent Assets

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property
Liabilities

Reserves

Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows

Functions

Components of Functions

Financial Instruments

Capital Expenditure and Investment Property Commitments
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Item 18.3 - Attachment 1 Page 256

Page

8
14
17
18
19
20
24
25
27
29
30
3
35
36
39
40
42
43
44
45

Page 7 of 49

.



Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments 18 October 2022

Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The prinapal accounting policies adopted by Counal in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Basis of Preparation
1.1 Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards as they apply to
not-for-profit entities, other authontative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Interpretations and
relevant South Australian legisiation.

The financal report was authorised for issue by certificate under regulation 14 of the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011,

1.2 Historical Cost Convention

Except as stated below, these financal statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.

1.2 Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financal statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and requires management to exercise its judgement in applying Council's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are specfically referred to in the relevant sections of this Note

1.3 Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000)
1.4 Estimates and assumptions

The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the 2021/22 financial statements. The financial impacts are a direct result of either
Council's response to the pandemic or due to mandatory shutdowns as directed by the Australian Government and the advice
from the Australian Government Department of Health and SA Health

With the aim of rminimising any impact of Covid-19, Council worked to reduce discretionary expenditure in the short term to
assist in mitigating decreased revenue and increased costs. It i1s expected further financial impacts will flow into the 2022/23
financial year but these have been largely taken into account during the development of the budget process for 2022/23.
The budget assumptions for 2022/23 assume a continued easing of restrictions put in place by the government. Council has
determined that there is no material uncertainty that casts doubt on Council's ability to continue as a going concermn.

(2) The Local Government Reporting Entity

City of Mount Gambier is incorporated under the SA Local Government Act 1998 and has its principal place of business at
10 Watson Terrace, Mount Gambier. These consolidated financial statements indude the Council's direct operations and all
entities through which Counal controls resources to carry on its functions.

(3) Income Recognition

The Council recognises revenue under AASB 1058 income of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 1058) or AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (AASB 15) when appropnate.

In cases where there is an ‘enforceable’ contract with a customer with “sufficiently speafic’ performance obligations, the
transaction is accounted for under AASB 15 where income 1s recognised when (or as) the performance obligations are satisfied
(i.e. when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer). Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which
the Council expects to be entitied in a contract with a customer.

In other cases, AASB 1058 applies when a not-for-profit (NFP) entity enters into transactions where the consideration to acquire
an asset is significantly less than the fair value of the asset principally to enable the entity to further its objectives. The excess

continued on next page Page 8 of 49
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

of the asset recognised (at fair value) over any ‘related amounts’ is recognised as income immediately, except in the case
where a financial asset has been received to enable the council to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial asset that
IS to be controlled by the council. In this case, the council recognises the excess as a liability that is recognised over time in
profit and loss when (or as) the entity satisfies its obligations under the transfer.

In recent years, the payment of untied grants (financal assistance grants’ local roads/ supplementary grants) has varied from
the annual allocation as shown in the table below

Cash
g:c)g\veerg Nk?:atn;ar: Difference
2019/20 $3,384000| $3546000| -$162,000
2020/21 $3,410267| $3.381972 +$28,295
2021122 $5,134,125| $3,891585| + $1,242 540

Because these grants are untied, the Australian Accounting Standards require that payments be recognised upon receipt
Accordingly, the operating results of these penods have been distorted compared to those that would have been reported had
the grants been paid in the year to which they were allocated

The Operating Surplus Ratio disclosed in Note 13 has aiso been calculated after adjusting for the distortions resulting from
the differences between the actual grants received and the grants entitiements allocated

Construction Contracts

Construction works undertaken by Council for third parties are generally on an agency basis where the third party reimburses
Council for actual costs incurred, and usually do not extend beyond the reporting penod. Reimbursements not received are
recognised as receivables and reimbursements received in advance are recognised as "payments received in advance”

(4) Cash, Cash Equivalents and other Financial Instruments

Cash assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at Council's option with an insignificant risk of changes
in value with a matunty of three months or less from the date of acquisition

Receivables for rates and annual charges are secured over the subject land, and bear interest at rates determined in
accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 Other receivables are generally unsecured and do not bear interest

All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the receipt of which is
considered doubtful,

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value at the date of recognition. A detailed statement of the accounting policies
applied to financial instruments also form part of Note 11

(5) Inventories

Inventories held in respect of stores have been valued by using the weighted average cost on a continual basis, after
adjustment for loss of service potential. Inventories held in respect of business undertakings have been valued at the lower
of cost and net realisabie value.

continued on next page Page 9of 49
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(6) Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
6.1 Initial Recognition

All assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost is determined as
fair value at the date of acquisition.

All non-current assets purchased or constructed are capitalised as the expenditure 1s incurred and depreciated as soon as the
asset is held “ready for use”. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental
to the acquisition, including architects' fees and engineering design fees and all other costs incurred. The cost of non-current
assets constructed by the Council includes the cost of all matenals used in construction, direct labour on the project and an
appropriate proportion of vanable and fixed overhead.

6.2 Materiality
Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition exceeds matenality
thresholds established by Council for each type of asset. In determining (and in annually reviewing) such thresholds, regard is

had to the nature of the asset and its estimated service life. Examples of capttalisation thresholds applied during the year are
given in Note 6. No capitalisation threshold is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land or the Riddoch art Collection.

6.3 Subsequent Recognition

All material asset classes are revalued on a regular basis such that the carrying values are not materially different from fair
value. Significant uncertainties exst in the estimation of fair value of a number of asset classes including land, buildings and
associated structures and infrastructure. Further detail of these uncertainties, and of existing valuations, methods and valuers
are provided at Note 6.

6.4 Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

Other than land, footpath nature strips, the Les Hill Collection and the Riddoch art Collection, all infrastructure, property, plant
and equipment assets recognised are systematically depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis which, in the
opinion of Council, best reflects the consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets. Waste management assets
are depreciated on an asset capacity in use basis

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of classes of assets are revewed annually

Major depreciation periods for each class of asset are shown in Note 6. Deprecation periods for infrastructure assets have
been estimated based on the best information available to Council, but appropniate records covering the entire life cycle of
these assets are not available, and extreme care should be used in interpreting financial information based on these estimates.
6.5 Impairment

Assets whose future economic benefits are not dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and where the future economic
benefits would be replaced if Council were deprived thereof, are not subject to impairment testing.

Other assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount (whichis the higher of the present value of future cash infiows or value in use).

Where an asset that has been revalued is subsequently impaired, the impairment is first offset against such amount as stands
to the credit of that dass of assets in Asset Revaluation Reserve, any excess being recognised as an expense.

6.6 Correction of errors relating to a previous reporting period
Twao errors from prior years have been identified with corrections made as at 1 July 2021.

Caroline Landfill
Adjustment of $1,675,800 to reflect the actual usage and remaining capacity of the 3C landfill cell.

Asset Disposal
Adjustment of $5,390,079 to correct an asset disposal error.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(7) Payables
7.1 Goods & Services

Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the supply of goods and services and are recognised as liabilities when the
goods and services are received. Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month of invoice. No interest is payable on
these amounts.

7.2 Payments Received in Advance & Deposits

Amounts other than grants received from external parties in advance of service delivery, and security deposits held against
possible damage to Council assets, are recognised as liabilities until the service is delivered or damage reinstated, or the
amount is refunded as the case may be.

(8) Borrowings

Borrowings are carried at their principal amounts which represent the present value of future cash flows associated with
servicing the debt. Interest is accrued over the period to which it relates and 1s recorded as part of "Payables”. Interest free
loans are camied at their nominal amounts; interest revenues foregone by the lender effectively being a reduction of interest
expense in the period to which it relates

(9) Employee Benefits
9.1 Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences

Liabilities for employees’ entitiements to salanes, wages and compensated absences expected to be paid or settied within
12 months of reporting date are accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based oncosts) measured in accordance with
AASB 119

Liabilities for employee benefits not expected to be paid or settied within 12 months are measured as the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows (including payroll based oncosts) to be made in respect of services provided by employees up
to the reporting date. Present values are calculated using government guaranteed securities rates with similar maturity terms

Weighted avg. discount rate 3. 29% (2021, 0.36%)
Weighted avg. settiement period 1 year (2021, 1 year)

9.2 Superannuation

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Statewide Superannuation
Scheme. The Scheme has two types of membership, each of which is funded differently. Details of the accounting policies
applied and Council's involvement with the schemes are reported in Note 16

9.3 Capitalised and Distributed Costs

Historically, Capitalised and Distributed Costs have not been included in note 3.
This additional information is disclosed in Note 3 Employee costs (for 2021/2022 and restated for 2020/2021).
This change is a reallocation of capitalised and distrubeted costs and does not impact the overall employee costs.

(10) Provisions for Reinstatement, Restoration and Rehabilitation

Council operates the Caroline landfill site, incorporating cells which require capping upon complete fill. Capping and restoration
costs can include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure and the removal of residual materials and remediation and
rehabilitation of disturbed areas. Estimated close down and restoration costs are provided for in the accounting period when
the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs and are carried at the net present value of estimated future costs.

Although estimated future costs are based on a closure plan, such plans are based on current environmental requirements
which may change. Council’s policy to maximise recycling is extending the operational life of these facilities, and significant
uncertainty exists in the estimation of the future closure date

The Council recognises a liability (disclosed as a provision) on the Balance Sheet and in Note 7. of the financial statements

to recognise the estimated future obligation of undertaking the required works per the conditions of the EPA licence held. A
number of assumptions are factored into the calculation of the liability to the estimated cost, required activities to be undertaken
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

and the timing of when they will occur. Coundil is planning on undertaking an independent assessment and update of the key
assumptions and for the liability to be updated in the 2022/23 financial year.

(11) Leases

Leases the Council assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Council as a lessee

The Council recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and nght-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

1) Right-of -Use-Assets

The Counal recognises nght-of -use assets at the commencement date of the lease Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received and the estimate of costs to be incurred to restore
the leased asset,

Right of use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives
of the assets, as follows:

Office equipment 3to5years
Land Improvements 4 years

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 6.5 - Impairment of non-
financial assets above.

it) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Council recognises lease hiabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Council uses its incremental
borrowing rate or the interest rate implicit in the lease

(12) GST Implications
In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 "Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax"

Receivables and Creditors include GST receivable and payable

Exceptin relation to input taxed activities, revenues and operating expenditures exclude GST receivable and payable.
Non-current assets and capital expenditures include GST net of any recoupment

Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis

(13) New accounting standards and UIG interpretations

The Council applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021. New standards and amendments relevant to the Council are listed below. The Council has not early
adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Amendments to AASB 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions

In 2020, the AASB issued AASB 20204, Amendments fo AASs - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions. The amendments
provide relief to lessees from applying AASB 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a
direct consequence of the Cowvid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19
related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in
lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under IFRS
16, if the change were not a lease modification. The amendment was intended to apply until 30 June 2021, but as the impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic is continuing, in 2021 the AASB extended the period of application of the practical expedient to 30
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

June 2022. The amendment applies to annual reporting penods beginning on or after 1 April 2021. This amendment had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Standards issued by the AASB not yet effective

The AASB has issued Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations which are not effective at 30 June 2022, these
standards have not been adopted by Council and will be induded in the financial statements on their effective date. Where

the standard is expected to have a significant impact for Council then further information has been provided in this note

The following list identifies all the new and amended Australian Accounting Standards, and Interpretation, that were issued
but not yet effective at the time of compiling these illustrative statements that could be applicable to Councils.

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

+  AASB 2020-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Annual Improvements 2018-2020 and Other
Amendments

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
« AASB 2020-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current
and associated standards (amended by AASB 2020-6)
« AASB 2021-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure of Accounting Polcies and Definition of
Acccounting Estimates ( amended by AASB 2021-6)
Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

«  AASB 2014-10 Sale or Contnibution of Assets between and Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (amended by
AASB 2015-10, AASB 2017-5 and AASB 2021-7))

Page 13 of 49
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Note 2. Income

$'000 2022 2021
(a) Rates

General Rates

General Rates 19,944 21,773
Less: Mandatory Rebates (236) (236)
Less: Discretionary Rebates, Remissions & Write Offs (17) (27)
Total General Rates 19,691 21,510
Other Rates (Including Service Charges)

Landscape Levy 1,213 1,179
Waste Collection 2,790 -
Total Other Rates (Including Service Charges) 4003 1,179
Other Charges

Penalties for Late Payment 81 57
Legal & Other Costs Recovered 47 23
Total Other Charges 128 80
Total Rates 23,822 22,769
(b) Statutory Charges

Development At Fees 189 219
Town Planning Fees 147 160
Animal Registration Fees & Fines 195 148
Parking Fines / Expiation Fees 20 13
Other Licences, Fees & Fines 82 81
Total Statutory Charges 633 621

(c) User Charges

Cemetery/Crematona Fees 869 77
Hall & Equipment Hire 8 11
Sales - General 98 64
Sundry 199 150
Green Waste Collection 38 63
Landfill Charges 4012 3,537
Sales - Waste Transfer Station ) 291 284
Total User Charges » 5515 4,880

(d) Investment Income

Local Government Finance Authority 13 25
- Banks & Other - 1 -
Total Investment Income 14 25
continued on next page .. Page 14 of 49
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Note 2. Income (continued)
$ 000 2022 2021

(e) Reimbursements

Private Works 16 16
Other 49 44
Total Reimbursements 65 60

(f) Other income

Insurance & Other Recoupments - Infrastructure, IPP&E 155 158
Sundry 284 405
Donations 59 72
Total Other income 498 635

(g) Grants, Subsidies, Contributions

Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 17,940 2677
Total Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 17,940 2677
Untied - Financial Assistance Grant 5134 3410
Roads to Recovery 409 404
Library and Communications 172 163
Sundry 184 285
Local Roads and Community Infrastructure 716 243
Total Other Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 6,615 4,505
Total Grants, Subsidies, Contributions 24,555 7,182

The functions to which these grants relate are shown in Note 12

(i) Sources of grants

Commonwealth Government 10,162 2,155
State Government 13877 4770
Other 516 257
Total 24,555 7,182
continued on next page Page 15 of 49
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Note 2. Income (continued)
$'000 2022 2021
(h) Conditions over Grants & Contributions

Grants and contributions which were obtained on the condition that they be expended
for spedfied purposes or in a future period, but which are not yet expended in
accordance with those conditions, are as follows

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 427 —
Less:

Expended during the current period from revenues recognised in previous reporting

periods

Pine Hall / O'Leary Road (8) -
Tertiary Education (15) -
State Bicycle (19) -
Subtotal {42) -
Plus:

Amounts recognised as revenues in this reporting penod but not yet expended in
accordance with the conditions

Pine Hall / O'Leary Road - 378
Tertiary Education - 49
State Bicycle 31 .
Subtotal 31 427
Unexpended at the close of this reporting period 416 427

Net increase (decrease) in assets subject to conditions in the current reporting
period (11) 427

(i) Physical Resources Received Free of Charge

Land & Improvements 24 108
Roads 1,052 736
Other 10 -
Footpaths & Kerbing 674 386
Total Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 1,760 1,230
Page 16 of 49
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Note 3. Expenses
s '000 Hotes 2022 2021

(a) Employee costs

Salanes and Wages 11,095 10,382
Employee Leave Expense 863 1,508
Superannuation 16 1,268 1,205
Workers' Compensation Insurance 305 282
Other Employee Related Costs 49 58
Less: Capitalised and Distributed Costs (490) (377
Total Operating Employee Costs 13,090 13,058
Total Number of Employees (full time equivalent at end of reporting period) 135 129

(b) Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses

(i) Prescribed Expenses

Auditor's Remuneration

- Auditing the Financial Reports 25 13
Bad and Doubtful Debts (72) 73
Elected Members' Expenses 224 236
Election Expenses 9 10
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 186 332
(ii) Other Materials, Contracts and Expenses

Contractors 3,445 3,516
Energy 916 864
Maintenance 708 980
Legal Expenses 201 199
Levies Paid to Government - Regional Landscape levy 1.209 1173
Sundry 779 460
Contributions/Donations 464 508
Insurance 325 335
Levies Paid to Government - EPA, ESL & Dog Levies 2,065 2,040
Materials 1,035 1,116
Training 185 188
Water 121 149
Communication 263 289
Consultants 388 888
Licences and Subscriptions 944 981
Subtotal - Other Material, Contracts & Expenses 13,048 13,686
Total Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses 13,234 14,018
continued on next page .. Page 17 of 49
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Note 3. Expenses (continued)
$'000 2022 2021
(c) Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment

(i) Depreciation and Amortisation

Buildings & Other Structures 2,895 2,630
Infrastructure

Stormwater Drainage 117 115
Kerbing and Footpaths 1,206 1,157

Roads 1,932 1,861

Carparks 257 257
Right-of-Use Assets 188 165
Plant & Equipment 788 724

Waste Management 842 795
Office Equipment 15 114

Other Assets 139 122
Subtotal 8479 7.940
Total Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 8,479 7,940

(d) Finance Costs

Interest on Loans 126 135
Interest on Leases 10 18
Unwinding of Present Value Discounts 222 73
Total Finance Costs 358 226

Note 4. Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments

$ '000 2022 2021
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

(i) Assets Renewed or Directly Replaced

Proceeds from Disposal 112 393
Less: Carrying Amount of Assets Sold ] (899) (1,123)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal (787) (730)
Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal or Revaluation of Assets (787) (730)
Page 18 of 49
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Note 5. Current Assets

$'000

(a) Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets

Cash on Hand at Bank
Deposits at Call

Total Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets

(b) Trade & Other Receivables

Rates - General & Other
Accrued Revenues
Debtors - General

GST Recoupment
Prepayments

Subtotal

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Total Trade & Other Receivables

(c) Inventories

Stores & Matenals
Trading Stock
Total Inventories

Item 18.3 - Attachment 1

Page 268

Financial Statements 2022

2022

250

250

796
141

114
2976

@)
2,974

41
23

2021

95
1,798
1,893

803
2,500
1,007

398

27
4,735

(156)
4,579

35
12
47
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Note 6. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property (continued)

(b) Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property
Valuation of Assets

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various Accounting Standards for either recognition
and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a "level” in the
fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1. Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date

Level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liabilty that are not based on observable market data {(unobservable inputs})
Refer to Note 6a for the disclosure of the Fair Value Levels of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment Assets.
Information on Valuations

Fair value hierarchy level 2 valuations - Certain land, and the buildings and structures thereon, are shown above as being
based on fair value hierarchy level 2 valuation inputs. They are based on pnices for similar assets in an active market, with
directly or indirectly observable adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset.

Fair value hierarchy level 3 valuations of land - Valuations of Crown land, community land and land subject to other restrictions
on use or disposal, shown above as being based on fair value hierarchy level 3 valuation inputs, are based on prices for similar
assets inan active market, but include adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset
that are not directly or indirectly observable in that market, or the number and / or amount of observable adjustments of which
are so great that the valuation is more fairly described as being based on level 3 valuation inputs

Fair value hierarchy level 3 valuations of buildings, infrastructure and other assets - There is no known market for buildings,
infrastructure and other assets. These assets are valued at depreciated current replacement cost. This method involves:

« The determination of the cost to construdt the asset (or its modern engineering equivalent) using current prices for
matenials and labour, the quantities of each being estimated based on recent expenence of this or similar Councils, or
on industry construction guides where these are more appropnate

» The calculation of the depreciation that would have accumulated since onginal construction using current estimates of
residual value and useful life under the prime cost depreciation method adopted by Council.

This method has significant inherent uncertainties, relying on estimates of quantities of matenals and labour, residual values
and useful lives, and the possibility of changes in prices for materials and labour, and the potential for development of more
efficent construction techniques. Accordingly, formal sensitivity analysis does not provide useful information.

Other Information

At 1 July 2004 upon the transition to AIFRS, Council elected pursuant to AASB 1.D5 to retain a previously established deemed
cost under GAAP as its deemed cost. With subsequent addition at cost, this remains as the basis of recognition of non-material
asset classes.

Upon revaluation, the current new replacement cost and accumulated depreciation are re-stated such that the difference
represents the fair value of the asset determined in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement: accumulated
depreciation is taken to be the difference between current new replacement cost and fair value. In the case of land, current
replacement cost is taken to be the fair value.

Highest and best use
All of Council's non financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.

Highest and best use - For land which Council has an unfettered right to sell, the “highest and best use” recognises the
possibility of the demolition or substantial modification of some or all of the existing buildings and structures affixed to the land.
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Note 6. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property (continued)

Much of the land under Council’s care and control is Crown land or has been declared as community land under the provisions
of the Local Government Act 1999. Other types of restrictions also exist.

For land subject to these restnictions, the highest and best use is taken to be the "highest and best use” available to Council,
with a rebuttable presumption that the current use is the "highest and best use”. The reason for the current use of a large
proportion of Council’s assets being other than the “highest and best use” relates to Council’s principal role as the provider of
services to the community, rather than the use of those assets for the generation of revenue

For buildings and other structures on and in the land, including infrastructure, “highest and best use” is determined in
accordance with the land on and in which they are situated.

Transition to AASB 13 - Fair Value Measurement

The requirements of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement have been applied to all valuations undertaken since 1 July 2013 as
shown by the valuation dates by individual asset dasses below

Capitalisation Thresholds

Capitalisation thresholds used by Council for a representative range of assets are shown below. No capitalisation threshold
1s apphed to the acquisition of land or interests in land

$
Office Furniture & Equipment 1,000
Other Plant & Equipment 5,000
Buildings - new contruction/extensions 5,000
Park & Playground Fumiture & Equipment 1,000
Road construction & reconstruction 5,000
Paving & Footpaths, Kerb & Gutter 5,000
Stormwater Drainage 5,000
Waste Management 5,000

Estimated Useful Lives

Useful lives are estimated for each individual asset In estimating useful lives, regard is had to technical and commercial
obsolescence, as well as legal and other imitations on continued use. The range of useful lives for a representative range of
assets is shown below, although individual assets may have an estimated total useful life of greater or lesser amount:

Plant, Furniture & Equipment

Office Equipment 3to 10 years
Vehicles and Road-making Equipment 310 25 years
Other Plant & Equipment 4 to 20 years
Building & Other Structures

Buildings 15 to 100 years
Park Structures 20 to 30 years
Playground Equipment 20 to 30 years
Benches, Seats, etc 10 to 30 years
Waste Management

Landfill assets capacity in use
Infrastructure

Sealed Roads - Surface 1210 40 years
Sealed Roads - Structure 30 to 150 years
Unsealed Roads 40 to 75 years
Paving & Footpaths, Kerb & Gutter 10to 70 years
Stormwater Drainage 50 to 70 years
Other Assets
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Note 6. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property (continued)

Library Books 7 1o 10 years
Artworks indefinite
Right-of-Use Assets (refer to Note 15) 3to 5 years

Land & Land Improvements

Council being of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value sufficiently reliably to qualify for recognition, land under
roads has not been recognised in these reports. Land acquired for road purposes during the year is initially recognised at cost,
but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing off the expenditure.

Freehold land and land over which Counall has control, but does not have title, is recognised on the cost basis. No capitalisation
threshold is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land

Land was last revalued in 2020 based on Valuer General's valuations provided to Counal

Buildings & Other Structures
Buildings and other structures were revalued as at 30 June 2020 by Mitch Ekonomopoulos of AssetVal Pty Ltd. Revaluations
occur every four years. All additions are initially recorded at cost

Infrastructure

Infrastructure assets include stormwater drainage, footpath and kerbing, roads and carpark assets. Infrastructure assets were
valued by Council officers at depreciated current replacement cost durng the reporting period ended 30 June 2018, based
on actual costs incurred during the reporting penod ended 30 June 2018. All acquisitions made after the respective dates of
valuation are recorded at cost.

Waste Management - Landfill

Landfill remediation and cell development assets are amortised on a consumption basis over the individual landfill cell's
capacity to receive waste. At the time of construction of a cell, Counal indudes the present value of estimated costs to cap
and close the cell into the landfill cell. This estimate 1s offset by the recognition of a prowvision. This recognition of the capping
costs is amortised in line with the consumption of the landfill cell's capacity used in any one year

Plant, Furniture & Equipment
These assets are recognised on the cost basis

Riddoch Art Collection

The Riddoch art collection was revalued as at 30 June 2018 by Simon Storey Art and Cultural Collection valuers. These assets
are not depreciated.

All other Assets

These assets are recognised on the cost basis. Library books and other lending materials are capitalised in bulk, and written
out when fully depreciated.
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Note 7. Liabilities

2022 2022
$'000 Current Non Current
(a) Trade and Other Payables
Goods & Services 7645 -
Payments Received in Advance 396 -
- Grants & Contributions - Capital 401 -
- Other 37 -
Accrued Expenses - Employee Entittements 331 -
Accrued Expenses - Other 308 .
Deposits, Retentions & Bonds 86 -
Other 37 -
Total Trade and Other Payables 9,331 -
(b) Borrowings
Loans 1,100 22202
Lease Liabilites 122 109
Total Borrowings 1,222 22,311
All interest bearing liabilities are secured over
the future revenues of the Counail
(c) Provisions
Employee Entitlements (including oncosts) 2.784 179
Future Reinstatement / Restoration, etc - 3328
Total Provisions 2,784 3,507
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2021
Current

2,348
3N
378

49
291

2646

148
43

6,274

219
228

447

2,902

2,902

2021
Non Current

13,502

13,502

168
3,896
4,064
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 8. Reserves

as at 30/06/21 as at 30/06/22
Opening Increments Closing
$°000 Balance {Decrements) Transfers Impairments Balance
(a) Asset Revaluation Reserve
Land 42 801 - - - 42,801
Buildings & Other Structures 53.310 - - - 53,310
Infrastructure 70,636 - 5.390 - 76.026
Plant & Equipment 770 - - - 770
Minor Piant 34 - - - 34
Waste Management 2926 B - - 2,926
Other Assets 4 985 - - - 4,985
Total Asset Revaluation Reserve 175,462 - 5,390 - 180,852
Comparatives 175,462 - - - 175,462
continued on next page Page 25 of 49
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Note 8. Reserves (continued)

as at 30/06/21 _as at 30/06/22
Opening Tfrsto Tirs from Other Closing
$°'000 Balance Reserve Reserve Movements Balance
(b) Other Reserves
Mount Gambier Cemetery 7 - - - M
Mayor Christmas Appeal 69 23 - - 92
Chnistmas Parade {(3) 3 - - -
Junior Sports Assistance Fund 107 15 - - 122
Waste Management - 150 - - 150
Open Space - 297 - - 297
Total Other Reserves 884 488 - - 1,372
Comparatives 874 13 (3) - 884

Purposes of Reserves

Asset Revaluation Reserves
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements ansing from changes in fair value of non current
assets (less any subsequent impairment losses, where applicable).

Other Reserves
Other Reserves are used when reserves are maintained for the purpose of specific Council committees or for committed funds
of Counail

Mount Gambier Cemetery
The Mount Gambier Cemetery reserve represents funds that have been separated for any development works or projects that
may be required at the Carinya Gardens Cemetery and crematorium

Mayor Christmas Appeal
The Mayor Christmas Appeal represents bank funds and payables of the City of Mount Gambier related to the Mayor Christmas
Appeal and to be used for that purpose.

Christmas Parade

The Chnstmas Parade reserve represents bank funds and payables of the City of Mount Gambier related to the Christmas
Parade to be used for that purpose

Junior Sports Assistance Fund

The Junior Sports Assistance Fund reserve represents bank funds and payables of the City of Mount Gambier related to the
Junior Sporting Assistance Fund and to be used for that purpose

Waste Management
Residual monies (income less expenses) from activities relating to waste collection

Open Space
Monies held from creatrion of sub-divisons to be used for future open space projects.
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Note 9. Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows
$ 000 2022 2021
(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash Assets compnse highly liquid investments with short penods to
maturity subject to insignificant nsk of changes of value. Cash at the end of
the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled
to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Total Cash & Equivalent Assets 250 1,893
Balances per Statement of Cash Flows 250 1,893

(b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash from

Operating Activities

Net Surplus/(Deficit) 20914 1430

Non-Cash items in Income Statements

Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 8479 7,940

Premiums & Discounts Recognised & Unwound - 73

Non-Cash Asset Acquisitions (8,252) (3,906)

Grants for capital acquisitions treated as Investing Activity (20,443) (555)

Net (Gain) Loss on Disposals 787 730
1,485 5,712

Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets

Net (Increase)Decrease in Receivables 1.759 (2,208)

Change in Allowances for Under-Recovery of Receivables 154 61

Met (Increase)yDecrease in Inventories (17) 8

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables 6.536 3,296

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Unpaid Employee Benefits (107) 53

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Other Provisions (568) 60

Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 9,242 6,982

(c) Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities

Acquisition of assets by means of:

Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 2 1,760 1,230

Amounts recognised in Income Statement 1,760 1,230

Leases 203 21

Estimated Future Reinstatement etc. Costs 264 210

Total Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities 2,227 1,461

(d) Financing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following lines of credit

($ '000):

Bank Overdrafts 250 250

Corporate Credit Cards 30 30

LGFA Cash Advance Debenture Facility 30,000 20,000

continued on next page .. Page 27 of 49
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Note 9. Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the
bank without notice.
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Note 10(a). Functions
Income, Expenses and Assets have been directly attributed to the foliowing Functions / Activities.
Details of these Functionsw/Activities are provided in Note 10(b).
TOTAL ASSETS HELD
OPERATING GRANTS INCLUDED (CURRENT &
INCOME EXPENSES SURPLUS {DEFICIT) IN NCOME NON-CURRENT)
$ '000 2022 2021 2022 2021 202 2021 2022 202t 2022 2021
Functions/Activities
Other - - - - - - - - 1,364 398
Administration ; Support Services 27 561 25156 6827 6,380 2115 18776 5148 3410 9.9% 20,824
Community Support B9 808 1829 1918 931) {1,110) - 1 13,362 20534
Culture 68 8 3.7 4086 {3.403) {3.788) 203 185 2772 26,034
Economic Deveiopment 162 188 2.060 1871 (1.898) {1.683) 34 - 3,840 3.890
Environment 4621 4,355 8,982 8470 {4.361) i8,115) 50 201 8,980 11,075
Receaton 2207 1.397 4159 5160 (1952) {3.763) m Kl 113,266 74411
Reéguiatory Sernices 587 736 1.002 1,232 (815) 4%} - - 18 18
Teansport 444 728 3788 3817 {3344) (3,089) 409 677 106,067 105715
Engneenng / Indirect 38) (1 2,743 2347 {2829) R.518) - - 8163 8,965
Unclassified Activities . - - (39) - 39 - - 6626 77
Total Functions/Activities 37,162 33 495 35,161 35242 2,001 (1,747) 6615 4505 304450 269 941
R and &axp Net GRiN (1053) 0N BISHOSA! OF IVBLANION OF 3SSals, AMOUNS 10CHved SDACItCall 101 NEW OF URGraded SiSet and DAYSCE 1650urces Meceived Fee Of charge
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Note 10(b). Components of Functions

The activities relating to Council functions are as follows:

Administration / Support Services

Governance, elected members, organisational, support services, accounting/finance, payroll, human resources, information
technology, communication, rates administration, records, occupancy, customer service, other support services, revenues,
separate and specal rates.

Community Support

Public order and safety, cnme prevention, emergency services, other fire protection, other public order and safety, health
services, pest control — health, immunisation, preventive health services, other health services, community support, senior
citizens facilities, children and youth services, community assistance, other community support, community amenities, bus
shelters, cemeteries / crematona, public conveniences, car parking — non-fee-paying and other community amenities.

Culture
Library services, other library services, cultural services, cultural venues, heritage, museums and art galleries and other
cultural services.

Economic Development
Regional development, tourism, visitor information and other economic development

Environment

Animal/plant boards, waste management, domestic waste, green waste, recycling, transfer station, other waste
management, other environment, stormwater and drainage, street cleaning, street lighting, street-scaping, Natural Resource
Management levy, and other environment

Recreation
Parks and gardens, sports facdlities — indoor, sports faalities - outdoor, swimming centres — Outdoor, and other recreation.

Regulatory Services

Dog and cat control, building control, town planning, clean air/pollution control, litter control, health inspection, parking
control, and other requlatory services

Transport

Footpaths and kerbing, roads — sealed, roads ~ formed, roads - natural formed, roads - unformed, traffic management and
other transport

Engineering / Indirect
Depot management, indirect and general plant cost not included in other functions

Unclassified Activities
Finance charges and investment revenue, private works and sundry property maintenance
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Note 11. Financial Instruments

Recognised Financial Instruments
Bank, Deposits at Call, Short Term Deposits

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost; interest is recognised when eamed.

Terms & Conditions:
Deposits are returning fixed interest rates between 0 3% and 1.05% (2021: 0.3% and 1 95%).

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value due to the short term to matunty

Receivables - Rates & Associated Charges

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised using
the expected credit loss method

Terms & Conditions:
Secured over the subject land, arrears attract interest of 0.42% (2021: 0.43%). Council is not materially exposed to any
individual debtor, credit risk exposure i1s concentrated within the Council's boundanes in the State

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance)

Receivables - Fees & Other Charges

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised using
the expected credit loss method

Terms & Conditions:

Unsecured, and do not bear interest. Council 1s not matenally exposed to any indivdual debtor, credit risk exposure is
concentrated within the Council's boundanes.

Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).

Receivables - Other Levels of Government

Accounting Policy:

Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised using
the expected credit loss method.

Terms & Conditions:

Amounts due have been calculated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the respective programs following advice
of approvals, and do not bear interest. All amounts are due by Departments and Agencies of State and Federal Governments.
Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value.

Liabilities - Creditors and Accruals

Accounting Policy:

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Council.

continued on next page .. Page 31 of 49
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Note 11. Financial Instruments (continued)
Terms & Conditions:
Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

continued on next page Page 32 of 49
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Note 11. Financial Instruments (continued)

Liabilities - Interest Bearing Borrowings

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate.

Terms & Conditions:

Secured over future revenues, borrowings are repayable (descnbe basis); interest is charged at fixed (or vanable - describe)
rates between 1.3% and 5.97% (2021: 1.3% and 5.97%)

Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value

Liabilities - Leases

Accounting Policy:
Accounted for in accordance with AASB 16 as stated in Note 17

Total

Due Due > 1 year Due Contractual Carrying
$'000 <1 year & < S years > 5 years Cash Flows Values
Financial Assets and
Liabilities
2022
Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 250 - - 250 250
Receivables 2,860 - B 2860 2,860
Total Financial Assets 3,110 - - 3,110 3,110
Financial Liabilities
Non-Current Borrowings 6,350 8,139 12,630 27,119 22,202
Payables 8,498 - - 8,498 8,498
Current Borrowings 1,925 - - 1,925 1,100
Leases 122 109 - 23 231
Total Financial Liabilities 16,895 8,248 12,630 37,773 32,031
2021
Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,803 - - 1,893 1,893
Receivables , 4552 - 4552 4,552
Total Financial Assets 6,445 - - 6,445 6,445
Financial Liabilities
Non-Current Borrowings 11676 2,164 - 13,840 13,502
Payables 5476 - - 5476 5476
Current Borrowings 219 - - 219 219
Leases 228 - - 228 228
Total Financial Liabilities 17,599 2,164 - 19,763 19,425
continued on next page Page 33 of 49
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Note 11. Financial Instruments (continued)

The following interest rates were applicable to Counal's Borrowings at balance date:

I 2022 2021 -

Weighted Avg Carrying Weighted Avg Carrying

$'000 Interest Rate Value Interest Rate Value
Other Variable Rates 2.42% 6,350 1.79% 11,550
Fixed Interest Rates 5.19% 17,183 597% 2,399
23533 13949

Net Fair Value
All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments. There is no recognised market for the
financial assets of the Council

Risk Exposures

Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recogmised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The maximum credit
nsk on financial assets of the Council is the camrying amount, net of any impairment. All Council investments are made with
the SA Local Government Finance Authority and are guaranteed by the SA Government. Except as detailed in Notes 5 &6 in
relation to individual classes of receivables, exposure is concentrated within the Council's boundaries, and there is no material
exposure to any individual debtor

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. All of Council's
financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market, and hence neither market risk nor

currency risk apply

Liquidity Risk is the risk that Counal will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial liabilities. In accordance with
the model Treasury Mangement Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a range of matunty dates. Council also has
available a range of bank overdraft and standby borrowing facilities that it can access

Interest Rate Risk is the nsk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Council has a

balance of both fixed and vanable interest rate borrowings and investments. Cash flow fluctuations are managed holistically
in seeking to minimise interest costs over the longer term in a nsk averse manner
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Note 12. Capital Expenditure and Investment Property Commitments
$ '000 2022 2021
Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not recognised in
the financial statements as liabilities:

Buildings & Other Structures 6,579 41,206

Plant & Equipment 542 369

Other 341 -
7,462 41,575

These expenditures are payable:

Not later than one year 7462 41575
7,462 41,575
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Note 13. Financial Indicators

$'000

These Financial Indicators have been calculated in accordance
with Information paper 9 - Local Govermnment Financial
Indicators prepared as part of the LGA Financial Sustainability
Program for the Local Government Association of South
Australia.

1. Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating Surplus

Amounts
2022

2,001

Total Operating Income

This ratio expresses the operating surplus as a percentage of
total operating revenue

2. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net Financaal Liabilities

37,162

35,931

Total Operating Income

Net Financial Liabilities are defined as total liabilities less
financial assets (exduding equity accounted invesiments In
Council businesses). These are expressed as a percentage of
total operating revenue

Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating Surplus

37,162

759

Total Operating Income

Adjustments to Ratios

In recent years the Federal Government has made advance
payments prior to 30th June from future year allocations of
financial assistance grants, as explained in Note 1. These
Adjusted Ratios correct for the resulting distortion in key ratios
for each year and provide a more accurate basis for comparison

Adjusted Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net Finandial Liabilities

35,920

32,891

Total Operating Income

3. Asset Renewal Funding Ratio
Asset Renewals

35,920

5,623

Infrastructure & Asset Management Plan required expenditure

Asset renewals expenditure is defined as capital expenditure on
the renewal and replacement of existing assets relative to the
optimal level planned, and excludes new capital expenditure on
the acquisition of additional assets.

continued on next page .
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7,140

Indicator

2022

5.4%

97%

21%

92%

79%

Financial Statements 2022

Indicators

2021 2020
{5.2)% (1.7)%
62% 18%
{5.3)% (1.2)%
67% 17%

84% 105%
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Note 13. Financial Indicators (continued)
Financial Indicators - Graphs
1. Operating Surplus Ratio
o Commentary on 2021/22 resuit
. 54 Purpose of operating
surplus ratio
5 | |
# The operating surplus ratio in 2022 s significantly
2 0 higher than in previous years driven by the timing of
3 —- Financial Assistance Grants and additional Local
) 17 _ ‘ Roads and C y xture grant )
5 This indicator is to determine the and increased user charges (including Carofine
[ ge the op ] fandfill faciities). Overall operating expenditure was
% vanes from operaling expenditiure broadly in line with the prior year.
, 52 The target as per Councif's Treasury Management
15 2020 P 2022 Palicy is a ratio of qu;;!t;’ Of equal to 0.0% by
2. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
us Commentary on 2021/22 result
Purpose of net financial
100 i liabilities ratio
75
* 6
§ % Councils Net Financial Liabilities Ratio s greater
This Indicator shows the mnmvousyubr:“r::ctmamm level of
owed to d?‘aﬁ'.% ed b "
25 18 %319 | bue to timing of the Wulanda project and associated
Operatng tevenue bo«o‘g::tg:gn atio s lowet than e Wo:t‘:‘(xbw
o _- than 100% by 2026727,
2020 2021 2022
Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio
: Commentary on 2021/22 resuit
21 Purpose of adjusted
? L operating surplus ratio
.
12
g'? This indicator is to determine the | | The operating surplus ratia in 2022 is significantly
percentage the operating revenue higher than in previous years driven by additional
{adpsted for tming differences in Local Roads and Community Infrastructure grant
4 the Financial Assistance Grant) revenue, and increased user charges (including
vanes from operaling expenditure Caroline landfill facikties).
5.
2020 2021 2022
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Note 13. Financial Indicators (continued)

Adjusted Net Financial Liabilities Ratio

120

Purpose of adjusted net

Commentary on 2021/22 result

w 92 financial liabilities ratio
&0
" 6
§ 60
This indicator is to determine the
40 percentage the operating revenue | Councifs Net Financial Liabilities Ratio is greater
{adusted for tming dfferences n than previous years reflecting a higher level of
20 17 the Financial Assistance Granty borrowngs.
_- vanes from operating expenditute
o
2020 208 2022
3. Asset Renewal Funding Ratio
150
Commentary on 2021/22 result
Purpose of asset

125

100

o=

105
J I |

2020

20:1

2022

renewal funding ratio

This ndicator aims to cetermine if
assets are being renewed and
replaced in an optmal way

Counct developed and adopted revised Asset
Management Plans at the end of 2022 which proviie
gurdance of when and how much needs to be spent
to mantain Council's infrastaucture.

Distuptions and supply shartages including
equipment, matenals and labour have impacted on
the timing of the delivery of planned works, These

projects are expected o be completed in the 2022/23
financial year.
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Note 14. Uniform Presentation of Finances
$'000 2022 2021

The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital investment
activities of the Council prepared on a simplified Uniform Presentation Framework
basis.

All Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarnse annual budgets and long-term
financial plans on the same basis.

The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common ‘core’ of financial
information, which enables meaningful compansons of each Council's finances.

Income 37,162 33,495
less Expenses (35,161) {35,242)
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 2,001 (1,747)
Net Outlays on Existing Assets
Capital Expenditure on Renewal and Replacement of Existing Assets (5.623) (5.326)
add back Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 8479 7.940
add back Proceeds from Sale of Replaced Assets 112 393
2,968 3,007

Net Outlays on New and Upgraded Assets
Capital Expenditure on New and Upgraded Assets (including Investment Property &

Real Estate Developments) (35,134) (16,298)

add back Amounts Received Specifically for New and Upgraded Assets 20,443 555

(14,691) (15,743)

Net Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial Year (9,722) (14,483)
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Note 15. Leases

(i) Council as a lessee

Terms and conditions of leases

Council entered contracts as a lessee for vanous IT equipment, the Dimjalla skate park and RFID

Financial Statements 2022

Set out below are the carrying amounts (written down value} of nght of use assets recognised within Infrastructure Propery,

Plant & Equipment.

(a) Right of use assets

$'000 Office
2022

Opening balance 217
Addttions to right-of-use assets 204
Depreciation charge (177)
Balance at 30 June 244
2021

Opening balance 350
Additions to right-of-use assets 22
Depreciation charge (155)
Balance at 30 June 217

(b) Lease liabilities

Other

1"

(11)

21

(10)
11

Total

228
204
(188)
244

3N
22
(165)
228

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the

movements durnng the penod
$ ‘000

Balance at 1 July

Additions

Accretion of interest

Payments
Balance at 30 June

Classified as:
Current
Non Current

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities 1s included in Note 13.

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of $198,000.
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Depreciation expense of Right-of-Use Assels
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Total amount recognised in profit or loss

continued on next page .
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2022 2021
228 370
202 21
10 18
(209) (181)
231 228
122 228
109 -
188 165
10 18
198 183
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Note 15. Leases (continued)

(i) Council as a lessor

Council owns various buildings, plant and other facilities that are available for hire or lease (on a non-cancellable basis
wherever practicable) in accordance with the published revenue policy. Rentals received from such leases are disclosed as
rent and hire of non-investment property in Note 2
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Note 16. Superannuation

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to Statewide Super (formerly Local
Government Superannuation Scheme). There are two types of membership, each of which is funded differently. Permanent
and contract employees of the South Australian Local Government sector with Salarylink benefits prior to 24 November 2009
have the option to contribute to the Accumulation section and/or Salarylink. All other employees (induding casuals) have all
contributions allocated to the Accumulation section

Accumulation only Members

Accumulation only members receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer contributions
are based on a fixed percentage of ordinary time eamings in accordance with superannuation guarantee legisiation (10.00%
in 2021122, 9.50% in 2020/21) and enterprise bargaining agreement (1% in 2022 and 2021). No further liability accrues to the
Council as the superannuation benefits accruing to employees are represented by their share of the net assets of the Fund.

Salarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members

Salarylink is a defined benefit scheme where the benefit payable is based on a formula determined by the member’s contribution
rate, number of years and level of contribution and final average salary. Council makes employer contributions to Salarylink as
determined by the Fund's Trustee based on advice from the appointed Actuary. The rate is currently 6.3% (6.3% in 2020/21)
of "superannuation” salary.

In addition, Council makes a separate contribution of 3% of ordinary ime eamings for Salarylink members to their Accumulation
account. Employees also make member contributions to the Salarylink section of the Fund. As such, assets accumulate in the
Salarylink section of the Fund to meet the member's benefits, as defined in the Trust Deed, as they accrue.

The Salarylink section is a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Salarylink section's assets and liabilities are pooled and
are not allocated by each employer, and employees may transfer to another employer within the local government sector and
retain membership of the Fund, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers. As
provided by AASB 119 34(a), Council does not use defined benefit accounting for these contributions

The most recent actuarial investigation was conducted by the Fund's actuary, Louise Campbell, FIAA, of Willis Towers Watson
as at 30 June 2021. The Trustee has determined that the current funding arrangements are adequate for the expected
Salarylink liabilities. However, future financial and economic circumstances may require changes to Council's contribution
rates at some future time.

Contributions to Other Superannuation Schemes

Council also makes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the “choice of fund”
legislation. All such schemes are of the accumulation type, where the superannuation benefits accruing to the employee are
represented by their share of the net assets of the scheme, and no further liability attaches to the Council.
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Note 17. Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but knowledge is
considered relevant to the users of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the allocation of scarce
resources.

1. Land under roads

As reported in the Financial Statements, Counal is of the opinion that itis not possible to attribute a value sufficiently reliably for
these assets to qualify for recognition, and accordingly land under roads has not been recognised in the reports. Land acquired
for road purposes during the year is initially recognised at cost, but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing
off the expenditure,

At reporting date, Council controlled 230 9 km of road reserves of average width 20 metres,

2. Potential insurance losses

Council is a multi-purpose organisation providing a large range of building, parks infrastructure, playgrounds and other facilities
accessible to the public. At any time, it is likely that claims will have been made against Counal that remain unsettied

Council insures against all known insurable nsks using a range of insurance policies, each of which is subject to deductable
"insurance excesses”, the amount of which varies according to the class of insurance.

Council has recognised the potential losses arising from daims known at reporting date based on average historical net cost
(including insurance excess) of similar types of claims. Other potential claims not reported to Council may have existed at
reporting date,

3. Legal expenses

Council is the planning consent authonty for its area under the Development Act 1993 (as amended). Pursuant to that Act,
certain persons aggrieved by a planning deasion of the Counal may appeal. It i1s normal practice that parties bear their own
legal costs. At the date of these reports, Council has not received notice of any appeals against planning decisions made prior

to reporting date. All known costs have been recognised, but the amount of further costs cannot be known until the appeals
are determined

Page 43 of 49

Iltem 18.1 - Attachment 1 Page 292 ‘



Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments 18 October 2022

Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 18. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events that occur after the reporting date of 30 June 2022, up to and including the date when the financial statements are
"authorised for issue™ have been taken into account in preparing these statements

Council has adopted the date of receipt of the Auditors' Report as the appropnate "authonsed for issue” date relating to
these General Purpose Financial Statements

Council is aware of the following "non adjusting event” that merits disdosure;

- a deed of settlement and vanation was signed with Badge Constructions (SA) Pty Ltd on 5 September 2022 which
amended the timescales for delivery of the Wulanda project and the amount payable
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 19. Related Party Transactions

Key Management Personnel
Transactions with Key Management Personnel

The Key Management Personnel of the Council indude the Mayor, Councillors, CEO and certain prescribed officers under
section 112 of the Local Government Act 1999 In all, 16 persons were paid the following total compensation:

$°000 2022 2021

The compensation paid to Key Management Personnel comprises:

Salanes, allowances & other short term benefits 1,005 974
Post-Employment Benefits 82 72
Long-Term Benefits - 41
Total 1,087 1,087

One key management personnel and/or relatives of key management personnel are members in organisations that received
Council support in the year, e g. through sponsorship of community and sporting

Key management personnel and/or relatives of key management personnel own retail businesses from which various supplies
were purchased as required either for cash or on 30 day account. These purchases were made on normal commercial terms

on an arm's length basis. No indivdual purchases from these businesses exceeded $188.30 with the total cumulative spend
for 21/22 being $1,845 21
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Independent Auditor's Report - Financial Statements

Independent Auditor's Report - Financial Statements: ONLY PDF inserted here

Council needs to uplift custom PDF here - please uplift via "ONLY PDF" choice in the Home/TOC screen
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Independent Auditor's Report - Internal Controls

Independent Auditor's Report - Internal Controls: ONLY PDF inserted here

Council needs to uplift custom PDF here - please uplift via "ONLY PDF" choice in the Home/TOC screen
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Certification of Auditor Independence

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of City of Mount Gambier Council for the
year ended 30 June 2022 the Council’'s Auditor, Dean MNewbery and Partners has maintained its independence in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Govermment Act 1999 and the Local Govemment (Financial Management) Regulations
2011 made under that Act

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3) Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011.

Sarah Philpott Paul Duka
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PRESIDING MEMBER, AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
Date:
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement by Auditor

| confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of City of Mount Gambier for the year ended 30 June 2022, | have
maintained my independence in accordance with the requirements of APES 110 - Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants,
Section 290, published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that At

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Reguiation 22 (5) Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011.

Samatha Creten

Dean Newbery

Date:
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Audit Completion Report

City of Mount Gambier

Financial Year Ended 30 June 2022
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Executive Summary

15 September 2022

M Paul Duka

Prasuding Member -~ Audtt and Risk Commnutieo
City of Mount Gambrer

PO Box 56

Mourit Gambier SA 5290

Doar M Duka
This repost has been prapared for the Audit and Risk Commuties of the City of Mount Gambier (Council) m relation o the 30 June 2022 extemal audit

The purpose of this report s to provide members of the Audt and Risk Commitiee and those charged with governance a summary of the sgndicant matters that have ansen from our audit whech we balieve covers materal
matiars dealt within our work compieted

Wa are pleased 10 sdvise thal subect to finalisation of the outstanding matiers outhned within this repor, our audit opemons for financial year ended 30 June 2022 are expecied 10 be ssued as unmoddod audd reports
I would like 1o take this opportuniy to thank the Adminstrabon for the assistance provded throughout the year

Your sncerely
DEAN NEWBERY

Samantha Creten
Partner
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Item 18.3 - Attachment 2

Executive Summary

The audt procedures have been designed and camed out by the audit team in accordance with
Austrakan Auditing Standards and per the audit scope prescribed under the Local Government Act

1999 and appicable Regulations for the tnancial year ended 30 June 2022

In accordance with owr professional ethical requirements, we confirm that, for the financal year

ended 30 June 2022, & membe of our audt team have mantaned mdependence n

accordance with the requeements of APES 110 - Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
Part 4A pubished by the Accounting Professonal and Ethical Standards Board and in
accordance with Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Govermment (Finandial Management)

Requiatons 2011

Al reguestad aud! adiustments have been processed and disclosures have been made within the

fnancial report based on audd 1ashing compieted

provided by the Admines

i infor

Al reques o dunng the course of the audi

Subject 10 the Iimalsation of the matiers Ahned in s report. our audt opmon 1o the irmanoal

yeor ended 30 June 2022 will be signed without eference 10 any qualdicabos

Al requested audit adustiments have baen processed } disclosures within the financeal repon

spproprately modiied based on audd leshing compiated

Sutyect 1o he followng work bemng satisfactonly completed, we expect unmodihied audit cpinons

10 Do ssued fof the Snancial year

. ke A review of subsequent events since 30 June 2027

. Compiete a review of the deaft Financial Stslements and oblain centified financial statements
1S requred

. Recept of the skaned Management Regresentaton Letter

Fraud & Litigator

As part of our gudt we have dscussed with the Administration

« The safeguards in place m relaghon 10 the prevention and detechon of fraud

« The existence of any fraud

« The exstence of any itigaton and clasms

We have not become aware of any mattar which shouid be brought 1o the Councl or Audit and

Risk Commatten’s attention
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Summary of Misstatements

Below is a summary of adustments and the status of matiers identihied. Any misstatements, adher indivwdually or m aggregate, thatl are considered 1o be immatenal, have not been adusied. The Tollowing misstatements
have been Wentihad

Description Net Net Assets Equity
/ Surplus/(Deficit) DeiCn) Dr/(Cr)

Updals 1o landtill amortisation methodology for FFY22 to more acauraloly calculate (313,508 08) (313,598 08) 1675798 57 (3,675,799 57) Correcled
landhill arspace consumphbon and corecton 1o pror period asset balance (o revse
comect asset amortisation methodology

2 Adpust 1o comrectly apply employes provision on-costs 10 employes labiity entitiemaents (74,562 76) (74 562 76) . Uncotrectod
3 Adjust Yo conad! enor n non-applicabion of depreciation to capitatsed Foolpath assets {6,603.33) (6,603 33) (10,800 99) 19,800 90 Unconmected
4 Adpust o comect incorrect capitalisation of Tree purchase costs as assels (55,509 70) (55 500 70) Uncomeciad
5 Incomrect capitaisation of software costs (44,701 .50) (44 701.50) - - Uncomected
6 Correction 1o Asset Revaluation Reserve to comrect pnor penod asset disposal to - Cormected

Accumulated Surplus account fotaling 55 39 milkon

i il il ]
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Summary of Misstatements

Below is a description of the issues identified with messtatements reported on Page 4

_

1 Landfil Cell and Cappeng Asset Amortisation
Methodology

2 Provision for Employee Entitiements -
Annual Leave On.costs

3 Foolpath Deprecistion

4 Capitalsation of Tree Purchases

5 Work-n-Progress (WIP) - Magyg Softwere

6 Asset Ravaluation Reserve - Adustment

A review of the Landfil Cell construction and Capping rehabdgation was completed In prior years a straght-Iine deprecation mathod was applied (based on
an estimated useful Ife of the cel sirspace | rather than amortising the assets over the remaining avaiable arspace of the landfll cell. Basing the amortisation
on the consumption of airspace & consdered ko give & more accurate calaulabion of amortisation. A changs o the methodology in FY22 resulted in an
adjustment of the opening balances of the asset carmying value and Accumulated Surplus as at 1 July 2021 of $1,675,790 57 and an mcraase in recognised
FY22 amortisation of $313,508 08 A dsclosure has been included in Note 8 & 20 of the financial statements

A review of the Provision for Employee Entitlements idantiied that the formula used o calkculate Counal's obligations as at 30 June 2022 did not include on-
costs relating fo Workcover or Income Protection (for applicable employees per the Council’s Enterprse Bargaining Agreement) for employses. This
missiaternent was considerad immatenal and as a resull, no adjustments were made to the General Ledger

Audit testing of depreciation idontiied prior year capitalised Footpath assets which had nol been depreciated since FY 18 Given these assets ase longJife
natured assets, the resulting adiustment 1o correct pnor penod accumulated depreciation and 10 account for current year deprecation was deemed immatenal
and no adjustment was made This matier has been dentfiad as a matter 1o be adjusted in FY23

A review of the Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment ‘Other Assels’ identified that Council had captalised 'Street Treas' dunng FY22 Generally
expenditure on vegetation is not considerad 1o meet the definition of an asset under accounting standards and as a resull, are treated as an Operating
Expanse Given the immatenal nature of the matter, no adustment has been recorded in FY22

A review of the WIP General Ledger account dentified that Council had capitaised the 'Magiq' software impiemented durng FY22. A review of the
agreemant between Magiq & Coundil identified that the arrangement was Software-as-8-Service (SaaS) and does not meet the definition of an asset. This
misstatament was deemed immalanal and as a result, no adjustment was made

A review of the Equity Resaerves dunng the Intenm Audit Attendance identified a pnor panod emor in the accounting treatment related 1o the Asset
Revaluation Reserve “Infrastructure Other”. Discussons with the Admenistration wentified that this emmor occured through a pror penod asset dsposal
accounted for incormectly. An adustment aganst the opening balance of the Asset Revaluation Reserve (Cr) and the Accumulated Surplus (Dr) of $5 39M
was made as at 1 July 2021 1o correct the error

Item 18.3 - Attachment 2
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Key Audit Matters Considered

As a rasult of the work we have recently completed we have provded further detal betow of the key audit matters and the outcomes from our lesting completed

Key Audit Matter Description Audit Work Undertaken Outcomes of Testing Completed

Infrastructure, Property, Plant &
Equpment

Work in Progress (WIP)

Accounting for Landfil Cell
Construction, Cell Remediation and
Post Closure Oblgations

Asset Revaluntion Reserve

Reviewed Note 6 Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment movements recorded
against the Ganers! Ledgar and relevant asset regisiers

Reviewed WIP regster to identify any long1emm projeds recorded to ensure comect
angaing classification of costs as WIP

Tested transactions allocated 1o WIP 1o ensure appropnate allocation of expenses
incurred in ine with AASB 116

A raview of the adopled methodalogy for accounting treatment of the Landfill Assets
and Post.Closure Provision 1o ensure methodology applad for assat recognion and
amortisabon & consistent and appropriate

Rewviewed the Genersl Ledger and Equty Accounts to ensure appropriate accounting
traatment of the Asset Revaluation Reserves

Identified two misstatements {(further detail on page 4) which related 1o incorrect
capetaksation and calculation of depraciation expense. Matter noled in Summary
of Msstaternents section of the Report.

Identiiied one misstatement matior noted in the Summary of Msstatlements
soction of this Report. No other exceptions were nofed

Eror dentified in the calculabon of landfil arspace consumpiion which resulted
n an adjustment (o prior penod opaning balances

A review nlo the methodology applied for landfill cefl and cell remediation
amonsaton was undertakon whsch resulted in an adusiment Lo the FY22
amortisaton expense

Identified a negative Asset Revalustion Reserve totaling $5 30M relating to
“Infrastructure Other” which the Administration adwse weas as a rasull of
ncomect processing of disposals in pror penods (pre-FY21)

An agustmant within Equity on the Balance Sheet betwaen the Asset
Revaluation Reserve and Accumulated Surplus was made as at 1 July 2021 o
correct the prior panod error The adustment had no impact on the financial
parformance and/or posiion

Item 18.3 - Attachment 2
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Key Audit Matters Considered (continued)

As a rasult of the work we have recently completed we have provded further detal betow of the key audit matters and the outcomes from our lesting completed

Key Audit Matter Description Audit Work Undertaken Outcomes of Testing Completed

AASB 16 - Application of Leases »  Reviewed the assumptions and estimates contained in the cakculation and treatment of  No exceptions were noted
Standard the Right-of-Use-Asset and the Lease Liabitty 1o test for compliance with AASB 18
Grants Revenue Received *  Reviewed Grant Agreements and identiied specic parformance obigation to assess No axceplions were noted

whather thare were any unrecorded labilibes and the recogndion of revenue was
approprate per accounting standards

*  Roevwowed accounting treatment of funding received (e g Capdal vs Operating) fo
ansure appropriate classficabon and disclosure per the Model Financial Statements
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Matters to be Addressed In Future Financial Years

As a result of audit work completed, the following aude matiers have been identified dunng the course of our audd which we have summarnsed below

“ S

Carcline Landfill - Post-Closure Provsion Dscussions haid with the Admmnistration dentified that the current Post-Closure Provision (lability) recognised on the Balance Sheet as ot 30 June 2022 requires 1o be
Review reviewsd and updated given that it has not been reviewed for a number of years Key assumptions and estimates require to be reconsdered and reflected in the labikty
which is expecind to be undenaken in FY23 with the assistance of ndopendent exdarnal axperts who arm 1o be engaged by Counci to perform the roview.

We recommend that the review of the Post.Closure Provision ansures thal consideration of al least the following key astimates (not imited 10) are factored withun the
rEvIew

* Nurnber of approved Calls for the site

* Revew of the cel construction and srspace iling sequency for the axpecied Ife of the sile

«  EPA requirements for Post-Closure monitoring (@ g number of years required to mondor after all Cells have been closed)

*  Future expenditure (OPEX & CAPEX) required 1o mest EPA requirements, taking into account appropnate variables such as the Inflaton mie

+  Net Present Value calkculations applied 1o future sapendiure and the Govemmen! Bond rates used

Infrastructure - Assot Revaluation The last revaiuation of Council s Infrastructure asset network was undertaken as at 30 June 2018 Given that at the end of F Y22 thesa valuations arne now 4 years old,
conslarabon and planning as 1o the next valuation and condition assessment of the asset network should now be consdered and appropriately planned for budgetng
purposes and resource atocation. We note that Council s Administration are aware of the requiremeants 1o have this asset class revalued and condiions assessed

The tming of the valuation will need 1o be appled as at 30 June 2023 (or earler) to remamn within the genarally accepted maamurn timeframe of 3-5 years between
valuation exsrases

Counct's Inkrastructure Asset Managament Plans and Long Term Financial Plan should be updated 1o nclude the iatest data recened as a resull of the valuation and
condtion assessment undernaken
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Draft Audit Report

Council's Responsibiiity for the Financial Report
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

) with Austrakan

The Councl is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentaton o financial report i acCoNMan

Tothe members of City of Mount Gambier
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

ACcouniing Standards (nciuding the Austatan Accourtng indermpretabions) the Local Governenent Act 1999 and the

Local Govemment (Financial Management) Reguiations 2

1 and for such miemad contral a8 Councll detemmines IS

be free hom matenal masatement whether due © fraud or

Pecessary 10 enabie the preparasan of the nanciy reporn b

Opinion

ey

We haw audied the accompanying snancial report of the Chy of Moun! Gambier (the Council) which comprises the statement

n prepanng the Anancis report. Council i responsitie for assessing the Councll's abiiity 10 continue as & gang concenm

of Pnancial position as & 30 June 2022 stdemen of comprehensive Income, statement of changes in eguity, the statement of

Asdosing, as appicabie, matters relatng 10 going concam and using e going concern Dasis of actourting uniess

gements, InCiudng 3 summary Of Sign

casnh Nows the year then ended, and notes 10 the financial cart accounting

Councd either mienas 10 SQudate the Councll of 1o Caase operations, or has no reassic aflemative but to do so. Those

pobicies and other axplanatory niormaton, and the Certification of the Firancial Statements

crarged with govemance am fesponsdie for over png the Council's financi@al reporting process

in Owr opireon, the MNancs report presents ety in all makiril aspects, the inancil posiion of the Councit as & 30 June
Auditor's Respansibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report
and Its Sirancial performance and 25 cash Nows for the year then ended in accordance with the Local Government Act

ouning Sandaracs

9 and the Local Govermenent (Financial Management) Regutaton 2011 and te Austraian #
Our objechives are 10 obian reasonabie asswrance aboul wnether the inancial repoft as 3 whole 1S free from malenal

messlalement wiw OF enor, and W SSUe 3N JVUOROCS fepdrt that InCludes O comion. Reasonabie

Basis for Opinion

% Not 2 Quaranies Nat he Judl congucted iIn acconance with the Australan

#Ssurgnce 1S a high leyes of assurance

! a mate

Audting Ssandargs wil always detd 3l misstaemeant when I exists Msaatements Can arse mom Maud ofF ol

We conducied our audit in accordance with Ausrakan Audibng Standands . Our responsiiinies unde those standards e

ang are consicered matenal £, ndivicually of 0 the aggregate, ey oo sonably be epected 10 Influence the

further gescribed as in ihe Aucitor's Responsibibes for the Auo of the Firanciad Repor section of our repolt. We ae

D

SCON0IMC deciSons of users Laken on the Dasis of fmancis rep
ndependent of the Councs n accordance with the audiof Ingependence requirements of the ethical regurements of the
A

ting Professional and Ethicll Stncaras Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Acc ountants dnckuding

Ot in Australias We have aho futiled o

Indepencence Standeds) (the Code) INat are relevant 10 o auae of the fnancia re

ofher ethical responsibiites n accordance with the Code. ¥

beheve that the audait avwdence we have 0

e 10 provide a Dasts & o opirnon

and apprep
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Draft Audit Report

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our chjectives are ta obtl.

reasonabie assurance about whethey

he nancid epot as a whole

misstalement wheher due ¢

fraud of eror

15 & high lewd of assurance, but s not & guaraniee that Ihe audit conducied in accardance

Standar

will always derct a malerial mastement when 8 exisis Mastatementy

consderad material if, indh

i

iy Of In the aggregale. they COUD reasonably be axpecied 10 influen

of users taken on the basis of financial repont

As part of an auadit in accordance with the Austrasan Auditing Standasas, 'we

professional scephcism Hvougnout the audiit We aiso

. entdy and assess the rsks of matenal messiatoment of the financial report

perform aud! procedires res SiIve 10 Those risks bian auad

and

evidence that 1 sulicent and

A baus 1of our opinson, The nek of not delecing a material misstatement resuling om 3

resuiting RO

error, as aud may mvolve

ORUSON

IOy, menhor@l omissx

M fepre

nfermal control

«  Oblain an understandir

indenl CO

YOl redevant 1o the Sudn i Groer 10 desion

SNt procedunes
the circumstances, but not for Ihe purpose of Bxpressing an apinion on the effectiveness of the (

priateness of & WNting poBces wsed and the reasonatient 1 A

S fee

wih the Ag

the economi

whethet due o fraud or enor

15N

ertations, o the ©

Al Sre JPPeOp

DUNCH 'S Fiema

hing es

from matens

and 10 1Bssue an auditor s report that InCludes our opineon  Reasonable asswrance

stralian Audiing

an arse from fraud or enor and are

QeCrsic

Tessiond wagemen! and marmtain

desgn and

e 10 viae

gher than for one

werrice of

O

. Conclde on the appropriaieness of Ihe maragement s se of the goang concern bass of & uniing and_ based on M
JUOR evidence obtamed whether & my NCERATIty 15 refied 10 events of Lof M iy Cast iGN
GOoud? or d IS ity 1o MNue 25 3 gong concem. If av OC e sl & matenal uncenanty exists. we e
reqursed 10 deaw atent ) OUr &S repon 10 the related dsciosires in ihe financlal report of, o such
are ¥y mOEEy out opink ¥ CONCSIONS ate based e it ev £ Obi jEne D 10 the date of
e T, ¥1 Moweve fAure event ¥ Ihor Ay Bise o OUNcH o crase e 2% & Qoir L
Evaluate verpl presentation . struciure a en of he Inancid epart inciuadng the as« jre NG Whether
the financ (al repor represents the u ransacty x] Evenis N & mannes that achieves 1ar presentatvn

We communcale with 1hose chamged wh govermance regading, among other matiers, the planned scope and tming

ihe AUal and saniicant audit Bndngs. Inchding any SIgnficant delciencies 10 irternal contml hat we identty duris y

auot

DEAN NEWBERY

Samantha Creten

Partner

say of X

3 218 Mesbhoume Street. North Ageiag
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Draft Assurance Report on Internal Controls

INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT ON THE INTERNAL CONTROLS OF THE CITY OF MOUNT GAMBIER Our Independence and Quality Control

Opinion We have comphed with the independence and other relevant enical requiremernts relasr wrance engagements
In ow cpinn, the Counct as complied. In af matenal respects. with Sechon of the Local Govemment Act 1989 In and applying Audting Standard ASQC 1 Quaity Control for Fvms that Perform Audits and Review of Financlal Reports
reladon 10 he Internal Controls estabiished by the Councd refating 1o Ihe recept, expenditure and invesiment of money. and Other Fimanciad infornation, and Oeher Assurance Engagements in undertaking the assumance engagement

provide reasonatie assurance Mmal the financal

un

ACQUISHION and disposal of propedy and n J O kabames SO as 0

121 to 30 une Assurance Practitioner's Responsibilities

fransactions of he Councll have besn concucted peoperiy and in accordance with law for the peniod 1

Out responsibiity 5 10 express an oprion on the Council's compliance with Sechion 125 of the Local Govemmert Act

1995 in rdation ondy 10 the internal Contrals estadlished Dy the Counct 10 ansure INal inancial tansact

ons felatng 10

Basis for Opinion

of property and incuning of lateses, based

pCeipl expendiiure and invesiment of money, acquesition and dispo

oraance with Law

ducied ety anad in i

et {the Councll j under the requirements of Section 125 of the on our procedures have been ¢

We have audited the internal Controls of the City of Mourt Ganr

Local Government Act 1998 m relalion only 0 e Internad Cortrols estatisned by the Councd 1o ensure that tinancal

rransactions reating o the recept. expenature and investiment of money, acquisition and disposa of property ana Incurnng of ASAE D150 requres hat we plan and perfomed our procedures © oblain reasonable mssurance about whether, n &1

Rathibes for e penod 1 July 2021 10 30 June 2022 have been conduciod property and in acoordance with Knw matenal respects. the Conrols ae Suftably designed 10 achieve he corniol obecives and the controls operabng

eflectively through the persod. ASAE 3000 also requres us 1o compty wih the mievant ethics seguements for the

fasan professional accounteig bogdies

Assurance Aust

We conduc engagement N accordance with Stancard on Assurance Engagements ASAE

Engagements Other (han AuRs or Reviews of Historkcal Financial Infornation and ASAE 3150 Assurance Engagements on

oS n

xiards Board An assyrance engagement 10 report on the designed and opemiing effecliveness of ives perfonming

M0is tssued by the Audting and Assurance S

procedures 10 oblain evidence about the sutabiey of the design of the controds 10 achieve he control objectives and the
We Deheve that the evidence we have ottained IS Sulicient and agpropriate (o provide a basss 1or our opInon cperating efectivencss of the controls throughout the perod. The procedures selected depend on our juegement
INCInG he assessment of Me fsks that e contiols are NOl SUtibly designed o the contrals dd not opesate

The Council's Responsibility for the Internal Controls eflectively. Our procedures inciuded testing the operating effectiveness to the contiols that we consiier necessary 1o

S, N ACOrGENCe with hieve the contro ves Weniified An ASsurance engagement of this type @50 eiciuges evaiuaing ihe sudtabdity of

m of intermal con

The Councd s responsitie for implementing ang mainlainng an aceq sy

Secion of the | Government Act 1999 to enswre that the recepl expenditure and investnent of money. the fre control otgectves

Acquisition and disposal of property. and InCurming of katilites have =N conduciad propeay and in accordance with law
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Draft Assurance Report on Internal Controls
Limitation on Use

Ths report Nas been prepared 1or the members of the Councd In accordgance with Sechon 1207 1)) of tne Loc Government

Act 1090 in elation o the Interral Controts specfied above  We ductaim ary assumpton of responsibaty for any relance on

this report 10 any persons of users other than the members of the Councl of 1or any putpose oiher than that for which

prepared

Limitations of Controls

Because of the inheren! Initamions of any Heemal control struchure # is posstie that. even If the controls are sultably desioned

and operating effectively, e contral objectives may not e achieved so that Taud &rror, o noncompiiance with laas and

reguiations may occur and not be de

An EBSwrance engages

on operang effectiveness of controls is not designed 10 detect Al instances of controls operating
inetiechively 85 1t 5 not performed contiruously Ivoughout the penod and the lests perfomed are on a sampie basis. Any

projection of the outcome of the evauation of controls 1o fulure penods 5 subsect 1o the sk that the coninls may become

iradeguaie because Of Changes It condtons, or al e degree Of Compaance with them may detenotate

DEAN NEWBERY

Samantha Creten

Partnes
e on The w of
At 214 Medourne Strest. Nomh Adeioe
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Disclaimer:

This document is for the axclusive use of the personvorganisation named on the front of thes document. This document must not be rebed upon by any
person/organisation who 1s not the Recipent. Dean Newbery does not take responsibility for any loss, damage or mjury caused by use, misuse o

misinterpretation of the nformaton n this document by any parson who 5 not the Recipeent

The contants of this document are confident:al and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the parmission

Dean Newbery

ABN 30 164 812 890

Liabdity imied by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legesiation
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City of
Mount Gambier

Reference: AF21/125 g
Enquiries to:  Mrs J Scoggins city@mountgambier.sa.gov.au

mountgambier.sa.gQov.au

20 September 2022

Samantha Creten

Partner

Dean Newbery

PO Box 755

NORTH ADELAIDE SA 5006

Dear Samantha,

RE: MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS: EXTERNAL AUDIT, FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30
JUNE 2022

This Management Representation letter is provided in connection with your audit examination of the
General Purpose Financial Report (2022 Financial Report) of City of Mount Gambier Council (‘the
Council’) for the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

We hereby confirm, at your formal request, that to the best of our knowledge and belief, the
following representations relating to the 2022 Financial Report are correct,

In making these representations, we understand that they are provided to you in connection with
your external audit of the Council for the year ended 30 June 2022 as prescribed by the Local
Government Act 1999, for the express purpose of your expressing an opinion as to whether the
2022 Financial Report is, in all material respects, presented fairly in accordance with all applicable
standards and requirements, including statutory. In making these representations, we have read
and understood the standard unqualified Audit Opinion that would be normally expressed to the
Council by you as is required under Section 129(3) of the Local Government Act 1999 for the
financial year ended 30 June 2022. We therefore understand, without exception, the potential
ramifications of making any representations to you that are not correct, to the best of our knowledge
and belief as of the date of this letter.

We understand and acknowledge that it is the Council management’s responsibility for the fair
presentation of the 2022 Financial Report and that management, as appropriate, have approved the
Financial Report. Accordingly, management of the Council are of the opinion that the 2022 Financial
Report is free of material misstatements, including omissions.

1. Compliance with all Applicable Standards, including Statutory

The Financial Report of the Council has been prepared so as to present a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Council as at 30 June 2022 and of the results of operations of the Council for
the financial year ended on that date, including for all post balance date matters, as applicable.

The accounting and financial management policies, practices and records of the Council were at all
times maintained in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1999, Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and that the Financial Report was prepared
in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999, Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011, Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board together with all other mandatory professional reporting
requirements in Australia.
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

(1) Cash on hand at balance date was represented by cash floats reconciled and on hand as at
30 June 2022.

(2) Cash at bank at balance date represented the reconciled operating account(s) of the
Council.

(3) Short term deposits represented amounts held with the LGFA by the Council.
Rates and Other Receivables

(1) Current rate receivables at balance date represented all outstanding amounts owed by rate
payers.

(2) Current other receivables at balance date represented all outstanding amounts owed by
debtors other than rate payers.

(3) Debts due at balance date that are known to be uncollectible have since been written-off and
adequate provision has been made for impairment to cover allowances, discounts and
losses that may be sustained by Council in the collection of the debts.

Inventories.

(1) All inventories were the property of the Council and have either been paid for or the liability
has been brought to account.

(2) All inventories have been physically counted and valued in accordance with the applicable
Australian Accounting Standard.

Other Current Assets

(1) Prepayments at balance date represented payments for goods and services to be received
in the 30 June 2022 financial year.

(2) There are no non-current assets held for sale.

Financial Assets — Loans to Community Groups

(1) There are no grounds to provide for any impairment loss for loans to community groups or
other organisations, none are held.

Investments Accounted using the Equity Method

(1)  Council has complied with all applicable Australian Accounting Standards with regard to
Council’s equity in subsidiaries, regional subsidiaries and other interests, as applicable.

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment and Depreciation

(1 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment at the 2022 balance date was represented by
the following fair values, cost, accumulated depreciation and carrying amounts for each
class of asset, in accordance with all prescribed requirements and standards, as follows:
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As at 30/6722
Fair

Value Accumulated Carrying
$000 Level At Fair Value At Cost Depreciation Amount
Waste Management 3 1,683 8548 (8,086} 2,145
Capital Works in Progress 0 57,789 0 57,789
Land 2 15,601 0 0 15,601
Land 3 37683 133 0 37816
Office Equipment 0 2,288 {1,609) 679
Riddoch Collection 3 3515 10 0 3,525
Buidings & Other Structures 2 3987 33 {2,131} 1,889
Buidings & Other Structures 3 102,030 1,343 {50,605) 52,768
Stormwater Drainage 3 8,022 127 (2471) 5,678
Kerbing and Footpaths 3 74038 3533 (20,981) 56,590
Roads 3 66,929 6,099 {22,029) 50,999
Carparks 3 10,451 127 3,122) 7.456
Right-of-use Assets 4] 593 (349) 244
Plant & Equipment 0 9,385 (3,304) 6,081
Other Assets 0 4408 2497 1.911

Total Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment . (117,184) Jo1a71

49,881 {113,185) 263422

(2) The additions during the 2022 financial year to Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
general ledger control accounts and asset registers represents the cost of additions and or
improvements to existing facilities or replacements thereof. All units of property which have
been replaced, sold, dismantled or otherwise disposed of, or which are permanently
unusable, have been removed from general ledger and applicable asset register. Adequate
provision, determined in a manner consistent with that of the preceding financial year, has
been made to write-off depreciable assets over their useful economic working lives.

No circumstances have arisen which render adherence to the existing basis of depreciation
misleading or inappropriate and that depreciation expense for the financial year ended 30
June 2022 is reliable.

(3) All additions to depreciable assets represent actual additions or improvements of a capital
nature, based on capitalisation thresholds consistently applied for the 2022 financial year
and unchanged from the 2021 financial year.

(4) Where the recorded carrying amount of any depreciable assets exceeds its recoverable
amount as at 30 June 2022, that asset's recorded carrying amount has been written down to
its recoverable amount.

(5) Contractual commitments for capital expenditure(s) included in the Financial Report payable
not later than one year are as described in the notes accompanying the Financial Report. It
should be noted that in Note 18 Events after the Balance Sheet date that a deed of
settlement and variation was signed with Badge (SA) Pty Ltd on § September 2022 which
amended the timescales for the delivery of the Wulanda project and the amount payable.

(6) There are no deficiencies or encumbrances attaching to the title of the assets of the Council
at 30 June 2022 other than those reflected in the financial report and those are not greater
than the value of the asset.

(7) No Operating or Finance Lease commitments exist that have not been disclosed in the
Financial Report. All Operating Lease expenses have been fully disclosed in the notes to
the 2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income. Finance Leasing commitments have been
fully disclosed in the notes to the 2022 Balance Sheet.

(8) No asset revaluations of infrastructure assets were undertaken during the 2022 financial
year.
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(9) Depreciation expense reported in the 2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income is reliable,
being based on reliable ‘whole of life’ asset management information for each class of
depreciable non-current asset.

LIABILITIES - Current and Non-Current

(1) All liabilities which have arisen or which will arise out of the activities of the Council to the
end of the 2022 financial year have been included in the 2022 Financial Report.

(2) All outstanding trade payables at balance date have been taken up as at the 2022 balance
date.

(3) All applicable accrued wages and salaries and accrued employee entitlements at the 2022
balance date have been taken up.

(4) All accrued interest at the 2022 balance date have been taken up.
(5) All revenue received in advance as at the 2022 balance date have been taken up.

(6) Provisions for employee benefits, inclusive of on-costs, all discounted as at the 2022
balance date representing long service leave benefits calculated for all valid employees (as
at balance date) have been taken up.

(7) Accrued employee benefits represent annual leave accrued for all valid employees as at the
2022 balance date.

(8) Borrowings as at the 2022 balance date represented amounts owed to the Local
Government Finance Authority and have varying maturity dates and interest rates with
details fully provided in the notes to the 2022 Financial Report.

(9) There were no contingent liabilities including for:
a) guarantees;
b) bills and accounts receivable discounted, assigned or sold and which are subject to
recourse;
c) endorsements; or
d) repurchase agreements.

(10)  We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects
should be considered when preparing the financial report; and accounted for and disclosed
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

EQUITY

(1) There have been no adjustments to the Accumulated Surplus other than those allowable
under the Australian Accounting Standards.

(2) There have been no adjustments to the Asset Revaluation Reserve other those allowable
under the Australian Accounting standards and the balance of the reserve has been
reconciled to each class of asset.

(3) All reserve funds required by legislation to be maintained have been at all times maintained
in the accounting records of the Council, with the exception of the Open Space Reserve as
detailed below.

(4) All transfers to and from reserve funds (including the Accumulated Surplus) are aligned with

previous years with the exception of the following:
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» Open Space Reserve - This was reinstated for the FY 2022 year aligned with
legislation;

e Waste Management Reserve - Following the adoption of the 2021/2022 Annual
Business Plan in June 2021 a reserve has been established (as foreshadowed in the
adopted Annual Business Plan document that stated “The WSC (Waste Service Charge)
will be used to cover all waste associated costs. In any year that the total WSC results in
a surplus, funds will be accounted for in a specific ‘waste’ reserve as per the Local
Government Act 1999, to be used on waste related services”); and

e Prior Year Correction - FY 2022 has been restated as requested following the interim
audit for 2021/2022 in April 2022 which has resulted in a transfer of $5,390k between
Accumulated Surplus and the Asset Revaluation Reserve (Other Infrastructure Assets).

e Prior Year Correction — FY 2022 has been restated with entries requested following
the balance date audit for 1 July and 30 July for the Caroline landfill construction and
capping assets. This resuited in a $1,676k adjustment to Accumulated Surplus as at 1
July 2022.

(5) Other than for the Asset Revaluation Reserve, all other reserve accounts are those applied
for 2022 Council budget purposes and have the same balances as at 30 June 2022, with
the exception of those items noted in point 4 above.

(6) Council does not maintain a “Contingency Reserve’ (or equivalent).
(7) No reserves are ‘cash backed’.
2022 STATEMENT OF COMPREHESIVE INCOME

(1) Please find attached a summary of all variations greater than 10% for all income and
expense amounts (variances less than $5,000 have been deemed immaterial and not
included) disclosed in the 2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income, compared to 2021.

(2) Please find enclosed a summary of all 2022 amounts that have been re-classified in the
2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income, including the reasons for the reclassification.

(3) All depreciable physical resources received free of charge have been included in the
appropriate asset register and depreciated from the date when Council assumed control (of
the asset).

(4) Depreciation expense for 2022 is in accordance with Council's asset registers and has been
determined on the same basis as for 2021 with the exception of Caroline Landfill where
depreciation has been restated to amortise the assets over the available airspace of the
landfill rather than on a straight- line depreciation basis.

(5) Salaries and Wages expense disclosed in the 2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income
reconciles to the last budgeted salaries and wage amount approved by Council for 2022
annual budget funding purposes.

(6) Capital grants have been correctly separated from operating grants, in accordance with the
requirements of the Model Financial Statements.

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Operating Surplus Ratio - The ratio in FY 2022 is significantly greater than the previous year and
the anticipated target as per the adopted budget, driven by the rating increase of 4.5%, higher than
expected untied grant revenue (Financial Assistance Grants and LRCI) and higher Landfill charges
and cemetery fees. Operating expenditure is also lower than the previous year where employee
costs are broadly in line with the prior year and depreciation is higher which is more than offset by
lower materials contracts other driven by lower consultant expenditure and a more focused
approach to financial controls in the year.
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Net Financial Liabilities Ratio — The ratio is higher than the previous year driven by increased
borrowings from the Wulanda project. It should be noted that the ratio is lower than the target set in
the adopted budget where borrowings are lower than anticipated due to Wulanda and other capital
projects timing.

Asset Renewal Funding Ratio — This is lower than the previous year, LTFP/adopted budget target
and SA recommended target. Disruptions and supply shortages combined with the organisation’s
capacity to deliver have impacted upon the timing of the renewals program. A review of the
organisation’s capacity to deliver is expected to occur in the first half of FY 2023.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

Please summarise here any exceptions to the standard Chief Executive Officer's Report that may
be or will be expressed in the 2022 report to be included in the 2022 Financial Report.

OTHER REQUIRED REPRESENTATIONS

(1) No events have occurred (or are known to occur) subsequent to the 30 June 2022 that
would require any consideration for adjustment to or additional disclosure in the 2022
Financial Report.

(2) The Council does not have any plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying
value or classification of all assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2022.

(3) The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual arrangements and agreements that
would have a material effect on the 2022 Financial Report in the event of non-compliance.

(4) There were no material commitments for construction or acquisition of property, plant and
equipment or to acquire other non-current assets, other than those disclosed in the 2022
Financial Report.

(5) There are no violations or possible violations of laws, compulsory standards or regulations
whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the 2022 Financial Report or as a basis
for recording as an expense or otherwise.

(6) The methods, the data, and the significant assumptions used in making accounting
estimates, and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition,
measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in the context of the applicable financial
reporting framework.

(7) The Council has full title to all assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

(8) All details concerning related party transactions and related amounts receivable or payable
(including sales, purchases, loans and guarantees) have been correctly recorded in the
accounting records. All related parties have been identified and disclosed to you during your
audit.

(9) The Council reviews, at least on a quarterly basis, the adequacy of insurance cover on all
assets and insurable risks. This review has been consistently performed, and where it is
considered appropriate, assets and insurable risks of the Council are at all times adequately
covered by appropriate insurance.

(10)  The minutes of all meetings of Council and its Committees were made available to you and
are complete and authentic records of all such meetings held during the 2022 financial year
and to the date of this letter. All other statutory records were properly kept at all times during
the year and have been made available to you for audit purposes.

Item 18.3 - Attachment 3 Page 317 ‘



Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments 18 October 2022

(11)  All audit correspondence has been formally and promptly responded.

(12)  All audit correspondence has been referred to Council and Council’'s Audit and Risk
Committee.

(13) Salaries and wages records together with records for the Goods and Service Tax were at all
times fully maintained in accordance with the requirements of the Australian Taxation Office,
as applicable.

(14)  All documentation relating to the capture of Related Party Disclosures and Transactions
(AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures) including all authorised forms provided by the
deemed Key Management Personnel, evidence of review of total related party transactions
processed during the financial year by the Council e.g. Transaction reports of payments
made by Council to related parties and any working papers of calculation methodologies for
the disclosures in the 30 June 2022 financial statements have been made available to the
auditors.

(15)  All deemed material transactions relating to Related Party Disclosures and Transactions
(AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures) have been included and adequately disclosed in the
30 June 2022 financial statements.

(16)  Council has formally in place and has at all times maintained an appropriate standard of
accounting, internal control structure and framework, segregation of duties and risk
management structure and framework across the entire organisation, including appropriate
controls and mechanisms specifically designed to prevent and detect fraud and error.
Further, we advise that there have not been any instances of fraud or error during the
financial year ended 30 June 2022 or to the date of this letter. In addition, there are no
matters that should be brought to your attention for the purposes of your making an
assessment as to Sections 129(5) and 129(6) of the Local Government Act 1999,

(17)  The 2022 Financial Report has been adjusted for all agreed audit adjustments for the year
ended 30 June 2022.

(18) Council's Audit and Risk Committee has addressed all of its prescribed responsibilities and
no member of the Committee has undertaken other professional services for the Council.

(19) In our opinion, there are no grounds to believe that the Council will not be able to pay its
debts as and when they fall due, that assets will be at all time maintained to the service
standards currently determined by Council and accordingly, the Council is long term
financially sustainable.

Yours sincerely

Chief Executive Officer

Enclosures (as applicable)
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Enclosure 1 - Statement of Comprehensive Income Variance Analysis

2021 2022 Draft Variance Variance

Atials $'000s Ref A to Prior Yr to Prior Yr
$'K %
Income
22,769 Rates 23,822 1,053 46%
621  Statutory Charges 633 12 1.9%
4880 UserCharges 1 5515 635 13.0%
4,505 Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 2 6.615 2,110 46.8%
25  Investment Income 3 14 {11) -44.0%
60 Reimbursements 65 5 8.3%
635  Other Income 4 498 (137) -216%
33,495 Total income 37,162 3,667 10.9%
Expenses
13.058 Employee Costs 13,090 (32) -0.2%
14,018 Matenals, Contracts & Other Expenses 13.234 784 56%
7,940 Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 8,479 (539) -6.8%
226  Finance Costs 5 358 (132) -58.4%
35,242 Total Expenses 35,161 81 0.2%
(1,747) Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 2,001 3,748 215%
1.230 Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 6 1,760 530 43.1%
(730) Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments (787) (57) ~7.8%
2,677 Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 7 17,940 15,263 570.2%

1,430 Net Surplus / (Deficit) 20,914 19,484 1363%
0 Total Other Comprehensive Income 0 0 0
1,430 Total Comprehensive Income 20,914 19,484 1363%

As per the reference numbers listed, please find explanations for material variances of greater than
+/- 10% for 2022, compared to 2021:

—

. User Charges Increase $635k — Mainly due to increased landfill charges $475k (partly offset by
additional expenditure) and additional cemetery fees $98k.

Grants, Subsidies, Contributions Increase $2,110K — Including the following:

+ Additional Financial Assistance Grants Increase $1,724K - (including 75% additional
payment of following year's grant compared to 50% in previous year and payment of Special
Local Roads Fund (no payment was made in 2021 as the payment for that year had been
received in 2019).

¢ LRCI Grant Funding Increase $473k - Council received $716k (50% of the Phase 2 grant
of $520k and 40% of the Phase 1 grant $196k), compared to 50% of the Phase 1 grant
received in 2021 of $243k.

Investment Income Decrease ($11k) - Lower investment income arising from higher
borrowings.

Other Income Decrease ($137K) - Main variances include trainee/training revenue $152k, more
than offset by lower open space revenue ($174k) and fuel tax credits ($62k).

ad

&

o

o

Finance Costs Increase ($132k) - Higher finance costs mainly due to increased Caroline
unwinding of NPV costs ($149k).

Physical Resources Free Of Charge Increase $530k - Increased revenue from
developments/land divisions including: Footpaths & Kerbing $288k and Roads $316k.

o

N

Amounts Received for New/Upgraded Assets Increase $15,263k - Mainly grant revenue for
Woulanda $9,000k from State Government ($7,500k higher than the previous year of $1,500k)
and $8,500k from Federal Government ($7,000k higher than the previous year).
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18.4 COMPARISON OF ACTUAL TO BUDGET FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2022
REPORT NO. AR22/60848

Committee: Audit and Risk Committee

Meeting Date: 26 September 2022

Report No.: AR22/60848

CM9 Reference: AF11/863

Author: Julie Scoggins, Manager Financial Services

Authoriser: Darren Barber, General Manager Corporate and Regulatory Services
Summary: Comparison to budget - the annual end of year financial audit

includes a comparison of actual to budget for the previous
financial year.

Strategic Plan Goal 1: Our People
Reference: Goal 2: Our Location

Goal 3: Our Diverse Economy

Goal 4: Our Climate, Natural Resources, Arts, Culture and Heritage

Goal 5: Our Commitment

REPORT RECOMMENDATION

1. That Audit and Risk Committee Report No. AR22/60848 titled ‘Comparison of Actual to
Budget for the year ending 30 June 2022’ as presented on 26 September 2022 be noted.

2.  That the estimates comparison for the financial year ending 30 June 2022 as contained in
Attachment 1 to Report No. AR22/60848 be adopted.
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TYPE OF REPORT
Legislative

BACKGROUND

1. Legislation - Pursuant to Section 10 of the Local Government (Financial Management)

Regulations 2011:

(1) A council, council subsidiary or regional subsidiary must, by no later than 31 December in
each year, prepare and consider a report showing the audited financial results of each item
shown in the statement of comprehensive income and balance sheet of the budgeted
financial statements of the council, council subsidiary or regional subsidiary (as the case may
be) for the previous financial year compared with the estimated financial results set out in the
budget presented in a manner consistent with the Model Financial Statements.

(2) A council must also include in a report under subregulation (1) audited financial results for

the previous financial year of the council's operating surplus ratio, net financial liabilities ratio
and asset sustainability ratio compared with estimates set out in the budget presented in a
manner consistent with the note in the Model Financial Statements entitled Financial

Indicators.

2. Comparison to Adopted Budget - The Budgeted Financial Statements Comparison as at 30
June 2022 (Attachment 1) reports the actual results compared to the original budget adopted by
Council in June 2022.

3. Council’s Adopted Annual Business Plan - The budget adopted by Council in June 2022 had
an operating deficit of ($571) thousand and total comprehensive income of $17.671 million.

PROPOSAL

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Overview - Council’s actual operating surplus of $2.0m is significantly higher than the adopted
budget of an operating deficit of ($0.6m) mainly driven by the key variances detailed below:

Operating Revenue - $3.2m or 9.5% higher than the adopted budget (favourable variance), including
the following significant variances:

1.

User Charges $0.5m Favourable Variance - Mainly due to higher than budgeted landfill charges
$0.3m and higher than budgeted reservation and lease cemetery fees $0.1m.

Grants $2.5m Favourable Variance - Higher than the adopted budget mainly due to timing of
the Financial Assistance Grants $1.4m and payment of Special Local Roads Fund $0.2m. The
budget also did not include Local Roads and Community Infrastructure (LRCI) 40% payment of
the Phase 1 grant of $0.2m and 50% of Phase 2 of $0.5m. The budget assumed that Phase 1 had
been delivered in full in 2020/21.

Other Income $0.1m Favourable Variance — Included $0.2m training/apprentice subsidy, partly
offset by lower open space contributions ($0.1m).

Operating Expenditure - ($0.6m) or (1.9%) higher than the adopted budget (unfavourable variance)
including the following key variances:

1.

Employee Costs $0.8m Favourable Variance — Driven by the change in the weighted average
discount rate applied to the leave provision from 0.36% to 3.29% $0.4m and net vacancy savings
across the year of $0.4m.

Materials, Contracts, Other ($0.6m) Unfavourable Variance - Driven by Contractor expenditure
which was aligned with the previous year ($1.1m) including Waste Management and Parks and

Item 18.4l1tem 5.1 Page 321 ‘



Committee Minutes and Report/Attachments 18 October 2022

Gardens, partly offset by lower maintenance expenditure $0.2m, and lower sundry expenditure
$0.3m (including PLEC project $0.1m).

3. Depreciation ($0.6m) Unfavourable Variance - Mainly due to the following variances including
Caroline landfill adjusted to reflect actual cell capacity ($0.2m) and Infrastructure assets reflecting
depreciation of new and gifted assets ($0.2m).

4. Finance Costs ($0.2m) Unfavourable Variance - Mainly due to unwinding of NPV for Caroline
Landfill.

Other:

1. Asset Disposals & Fair Value Adjustments ($0.7m) Unfavourable Variance - Mainly due to
adjustments as a result of road renewal works.

2. Amounts Received For New/Upgraded Assets ($0.4m) Unfavourable Variance — Where
timing of Wulanda grant funding $0.5m and additional capital grants of $0.3m, have been more
than offset by the timing of other grants ($1.2m).

3. Gifted Assets $1.8m Favourable Variance - Not budgeted in 2021/2022, with revenue resulting

from land divisions and development (roads $1.1m and footpaths and kerbing $0.7m).

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION:
The key variances to the adopted budget are as follows:

1.

Cash & Cash Equivalents ($2.2m) Unfavourable Variance - Lower cash balance reflecting
treasury management policy of minimising cash balances and borrowing levels.

Trade & Other Receivables $0.8m Favourable Variance - The actual FY22 balance reflects
the higher operating revenue compared to budget.

Infrastructure Property, Plant & Equipment ($17.4m) Unfavourable Variance - Is lower than
budget mainly as a result of Wulanda timing changes and other capital works deferral/partial
deferrals.

Trade & Other Payables ($6.4m) Unfavourable Variance - Actual FY22 balance is significantly
higher than the adopted budget due to the timing of Wulanda invoices for activities undertaken in
2021/2022.

Borrowings (Current & Non-Current) $23.8m Favourable Variance - Borrowings are lower
than the adopted budget mainly due to timing of the Wulanda project.

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS:
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2021
Actuals

$'000s

-5.2% Operating surplus ratio

Operating surplus

Total operating revenue
62% Net financial liabilities ratio

Net financial liabilities

Total operating revenue

84%  Asset renewal funding ratio

Expenditure on renewal/replacement of assets

Optimal level of such expenditure as per IAMP

2022
Draft
Actuals

5.4%

97%

79%

2022 2022
Adopted Restated
Budget Budget

-1.7% -1.7%

154% 154%

101% 106%

1. Operating Surplus Ratio 7.1% Favourable Variance - The operating surplus ratio of 5.4% is
7.1% favourable to budget driven by the variances detailed above.

2. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio 57% Favourable Variance - Mainly driven by the timing grant
revenue and of the delivery of the Wulanda Recreation and Convention Centre project and other

capital works projects and associated borrowings.

3. Asset Renewal Funding Ratio (22%) Unfavourable Variance - Mainly driven by the timing of
the delivery of the renewals program with works brought forward from 2020/2021 more than offset

by deferrals and partial deferrals to 2022/2023.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

AS DETAILED IN THE BACKGROUND.STRATEGIC PLAN
The budget was developed in the context of the Strategic Plan.

COUNCIL POLICY

A900 Asset Management Policy
B300 Budget Framework

R105 Rating Policy

T150 Treasury Management Policy
ECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS

N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

SOCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

CULTURAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
N/A

VALUE FOR MONEY

N/A
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RISK IMPLICATIONS

Prudent management of Council’s financial sustainability ensures that short and long term financial
risk is minimised and ultimately mitigated.

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

N/A

ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION STRATEGY
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY

N/A

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

Council’s end of year results as shown in the audited financial statements indicate its ongoing financial
position has been impacted by the timing of the Wulanda Recreation and Convention Centre project
and grant revenue.

Maintaining Council’s position by working within annual and long term financial targets is crucial in
accommodating the long term financial plan of works and building capacity to achieve Council’s long
term strategic goals

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Financial Statements Actual vs Adopted Budget FY 2022
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City of Mount Gambier - Uniform Presentation of Finances Draft Year-End 2022

2022 2022 2022
$'000s Draft Adopted Restated
Actuals Budget Budget

33495 Income 37,162 33945 33,945
35242 Expenses 35161 34516 34 516
(1,747) Operating surplus / (deficit) 2,001 (571) (571)

Net outlays on existing assets

2021

Actual

Capital expenditure on renewal and replacement of existing assets 5,623 6,401 7,554

5326

(7,940) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (8,479) (7,864) (7,864)
393 Proceeds from sale of replaced assets (112) {273)

(3,007) Net outlays on existing assets (2,968) (1,463) (583)

Net outlays on new and upgraded assets
16,298 Capital expenditure on new and upgraded assets 35,134 30645 48,233
(including investments property & real estate developments)

(555) Amounts received specifically for new and upgraded assets (20,443) (18,355) (18,355)
Proceeds from sale of surplus assets

15,743 Net outlays on new and upgraded assets 14,691 12,290 29,878

(14,483) Net Lending/(Borrowings) for financial year (9,722) (11,398) (29,866)
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City of Mount Gambier - Statement of Comprehensive Income Draft Year End 2022

2022 2022 2022
Draft Adopted Restated

Actuals Budget Budget

Income
22,769 Rates 23,822 23750 23,750
621  Statutory Charges 633 602 602
4,880 User Charges 5515 5,058 5,058
4,505 Grants, Subsidies and Contrnibutions 6615 4,091 4091
25 Investment Income 14 0 0
60 Reimbursements 65 79 79
635  Other Income 365
33,495 Total Income 37 162 33,945 33 945
Expenses
13,058 Employee Costs 13,090 13875 13,875
14,018 Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses 13,234 12595 12,595
7, 940 Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 8 479 7,864 7,864
Finance Costs 182 182
35 242 Total Expenses 35 161 34,516 34,516
(1,747) Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 2,001 (571) (§71)
1,230 Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 1,760
(730) Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments (787) (113) (113)
2,677 Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 17,940 18,355 18,355
1,430 Net Surplus / (Deficit) 20,914 17671 17,671

Other Comprehensive Income
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to operating result
Changes in Revaluation Surplus - | PP&E

0 Total Other Comprehensive income 0 0 0
1,430 Total Comprehensive Income 20,914 17,671 17,671
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City of Mount Gambier - Statement of Financial Position Draft Year End 2022

2022 2022 2022

Ai?lgls $'000s Draft Adopted Restated
Actuals Budget Budget
ASSETS
Current Assets
1,893 Cash & Cash Equivalents 250 2421 2421
4, 579 Trade & Other Receivables 2, 974 2, 125 2, 125
Inventories
6, 519 Total Current Assets 3, 288 4, 603 4, 603
263,422 Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 301,171 318,597 318597
263,422 Total Non-Current Assets 301,171 318,597 318,597
269,941 TOTAL ASSETS 304,459 323,200 323,200
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
6,274 Trade & Other Payables 9,331 2977 2977
447  Borrowings 1,222 2,311 2,311
2,902 Provisions 2,784 2672 2,672
9,623 Total Current Liabilities 13,337 7,960
Non-Current Liabilities
13,502 Borrowings 22311 45000 45,000
4,064  Provisions 3,507 3,863 3,863
17,666 Total Non-Current Liabilities 25818 48,863 48,863
27,189 TOTAL LIABILITIES 39,155 56,823 56,823
242,752 NetAssets 265,304 266,377 266377
EQUITY
66,406 Accumulated Surplus 83,080 90,041 90,041
175,462 Asset Revaluation Reserves 180,852 175462 175462
884  Other Reserves 1,372 874 874
242,752 Total Equity 265,304 266,377 266,377
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City of Mount Gambier - Statement of Cashflows Draft Year End 2022

2022 2022 2022
$'000s Draft Adopted Restated

2021
Actuals

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts:

22,978 Rates Receipts 23829 23750 23750
621 Statutory Charges 633 602 602
5,214 User Charges 4335 5,058 5,058
5,210 Grants, Subsidies and Contributions (operating purpose) 6,615 0 0
26 Investment Receipts 14 4091 4,091
66 Reimbursements 65 79 79
3,517 Other Revenue 896 365 365
[ Payments:
(13,005) Payments to Employees (13,157) (13,875) (13,875)
(17,433) Payments for Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses (13,852) (12,558) (12445)
212) Finance Payments 136 182 182

6,982 Net Cash provided (or used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Receipts:
555 Amounts Received Specifically for New/Upgraded Assets 20443 18,355 18,355
393 Sale of Replaced Assets 112 273
Payments:

(5,326) Expenditure on Renewal/Replacement of Assets (5623) (6401) (7,554)
16,298) Expenditure on New/Upgraded Assets (35,134) (30,645) (48,233
(20,676) Net Cash provided (or used in) Investing Activities (20,202) (37,046) (37,159)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Receipts:

11,550 Proceeds from Borrowmis 9,581 28,759 28759
(206) Repayments of Borrowings 0 (195) (195)
(163) Repayment of Principal Portion of Lease Liabilities (202) 0 0

Repayment of Bonds & Deposits (62)

11,181 Net Cash Flow provided (used in) Financing Activities 9,317 28,564 28,564

(2,613) NetIncrease/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (1,643) (1,152) (1,152)

4,406 plus: Cash & Cash Equivalents - beginning of year 1,893 3,573 3,573

1,893 Cash & Cash Equivalents - end of the year 250 2421 2,421
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City of Mount Gambier - Statement of Equity Draft Year-End 2022

2022 2022 2022
Draft Adopted Restated

Actuals Budget Budget

241,322 Opening Balance 242,752 248,706 248,706

Adjustment for prior year correction 1,638
1,430 Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 20,914 17,671 17,671
1,430 Total Comprehensive Income 20,914 17,671 17,671
Transfers between equity

242,752 Equity - Balance at end of the reporting period 265304 266,377 266,377
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City of Mount Gambier - Key Financial Ratios Draft Year-End 2022

2021 2022 2022 2022

Actuals

$'000s Draft Adopted Restated
Actuals Budget Budget

-5.2% Operating surplus ratio 54% -1.7% -1.7%

Operating surplus
Total operating revenue

62%  Net financial liabilities ratio 97% 154% 154%

Net financial liabilities
Total operating revenue

84%  Asset renewal funding ratio 79% 101% 106%

Expenditure on renewal/replacement of assets
Optimal level of such expenditure as per IAMP
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Division: Date From: 20/09/2022

Meeting: Council Date To: 20/09/2022

Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: 12 October 2022 1:38 PM
Meeting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
Council 20/09/2022 McCarthy, Michael Notice of Motion to Rescind or Amend Notice of Motion to Amend - Release of the Mount Gambier Private Hospital Feasibility Study

Barber, Darren
RESOLUTION 2022/143

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1.  That Council Report No. AR22/64162 titled ‘Notice of Motion to Amend - Release of the Mount Gambier Private Hospital Feasibility Study’ as presented

on 20 September 2022 be noted.

2.  That. having received approval from the administrator of the Mount Gambier Private Hospital, the Confidentiality Order in resolution 2021/276
associated with Report No. AR21/51525 titled '"Community Health Information’ that was passed on 21 September 2021 be amended as follows:

Confidentiality Order Resolution 2021/276 be amended from:

In accordance with Sections 91(7) and 91(9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council orders that the report 5.1 AR21/51525 Community
Health Information and its attachments, the discussion and the resolution/s and minutes arising from the report, having been considered by the
Council in confidence under Section 90(2) & (3) (b), (d) and (g) be kept confidential and not available for public inspection until a further order is
made by Council to be reviewed at least once every 12 months.

Confidentiality Order Resolution 2021/276 be amended to:

In accordance with Sections 91(7) and 91(9) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council orders that the report 5.1 AR21/51525 Community
Health Information and its attachments, the discussion and the resolution/s and minutes arising from the report, having been considered by the
Council in confidence under Section 90(2) & (3) (b), (d) and (g) be kept confidential and not available for public inspection until a further order is
made by Council to be reviewed at least once every 12 months.

A letter and a copy of the confidential full financial feasibility assessment dated May 2021 for the Mount Gambier Private Hospital be sent to:

(a) the CEO for the Department of Health and Wellbeing - Dr Robyn Lawrence
(b) the Minister of Health and Wellbeing for SA - Chris Picton MP
(c) the CEO of Limestone Coast Local Health Network - Ngaire Buchanan

(d) the Chairperson of the Limestone Coast Local Health Network - Grant King
(e) the Member for Mount Gambier - Troy Bell MP

08 Oct 2022 8:20am McCarthy, Michael - Completion

Action completed by McCarthy, Michael

CARRIED
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Division: Date From: 20/09/2022

Meeting: Council Date To: 20/09/2022
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: 12 October 2022 1:38 PM
Meeting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
Council 20/09/2022 Telford, Melissa Elected Members Workshops Elected Member Information/Briefing Sessions from 12/08/2022 to 14/09/2022

Philpott, Sarah

RESOLUTION 2022/144

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1. That Council Report No. AR21/71022 titled ‘Elected Member Information/Briefing Sessions from 12/08/2022 to 14/09/2022’ as presented on 20
September 2022 be noted.

CARRIED

23 Sep 2022 1:57pm Telford, Melissa - Completion
Action completed by Telford, Melissa

Meeting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject

Council 20/09/2022 Telford, Melissa Council Action Items Council Action Items - 16/08/2022
Philpott, Sarah

RESOLUTION 2022/145

Moved: Cr Sonya Mezinec
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1. That Council Report No. AR21/71040 titled ‘Council Action ltems - 16/08/2022’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.
CARRIED

23 Sep 2022 1:57pm Telford, Melissa - Completion
Action completed by Telford, Melissa
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Division: Date From: 20/09/2022

Meeting: Council Date To: 20/09/2022
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: 12 October 2022 1:38 PM
Meeting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
Council 20/09/2022 Pasquazzi, Ashlee Building Fire Safety Committee Minutes Minutes of the Building Fire Safety Committee held on 12 September 2022

Barber, Darren

RESOLUTION 2022/146

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Frank Morello

That the Minutes of the Building Fire Safety Committee meeting held on 12 September 2022 as previously circulated be noted.

23 Sep 2022 2:29pm Pasquazzi, Ashlee - Completion
Action completed by Pasquazzi, Ashlee

CARRIED

Meeting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
Council 20/09/2022 Keding, Xarnia Council Reports 2022 Mount Gambier Christmas Parade temporary road closures
Coote, Tim

RESOLUTION 2022/147

Moved: Cr Sonya Mezinec
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1. That Council Report No. AR22/61414 titled ‘2022 Mount Gambier Christmas Parade temporary road closures’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be

noted.

2. That Council be notified that, pursuant to Section 33 of the Road Traffic Act 1961 and Instrument of Delegation, the Minister of Transport has made the

order to close the following roads on Saturday, 19 November 2022:

STREET CLOSURES
COMMERCIAL - Davison Street to Crouch Street closed 8:00am to 12:30pm
STREET EAST - N/S (North/South) Anthony Street closed 10:00am to
12:30pm
- N/S Crouch Street closed 10:45am to 12:30pm
Infocouncil Page 3 of 9
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Division:
Meeting: Council
Officer:

Date From: 20/09/2022
Date To: 20/09/2022

Printed: 12 October 2022 1:38 PM

COMMERCIAL - Crouch Street to Bay Road closed 8:30am - 2:00pm
STREET EAST - N/S Crouch Street closed 10:45am — 12:30pm

- N/S Krummel Street closed 10:00am — 12:30pm

- N/S Compton Street closed 10:00am - 2:00pm

- N/S Ferrers Street closed 8:30am — 2:00pm

- N/S Bay Road closed 10:55am - 12:30pm
WATSON TERRACE N/S Watson Terrace closed 6:30am - 5:00pm

E/W Watson Terrace Bay Road closed 8:00am - 12:30pm

COMMERCIAL - Bay Road to Wehl Street closed 8:30am — 2:00pm
STREET WEST - N/S Bay Road closed 10:55am - 12:30pm

- N/S Gray closed 10:55am - 2:00pm

- N/S Elizabeth closed 10:55am - 2:00pm

- N/S Wehl closed 10:30am — 2:00pm
COMMERCIAL - Wehl Street to Bertha Street closed 10:00am - 2:00pm
STREET WEST

VICTORIA TERRACE

- Ellis Street to Jubilee Highway West 10:00am — 2:00pm

3. That Council be notified that, SAPOL has granted exemption for persons taking part in the Parade from the following Australian Road Rules and

Conditions:

ROAD RULES

ROAD RULES & CONDITIONS ON EXEMPTIONS FROM AUSTRALIAN

closed roads:

Persons taking part in the Parade are exempt from the following Road Rules when on

Rule 221

‘ Using hazard warning lights

Infocouncil
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Action Sheets Report

Division:
Meeting: Council
Officer:

Date From: 20/09/2022
Date To: 20/09/2022

Printed: 12 October 2022 1:38 PM

Rule 230 Crossing a road — general

Rule 231 Crossing a road at pedestrian lights

Rule 232 Crossing a road at traffic lights

Rule 234 Crossing a road on or near a crossing for pedestrians

Rule 238 Pedestrians travelling along a road (except in or on a wheeled

recreational device or toy)

Rule 264 Wearing of seat belts by drivers
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:

Rule 265 Wearing of seat belts by passengers 16 years old or older
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:

Rule 266 Wearing of seat belts by passengers under 16 years old
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:

Rule 268 How persons must travel in or on a motor vehicle
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:

Rule 269 Opening doors and getting out of a vehicle etc
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 5km/h
Exemption:

Rule 298 Driving with a person in a trailer
Condition on provided the speed of the vehicle does NOT exceed 25km/h
Exemption:

CARRIED
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Division: Date From: 20/09/2022

Meeting: Council Date To: 20/09/2022
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: 12 October 2022 1:38 PM
Meeting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject

Council 20/09/2022

Removal of Land Management Agreement - 109 - 113 Commercial Street West, Mount Gambier - Barry
Maney Used Vehicles

Tzioutziouklaris,
Tracy
Barber, Darren

Council Reports

RESOLUTION 2022/148

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1.

That Council Report No. AR22/60483 titled ‘Removal of Land Management Agreement - 109 - 113 Commercial Street West, Mount Gambier - Barry
Maney Used Vehicles’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.

That Council proceed with the removal of the Land management Agreement between the City of Mount Gambier and West Gambier Properties Pty Ltd
dated 8 December 2000.

That the removal of the Land Management Agreement for the property located at 109-113 Commercial Street East be at the full cost and arrangement of
the current property owner of 109-113 Commercial Street East, Mount Gambier including all documentation costs, legal and conveyancing costs,
lodgement and registration fees, and including reimbursement/payment of any out of pocket expenses incurred by the Council in dealing with the
removal of the Land Management Agreement from the date of this resolution.

The Chief Executive Officer and Mayor be authorised to affix the Common Seal to any documentation necessary to give effect to the removal of the
Land Management Agreement for the property located at 109-113 Commercial Street East, Mount Gambier in accordance with resolutions (2) and (3) as
above.

CARRIED

23 Sep 2022 2:25pm Tzioutziouklaris, Tracy - Completion
Action completed by Tzioutziouklaris, Tracy
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Division: Date From: 20/09/2022

Meeting: Council Date To: 20/09/2022
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: 12 October 2022 1:38 PM
Meeting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject

Tzioutziouklaris,
Tracy
Barber, Darren

Council 20/09/2022 Council Reports Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 - City of Mount Gambier - Development Applications
RESOLUTION 2022/149

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec

1.  That Council Report No. AR22/61646 titled ‘Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 - City of Mount Gambier - Development Applications’ as
presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.

CARRIED
23 Sep 2022 2:25pm Tzioutziouklaris, Tracy - Completion
Action completed by Tzioutziouklaris, Tracy
Meeting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
Council 20/09/2022 McCarthy, Michael = Council Reports Election of LGA President
Barber, Darren
RESOLUTION 2022/150
Moved: Cr Max Bruins
Seconded: Cr Frank Morello
1.  That Council Report No. AR22/62077 titled ‘Election of LGA President’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.
2. That Council endorse the following candidate for the 2022 election for Local Government Association President:
e Mayor Erika VICKERY OAM
The ballot paper be marked, sealed and returned to the Returning Officer accordingly.
CARRIED

08 Oct 2022 8:21am McCarthy, Michael - Completion
Action completed by McCarthy, Michael
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Division: Date From: 20/09/2022

Meeting: Council Date To: 20/09/2022
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: 12 October 2022 1:38 PM
Meeting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
Council 20/09/2022 McCarthy, Michael =~ Council Reports Election of 2022 LGFA Representative Members

Barber, Darren

RESOLUTION 2022/151

Moved: Cr Sonya Mezinec
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins

1. That Council Report No. AR22/61125 titled ‘Election of 2022 LGFA Representative Members’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.
2.  That Council endorse the following two candidates for the 2022 election of Local Government Finance Authority Representative Members:

e Ms Annette Martin

e Mr Michael Sedgman

and the ballot paper be marked, sealed and returned to the Returning Officer accordingly.

CARRIED
08 Oct 2022 8:17am McCarthy, Michael - Completion
Action completed by McCarthy, Michael
Meeting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
Council 20/09/2022 Solly, Elisa Council Reports Freedom of Information - Update
Barber, Darren
RESOLUTION 2022/152
Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Max Bruins
1. That Council Report No. AR21/65251 titled ‘Freedom of Information - Update’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be noted.
CARRIED

26 Sep 2022 2:51pm Solly, Elisa - Completion
Action completed by Solly, Elisa
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Division: Date From: 20/09/2022

Meeting: Council Date To: 20/09/2022
Officer:
Action Sheets Report Printed: 12 October 2022 1:38 PM
Meeting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
Council 20/09/2022 g::gg;/asks, Council Reports Woulanda Recreation and Convention Centre - Verbal Update

Philpott, Sarah

RESOLUTION 2022/153

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Sonya Mezinec

1. That Council Report No. AR22/64190 titled ‘Wulanda Recreation and Convention Centre - Verbal Update’ as presented on 20 September 2022 be

noted.
CARRIED
Meeting Officer/Authoriser Section Subject
Council 20/09/2022 gz:gg:/askls, Motions with Notice Notice of Motion - Department of Infrastructure and Transport (DIT) Highways

Philpott, Sarah

RESOLUTION 2022/154

Moved: Cr Paul Jenner
Seconded: Cr Kate Amoroso

1. That Council Report No. AR22/62436 titled ‘Notice of Motion - Department of Infrastructure and Transport (DIT) Highways' as presented on 20
September 2022 be noted.

2. That Council writes to the Minister for Infrastructure and Transport, Mr Tom Koutsantonis MP with a copy to Mr Troy Bell MP, Mr Nick McBride MP and
Mr Jon Whelan, Chief Executive, Department of Infrastructure and Transport, seeking clarification:

(@) as to the future works and outcome required to improve all highways that were discussed at the Regional Transport meeting in 2021, which
included Fulton Hogan; and

(b) as to why the improvement work for the roundabout at Wehl Street North and Jubilee Highway West has stopped and when it will continue.
3.  The Minister for Infrastructure and Transport, Mr Tom Koutsantonis MP be invited to Mount Gambier to look first hand at the situation.

Carried
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Certification of Financial Statements

We have been authorised by the Council to certify the financial statements in their final form.
In our opinion:

+ the accompanying financial statements comply with the Local Government Act 1999, Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 and Australian Accounting Standards,

» the financial statements present a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position at 30 June 2022 and the results
of its operations and cash flows for the financial year,

» internal controls implemented by the Council provide a reasonable assurance that the Council’s financial records are
complete, accurate and reliable and were effective throughout the financial year,

« the financial statements accurately reflect the Council’s accounting and other records.

Sarah Philpott Lynette Martin
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER MAYOR
Date: Date:
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City of Mount Gambier

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Financial Statements 2022

$'000 Notes 2022 2021
Income

Rates 2a 23,822 22,769
Statutory Charges 2b 633 621
User Charges 2c 5,515 4,880
Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 29 6,615 4,505
Investment Income 2d 14 25
Reimbursements 2e 65 60
Other income 2f 498 635
Total Income 37,162 33,495
Expenses

Employee costs 3a 13,090 13,058
Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses 3b 13,234 14,018
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 3c 8,479 7,940
Finance Costs 3d 358 226
Total Expenses 35,161 35,242
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 2,001 (1,747)
Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 2i 1,760 1,230
Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments 4 (787) (730)
Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 29 17,940 2,677
Net Surplus / (Deficit) 20,914 1,430
Total Comprehensive Income 20,914 1,430

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2022

$'000 Notes 2022 2021
ASSETS

Current assets

Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets 5a 250 1,893
Trade & Other Receivables 5b 2,974 4,579
Inventories 5¢ 64 47
Subtotal 3,288 6,519
Total current assets 3,288 6,519
Non-current assets

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 6a(i) 301,171 263,422
Total non-current assets 301,171 263,422
TOTAL ASSETS 304,459 269,941
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables 7a 9,331 6,274
Borrowings 7b 1,222 447
Provisions 7c 2,784 2,902
Subtotal 13,337 9,623
Total Current Liabilities 13,337 9,623
Non-Current Liabilities

Borrowings 7b 22,311 13,502
Provisions 7c 3,507 4,064
Total Non-Current Liabilities 25,818 17,566
TOTAL LIABILITIES 39,155 27,189
Net Assets 265,304 242,752
EQUITY

Accumulated surplus 83,080 66,406
Asset revaluation reserves 8a 180,852 175,462
Other reserves 8b 1,372 884
Total Equity 265,304 242,752

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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City of Mount Gambier

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Asset

Accumulated revaluation Other Total
$'000 Notes surplus reserve reserves equity
2022
Balance as at 1 July 66,406 175,462 884 242,752
Adjustments (Correction of Prior Period Errors) (3,752) 5,390 - 1,638
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 20,914 - - 20,914
Total comprehensive income 20,914 - — 20,914
Transfers between Reserves 8b (488) - 488 -
Balance at the end of period 83,080 180,852 1,372 265,304
2021
Balance as at 1 July 64,986 175,462 874 241,322
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 1,430 — — 1,430
Total comprehensive income 1,430 - - 1,430
Transfers between Reserves 8b (10) - 10 -
Balance at the end of period 66,406 175,462 884 242,752

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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City of Mount Gambier

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Financial Statements 2022

$'000 Notes 2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Rates Receipts 23,829 22,978
Statutory Charges 633 621
User Charges 4,335 5,214
Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 6,615 5,210
Investment Receipts 14 26
Reimbursements 65 66
Other Receipts 896 3,517
Payments

Payments to Employees (13,157) (13,005)
Payments for Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses (13,852) (17,433)
Finance Payments (136) (212)
Net cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities 9b 9,242 6,982
Cash flows from investing activities

Receipts

Amounts Received Specifically for New/Upgraded Assets 20,443 555
Sale of Replaced Assets 112 393
Payments

Expenditure on Renewal/Replacement of Assets (5,623) (5,326)
Expenditure on New/Upgraded Assets (35,134) (16,298)
Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities (20,202) (20,676)
Cash flows from financing activities

Receipts

Proceeds from Loans 9,581 11,550
Payments

Repayments of Loans - (206)
Repayment of Lease Liabilities (202) (163)
Repayment of Bonds & Deposits (62) -
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Financing Activities 9,317 11,181
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held (1,643) (2,513)
plus: Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of period 1,893 4,406
Cash and cash equivalents held at end of period o 250 1,893

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 6 of 49





Financial Statements 2022
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
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Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted by Council in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Basis of Preparation

1.1 Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards as they apply to
not-for-profit entities, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Interpretations and
relevant South Australian legislation.

The financial report was authorised for issue by certificate under regulation 14 of the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011.

1.2 Historical Cost Convention
Except as stated below, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.
1.2 Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and requires management to exercise its judgement in applying Council’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are specifically referred to in the relevant sections of this Note.

1.3 Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($°000).
1.4 Estimates and assumptions

The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the 2021/22 financial statements. The financial impacts are a direct result of either
Council’s response to the pandemic or due to mandatory shutdowns as directed by the Australian Government and the advice
from the Australian Government Department of Health and SA Health.

With the aim of rminimising any impact of Covid-19, Council worked to reduce discretionary expenditure in the short term to
assist in mitigating decreased revenue and increased costs. It is expected further financial impacts will flow into the 2022/23
financial year but these have been largely taken into account during the development of the budget process for 2022/23.
The budget assumptions for 2022/23 assume a continued easing of restrictions put in place by the government. Council has
determined that there is no material uncertainty that casts doubt on Council’s ability to continue as a going concern.

(2) The Local Government Reporting Entity

City of Mount Gambier is incorporated under the SA Local Government Act 1999 and has its principal place of business at
10 Watson Terrace, Mount Gambier. These consolidated financial statements include the Council’s direct operations and all
entities through which Council controls resources to carry on its functions.

(3) Income Recognition

The Council recognises revenue under AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 1058) or AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (AASB 15) when appropriate.

In cases where there is an ‘enforceable’ contract with a customer with ‘sufficiently specific’ performance obligations, the
transaction is accounted for under AASB 15 where income is recognised when (or as) the performance obligations are satisfied
(i.e. when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer). Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which
the Council expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer.

In other cases, AASB 1058 applies when a not-for-profit (NFP) entity enters into transactions where the consideration to acquire
an asset is significantly less than the fair value of the asset principally to enable the entity to further its objectives. The excess

continued on next page ... Page 8 of 49





Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

of the asset recognised (at fair value) over any ‘related amounts’ is recognised as income immediately, except in the case
where a financial asset has been received to enable the council to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial asset that
is to be controlled by the council. In this case, the council recognises the excess as a liability that is recognised over time in
profit and loss when (or as) the entity satisfies its obligations under the transfer.

In recent years, the payment of untied grants (financial assistance grants/ local roads/ supplementary grants) has varied from
the annual allocation as shown in the table below:

Cash Annual
Payment . Difference
. Allocation
Received
2019/20 $3,384,000 $3,546,000 - $162,000
2020/21 $3,410,267 $3,381,972 + $28,295
2021/22 $5,134,125 $3,891,585| + $1,242,540

Because these grants are untied, the Australian Accounting Standards require that payments be recognised upon receipt.
Accordingly, the operating results of these periods have been distorted compared to those that would have been reported had
the grants been paid in the year to which they were allocated.

The Operating Surplus Ratio disclosed in Note 13 has also been calculated after adjusting for the distortions resulting from
the differences between the actual grants received and the grants entitlements allocated.

Construction Contracts

Construction works undertaken by Council for third parties are generally on an agency basis where the third party reimburses
Council for actual costs incurred, and usually do not extend beyond the reporting period. Reimbursements not received are
recognised as receivables and reimbursements received in advance are recognised as “payments received in advance”.

(4) Cash, Cash Equivalents and other Financial Instruments

Cash assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at Council’s option with an insignificant risk of changes
in value with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Receivables for rates and annual charges are secured over the subject land, and bear interest at rates determined in
accordance with the Local Government Act 1999. Other receivables are generally unsecured and do not bear interest.

All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the receipt of which is
considered doubtful.

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value at the date of recognition. A detailed statement of the accounting policies
applied to financial instruments also form part of Note 11.

(5) Inventories
Inventories held in respect of stores have been valued by using the weighted average cost on a continual basis, after

adjustment for loss of service potential. Inventories held in respect of business undertakings have been valued at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

continued on next page ... Page 9 of 49





Financial Statements 2022

City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(6) Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
6.1 Initial Recognition

All assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost is determined as
fair value at the date of acquisition.

All non-current assets purchased or constructed are capitalised as the expenditure is incurred and depreciated as soon as the
asset is held “ready for use”. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental
to the acquisition, including architects' fees and engineering design fees and all other costs incurred. The cost of non-current
assets constructed by the Council includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the project and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead.

6.2 Materiality

Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition exceeds materiality
thresholds established by Council for each type of asset. In determining (and in annually reviewing) such thresholds, regard is
had to the nature of the asset and its estimated service life. Examples of capitalisation thresholds applied during the year are
given in Note 6. No capitalisation threshold is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land or the Riddoch art Collection.
6.3 Subsequent Recognition

All material asset classes are revalued on a regular basis such that the carrying values are not materially different from fair
value. Significant uncertainties exist in the estimation of fair value of a number of asset classes including land, buildings and
associated structures and infrastructure. Further detail of these uncertainties, and of existing valuations, methods and valuers
are provided at Note 6.

6.4 Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

Other than land, footpath nature strips, the Les Hill Collection and the Riddoch art Collection, all infrastructure, property, plant
and equipment assets recognised are systematically depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis which, in the
opinion of Council, best reflects the consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets. Waste management assets
are depreciated on an asset capacity in use basis.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of classes of assets are reviewed annually.

Major depreciation periods for each class of asset are shown in Note 6. Depreciation periods for infrastructure assets have
been estimated based on the best information available to Council, but appropriate records covering the entire life cycle of
these assets are not available, and extreme care should be used in interpreting financial information based on these estimates.

6.5 Impairment

Assets whose future economic benefits are not dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and where the future economic
benefits would be replaced if Council were deprived thereof, are not subject to impairment testing.

Other assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount (which is the higher of the present value of future cash inflows or value in use).

Where an asset that has been revalued is subsequently impaired, the impairment is first offset against such amount as stands
to the credit of that class of assets in Asset Revaluation Reserve, any excess being recognised as an expense.

6.6 Correction of errors relating to a previous reporting period
Two errors from prior years have been identified with corrections made as at 1 July 2021.

Caroline Landfill
Adjustment of $1,675,800 to reflect the actual usage and remaining capacity of the 3C landfill cell.

Asset Disposal
Adjustment of $5,390,079 to correct an asset disposal error.
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City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(7) Payables
7.1 Goods & Services

Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the supply of goods and services and are recognised as liabilities when the
goods and services are received. Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month of invoice. No interest is payable on
these amounts.

7.2 Payments Received in Advance & Deposits

Amounts other than grants received from external parties in advance of service delivery, and security deposits held against
possible damage to Council assets, are recognised as liabilities until the service is delivered or damage reinstated, or the
amount is refunded as the case may be.

(8) Borrowings

Borrowings are carried at their principal amounts which represent the present value of future cash flows associated with
servicing the debt. Interest is accrued over the period to which it relates and is recorded as part of “Payables”. Interest free
loans are carried at their nominal amounts; interest revenues foregone by the lender effectively being a reduction of interest
expense in the period to which it relates.

(9) Employee Benefits

9.1 Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences

Liabilities for employees’ entitlements to salaries, wages and compensated absences expected to be paid or settled within
12 months of reporting date are accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based oncosts) measured in accordance with
AASB 119.

Liabilities for employee benefits not expected to be paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows (including payroll based oncosts) to be made in respect of services provided by employees up
to the reporting date. Present values are calculated using government guaranteed securities rates with similar maturity terms.

Weighted avg. discount rate 3.29% (2021, 0.36%)
Weighted avg. settlement period 1 year (2021, 1 year)

9.2 Superannuation

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Statewide Superannuation
Scheme. The Scheme has two types of membership, each of which is funded differently. Details of the accounting policies
applied and Council’s involvement with the schemes are reported in Note 16.

9.3 Capitalised and Distributed Costs

Historically, Capitalised and Distributed Costs have not been included in note 3.
This additional information is disclosed in Note 3 Employee costs (for 2021/2022 and restated for 2020/2021).
This change is a reallocation of capitalised and distrubeted costs and does not impact the overall employee costs.

(10) Provisions for Reinstatement, Restoration and Rehabilitation

Council operates the Caroline landfill site, incorporating cells which require capping upon complete fill. Capping and restoration
costs can include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure and the removal of residual materials and remediation and
rehabilitation of disturbed areas. Estimated close down and restoration costs are provided for in the accounting period when
the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs and are carried at the net present value of estimated future costs.

Although estimated future costs are based on a closure plan, such plans are based on current environmental requirements
which may change. Council’s policy to maximise recycling is extending the operational life of these facilities, and significant
uncertainty exists in the estimation of the future closure date.

The Council recognises a liability (disclosed as a provision) on the Balance Sheet and in Note 7. of the financial statements

to recognise the estimated future obligation of undertaking the required works per the conditions of the EPA licence held. A
number of assumptions are factored into the calculation of the liability to the estimated cost, required activities to be undertaken

continued on next page ... Page 11 of 49
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

and the timing of when they will occur. Council is planning on undertaking an independent assessment and update of the key
assumptions and for the liability to be updated in the 2022/23 financial year.

(11) Leases

Leases the Council assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Council as a lessee

The Council recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

i) Right-of-Use-Assets

The Council recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received and the estimate of costs to be incurred to restore
the leased asset.

Right of use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives
of the assets, as follows:

Office equipment 3 to 5 years
Land Improvements 4 years

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 6.5 - Impairment of non-
financial assets above.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Council recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Council uses its incremental
borrowing rate or the interest rate implicit in the lease.

(12) GST Implications

In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 “Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax”

» Receivables and Creditors include GST receivable and payable.

« Exceptin relation to input taxed activities, revenues and operating expenditures exclude GST receivable and payable.
* Non-current assets and capital expenditures include GST net of any recoupment.

* Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.

(13) New accounting standards and UIG interpretations

The Council applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021. New standards and amendments relevant to the Council are listed below. The Council has not early
adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Amendments to AASB 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions

In 2020, the AASB issued AASB 2020-4, Amendments to AASs - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions. The amendments
provide relief to lessees from applying AASB 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19
related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in
lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under IFRS
16, if the change were not a lease modification. The amendment was intended to apply until 30 June 2021, but as the impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic is continuing, in 2021 the AASB extended the period of application of the practical expedient to 30
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

June 2022. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021. This amendment had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Standards issued by the AASB not yet effective

The AASB has issued Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations which are not effective at 30 June 2022, these
standards have not been adopted by Council and will be included in the financial statements on their effective date. Where

the standard is expected to have a significant impact for Council then further information has been provided in this note.

The following list identifies all the new and amended Australian Accounting Standards, and Interpretation, that were issued
but not yet effective at the time of compiling these illustrative statements that could be applicable to Councils.

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

+ AASB 2020-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Annual Improvements 2018-2020 and Other
Amendments

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
+ AASB 2020-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current
and associated standards (amended by AASB 2020-6)
+ AASB 2021-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure of Accounting Polcies and Definition of
Acccounting Estimates ( amended by AASB 2021-6)

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

+ AASB 2014-10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between and Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (amended by
AASB 2015-10, AASB 2017-5 and AASB 2021-7))
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City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 2. Income

Financial Statements 2022

$'000 2022 2021
(a) Rates

General Rates

General Rates 19,944 21,773
Less: Mandatory Rebates (236) (236)
Less: Discretionary Rebates, Remissions & Write Offs 17) (27)
Total General Rates 19,691 21,510
Other Rates (Including Service Charges)

Landscape Levy 1,213 1,179
Waste Collection 2,790 -
Total Other Rates (Including Service Charges) 4,003 1,179
Other Charges

Penalties for Late Payment 81 57
Legal & Other Costs Recovered 47 23
Total Other Charges 128 80
Total Rates 23,822 22,769
(b) Statutory Charges

Development Act Fees 189 219
Town Planning Fees 147 160
Animal Registration Fees & Fines 195 148
Parking Fines / Expiation Fees 20 13
Other Licences, Fees & Fines 82 81
Total Statutory Charges 633 621
(c) User Charges

Cemetery/Crematoria Fees 869 771
Hall & Equipment Hire 8 1"
Sales - General 98 64
Sundry 199 150
Green Waste Collection 38 63
Landfill Charges 4,012 3,537
Sales - Waste Transfer Station 291 284
Total User Charges 5,515 4,880
(d) Investment Income

Local Government Finance Authority 13 25
- Banks & Other 1 -
Total Investment Income 14 25

continued on next page ...
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 2. Income (continued)

Financial Statements 2022

$'000 2022 2021
(e) Reimbursements

Private Works 16 16
Other 49 44
Total Reimbursements 65 60
(f) Other income

Insurance & Other Recoupments - Infrastructure, IPP&E 155 158
Sundry 284 405
Donations 59 72
Total Other income 498 635
(g) Grants, Subsidies, Contributions

Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 17,940 2,677
Total Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 17,940 2,677
Untied - Financial Assistance Grant 5,134 3,410
Roads to Recovery 409 404
Library and Communications 172 163
Sundry 184 285
Local Roads and Community Infrastructure 716 243
Total Other Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 6,615 4,505
Total Grants, Subsidies, Contributions 24,555 7,182
The functions to which these grants relate are shown in Note 12.

(i) Sources of grants

Commonwealth Government 10,162 2,155
State Government 13,877 4,770
Other 516 257
Total 24,555 7,182

continued on next page ...
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Note 2. Income (continued)

Financial Statements 2022

$ '000

2022

2021

(h) Conditions over Grants & Contributions

Grants and contributions which were obtained on the condition that they be expended
for specified purposes or in a future period, but which are not yet expended in
accordance with those conditions, are as follows:

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period

Less:

Expended during the current period from revenues recognised in previous reporting
periods

Pine Hall / O'Leary Road
Tertiary Education

State Bicycle

Subtotal

Plus:

Amounts recognised as revenues in this reporting period but not yet expended in
accordance with the conditions

Pine Hall / O'Leary Road
Tertiary Education

State Bicycle

Subtotal

Unexpended at the close of this reporting period

Net increase (decrease) in assets subject to conditions in the current reporting
period

(i) Physical Resources Received Free of Charge

Land & Improvements
Roads

Other

Footpaths & Kerbing

Total Physical Resources Received Free of Charge

427

31

378
49

31

427

416

427

(11)

24
1,052
10
674

427

108
736

386

1,760

1,230
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Note 3. Expenses

$ '000 Notes 2022 2021

(a) Employee costs

Salaries and Wages 11,095 10,382
Employee Leave Expense 863 1,508
Superannuation 16 1,268 1,205
Workers' Compensation Insurance 305 282
Other Employee Related Costs 49 58
Less: Capitalised and Distributed Costs (490) (377)
Total Operating Employee Costs 13,090 13,058
Total Number of Employees (full time equivalent at end of reporting period) 135 129

(b) Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses

(i) Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration

- Auditing the Financial Reports 25 13
Bad and Doubtful Debts (72) 73
Elected Members' Expenses 224 236
Election Expenses 9 10
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 186 332
(ii) Other Materials, Contracts and Expenses

Contractors 3,445 3,516
Energy 916 864
Maintenance 708 980
Legal Expenses 201 199
Levies Paid to Government - Regional Landscape levy 1,209 1,173
Sundry 779 460
Contributions/Donations 464 508
Insurance 325 335
Levies Paid to Government - EPA, ESL & Dog Levies 2,065 2,040
Materials 1,035 1,116
Training 185 188
Water 121 149
Communication 263 289
Consultants 388 888
Licences and Subscriptions 944 981
Subtotal - Other Material, Contracts & Expenses 13,048 13,686
Total Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses 13,234 14,018
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Note 3. Expenses (continued)
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$'000 2022 2021
(c) Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment

(i) Depreciation and Amortisation

Buildings & Other Structures 2,895 2,630
Infrastructure

Stormwater Drainage 117 115
Kerbing and Footpaths 1,206 1,157
Roads 1,932 1,861
Carparks 257 257
Right-of-use Assets 188 165
Plant & Equipment 788 724
Waste Management 842 795
Office Equipment 115 114
Other Assets 139 122
Subtotal 8,479 7,940
Total Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 8,479 7,940
(d) Finance Costs

Interest on Loans 126 135
Interest on Leases 10 18
Unwinding of Present Value Discounts 222 73
Total Finance Costs 358 226
Note 4. Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments

$'000 2022 2021
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

(i) Assets Renewed or Directly Replaced

Proceeds from Disposal 112 393
Less: Carrying Amount of Assets Sold (899) (1,123)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal (787) (730)
Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal or Revaluation of Assets (787) (730)
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$'000 2022 2021
(a) Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets

Cash on Hand at Bank 250 95
Deposits at Call — 1,798
Total Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets 250 1,893
(b) Trade & Other Receivables

Rates - General & Other 796 803
Accrued Revenues - 2,500
Debtors - General 1,411 1,007
GST Recoupment 655 398
Prepayments 114 27
Subtotal 2,976 4,735
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts (2) (156)
Total Trade & Other Receivables 2,974 4,579
(c) Inventories

Stores & Materials 41 35
Trading Stock 23 12
Total Inventories 64 47

continued on next page ...
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Note 6. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property (continued)

Financial Statements 2022

(a(i)) Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

as at 30/06/21

Asset movements during the reporting period

as at 30/06/22

Fair Depreciation

Value Accumulated Carrying Asset Additions  Asset Additions WDV of Asset  Expense (Note Accumulated Carrying
$'000 Level At Fair Value At Cost Depreciation amount New / Upgrade Renewals Disposals 3c) WIP Transfers Adjustments At Fair Value At Cost Depreciation amount
Waste Management 3 1,533 8,548 (8,920) 1,161 - 150 - (842) - 1,676 1,683 8,548 (8,086) 2,145
Capital Work in Progress - 19,458 - 19,458 37,195 1,515 (30) - (349) - - 57,789 - 57,789
Land 2 15,601 - - 15,601 - - - - - - 15,601 - - 15,601
Land 3 37,683 108 - 37,791 25 - - - - - 37,683 133 - 37,816
Office Equipment - 2,064 (1,499) 565 8 193 (12) (115) 40 - - 2,288 (1,609) 679
Riddoch Collection 3 3,515 - - 3,515 10 - - - - - 3,515 10 - 3,525
Buildings & Other Structures 2 3,987 - (2,018) 1,969 33 - - (113) - - 3,987 33 (2,131) 1,889
Buildings & Other Structures 3 104,343 1,061 (50,101) 55,303 102 133 (35) (2,782) 47 - 102,030 1,343 (50,605) 52,768
Stormwater Drainage 3 8,022 88 (2,354) 5,756 23 - - (117) 16 - 8,022 127 (2,471) 5,678
Kerbing and Footpaths 3 74,206 1,696 (19,807) 56,095 1,163 705 (168) (1,206) 1 - 74,038 3,533 (20,981) 56,590
Roads 3 67,385 3,073 (20,216) 50,242 850 2,093 (457) (1,932) 202 - 66,929 6,099 (22,029) 50,999
Carparks 3 10,451 45 (2,865) 7,631 47 35 - (257) - - 10,451 127 (3,122) 7,456
Right-of-Use Assets - 568 (340) 228 - 204 - (188) - - - 593 (349) 244
Plant & Equipment - 8,997 (2,707) 6,290 75 658 (197) (788) 43 - - 9,385 (3,304) 6,081
Other Assets - 4,175 (2,358) 1,817 55 178 - (139) - - - 4,408 (2,497) 1,911
Total Infrastructure, Property, Plant &
Equipment 326,726 49,881 (113,185) 263,422 39,586 5,864 (899) (8,479) - 1,676 323,939 94,416 (117,184) 301,171
Comparatives 335,143 17,670 (105,970) 246,843 20,295 5,347 (1,123) (7,940) - - 326,726 49,881 (113,185) 263,422
continued on next page ... Page 20 of 49
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Note 6. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property (continued)

(b) Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property
Valuation of Assets

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various Accounting Standards for either recognition
and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a "level" in the
fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Refer to Note 6a for the disclosure of the Fair Value Levels of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment Assets.
Information on Valuations

Fair value hierarchy level 2 valuations - Certain land, and the buildings and structures thereon, are shown above as being
based on fair value hierarchy level 2 valuation inputs. They are based on prices for similar assets in an active market, with
directly or indirectly observable adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset.

Fair value hierarchy level 3 valuations of land - Valuations of Crown land, community land and land subject to other restrictions
on use or disposal, shown above as being based on fair value hierarchy level 3 valuation inputs, are based on prices for similar
assets in an active market, but include adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset
that are not directly or indirectly observable in that market, or the number and / or amount of observable adjustments of which
are so great that the valuation is more fairly described as being based on level 3 valuation inputs.

Fair value hierarchy level 3 valuations of buildings, infrastructure and other assets - There is no known market for buildings,
infrastructure and other assets. These assets are valued at depreciated current replacement cost. This method involves:

» The determination of the cost to construct the asset (or its modern engineering equivalent) using current prices for
materials and labour, the quantities of each being estimated based on recent experience of this or similar Councils, or
on industry construction guides where these are more appropriate.

» The calculation of the depreciation that would have accumulated since original construction using current estimates of
residual value and useful life under the prime cost depreciation method adopted by Council.

This method has significant inherent uncertainties, relying on estimates of quantities of materials and labour, residual values
and useful lives, and the possibility of changes in prices for materials and labour, and the potential for development of more
efficient construction techniques. Accordingly, formal sensitivity analysis does not provide useful information.

Other Information

At 1 July 2004 upon the transition to AIFRS, Council elected pursuant to AASB 1.D5 to retain a previously established deemed
cost under GAAP as its deemed cost. With subsequent addition at cost, this remains as the basis of recognition of non-material
asset classes.

Upon revaluation, the current new replacement cost and accumulated depreciation are re-stated such that the difference
represents the fair value of the asset determined in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement: accumulated
depreciation is taken to be the difference between current new replacement cost and fair value. In the case of land, current
replacement cost is taken to be the fair value.

Highest and best use
All of Council's non financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.

Highest and best use - For land which Council has an unfettered right to sell, the “highest and best use” recognises the
possibility of the demolition or substantial modification of some or all of the existing buildings and structures affixed to the land.
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Note 6. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property (continued)

Much of the land under Council’s care and control is Crown land or has been declared as community land under the provisions
of the Local Government Act 1999. Other types of restrictions also exist.

For land subject to these restrictions, the highest and best use is taken to be the "highest and best use" available to Council,
with a rebuttable presumption that the current use is the "highest and best use". The reason for the current use of a large
proportion of Council’s assets being other than the “highest and best use” relates to Council’s principal role as the provider of
services to the community, rather than the use of those assets for the generation of revenue.

For buildings and other structures on and in the land, including infrastructure, “highest and best use” is determined in
accordance with the land on and in which they are situated.

Transition to AASB 13 - Fair Value Measurement
The requirements of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement have been applied to all valuations undertaken since 1 July 2013 as
shown by the valuation dates by individual asset classes below.

Capitalisation Thresholds

Capitalisation thresholds used by Council for a representative range of assets are shown below. No capitalisation threshold
is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land.

$
Office Furniture & Equipment 1,000
Other Plant & Equipment 5,000
Buildings - new contruction/extensions 5,000
Park & Playground Furniture & Equipment 1,000
Road construction & reconstruction 5,000
Paving & Footpaths, Kerb & Gutter 5,000
Stormwater Drainage 5,000
Waste Management 5,000

Estimated Useful Lives

Useful lives are estimated for each individual asset. In estimating useful lives, regard is had to technical and commercial
obsolescence, as well as legal and other limitations on continued use. The range of useful lives for a representative range of
assets is shown below, although individual assets may have an estimated total useful life of greater or lesser amount:

Plant, Furniture & Equipment

Office Equipment 3 to 10 years
Vehicles and Road-making Equipment 3 to 25 years
Other Plant & Equipment 4 to 20 years

Building & Other Structures
Buildings 15 to 100 years
Park Structures 20 to 30 years

Playground Equipment
Benches, Seats, etc

Waste Management
Landfill assets

Infrastructure

Sealed Roads - Surface

Sealed Roads - Structure
Unsealed Roads

Paving & Footpaths, Kerb & Gutter
Stormwater Drainage

Other Assets

continued on next page ...

20 to 30 years
10 to 30 years

capacity in use

12 to 40 years
30 to 150 years
40 to 75 years
10 to 70 years
50 to 70 years
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Note 6. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property (continued)

Library Books 7 to 10 years
Artworks indefinite
Right-of-Use Assets (refer to Note 15) 3 to 5 years

Land & Land Improvements

Council being of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value sufficiently reliably to qualify for recognition, land under
roads has not been recognised in these reports. Land acquired for road purposes during the year is initially recognised at cost,
but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing off the expenditure.

Freehold land and land over which Council has control, but does not have title, is recognised on the cost basis. No capitalisation
threshold is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land.

Land was last revalued in 2020 based on Valuer General’s valuations provided to Council.

Buildings & Other Structures
Buildings and other structures were revalued as at 30 June 2020 by Mitch Ekonomopoulos of AssetVal Pty Ltd. Revaluations
occur every four years. All additions are initially recorded at cost.

Infrastructure

Infrastructure assets include stormwater drainage, footpath and kerbing, roads and carpark assets. Infrastructure assets were
valued by Council officers at depreciated current replacement cost during the reporting period ended 30 June 2018, based
on actual costs incurred during the reporting period ended 30 June 2018. All acquisitions made after the respective dates of
valuation are recorded at cost.

Waste Management - Landfill

Landfill remediation and cell development assets are amortised on a consumption basis over the individual landfill cell’s
capacity to receive waste. At the time of construction of a cell, Council includes the present value of estimated costs to cap
and close the cell into the landfill cell. This estimate is offset by the recognition of a provision. This recognition of the capping
costs is amortised in line with the consumption of the landfill cell’'s capacity used in any one year.

Plant, Furniture & Equipment
These assets are recognised on the cost basis.

Riddoch Art Collection
The Riddoch art collection was revalued as at 30 June 2018 by Simon Storey Art and Cultural Collection valuers. These assets
are not depreciated.

All other Assets

These assets are recognised on the cost basis. Library books and other lending materials are capitalised in bulk, and written
out when fully depreciated.
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2022 2022 2021 2021
$'000 Current Non Current Current Non Current
(a) Trade and Other Payables
Goods & Services 7,645 - 2,348 -
Payments Received in Advance 396 - 371 -
- Grants & Contributions - Capital 401 - 378 -
- Other 37 - 49 -
Accrued Expenses - Employee Entitlements 331 - 291 —
Accrued Expenses - Other 398 - 2,646 -
Deposits, Retentions & Bonds 86 - 148 -
Other 37 - 43 -
Total Trade and Other Payables 9,331 - 6,274 -
(b) Borrowings
Loans 1,100 22,202 219 13,502
Lease Liabilities 15b 122 109 228 -
Total Borrowings 1,222 22,311 447 13,502
All interest bearing liabilities are secured over
the future revenues of the Council
(c) Provisions
Employee Entitlements (including oncosts) 2,784 179 2,902 168
Future Reinstatement / Restoration, etc - 3,328 - 3,896
Total Provisions 2,784 3,507 2,902 4,064
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as at 30/06/21

as at 30/06/22

Opening Increments Closing
$'000 Balance (Decrements) Transfers Impairments Balance
(a) Asset Revaluation Reserve
Land 42,801 - - - 42,801
Buildings & Other Structures 53,310 - - - 53,310
Infrastructure 70,636 - 5,390 - 76,026
Plant & Equipment 770 - - - 770
Minor Plant 34 - - - 34
Waste Management 2,926 - - - 2,926
Other Assets 4,985 - - - 4,985
Total Asset Revaluation Reserve 175,462 - 5,390 - 180,852
Comparatives 175,462 - - - 175,462

continued on next page ...
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Note 8. Reserves (continued)

as at 30/06/21 as at 30/06/22
Opening Tfrs to Tfrs from Other Closing
$'000 Balance Reserve Reserve Movements Balance
(b) Other Reserves
Mount Gambier Cemetery 711 - — — 711
Mayor Christmas Appeal 69 23 - - 92
Christmas Parade 3) 3 — _ _
Junior Sports Assistance Fund 107 15 - - 122
Waste Management - 150 - - 150
Open Space - 297 - - 297
Total Other Reserves 884 488 - - 1,372
Comparatives 874 13 (3) - 884

Purposes of Reserves

Asset Revaluation Reserves
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements arising from changes in fair value of non current
assets (less any subsequent impairment losses, where applicable).

Other Reserves
Other Reserves are used when reserves are maintained for the purpose of specific Council committees or for committed funds
of Council.

Mount Gambier Cemetery
The Mount Gambier Cemetery reserve represents funds that have been separated for any development works or projects that
may be required at the Carinya Gardens Cemetery and crematorium.

Mayor Christmas Appeal
The Mayor Christmas Appeal represents bank funds and payables of the City of Mount Gambier related to the Mayor Christmas
Appeal and to be used for that purpose.

Christmas Parade
The Christmas Parade reserve represents bank funds and payables of the City of Mount Gambier related to the Christmas
Parade to be used for that purpose.

Junior Sports Assistance Fund
The Junior Sports Assistance Fund reserve represents bank funds and payables of the City of Mount Gambier related to the
Junior Sporting Assistance Fund and to be used for that purpose.

Waste Management
Residual monies (income less expenses) from activities relating to waste collection.

Open Space
Monies held from creatrion of sub-divisons to be used for future open space projects.
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Note 9. Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows

$'000 Notes 2022 2021

(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to

maturity subject to insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the end of

the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled

to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Total Cash & Equivalent Assets 5 250 1,893

Balances per Statement of Cash Flows 250 1,893

(b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash from

Operating Activities

Net Surplus/(Deficit) 20,914 1,430

Non-Cash Items in Income Statements

Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 8,479 7,940

Premiums & Discounts Recognised & Unwound - 73

Non-Cash Asset Acquisitions (8,252) (3,906)

Grants for capital acquisitions treated as Investing Activity (20,443) (555)

Net (Gain) Loss on Disposals 787 730
1,485 5,712

Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 1,759 (2,208)

Change in Allowances for Under-Recovery of Receivables 154 61

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 17) 8

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables 6,536 3,296

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Unpaid Employee Benefits (107) 53

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Other Provisions (568) 60

Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 9,242 6,982

(c) Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities

Acquisition of assets by means of:

Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 2i 1,760 1,230

Amounts recognised in Income Statement 1,760 1,230

Leases 203 21

Estimated Future Reinstatement etc. Costs 264 210

Total Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities 2,227 1,461

(d) Financing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following lines of credit

($'000):

Bank Overdrafts 250 250

Corporate Credit Cards 30 30

LGFA Cash Advance Debenture Facility 30,000 20,000

continued on next page ...
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Note 9. Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the
bank without notice.
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Note 10(a). Functions

$'000

Functions/Activities

Other

Administration / Support Services
Community Support

Culture

Economic Development
Environment

Recreation

Regulatory Services

Transport

Engineering / Indirect
Unclassified Activities

Total Functions/Activities

Income, Expenses and Assets have been directly attributed to the following Functions / Activities.
Details of these Functions/Activities are provided in Note 10(b).

Financial Statements 2022

TOTAL ASSETS HELD

OPERATING GRANTS INCLUDED (CURRENT &

INCOME EXPENSES SURPLUS (DEFICIT) IN INCOME NON-CURRENT)

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
- - - - - - - - 1,364 398
27,961 25,156 6,827 6,380 21,134 18,776 5,148 3,410 9,996 20,824
898 808 1,829 1,918 (931) (1,110) - 1 13,362 20,534
368 298 3,771 4,086 (3,403) (3,788) 203 185 32,772 26,034
162 188 2,060 1,871 (1,898) (1,683) 34 - 3,840 3,890
4,621 4,355 8,982 8,470 (4,361) (4,115) 50 201 8,980 11,075
2,207 1,397 4,159 5,160 (1,952) (3,763) 771 31 113,266 74,411
587 736 1,002 1,232 (415) (496) - - 18 18
444 728 3,788 3,817 (3,344) (3,089) 409 677 106,067 103,715
(86) (171) 2,743 2,347 (2,829) (2,518) - - 8,168 8,965

- - - (39) - 39 - - 6,626 77
37,162 33,495 35,161 35,242 2,001 (1,747) 6,615 4,505 304,459 269,941

Revenues and expenses exclude net gain (loss) on disposal or revaluation of assets, amounts received specifically for new or upgraded assets and physical resources received free of charge.
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Note 10(b). Components of Functions

The activities relating to Council functions are as follows:

Administration / Support Services

Governance, elected members, organisational, support services, accounting/finance, payroll, human resources, information
technology, communication, rates administration, records, occupancy, customer service, other support services, revenues,
separate and special rates.

Community Support

Public order and safety, crime prevention, emergency services, other fire protection, other public order and safety, health
services, pest control — health, immunisation, preventive health services, other health services, community support, senior
citizens facilities, children and youth services, community assistance, other community support, community amenities, bus
shelters, cemeteries / crematoria, public conveniences, car parking — non-fee-paying and other community amenities.

Culture
Library services, other library services, cultural services, cultural venues, heritage, museums and art galleries and other
cultural services.

Economic Development
Regional development, tourism, visitor information and other economic development.

Environment

Animal/plant boards, waste management, domestic waste, green waste, recycling, transfer station, other waste
management, other environment, stormwater and drainage, street cleaning, street lighting, street-scaping, Natural Resource
Management levy, and other environment.

Recreation
Parks and gardens, sports facilities — indoor, sports facilities — outdoor, swimming centres — Outdoor, and other recreation.

Regulatory Services
Dog and cat control, building control, town planning, clean air/pollution control, litter control, health inspection, parking
control, and other regulatory services.

Transport
Footpaths and kerbing, roads — sealed, roads — formed, roads — natural formed, roads — unformed, traffic management and
other transport.

Engineering / Indirect
Depot management, indirect and general plant cost not included in other functions.

Unclassified Activities
Finance charges and investment revenue, private works and sundry property maintenance.
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Note 11. Financial Instruments

Recognised Financial Instruments
Bank, Deposits at Call, Short Term Deposits

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost; interest is recognised when earned.

Terms & Conditions:
Deposits are returning fixed interest rates between 0.3% and 1.05% (2021: 0.3% and 1.95%).

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value due to the short term to maturity.

Receivables - Rates & Associated Charges

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised using
the expected credit loss method.

Terms & Conditions:
Secured over the subject land, arrears attract interest of 0.42% (2021: 0.43%). Council is not materially exposed to any
individual debtor, credit risk exposure is concentrated within the Council's boundaries in the State.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).

Receivables - Fees & Other Charges

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised using
the expected credit loss method.

Terms & Conditions:
Unsecured, and do not bear interest. Council is not materially exposed to any individual debtor, credit risk exposure is
concentrated within the Council's boundaries.

Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).

Receivables - Other Levels of Government

Accounting Policy:

Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised using
the expected credit loss method.

Terms & Conditions:

Amounts due have been calculated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the respective programs following advice
of approvals, and do not bear interest. All amounts are due by Departments and Agencies of State and Federal Governments.
Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value.

Liabilities - Creditors and Accruals

Accounting Policy:

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Council.
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Note 11. Financial Instruments (continued)

Terms & Conditions:
Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

continued on next page ... Page 32 of 49





City of Mount Gambier

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note 11. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial Statements 2022

Liabilities - Interest Bearing Borrowings

Accounting Policy:

Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate.

Terms & Conditions:

Secured over future revenues, borrowings are repayable (describe basis); interest is charged at fixed (or variable - describe)
rates between 1.3% and 5.97% (2021: 1.3% and 5.97%).

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

Liabilities - Leases

Accounting Policy:

Accounted for in accordance with AASB 16 as stated in Note 17.

Total

Due Due > 1 year Due Contractual Carrying
$'000 <1 year & < 5 years > 5 years Cash Flows Values
Financial Assets and
Liabilities
2022
Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 250 - - 250 250
Receivables 2,860 - - 2,860 2,860
Total Financial Assets 3,110 - - 3,110 3,110
Financial Liabilities
Non-Current Borrowings 6,350 8,139 12,630 27,119 22,202
Payables 8,498 - - 8,498 8,498
Current Borrowings 1,925 - - 1,925 1,100
Leases 122 109 - 231 231
Total Financial Liabilities 16,895 8,248 12,630 37,773 32,031
2021
Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,893 - - 1,893 1,893
Receivables 4,552 - - 4,552 4,552
Total Financial Assets 6,445 - - 6,445 6,445
Financial Liabilities
Non-Current Borrowings 11,676 2,164 - 13,840 13,502
Payables 5,476 - - 5,476 5,476
Current Borrowings 219 - - 219 219
Leases 228 - - 228 228
Total Financial Liabilities 17,599 2,164 - 19,763 19,425

continued on next page ...
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Note 11. Financial Instruments (continued)

The following interest rates were applicable to Council's Borrowings at balance date:

2022 2021
Weighted Avg Carrying Weighted Avg Carrying
$'000 Interest Rate Value Interest Rate Value
Other Variable Rates 2.42% 6,350 1.79% 11,550
Fixed Interest Rates 5.19% 17,183 5.97% 2,399
23,533 13,949

Net Fair Value
All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments. There is no recognised market for the
financial assets of the Council.

Risk Exposures

Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The maximum credit
risk on financial assets of the Council is the carrying amount, net of any impairment. All Council investments are made with
the SA Local Government Finance Authority and are guaranteed by the SA Government. Except as detailed in Notes 5 & 6 in
relation to individual classes of receivables, exposure is concentrated within the Council's boundaries, and there is no material
exposure to any individual debtor.

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. All of Council's
financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market, and hence neither market risk nor

currency risk apply.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that Council will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial liabilities. In accordance with
the model Treasury Mangement Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a range of maturity dates. Council also has
available a range of bank overdraft and standby borrowing facilities that it can access.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Council has a
balance of both fixed and variable interest rate borrowings and investments. Cash flow fluctuations are managed holistically
in seeking to minimise interest costs over the longer term in a risk averse manner.
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Note 12. Capital Expenditure and Investment Property Commitments

$'000 2022 2021

Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not recognised in

the financial statements as liabilities:

Buildings & Other Structures 6,579 41,206

Plant & Equipment 542 369

Other 341 -
7,462 41,575

These expenditures are payable:

Not later than one year 7,462 41,575
7,462 41,575
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$'000

Amounts
2022

Indicator

2022

Indicators

2021

2020

These Financial Indicators have been calculated in accordance
with Information paper 9 - Local Government Financial
Indicators prepared as part of the LGA Financial Sustainability
Program for the Local Government Association of South
Australia.

1. Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating Surplus

2,001

Total Operating Income

This ratio expresses the operating surplus as a percentage of
total operating revenue.

2. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net Financial Liabilities

37,162

35,931

Total Operating Income

Net Financial Liabilities are defined as total liabilities less
financial assets (excluding equity accounted investments in
Council businesses). These are expressed as a percentage of
total operating revenue.

Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating Surplus

37,162

759

Total Operating Income

Adjustments to Ratios

In recent years the Federal Government has made advance
payments prior to 30th June from future year allocations of
financial assistance grants, as explained in Note 1. These
Adjusted Ratios correct for the resulting distortion in key ratios
for each year and provide a more accurate basis for comparison.

Adjusted Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net Financial Liabilities

35,920

32,891

Total Operating Income

3. Asset Renewal Funding Ratio
Asset Renewals

35,920

5,623

Infrastructure & Asset Management Plan required expenditure

Asset renewals expenditure is defined as capital expenditure on
the renewal and replacement of existing assets relative to the
optimal level planned, and excludes new capital expenditure on
the acquisition of additional assets.

continued on next page ...

7,140

5.4%

97%

21%

92%

79%

(5.2)%

62%

(5.3)%

67%

84%

(1.7)%

18%

(1.2)%

17%

105%
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Note 13. Financial Indicators (continued)

Financial Indicators - Graphs

1. Operating Surplus Ratio

7.5
54 Commentary on 2021/22 result
5 : Purpose of operating
surplus ratio 2021/22 ratio  5.4%
2.5
S The operating surplus ratio in 2022 is significantly
2 0 — higher than in previous years driven by the timing of
2 Financial Assistance Grants and additional Local
17 Roads and Community Infrastructure grant revenue,
2.5 o This indicator is to determine the and increased user charges (including Caroline
percentage the operating revenue | | landfill facilities). Overall operating expenditure was
5 varies from operating expenditure broadly in line with the prior year.
5.2
The target as per Council's Treasury Management
-1.5 Policy is a ratio of greater or equal to 0.0% by
2020 2021 2022 2026/27.
2. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
125
Commentary on 2021/22 result
Purpose of net financial
100 - liabilities ratio ;
2021/22 ratio  97%
o 75
>
o 62
8 50 Council's Net Financial Liabilities Ratio is greater
This indicator shows the than previous yeal;zrrs)f‘lﬁcr:]tlr;g a higher level of
significance of the net amount gs-
25 18 owed;o;?t?r:s,r(;c\)lrgﬁféed o Due to timing of the Wulanda project and associated
P 9 borrowings the ratio is lower than the target of lower
than 100% by 2026/27.
2020 2021 2022
Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio
4
Commentary on 2021/22 result
21 Purpose of adjusted
2 i i .
operating surplus ratio 2021/22 ratic 2.1%
© 0
2
2 2 -1.2
This indicator is to determine the The operating surplus ratio in 2022 is significantly
percentage the operating revenue higher than in previous years driven by additional
(adjusted for timing differences in Local Roads and Community Infrastructure grant
-4 the Financial Assistance Grant) revenue, and increased user charges (including
varies from operating expenditure Caroline landfill facilities).
-6 -5.3
2020 2021 2022

continued on next page ...
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Note 13. Financial Indicators (continued)

Adjusted Net Financial Liabilities Ratio

120
Commentary on 2021/22 result
100 Purpose of adjusted net
92 . . . T .
financial liabilities ratio 2021/22 ratioc 92%
80
< 67
2 60
&
This indicator is to determine the
40 percentage the operating revenue Council's Net Financial Liabilities Ratio is greater
(adjusted for timing differences in than previous years reflecting a higher level of
20 17 the Financial Assistance Grant) borrowings.
varies from operating expenditure
2020 2021 2022
3. Asset Renewal Funding Ratio
150
Commentary on 2021/22 result
155 Purpose of asset
105 renewal funding ratio 2021/22 ratio  79%
100
2 84 79
o 75 Council developed and adopted revised Asset
B Management Plans at the end of 2022 which provide
L3 guidance of when and how much needs to be spent
50 This indicator aims to determine if to maintain Council's infrastructure.
as;etlzier;?j ?::r? (;eg?n";?ev:nd Disruptions and supply shortages including
25 P P Y equipment, materials and labour have impacted on
the timing of the delivery of planned works. These
projects are expected to be completed in the 2022/23
2020 2021 2022 financial year.
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$'000 2022 2021

The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital investment

activities of the Council prepared on a simplified Uniform Presentation Framework

basis.

All Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarise annual budgets and long-term

financial plans on the same basis.

The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common 'core' of financial

information, which enables meaningful comparisons of each Council's finances.

Income 37,162 33,495

less Expenses (35,161) (35,242)

Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 2,001 (1,747)

Net Outlays on Existing Assets

Capital Expenditure on Renewal and Replacement of Existing Assets (5,623) (5,326)

add back Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 8,479 7,940

add back Proceeds from Sale of Replaced Assets 112 393

2,968 3,007

Net Outlays on New and Upgraded Assets

Capital Expenditure on New and Upgraded Assets (including Investment Property &

Real Estate Developments) (35,134) (16,298)

add back Amounts Received Specifically for New and Upgraded Assets 20,443 555
(14,691) (15,743)

Net Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial Year (9,722) (14,483)
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(i) Council as a lessee

Terms and conditions of leases

Council entered contracts as a lessee for various IT equipment, the Dimjalla skate park and RFID.

Set out below are the carrying amounts (written down value) of right of use assets recognised within Infrastructure Propery,

Plant & Equipment.

(a) Right of use assets

$'000 Office Other Total
2022

Opening balance 217 11 228
Additions to right-of-use assets 204 - 204
Depreciation charge 177) (11) (188)
Balance at 30 June 244 - 244
2021

Opening balance 350 21 371
Additions to right-of-use assets 22 - 22
Depreciation charge (155) (10) (165)
Balance at 30 June 217 11 228

(b) Lease liabilities

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the

movements during the period:

$'000 2022 2021
Balance at 1 July 228 370
Additions 202 21
Accretion of interest 10 18
Payments (209) (181)
Balance at 30 June 231 228
Classified as:

Current 122 228
Non Current 109 -
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is included in Note 13.

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of $198,000.

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Depreciation expense of Right-of-Use Assets 188 165
Interest expense on lease liabilities 10 18
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 198 183

continued on next page ...
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Note 15. Leases (continued)

(i) Council as a lessor
Council owns various buildings, plant and other facilities that are available for hire or lease (on a non-cancellable basis

wherever practicable) in accordance with the published revenue policy. Rentals received from such leases are disclosed as
rent and hire of non-investment property in Note 2.
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Note 16. Superannuation

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to Hostplus (formerly Statewide Super).
There are two types of membership, each of which is funded differently. Permanent and contract employees of the South
Australian Local Government sector with Salarylink benefits prior to 24 November 2009 have the option to contribute to the
Accumulation section and/or Salarylink. All other employees (including casuals) have all contributions allocated to the
Accumulation section.

Accumulation only Members

Accumulation only members receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer contributions
are based on a fixed percentage of ordinary time earnings in accordance with superannuation guarantee legislation (10.00%
in 2021/22; 9.50% in 2020/21) and enterprise bargaining agreement (1% in 2022 and 2021). No further liability accrues to the
Council as the superannuation benefits accruing to employees are represented by their share of the net assets of the Fund.

Salarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members

Salarylink is a defined benefit scheme where the benefit payable is based on a formula determined by the member’s contribution
rate, number of years and level of contribution and final average salary. Council makes employer contributions to Salarylink as
determined by the Fund’s Trustee based on advice from the appointed Actuary. The rate is currently 6.3% (6.3% in 2020/21)
of “superannuation” salary.

In addition, Council makes a separate contribution of 3% of ordinary time earnings for Salarylink members to their Accumulation
account. Employees also make member contributions to the Salarylink section of the Fund. As such, assets accumulate in the
Salarylink section of the Fund to meet the member's benefits, as defined in the Trust Deed, as they accrue.

The Salarylink section is a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Salarylink section's assets and liabilities are pooled and
are not allocated by each employer, and employees may transfer to another employer within the local government sector and
retain membership of the Fund, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers. As
provided by AASB 119.34(a), Council does not use defined benefit accounting for these contributions.

The most recent actuarial investigation was conducted by the Fund's actuary, Louise Campbell, FIAA, of Willis Towers Watson
as at 30 June 2021. The Trustee has determined that the current funding arrangements are adequate for the expected
Salarylink liabilities. However, future financial and economic circumstances may require changes to Council’s contribution
rates at some future time.

Contributions to Other Superannuation Schemes

Council also makes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the “choice of fund”
legislation. All such schemes are of the accumulation type, where the superannuation benefits accruing to the employee are
represented by their share of the net assets of the scheme, and no further liability attaches to the Council.
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Note 17. Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but knowledge is
considered relevant to the users of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the allocation of scarce
resources.

1. Land under roads

As reported in the Financial Statements, Council is of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value sufficiently reliably for
these assets to qualify for recognition, and accordingly land under roads has not been recognised in the reports. Land acquired
for road purposes during the year is initially recognised at cost, but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing
off the expenditure.

At reporting date, Council controlled 230.9 km of road reserves of average width 20 metres.
2. Potential insurance losses

Council is a multi-purpose organisation providing a large range of building, parks infrastructure, playgrounds and other facilities
accessible to the public. At any time, it is likely that claims will have been made against Council that remain unsettled.

Council insures against all known insurable risks using a range of insurance policies, each of which is subject to deductable
"insurance excesses", the amount of which varies according to the class of insurance.

Council has recognised the potential losses arising from claims known at reporting date based on average historical net cost
(including insurance excess) of similar types of claims. Other potential claims not reported to Council may have existed at
reporting date.

3. Legal expenses

Council is the planning consent authority for its area under the Development Act 1993 (as amended). Pursuant to that Act,
certain persons aggrieved by a planning decision of the Council may appeal. It is normal practice that parties bear their own
legal costs. At the date of these reports, Council has not received notice of any appeals against planning decisions made prior
to reporting date. All known costs have been recognised, but the amount of further costs cannot be known until the appeals
are determined.
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Note 18. Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Events that occur after the reporting date of 30 June 2022, up to and including the date when the financial statements are
"authorised for issue" have been taken into account in preparing these statements.

Council has adopted the date of receipt of the Auditors' Report as the appropriate "authorised for issue" date relating to
these General Purpose Financial Statements.

Council is aware of the following "non adjusting event" that merits disclosure;

- a deed of settlement and variation was signed with Badge Constructions (SA) Pty Ltd on 5 September 2022 which
amended the timescales for delivery of the Wulanda project and the amount payable.
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Note 19. Related Party Transactions

Key Management Personnel

Transactions with Key Management Personnel

The Key Management Personnel of the Council include the Mayor, Councillors, CEO and certain prescribed officers under
section 112 of the Local Government Act 1999. In all, 16 persons were paid the following total compensation:

$ '000 2022 2021

The compensation paid to Key Management Personnel comprises:

Salaries, allowances & other short term benefits 1,005 974
Post-Employment Benefits 82 72
Long-Term Benefits - 41
Total 1,087 1,087

One key management personnel and/or relatives of key management personnel are members in organisations that received
Council support in the year, e.g. through sponsorship of community and sporting.

Key management personnel and/or relatives of key management personnel own retail businesses from which various supplies
were purchased as required either for cash or on 30 day account. These purchases were made on normal commercial terms
on an arm's length basis. No individual purchases from these businesses exceeded $188.30 with the total cumulative spend
for 21/22 being $1,845.21.
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Independent Auditor's Report - Financial Statements: ONLY PDF inserted here
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Certification of Auditor Independence

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of City of Mount Gambier Council for the
year ended 30 June 2022 the Council’s Auditor, Dean Newbery and Partners has maintained its independence in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Govemment Act 1999 and the Local Govemment (Financial Management) Regulations
2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requnraments of Regulation 22(3) Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulatlons 011 é _

Paul Duka
PRESIDING MEMBER, AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

Date: Ji- IO -2022—
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Statement by Auditor

| confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of City of Mount Gambier for the year ended 30 June 2022, | have
maintained my independence in accordance with the requirements of APES 110 — Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants,
Section 290, published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011.

Samatha Creten

Dean Newbery

Date:

Page 49 of 49










City Of X Civic Centre, 10 Watson Terrace
Mount Gambier Mount Gambier SA 5290

PO Box 56
Mount Gambier SA 5290

Telephone 08 87212555
Reference: AF21/125 Facsimile 08 87249791
Enquiries to:-  Mrs J Scoggins city@mountgambier.sa.gov.au

mountgambier.sa.gov.au

10 October 2022

Samantha Creten

Partner

Dean Newbery

PO Box 755

NORTH ADELAIDE SA 5006

Dear Samantha,

RE: MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS: EXTERNAL AUDIT, FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30
JUNE 2022

This Management Representation letter is provided in connection with your audit examination of the
General Purpose Financial Report (2022 Financial Report) of City of Mount Gambier Council (‘the
Council’) for the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

We hereby confirm, at your formal request, that to the best of our knowledge and belief, the
following representations relating to the 2022 Financial Report are correct.

In making these representations, we understand that they are provided to you in connection with
your external audit of the Council for the year ended 30 June 2022 as prescribed by the Local
Government Act 1999, for the express purpose of your expressing an opinion as to whether the
2022 Financial Report is, in all material respects, presented fairly in accordance with all applicable
standards and requirements, including statutory. In making these representations, we have read
and understood the standard unqualified Audit Opinion that would be normally expressed to the
Council by you as is required under Section 129(3) of the Local Government Act 1999 for the
financial year ended 30 June 2022. We therefore understand, without exception, the potential
ramifications of making any representations to you that are not correct, to the best of our knowledge
and belief as of the date of this letter.

We understand and acknowledge that it is the Council management’'s responsibility for the fair
presentation of the 2022 Financial Report and that management, as appropriate, have approved the
Financial Report. Accordingly, management of the Council are of the opinion that the 2022 Financial
Report is free of material misstatements, including omissions.

1. Compliance with all Applicable Standards, including Statutory

The Financial Report of the Council has been prepared so as to present a true and fair view of the
-state of affairs of the Council as at 30 June 2022 and of the results of operations of the Council for
the financial year ended on that date, including for all post balance date matters, as applicable.

The accounting and financial management policies, practices and records of the Council were at all
times maintained in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1999, Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and that the Financial Report was prepared
in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999, Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011, Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board together with all other mandatory professional reporting
requirements in Australia.





ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

(1) Cash on hand at balance date was represented by cash floats reconciled and on hand as at
30 June 2022.

(2) Cash .at bank at balance .date represented the reconciled operating account(s) of the
Council.

3) Short term deposits represented amounts held with the LGFA by the Council.

Rates and Other Receivables

(1 Current rate receivables at balance date represented all outstanding amounts owed by rate
payers.

(2) Current other receivables at balance date represented all outstanding amounts owed by
debtors other than rate payers.

(3) Debts due at balance date that are known {o be uncollectible have since been written-off and
adequate provision has been made for impairment to cover allowances, discounts and
losses that may be sustained by Council in the collection of the debts.

Inventories.

(1) All inventories were the property of the Council and have either been paid for or the liability
has been brought to account.

(2) All inventories have been physically counted and valued in accordance with the applicable
Australian Accounting Standard.

Other Current Assets

(1) Prepayments at balance date represented payments for goods and services to be received
in the 30 June 2022 financial year.

(2) There are no non-current assets held for sale.

Financial Assets — Loans to Community Groups

(1) There are no grounds to provide for any impairment loss for loans to community groups or
other organisations, none are held.

Investments Accounted using the Equity Method

(1)  Council has complied with all applicable Australian Accounting Standards with regard to
Council’s equity in subsidiaries, regional subsidiaries and other interests, as applicable.

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment and Depreciation

(1) Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment at the 2022 balance date was represented by
the following fair values, cost, accumulated depreciation and carrying amounts for each
class of asset, in accordance with all prescribed requirements and standards, as follows:





3)

(4)

S

(6)

(7)

(8)

As at 30/6/22

Accumulated Carrying

At Fair Value At Cost Depreciation Amount
\Waste Management 3 1,683 8,548 (8,086) 2,145
Capital Works in Progress 0 57,789 0 57,789
Land 2 15,601 0 0 15,601
Land 3 37,683 133 0 37,816
Office Equipment 0 2,288 (1,609) 679
Riddoch Collection 3 3,515 10 0 3,525
Buildings & Other Structures 2 3,987 33 (2,131) 1,889
Buildings & Other Structures 3 102,030 1,343 (50,605) 52,768
Stormwater Drajnage 3 8,022 27 (2,471) 5,678
Kerbing and Footpaths 3 74,038 3,533 (20,981) 56,590
Roads 3 66,929 6,099 (22,029) 50,999
Carparks 3 10,451 127 (3,122) 7,456
Right-of-use Assets o] 593 (349) 244
Piant & Equipmerit 0 9,385 (3,304) 6,081
Other Assets 0 4,408 (2,497) 1,911
Total Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 323,939 S (117,184) 301,171
Comparatives 326,725 49,881 (113,185) 263,422

The additions during the 2022 financial year to Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
general ledger control accounts and asset registers represents the cost of additions and or
improvements to existing facilities or replacements thereof. All units of property which have
been replaced, sold, dismantled or otherwise disposed of, or which are permanently
unusable, have been removed from general ledger and applicable asset register. Adequate
provision, determined in a manner consistent with that of the preceding financial year, has
been made to write-off depreciable assets over their useful economic working lives.

No circumstances have arisen which render adherence to the existing basis of depreciation
misleading or inappropriate and that depreciation expense for the financial year ended 30
June 2022 is reliable.

All additions to depreciable assets represent actual additions or improvements of a capital
nature, based on capitalisation thresholds consistently applied for the 2022 financial year
and unchanged from the 2021 financial year.

Where the recorded carrying amount of any depreciable assets exceeds its recoverable
amount as at 30 June 2022, that asset’s recorded carrying amount has been written down to
its recoverable amount.

Contractual commitments for capital expenditure(s) included in the Financial Report payable
not later than one year are as described in the notes accompanying the Financial Report. It
should be noted that in Note 18 Events after the Balance Sheet date that a deed of
seitlement and variation was signed with Badge (SA) Pty Ltd on 5 September 2022 which
amended the timescales for the delivery of the Wulanda project and the amount payable.

There are no deficiencies or encumbrances attaching to the title of the assets of the Council
at 30 June 2022 other than those reflected in the financial report and those are not greater
than the value of the asset.

No Operating or Finance Lease commitments exist that have not been disclosed in the
Financial Report. All Operating Lease expenses have been fully disclosed in the notes to
the 2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income. Finance Leasing commitments have been
fully disclosed in the notes to the 2022 Balance Sheet.

No asset revaluations of infrastructure assets were undertaken during the 2022 financial
year.





©)

Depreciation expense reported in the 2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income is reliable,
being based on reliable ‘whole of life’ asset management information for each class of
depreciable non-current asset.

LIABILITIES — Current and Non-Current

(1)
(2)
(3)

(4)
()

{7)

(8)

9)

(10)

All liabilities which have arisen or which will arise out of the activities of the Council to the
end of the 2022 financial year have been included in the 2022 Financial Report.

All outstanding trade payables at balance date have been taken up as at the 2022 balance
date.

All applicable accrued wages and salaries and accrued employee entitlements at the 2022
balance date have been taken up.

All accrued interest at the 2022 balance date have been taken up.
All revenue received in advance as at the 2022 balance date have been taken up.

Provisions for employee benefits, inclusive of on-costs, all discounted as at the 2022
balance date representing long service leave benefits calculated for all valid employees (as
at balance date) have been taken up.

Accrued employee benefits represent annual leave accrued for all valid employees as at the
2022 balance date.

Borrowings as at the 2022 balance date represented amounts owed to the Local
Government Finance Authority and have varying maturity- dates and interest rates with
details fully provided in the notes to the 2022 Financial Report.

There were no contingent liabilities including for:

a) guarantees;

b) bills and accounts receivable discounted, -assigned or sold and which are subject to
recourse;

c) endorsements; or

d) repurchase agreements.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects
should be ‘considered when preparing the financial report; and accounted for and disclosed
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

EQUITY

(1)

(2)

3)

4)

There have been no adjustments to the Accumulated Surplus other than those allowable
under the Australian Accounting Standards.

There have been no adjustments to the Asset Revaluation Reserve other those allowable
under the Australian Accounting standards and the balance of the reserve has been
reconciled to each class of asset.

All reserve funds required by legislation to be maintained have been at all times maintained
in the accounting records of the Council, with the exception of the Open Space Reserve as
detailed below.

All transfers to and from reserve funds (including the Accumulated Surplus) are aligned with
previous years with the exception of the following:





(5)

(6)
(7)

¢ Open Space Reserve - This was reinstated for the FY 2022 year aligned with
legislation;

¢ Waste Management Reserve - Following the adoption of the 2021/2022 Annual
Business Plan in June 2021 a reserve has been established (as foreshadowed in the
adopted Annual Business Plan document that stated “The WSC (Waste Service Charge)
will be used to cover all waste associated costs. In any year that the total WSC results in
a surplus, funds will be accounted for in a specific ‘waste’ reserve as per the Local
Government Act 1999, to be used on waste related services”); and

e Prior Year Correction - FY 2022 has been restated as requested following the interim
audit for 2021/2022 in April 2022 which has resulted in a transfer of $5,390k between
Accumulated Surplus and the Asset Revaluation Reserve (Other Infrastructure Assets).

¢ Prior Year Correction — FY 2022 has been restated with entries requested following
the balance date audit for 1 July and 30 July for the Caroline landfill construction and
capping assets. This resulted in a $1,676k adjustment to Accumulated Surplus as at 1
July 2022.

Other than for the Asset Revaluation Reserve, all other reserve accounts are those applied
for 2022 Council budget purposes and have the same balances as at 30 June 2022, with
the exception of those items noted in point 4 above.

Council does not maintain a “Contingency Reserve’ (or equivalent).

No reserves are ‘cash backed’.

2022 STATEMENT OF COMPREHESIVE INCOME

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Please find attached a summary of all variations greater than 10% for all income and
expense amounts (variances less than $5,000 have been deemed immaterial and not
included) disclosed in the 2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income, compared to 2021.

Please find enclosed a summary of all 2022 amounts that have been re-classified in the
2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income, including the reasons for the reclassification.

All depreciable physical resources received free of charge have been included in the
appropriate asset register and depreciated from the date when Council assumed control (of
the asset).

Depreciation expense for 2022 is in accordance with Council's asset registers and has been
determined on the same basis as for 2021 with the exception of Caroline Landfill where
depreciation has been restated to amortise the assets over the available airspace of the
landfill rather than on a straight- line depreciation basis.

Salaries and Wages expense disclosed in the 2022 Statement of Comprehensive Income
reconciles to the last budgeted salaries and wage amount approved by Council for 2022
annual budget funding purposes.

Capital grants have been correctly separatéd from operating grants, in accordance with the
requirements of the Model Financial Statements.

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Operating Surplus Ratio - The ratio in FY 2022 is significantly greater than the previous year and
the anticipated target as per the adopted budget, driven by the rating increase of 4.5%, higher than
expected untied grant revenue (Financial Assistance Grants and LRCI) and higher Landfill charges
and cemetery fees. Operating expenditure is also lower than the previous year where employee
costs are broadly in line with the prior year and depreciation is higher which is more than offset by
lower materials contracts other driven by lower consultant expenditure and a more focused
approach to financial controls in the year.





Net Financial Liabilities Ratio — The ratio is higher than the previous year driven by increased
borrowings from the Wulanda project. It should be noted that the ratio is lower than the target set in
the adopted budget where borrowings are lower than anticipated due to Wulanda and other capital
projects timing.

Asset Renewal Funding Ratio — This is lower than the previous year, LTFP/adopted budget target
and SA recommended target. Disruptions and supply shortages combined with the organisation’s
capacity to deliver have impacted upon the timing of the renewals program. A review of the
organisation’s capacity to deliver is expected to occur in the first half of FY 2023.

OTHER REQUIRED REPRESENTATIONS

(1)

(2)

)

(4)

®)

(6)

()

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)
(12)

No events have occurred (or are known to occur) subsequent to the 30 June 2022 that
would require any consideration for adjustment to or additional disclosure in the 2022
Financial Report.

The Council does not have any plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying
value or classification of all assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2022.

The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual arrangements and agreements that-
would have a material effect on the 2022 Financial Report in the event of non-compliance.

There were no material commitments for construction or acquisition of property, plant and
equipment or to acquire other non-current assets, other than those disclosed in the 2022
Financial Report.

There are no violations or possible violations of laws, compulsory standards or regulations
whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the 2022 Financial Report or as a basis
for recording as an expense or otherwise.

The methods, the data, and the significant assumptions used in making accounting
estimates, and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition,
measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in the context of the applicable financial
reporting framework.

The Council has full title to all assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

All details concerning related party transactions and related amounts receivable or payable
(including sales, purchases, loans and guarantees) have been correctly recorded in the
accounting records. All related parties have been identified and disclosed to you during your
audit.

The Council reviews, at least on a quarterly basis, the adequacy of insurance cover on all
assets and insurable risks. This review has been consistently performed, and where it is
considered appropriate, assets and insurable risks of the Council are at all times adequately
covered by appropriate insurance.

The minutes of all meetings of Council and its Committees were made available to you and
are complete and authentic records of all such meetings held during the 2022 financial year
and to the date of this letter. All other statutory records were properly kept at all times during
the year and have been made available to you for audit purposes.

All audit correspondence has been formally and promptly responded.

All audit correspondence has been referred to Council and Council’'s Audit and Risk
Committee.





(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

Salaries and wages records together with records for the Goods and Service Tax were at all
times fully maintained in accordance with the requirements of the Australian Taxation Office,
as applicable.

All documentation relating to the capture of Related Party Disclosures and Transactions
(AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures) including all authorised forms provided by the
deemed Key Management Personnel, evidence of review of total related party transactions
processed during the financial year by the Council e.g. Transaction reports of payments
made by Council to related parties and any working papers of calculation methodologies for
the disclosures in the 30 June 2022 financial statements have been made available to the
auditors.

All deemed material transactions relating to Related Party Disclosures and Transactions
(AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures) have been included and adequately disclosed in the
30 June 2022 financial statements.

Council has formally in place and has at all times maintained an appropriate standard of
accounting, internal control structure and framework, segregation of duties and risk
management structure and framework across the entire organisation, including appropriate
controls and mechanisms specifically designed to prevent and detect fraud and error.
Further, we advise that there have not been any instances of fraud or error during the
financial year ended 30 June 2022 or to the date of this letter. In addition, there are no
matters that should be brought to your attention for the purposes of your making an
assessment as to Sections 129(5) and 129(6) of the Local Government Act 1999.

The 2022 Financial Report has been adjusted for all agreed audit adjustments for the year
ended 30 June 2022.

Council’'s Audit and Risk Committee has addressed all of its prescribed responsibilities and
no member of the Committee has undertaken other professional services for the Council.

In our opinion, there are no grounds to believe that the Council will not be able to pay its
debts as and when they fall due, that assets will be at all time maintained to the service
standards currently determined by Council and accordingly, the Council is long term
financially sustainable.

Yours sincerely

MEp80 E@ﬁ ]

Chief Executive Officer

Enclosures (as applicable)

Enclosure 1 - Statement of Comprehensive Income Variance Analysis





2021 Variance Variance

2022 Draft

Actuals $'000s Ref Actuals t© Prfor Yr to Prior Yr
$'k %
Income
22,769 Rates 23,822 1,053 4.6%
621  Statutory Charges 633 12 1.9%
4,880 User Charges 1 5,515 635 13.0%
4,505 Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 2 6,615 2,110 46.8%
25 Investment Income 3 14 (11) -44.0%
60 Reimbursements 65 5 8.3%
635  Other Income 498 (137) -21.6%
Expenses
13,058 Employee Costs 13,090 (32) -0.2%
14,018 Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses 13,234 784 5.6%
7,940 Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 8,479 (539) 6.8%
226  Finance Costs 5 358 (132) -58.4%
35,242 Total Expenses 35,161 81 0.2%
(1,747) Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 2,001 3,748 215%
1,230 Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 6 1,760 530 43.1%
(730) Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments (787) (57} -7.8%
2,677 Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 7 17,940 15,263 570.2%

Net Surplus / (Deficit) 20,914 19,484 1363%

0 Total Other Comprehensive Income 0 0 0

1,430 Total Comprehensive Income 20,914 19,484 1363%

As per the reference numbers listed, 'please find explanations for material variances of greater than
+/- 10% for 2022, compared to 2021:

1.

User Charges Increase $635k — Mainly due to increased landfill charges $475k (partly offset by
additional expenditure) and additional cemetery fees $98k.

Grants, Subsidies, Contributions Increase $2,110k — Including the following:

e Additional Financial Assistance Grants Increase $1,724k - (including 75% additional
payment of following year's grant compared to 50% in previous year and payment of Special
Local Roads Fund (no payment was made in 2021 as the payment for that year had been
received in 2019).

» LRCI Grant Funding Increase $473k - Council received $716k (50% of the Phase 2 grant
of $520k and 40% of the Phase 1 grant $196k), compared to 50% of the Phase 1 grant
received in 2021 of $243k.

Investment Income Decrease ($11k) - Lower investment income arising from higher
borrowings.

Other Income Decrease ($137k) - Main variances include trainee/training revenue $152k, more
than offset by lower open space revenue ($174k) and fuel tax credits ($62k).

Finance Costs Increase ($132k) - Higher finance costs mainly due to increased Caroline
unwinding of NPV costs ($149k).

Physical Resources Free Of Charge Increase $530k - Increased revenue from
developments/land divisions including: Footpaths & Kerbing $288k and Roads $316k.

Amounts Received for New/Upgraded Assets Increase $15,263k - Mainly grant revenue for
Wulanda $9,000k from State Government ($7,500k higher than the previous year of $1,500k)
and $8,500k from Federal Government ($7,000k higher than the previous year).





